
 
1 
 

  
Notice of a meeting of 

Council 
 

Friday, 10 February 2012 
2.30 pm 

Council Chamber, Municipal Offices 
 

Membership 
Councillors: Barbara Driver (Chair), Colin Hay (Vice-Chair), Garth Barnes, 

Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter, Chris Coleman, Tim Cooper, Bernard Fisher, 
Jacky Fletcher, Wendy Flynn, Rob Garnham, Les Godwin, Penny Hall, 
Rowena Hay, Diane Hibbert, Sandra Holliday, Peter Jeffries, 
Steve Jordan, Robin MacDonald, Paul Massey, Helena McCloskey, 
Andrew McKinlay, Heather McLain, Paul McLain, John Rawson, 
Anne Regan, Diggory Seacome, Duncan Smith, Malcolm Stennett, 
Charles Stewart, Klara Sudbury, Lloyd Surgenor, Jo Teakle, 
Pat Thornton, Jon Walklett, Andrew Wall, John Webster, 
Paul Wheeldon, Simon Wheeler and Roger Whyborn 

The Council has a substitution process and any substitutions will be announced at the 
meeting 

 
Agenda  

    
1.  PRAYERS  
   
2.  APOLOGIES  
   
3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
4.  TO APPROVE AND CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING 

HELD ON; 
12 December 2011 

(Pages 
1 - 12) 

   
5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

These must be received no later than 10am on the fifth working day 
before the date of the meeting.  

 

   
6.  APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR ELECT AND DEPUTY MAYOR 

2012/13 
Report of the Chief Executive 

(Pages 
13 - 18) 

   
7.  COMMUNICATIONS BY THE MAYOR  
   
8.  COMMUNICATIONS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  
   



    

 
2 
 

9.  MEMBER QUESTIONS  
   

10.  ADOPTION OF LICENSING ACT 2003 POLICY STATEMENT 
Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 

(Pages 
19 - 58) 

   
11.  GENERAL FUND REVENUE AND CAPITAL - REVISED BUDGET 

2011/12 AND FINAL BUDGET PROPOSALS 2012/13 FOR 
CONSULTATION (INCLUDING SECTION 25 REPORT) 
Report of the Cabinet Member Finance & Community Development 
and the Director of Resources 
 
The following is the recommended process to be followed for 
the debate relating to the Council’s Budget for 2012 – 2013, 
(Agenda item 11). The rules of procedure shall be varied 
accordingly for this item only. 
 
1. The Mayor to propose suspension of the following rules 

of debate: 
 
- That the time limit on speeches is relaxed with regard to the 

following speeches:- 
  

� Cabinet Member Finance and Community 
Development, (F), when moving the motion to adopt 
the budget being proposed by the Cabinet (“the 
Cabinet’s budget”), Stage 2(i). 

 
� Group Leaders when making Budget Statement on 

behalf of group, Stage 3(i) – (ii). 
 
-  To permit the Cabinet Member F and Group leaders to speak 

more than once in the debate, (in addition to any right of reply 
etc), for the purpose of putting and answering questions at 
Stage 2(iii).  

 
2. Budget Statement and moving of motion 
 
(i)  The Cabinet Member F shall deliver the budget statement and 

formally move the resolutions set out in paragraph 1.2 of the 
report of the Cabinet Member Finance. (N.B. Not time limited) 

 
(ii) The seconder shall formally second the motion. (N.B. The 

seconder may reserve their speech until later in the debate 
prior to the closing speeches) 5 minute limit applies. 

 
(iii) Members may then ask questions of the Cabinet Member F 

(who may refer them to the Chief Finance Officer when 
appropriate), on matters relating to agenda item 13. (N.B. 
members are limited to one question only, without 
supplementary, and the Cabinet Member F shall wait until all 
questions have been put before responding). 

 
3. Statements by Group Leaders  
 
(i) Statement on behalf of the Conservative Group including 

tabling but not moving, any proposed amendment to the 

(Pages 
59 - 
112) 



    

 
3 
 

Cabinet’s budget. (no time limit) 
 
(ii) Statement on behalf of the People Against Bureaucracy 

Group including tabling, but not moving, any proposed 
amendment to the Cabinet’s budget. (No time limit). 

 
4. Formal moving, Seconding, debating, discussion and 

voting on any amendments tabled in the following order: 
 
 - People Against Bureaucracy Group 
 - Conservative Group 
 
N.B.   

� The Cabinet Member F has the right to a speech in 
reply at the end of the debate on any amendment. (10 
mins). 

 
� The mover of an amendment may speak to move the 

amendment, (10 mins), and also has the right of reply 
to the debate immediately before the speech of the 
Cabinet Member F. (10 mins). 

 
� Amendments carried will become part of the 

substantive motion going forward. Once all proposed 
amendments have been debated and put to the vote 
the final version of the motion shall go forward to the 
next stage. 

 
5. Consideration of Amendments 
 
(a)  If the Cabinet’s budget has not been amended, the Cabinet 

Member Finance and Community Development to formally 
propose the budget (no speech), and the final proposal will be 
debated and voted upon subject to the Cabinet Member F's 
right of reply (10 mins). 

 
(b)  If the Cabinet’s budget has been amended, before it is further 

debated and voted upon, the Mayor shall propose a brief 
adjournment in order that the Cabinet Member F can consider 
whether: 

 
(i) the amendments are acceptable to the Cabinet - in 

which case the meeting will proceed as at (a) 
above; or 

  
(ii) the amendments are not acceptable to the Cabinet 

- in which case, the meeting will proceed as at (a) 
above save that, in accordance with the Budget 
and Policy Framework Rules, the Council may only 
make an in-principle decision which will be 
published and provided to the Leader of the 
Council for consideration. 

 
   
12.  HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUSINESS PLAN 

Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 
(Pages 
113 - 



    

 
4 
 

144) 
   
13.  HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT - REVISED BUDGET 2011/12 

AND FINAL BUDGET PROPOSALS 2012/13 FOR 
CONSULTATION 
Joint report of the Cabinet Member Finance & Community 
Development and the Director of Resources 

(Pages 
145 - 
160) 

   
14.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND 

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2012/13 
Report of the Director of Resources 

(Pages 
161 - 
184) 

   
15.  NOTICES OF MOTION  
   

16.  TO RECEIVE PETITIONS  
   

17.  ANY OTHER ITEM THE MAYOR DETERMINES AS URGENT AND 
WHICH REQUIRES A DECISION 

 
   

 
Contact Officer:  Saira Malin, Democracy Officer, 01242 775153 

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Friday, 10 February 2012. 
 

Council 
 

Monday, 12th December, 2011 
2.30  - 4.30 pm 

 
Attendees 

Councillors: Barbara Driver (Chair), Anne Regan, Garth Barnes, 
Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter, Chris Coleman, Tim Cooper, 
Bernard Fisher, Jacky Fletcher, Wendy Flynn, Penny Hall, 
Colin Hay (Vice-Chair), Rowena Hay, Diane Hibbert, 
Sandra Holliday, Peter Jeffries, Steve Jordan, Robin MacDonald, 
Paul Massey, Helena McCloskey, Heather McLain, Paul McLain, 
John Rawson, Diggory Seacome, Duncan Smith, 
Malcolm Stennett, Charles Stewart, Klara Sudbury, 
Lloyd Surgenor, Jo Teakle, Pat Thornton, Jon Walklett, 
Andrew Wall, Paul Wheeldon, Simon Wheeler and 
Roger Whyborn 

 
 

Minutes 
 
 

1. PRAYERS 
Reverend Tim Mayfield opened the meeting with a prayer.  
 

2. APOLOGIES 
Councillor(s) Garnham, Mckinlay and Webster had given their apologies.  
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Councillor Barnes declared a personal interest in agenda item 15 as the 
chairman of the Trustees referred to in the report.   
 
Councillor Hall declared a personal interest in agenda item 15 as a member of 
the Trustees referred to in the report.   
 
Councillor Driver declared a personal interest in agenda item 15 as the Mayor 
was an ex-officio member of the Trustees referred to in the report and 
announced her intention to leave the chamber for agenda item17. 
 
Councillor Whyborn declared a personal interest in Agenda item 10 as a 
member of Hatherley Parish Council. 
 
Councillor McCloskey declared a personal interest in Agenda item 10 as a 
member of Charlton Kings Parish Council. 
 
Councillor Regan declared a personal and prejudicial interest in Agenda item 10 
as a member of Leckhampton and Warden Hill Parish Council and would leave 
the chamber for this item. 
 

4. TO APPROVE AND CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 
10 NOVEMBER 2011 

Agenda Item 4
Page 1



 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Friday, 10 February 2012. 
 

The draft minutes of the last meeting had been circulated with the agenda.  
 
The Mayor reminded members that the purpose of the minutes of a meeting is 
to enable the reader to understand the context and reasons for the decision 
which was taken. Minutes are not a verbatim record of the content of the 
meeting but a summary of the proceedings which occurred. Consequently, 
speeches by members of the Council will not appear in full, but the main points 
will be summarised. The minutes must, of course, be accurate and therefore if 
there is any concern as to the accuracy, the appropriate amendment should be 
proposed and, if seconded, the Council will vote on whether or not to accept the 
amendment.  
 
Councillor Bickerton advised that there were two important points he had raised 
during the debate on the consultation for the Joint Core Strategy which he did 
not feel were covered in the minutes. He referred to a printed sheet that had 
been circulated to members in which he proposed the following amendment.  
 
“I request that the following text to be added to the 10th Nov. 2011 Council 
minutes, on page 13 following the paragraph beginning 
 
“A number of Member voiced concerns…….”   
A member said that in his view the Council needed to promote this public 
consultation, make it easy for the public to give comment and feedback in any 
form, email and simple website access and letters. He requested that a simple 
an e-petition website be provided on CBC Website, a short member agreed 
questionnaire and comment, to further promote public consultation in 
Cheltenham. 
 
Given the size of the JCS tome issued to members last week, over 500 pages, 
not including the JCS evidence base, he considered it was fair to say that the 
public were going to find a consultation period of 8 weeks difficult. The 
complexity of the JCS with economic, social and environmental dimensions 
would be difficult to assimilate and analyse in this short period, members had 
the advantage of many member briefings. He requested officers to consider 
ways and means of extending the consultation period, keeping public 
engagement open to the summer of 2012 whilst maintaining the JCS Timetable.             
 
He further added t hat the themes starting on page 84 demonstrate that 
development to the north and south of Cheltenham  (C2 & C6) have little or no 
advantages, they do not feature in Theme 2 – Coalescence Avoidance or 
Theme 3 Existing Infrastructure and in Theme 1 the economic opportunities 
narrative fails to make a case under access to infrastructure or accessibility. 
Having looked at the JCS previous public consultation, development maps on 
page 165/166, he urged members to note the very few green dots on open 
countryside and the many RED marking inappropriate for development.” 
 
In the absence of a seconder for this proposed amendment, it was dismissed.   
 
Upon a vote it was   
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 10 November 2011 
were agreed and signed as an accurate record.  
 

Page 2



 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Friday, 10 February 2012. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
The following response was given to the public question received. The 
questioner was not present at the meeting so there was no supplementary 
question.  
 
1. Question from Mr George Readman to the Leader of the Council 
 Figures provided by the council in response to  Freedom of Information 

request (ref 1455) show that, in addition to mileage costs, more than 90 
employees were paid the essential car user rate in the years 2007/08 and 
2008/09, and from  2009/10 more than 80. 
 
A review was carried out in October 2010, and although the criteria had 
not changed, found that only 40 satisfied the criteria for "essential user" 
rate and the remaining 41, which included ALL of the senior management 
team, should have the benefit removed or reduced. Payment was not 
stopped and they continued to receive the "essential user" payment, at 
over £100/month each, until April 2011 when the changed rules would 
allow them to be paid "compensation" because the allowance had been 
either lost or reduced. 
 
Will the Leader of the Council please explain; 
 

A. Why the payment continued to be paid after the review to those 
found not to qualify and; 

 
B. Why the council changed the car user policy and arranged that 

those who failed to meet the criteria and either lost the allowance 
or had it reduced, result should be compensated for losing a 
benefit for which they no longer qualified? 
 

 Response from the Cabinet Member Corporate Services  
  

A. The Council has consulted with its staff and their 
representatives to review the application of the car allowance 
policy to identify much needed cost saving measures. There has 
been a clear emphasis of collective responsibility across the 
Council to find these financial savings and the payment of car 
allowances is just one example of this approach. This does not 
mean that the previous payments were inappropriate or in breach 
of the policy. Indeed, there is evidence that some staff (notably 
within the senior leadership team) have effectively waived their 
right to receive car allowances in recognition of the imperative for 
financial savings. 
The Council’s agreed Car User Policy provides for an annual 
review and an agreed means of withdrawing the allowance. The 
Council is fully entitled to agree such policies locally as part of The 
Green Book (National Terms and Conditions) Part three 
provisions 
 

Page 3



 
 
 

 

 
- 4 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Friday, 10 February 2012. 
 

B. I refer you to my previous answer.  
 

  
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS BY THE MAYOR 
The Mayor congratulated the Tourist Information Centre for being awarded a 
Green Tourism Business Award in silver. 
 
She referred to the seminar which had been held prior to the Council meeting 
by Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue and urged members to respond to the 
questionnaire which had been circulated. 
 

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
The Leader advised members that the consultation on the Joint Core Strategy 
would be launched on Tuesday 13 December. There would be a range of 
exhibitions, presentations and seminars throughout the consultation period and 
all members were urged to participate. 
 

8. MEMBER QUESTIONS 
The following responses were given to the two Member questions received and 
there were no supplementary questions. 
 
1. Question from Councillor Surgenor to Cabinet Member 

Sustainability, Councillor Whyborn 
 Will the Cabinet member confirm that the collection of Garden Waste is 

not losing money?  
 

 Response from Cabinet Member Sustainability, Councillor Whyborn 
 Yes. Take up of brown bins is now 11,000, and the latest budget update 

for 2011/12 is as follows: 
Expenditure  £409,400 
Income        £414,000 
 
To put this in context, had the Council not introduced the new brown bin 
scheme, and still had to bear the cost of the previous scheme, it is 
doubtful if there would have been sufficient revenue to fund the new 
kerbside recycling scheme for food and plastics. The consequence of 
such inaction would have been to preclude the increase in Cheltenham’s 
recycling rate to 50% in the first quarter of 2011/12. 

  
2. Question from Councillor Surgenor to Cabinet Member 

Sustainability, Councillor Whyborn 
 Will he confirm that we are still working towards a joint waste partnership 

with Gloucestershire CC and other district councils for both environmental 
and cost saving reasons? 
 

 Response from Cabinet Member Sustainability, Councillor Whyborn 
 Yes we are, and clearly the principle of combining the collection and 

disposal organisations enables more effective and efficient working, as 
does the principle of working across boundaries with other collection 
authorities, and sharing resources etc etc. However it would be right to 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
- 5 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Friday, 10 February 2012. 
 

add some caveats, in that Tewkesbury Borough Council have now put the 
Joint Waste Committee on hold, as far as TBC participation is concerned. 
 
As a consequence Cabinet will re-examine the business case for the 
Joint Waste Committee. Secondly Tewkesbury Borough Council have 
now applied to join the Local Authority owned company for waste 
collection (and some other functions, e.g. Park maintenance). This is a 
welcome step and accords with CBC’s direction of travel. However 
Cabinet will want to be satisfied that this Council, and its partners in the 
LA company, will derive maximum benefit from the joining with other 
collection authorities, and on that basis negotiate maximum further 
benefits from joining with the disposal authority in a wider waste 
partnership. 
 

  
 

9. TREASURY MID TERM REPORT 2011/12 
The Head of Financial Services introduced the item and explained that both the 
Treasury Management Panel and Cabinet had met to consider this report. The 
report highlighted a need to change some of the Council’s current Prudential 
indicators in respect of the additional Housing Revenue Account (HRA) debt 
which the Council would be required to take on under the HRA Self Financing 
Proposals. The proposed additional debt amounted to £27.9 million. 
 
The Leader of the Council welcomed the changes relating to the financing of the 
Housing Revenue Account which meant that money would be kept in 
Cheltenham for investment in its housing stock.  He stated that this was a good 
news report, particularly in view of the continuing difficult economic climate. 
 
When asked whether the receipt of the Icelandic investment could be used to 
offset debt rather than being reinvested, the Head of Financial Services 
explained that this was unlikely to be received prior to 1 April 2012. He 
emphasised that the new borrowing would be wholly funded by the Housing 
Revenue Account and so there would be no cost to the council tax payer. .  
 
The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety expressed her concerns that 
members may not have a full understanding of the Housing Revenue Account 
and suggested that a seminar for all members may be useful.  
 
Upon a vote the recommendations were agreed unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED that in compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code 
of Practice the report be noted. 
 

10. COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW 
Having declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this item Councillor 
Regan left the room for this item and did not participate in the debate. 
 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services introduced the report as circulated 
with the agenda and explained that guidance under the Local Government and 
Public Involvement in Health Act suggested that councils should consider 
conducting a parish boundary review every 10-15 years. Three parish councils- 
Up Hatherley and Leckhampton and Warden Hill and Charlton Kings had 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
- 6 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Friday, 10 February 2012. 
 

expressed an interest in a boundary review in 2012/13. If Council agreed to 
undertake a review it was proposed that a working party comprising 2 Liberal 
Democrats, 2 Conservatives and 1 PAB member would be set up to support it. 
It was proposed that the terms of reference for the review should be drawn up 
by the working group in March with a report to be sent to Council in July 2012. 
 
A question was raised by Members as to whether the review was only taking 
place within borough boundaries or whether this was an opportunity to look at 
boundaries more generally. The Cabinet Member said that scope of this review 
was confined to the existing boundaries but undertook to find out when a more 
general review of boundaries would take place.  
 
The issue was raised as to whether the remit of the review should also cover 
the whole town so that non parished areas could have the opportunity of 
becoming a parish. Existing neighbourhood partnerships were given as an 
example where the area could benefit from being able to raise its own revenue 
for local reinvestment. Likewise there may be areas wishing to have their parish 
council status removed. In terms of the make up the review group, it would be 
helpful to include members who were not also parish councillors to provide a 
balance.   
 
In response to the questions raised the Cabinet member Corporate Services 
reiterated that membership of the review group would comprise 2 Liberal 
Democrats, 2 Conservatives and 1 PAB member and parish councillors would 
be invited to submit their views. At least one of the members of the review 
group should not be a parish councillor as well. He highlighted that it was not 
intended for the review to be resource intensive and there would be 
opportunities in the future as a Council to examine neighbourhood governance 
via the Localism Act. 
 
Upon a vote it was  
 
RESOLVED that  
 

1. a community governance review of parish boundaries be 
undertaken in 2012/13 ahead of parish elections in 2014 

2. the Director of Commissioning be authorised to set up a cross 
party member working group (which would also involve parish 
council representatives) to support the review and to build the 
review into the corporate strategy action plan for 2012/13 and that 
terms of reference for the review to be drawn up by the working 
group in March 2012 for approval by Council no later than July 
2012. 

 
(Voting carried with 2 abstentions) 
 

11. ADOPTION OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE BYELAWS 
The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety introduced the report which sought 
Council approval to repeal the current Hackney Carriage byelaws and to adopt 
the revised model byelaws.  
 
The Cabinet Member outlined the background to the proposals and explained 
that the Licensing Committee approved the proposed Department of Transport 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
- 7 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Friday, 10 February 2012. 
 

model byelaws for the purpose of consultation on 13 May 2011. Following this a 
12 week consultation was undertaken with the Hackney Carraige trade and one 
response was received. On 7 October the Licensing Committee resolved to 
recommend the adoption of the models byelaws by full Council. 
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that the Hackney Carriage byelaws dated 22 November 1951 
be repealed and the revised model byelaws attached as Appendix 2 be 
adopted. 
 

12. NEW ARRANGEMENTS FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services introduced the report which set out 
the background to the scrutiny review and its findings. He commended the 
workshops run by Democratic Services which had drawn out a number of 
issues that members had wanted to raise. The report set out the key principles 
for the new scrutiny arrangements which were centred on a single overview and 
scrutiny committee supported by task and finish groups.  In his view overview 
and scrutiny was greatly underutilised in the council and he stressed that if 
there was all-party support for a particular way forward on an issue, any Cabinet 
would find it difficult not to take that into account.  He hoped that the new 
arrangements would be the starting point for change and members would enjoy 
the focus and independence of the task and finish groups. He acknowledged 
that there was much further work to be done before the new arrangements were 
implemented in May 2012.  The constitutional changes would be supported by 
the Constitution Working Group and in terms of defining protocols and 
procedures for the new arrangements, he proposed an open invitation for any 
member to participate in the scrutiny workshops which would be arranged to 
seek members views. 
 
A member considered the new arrangements were change for change’s sake 
and their implementation would take up a lot of officer time unnecessarily.  He 
considered the system worked well at the moment and the current committee 
structure facilitated the setting up of working groups. He was concerned that if 
the task groups met in private, the public accountability and transparency of the 
current arrangements would disappear.  
 
Another member felt that the business of the council was too varied to be dealt 
with by a single committee and the current arrangements allowed members to 
build up specialist knowledge for their particular committee.  She was also 
concerned that the scrutiny management committee at the County Council had 
a tendency to get too involved in particular issues and the ruling group was able 
to veto what items went on to the scrutiny workplan. 
 
Other members spoke in support of the new arrangements and experience at 
the County did not mean the structure was wrong but purely the way it was 
operated.  They considered that task and finish groups had the potential to 
make much better use of members’ expertise but questioned whether a 
suggested limit of four task groups would be sufficient.  One member was 
concerned that members should not be disenfranchised by the timing of working 
groups, particularly those who were not available before 6 p.m. in the evening.  
It was important that when a working group was constituted, the members 
agreed the optimum time when the greatest number of members could attend. 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
- 8 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Friday, 10 February 2012. 
 

Other members spoke of the importance of Cabinet Member involvement and 
participation in the scrutiny process. There was a concern that it would always 
be the same group of members that were putting themselves forward for 
working groups. Members should be encouraged to participate in working 
groups where they had interest or expertise. A member highlighted that only 
14% of members had completed the recent member skills audit and she 
encouraged members to return the questionnaire if they have not already done 
so. 
 
Councillor Hall, as sponsor of the Scrutiny Review, considered that good 
member training and involvement would be important but there would also need 
to be a huge change in members commitment to the scrutiny process to ensure 
it was a successful. It was important that the workload was spread across all 
members. She reminded members that current task groups do not meet in 
public and and she hoped that members of the public would be invited to 
participate in the task groups. 
    
The Leader raised the issue of scrutiny of partnerships as there was no mention 
of this in the report and the new arrangements should make provision for this 
important role. He also highlighted that the council was not in a position to 
provide dedicated scrutiny officers and the new arrangements would rely on 
officers from the relevant service area to support the working groups. 
 
In his summing up, the Cabinet Member Corporate Services stressed that it was 
not change for change’s sake and most members responding to the 
questionnaire had wanted a change and supported more use of working groups. 
In his view it was not essential that every task group should report back to the 
overview and scrutiny committee and there would be flexibility here.  He 
acknowledged that resources would be a challenge but it was important to see 
how the new arrangements bedded in and then see what further resources 
were necessary.  It would be up to the overview and scrutiny committee to 
manage the scrutiny workplan and the available resources. The task and finish 
groups could go for a combination of private and public meetings and would 
also have the option to meet in alternative venues. Their final reports would 
always be made public. In his view there was no reason why the new 
arrangements should be dominated by the ruling group. Finally he encouraged 
members to complete the Member skills audit. 
 
Upon a vote it was  
 
RESOLVED that  
 

1. The key principles of the new scrutiny arrangements set out in 
sections 5.3 to 5.21 of the report be approved. 
 

2. Officers be authorised to develop the detailed procedures and 
processes to support the new arrangements ready for 
implementation immediately following the borough elections in 
May 2012, in consultation with the Project Sponsor, Councillor 
Penny Hall and the Cabinet Member Corporate Services. 
 

3. The Constitution Working Group be requested to review the 
constitutional changes required to support the new arrangements 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
- 9 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Friday, 10 February 2012. 
 

and include them in its planned revisions to the Council’s 
Constitution due for approval by Council in March 2012. 
 

4. Officers be authorised to reconvene the independent Members 
Remuneration Panel to review any changes to the Special 
Responsibility Allowances arising from the new arrangements. 
 

Voting For 26, Against 3 with 1 abstention.   
 

13. NOTICES OF MOTION 
No motions had been received.  
 

14. TO RECEIVE PETITIONS 
No petitions were received.  
 

15. ANY OTHER ITEM THE MAYOR DETERMINES AS URGENT AND WHICH 
REQUIRES A DECISION 
The Mayor advised Members of an urgent item which required a decision. The 
urgent decision was necessary because the Trustees had only just been 
advised by their external solicitors that the Council must have passed the 
resolutions set out in this report before a planned meeting of the Trustees in 
January.  
 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services introduced the report, on the 
Appointment of Trustees to the Hay and Strickland and other Charitable Trusts, 
which had been circulated prior to the meeting.  The report explained that the 
Council nominates trustees to 4 Charitable Trusts (Hay Trust Fund and the 
Caroline Strickland Homes, which provide almshouses at Naunton Park and 
Hales Road respectively, and the Turner Long Fund and the Walker Memorial 
Trust, which both provide for the grant of small sums of money to the elderly).  
 
The management of these four Trusts (who are separate legal entities, and 
whose accounts and records have to be maintained separately from the 
Council’s, and in accordance with Charity Commission requirements) was 
outside the course of the Council’s usual business, and imposed a substantial 
administrative burden both upon the nominated Members and upon Council 
staff. 
 
Discussions had therefore been taking place with the Cheltenham Family 
Welfare Association (CFWA) with a view to the CFWA taking over the 
administrative role in respect of the four Charities. The CFWA also had the 
necessary expertise to ensure the almshouse trusts were managed according 
to the high standards required for Almshouse management. The CFWA had 
expressed a willingness to do so, but as a condition of so doing required the 
power of appointment of trustees to be consistent with the other charitable 
trusts the CFWA manages.  
 
This requirement would mean that the Council would surrender its rights to 
nominate trustees in the future, and that the Mayor would no longer be an ex-
officio Trustee on any of the above named charities. 
 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services updated members on the consultation 
that had taken place with residents via newsletters, a consultation meeting and 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
- 10 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Friday, 10 February 2012. 
 

various visits to residents in their homes.  The majority of residents were 
comfortable with the move to CFWA who were well regarded in this field and 
best placed to do a better job for the residents than the council was able to 
provide. Residents were generally looking forward to the planned refurbishment 
of the properties and acknowledged that there was a need to increase their 
maintenance contributions to bring them in line with other almshouse properties 
offering similar facilities.    
 
Councillor Garth Barnes, as chair of the Trusts, supported the move to CFWA 
who had been managing almshouses for a number of years and were clearly 
running a tight ship.  He hoped that the Council would be able to support the 
recommendations which would ensure that the almshouses could remain 
sustainable in the future and available to current and future residents. 
 
A member questioned whether the Council should maintain a representative on 
the trustees to ensure that the Council could continue to have a role in ensuring 
that the charity was operating in the public good which had been the original 
intention of the benefactor. In response the Cabinet Member reassured 
members that the Board of Trustees for each one of the charities concerned 
would remain in place and it was the role of the Charity Commission to ensure 
that any charity was the fulfilling its aims and objectives.  
  
Upon a vote it was  
 
RESOLVED that  
 

1. Council consents to the amendment of the Schemes to the Hay 
Trust Fund, the Caroline Strickland Homes, the Turner Long Fund 
and the Walker Memorial Trust whereby the Council will no longer 
have power to nominate Trustees to those charities; and 
 

2. Council consents to the amendment of the Schemes to the Hay 
Trust Fund, the Caroline Strickland Homes, the Turner Long Fund 
and the Walker Memorial Trust whereby the Mayor of Cheltenham 
Borough Council will no longer be an ex-officio Trustee of those 
charities. 
 

Voting: For; 26 with 5 abstentions 
   

16. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 -EXEMPT INFORMATION 
Upon a vote it was (unanimously) 
 
RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government 
Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for the remaining 
agenda items as it is likely that, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, if members of the public are 
present there will be disclosed to them exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1,3 and 5, Part (1) Schedule (12A) Local Government Act 1972, 
namely: 
 
Paragraph 1; Information relating to any individual 
 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
- 11 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Friday, 10 February 2012. 
 

Paragraph 3; Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Paragraph 5; Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings 
 

17. EXEMPT MINUTES 
Following advice received from the Monitoring Officer, a number of Members 
left the meeting having declared their intention not to participate in this item.   
 
The following members were in attendance for this item:  
Councillors Garth Barnes, Nigel Britter, Tim Cooper, Bernard Fisher, 
Jacky Fletcher, Penny Hall, Diane Hibbert, Sandra Holliday, Pete Jeffries, 
Paul Massey, Helena McCloskey, John Rawson, Malcolm Stennett, 
Charles Stewart, Jo Teakle, Andy Wall, and Simon Wheeler.  
 
In the absence of the Mayor and Deputy Mayor, the Chief Executive took the 
chair and invited nominations for a member to preside as set out in rule eight of 
the Council Procedure Rules.  Councillor Barnes took the chair. 
 
The exempt minutes of the last meeting had been circulated with the agenda.   
 
Members were advised that as a number of members had left during the 
exempt business, the minutes should record which members were present for 
the vote. The following amendment was circulated:  
 
Members present for the vote were Councillors Barnes, Bickerton, Britter, 
Fletcher, Fisher, Hall, Holliday, Massey, McCloskey, Rawson, Stennett, 
Stewart, Sudbury and Wheeler.  
  
Councillor Fletcher advised that she had been present for the vote and 
therefore her name should be added and the voting for the motion be amended 
accordingly.  
 
It was also noted that in paragraph 11 the second sentence should read 
“however the financial implications had not been finalised at that time”. 
  
Upon a vote it was  
 
RESOLVED that the exempt minutes (as amended) of the meeting held on 
the 10 November 2011 be agreed and signed as an accurate record.  
Voting: CARRIED with 2 Abstentions 
 
 
 
 
 

Barbara Driver 
Chair 

 

Page 11



Page 12
This page is intentionally left blank



   
$4ub5zi2n.doc Page 1 of 4 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Council – 10 February 2012 

Appointment of Mayor and Deputy Mayor 2012-13 
Accountable member Leader, Councillor Steve Jordan 
Accountable officer Chief Executive, Andrew North 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

n/a 

Ward(s) affected All 
Significant Decision No  
Executive summary Councillor Colin Hay has served as Deputy Mayor since last year’s Annual 

Council Meeting and Members will be asked to elect him as Mayor at this 
year’s Annual Meeting. 
The Members shown as 1 – 6 at the head of the Order of Precedence in 
Appendix 2 have been approached to ascertain if they are willing and able 
to have their name put forward for appointment as Deputy Mayor for 2011-
2012.  Councillor (to be announced) indicated a willingness to put their 
name forward as Deputy Mayor subject to no other eligible councillor 
wishing to do so.   

Recommendations Council note the Order of Precedence in Appendix 2 and that 
Councillor Colin Hay and Councillor (to be announced) will be put to 
the Annual Council Meeting for election as Mayor and Deputy Mayor 
respectively for the municipal year 2012 - 2013. 

 
Financial implications The allowances for Mayor and Deputy Mayor have been included in the 

budget proposals for 2012/13.  
Contact officer: Mark Sheldon, mark.sheldon                
@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264123 

Legal implications Whilst the Council operates the Rules Relating To Order Of Precedence 
Of Members as a local convention, the Council has final discretion as to 
which members it appoints as its chairman and vice-chairman. 

Contact officer:  Peter Lewis, peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 
01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None 
Contact officer: Amanda Attfield,  
Amanda.attfield@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 26 4186 

Key risks None 

Agenda Item 6
Page 13



   
$4ub5zi2n.doc Page 2 of 4 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The Mayor and Deputy Mayor promote the corporate and community 
objectives in carrying out their role as civic heads.    

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None 

1. Background 
1.1 The rules relating to order of precedence of Members were amended by Council on 17 March 

2008 and are attached as Appendix 1.   
1.2 As part of that change it was agreed that once a councillor has achieved the office of Mayor they 

should remain at the bottom of the Order of Precedence in date order and should not be eligible 
to hold the office again unless all those above them on the Order of Precedence have chosen not 
to accept the honour or do not qualify for selection. 

1.3 In addition if was agreed that a member would not be eligible for consideration as Mayor unless 
they had a minimum of four years service prior to taking up office and a minimum of 3 years 
service prior to becoming Deputy Mayor.  

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The Council’s Constitution provides that the Mayor shall be elected and the Deputy Mayor 

appointed annually at the Annual Council Meeting. 
2.2 The Constitution also provides that in order to assist the Council the Chief Executive will maintain 

a list of members (called the “Order of Precedence”) showing members’ total service on the 
authority and, if appropriate their period of service since they served the Borough as its Mayor.  
This list is attached as Appendix 2.  

2.3 Whilst the Council must formally make these appointments at the Annual Council Meeting, in 
accordance with the Constitution, the Order of Precedence is presented to the first Council 
meeting in the calendar year.  

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 All the councillors with more service than Councillor (to be announced) formally declined to have 

their names put forward for the position of Deputy Mayor.  

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 Not applicable 

Report author Contact officer: Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager              
Rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 774937 

Appendices 1. Rules relating to order of Precedence of Members  
2. Order of Precedence 

Background information n/a 
 

Page 14



   
$4ub5zi2n.doc Page 3 of 4 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

Appendix 1 
THE RULES RELATING TO THE ORDER OF PRECEDENCE OF MEMBERS 

 
1. The Head of Paid Service (or the Monitoring Officer on his or her behalf) will maintain a list of all 

members showing their precedence in terms of: 
• their service on Cheltenham Borough Council,  

 
and this list will be referred to as “The Order of Precedence”. It is only of relevance in the 
determination of the succession of the posts of Mayor and Deputy Mayor. 

2. To be eligible for consideration as Mayor a member must have had a minimum of four years 
service prior to taking up office. 

3. To be eligible for consideration as Deputy Mayor a member must have had a minimum of three 
years service prior to taking up office. 

4. The Deputy Mayor appointed to serve as such in a particular municipal year will be elected Mayor 
for the following municipal year provided he or she is willing, and remains eligible, to accept that 
office. 

5. If the Deputy Mayor is unwilling or ineligible to accept nomination as Mayor, the nomination will 
be offered by the Head of Paid Service, following consultation with the Monitoring Officer, to 
members in accordance with The Order of Precedence until a member is able to accept the 
nomination. 

6. Not later than 31st December in any year the Head of Paid Service (or the Monitoring Officer on 
his or her behalf) will approach the member at the head of The Order of Precedence (other than 
the Deputy Mayor) to ascertain if he or she is willing to accept nomination as Deputy Mayor for 
the next municipal year. 

7. If the member approached by, or on behalf of, the Head of Paid Service is unwilling or unable to 
accept the nomination, the Head of Paid Service (or the Monitoring Officer on his or her behalf) 
will approach members in accordance with The Order of Precedence until a member is able to 
accept the nomination. 

 The Head of Paid Service will inform the Council of the member’s willingness to accept 
nomination at its first ordinary meeting in the new calendar year. 

8 The fact that a member approached by, or on behalf of, the Head of Paid Service is unwilling or 
unable to accept nomination as Deputy Mayor for a particular municipal year, shall not prevent 
that member being approached again in accordance with The Order of Precedence. 

9. Where members have equal periods of service, a member with unbroken service on Cheltenham 
Borough Council will take precedence over a member with broken service. 

10 Members who have served the borough as Mayor will be moved to the bottom of the Order of 
Precedence and will only be considered for selection if no other member is interested in taking on 
the position of Deputy Mayor/Mayor or is eligible to do so. 

Page 15



   
$4ub5zi2n.doc Page 4 of 4 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

11. The precedence between members who notwithstanding paragraph 9 have equal periods of 
service on Cheltenham Borough Council shall be decided by lot conducted prior to the first 
ordinary meeting of the Council following municipal elections. 

12. Any questions arising as to the application of these rules shall be determined by the Head of Paid 
Service, following consultation with the Monitoring Officer, and in consultation with the Group 
Leaders. 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 16



                                           Appendix 2 
 The Order of Precedence  

2012/2013                            
 

Councillor 
(Mayoral Year) 

Date of Election/period of Service 
of Members who have not yet 

served as Mayor 
Total Service up to end of 
2011 - 2012 Municipal 

Year or where 
appropriate period since 

Mayoral year 
A McKinlay 1991 - 21 years 
S A  Jordan 1986-1992, 1994, 1995-1999, 2002 21 years 
P D  McLain 1996 - 16 years 
S J Holliday 1996 - 16 years 
D J Smith 1998 - 14 years 
D C Seacome 2000 12 years 
M Stennett 2000 12 years 
D L Hibbert Nov 2000 11+ years 
N C Britter 2002 10 years 
S Wheeler 2002 10 years 
W L Flynn 2002 10 years 
C P Hay 1991 – 1995, 2006 10 Years 
A S Wall 2004 8 years 
J T Webster 2004 8 years 
H McLain 1998 – 2002, 2008 8 years 
R Hay 2002-2008, 2010 8 years 
C Coleman 2002-2008, October 2010 7 years 
P L Hall 2006 6 years 
P S Massey 2006 6 years 
T Cooper 2008 4 years 
B Fisher 2008 4 years 
K Sudbury 2008 4 years 
P Wheeldon 2008 4 years 
R Whyborn 2008 4 years 
C Stewart July 2009 2+ years 
I Bickerton 2010 2 years 
P Jeffries 2010 2 years 
H McCloskey 2010 2 years 
J Teakle 2010 2 years 
J Walklett 2010 2 years 
PREVIOUS MAYORS 
 P M Thornton 
(1996 -1997) 

Previous Mayor 14 years 
L G Godwin 
(1997-1998) 

Previous Mayor 13 years 
G W Barnes 
(2003 - 2004) 

Previous Mayor 7 years 
R E Garnham 
(2004 – 2005) 

Previous Mayor 6 years 
J Fletcher 
(2006 – 2007) 

Previous Mayor 4 years 
J O Rawson 
(2007 – 2008) 

Previous Mayor 
1980-1987,2004 

3 years 
R MacDonald 
(2008 - 2009) 

Previous Mayor 
1998- 

2 years 
L M Surgenor 
(2009 - 2010) 

Previous Mayor 
1996-2000, 2002 

1 year 
A Regan 
(2010 - 2011) 

Previous Mayor 
1994 - 1998, 2002 

1 year 
B Driver 
(2011 – 2012) 

Current Mayor 
1999  

0 years 
 

Page 17



Page 18
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

   

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Council – 10 February 2012 

Adoption of Licensing Act 2003 Policy Statement 
 

Accountable member Cabinet Member Housing and Safety - Councillor Klara Sudbury 
Accountable officer Director of Culture and Wellbeing  - Sonia Phillips  
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Social & Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the Council to review, 

determine and publish its Licensing Act 2003 Policy Statement every 
three years. 
The current policy statement was adopted by Council on the 30th of 
March 2009 and in order for the Council to comply with its statutory 
duty a revised policy must be adopted by the Council no later than 
March 2012. 

Recommendations That Council RESOLVE to adopt the proposed draft revised policy 
statement attached to have immediate effect. 

 
Financial implications There are no financial implications arising from this report. Income 

receivable from the licensing arrangements detailed in this policy is 
included in the council’s medium term financial strategy. 
Contact officer: Sarah Didcote, sarah.didcote@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 26 4125 

Legal implications There is a statutory requirement upon the council to have a licensing policy 
statement and to review the policy statement every three years. The policy 
has been reviewed in light of the statutory guidance. 
Contact officer: Sarah Farooqi, sarah.farooqi@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 
01684 27 2693 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no HR implications arising as a direct result of this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 26 4355 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

We attract more visitors and investors to Cheltenham   
Communities feel safe and are safe 

Agenda Item 10
Page 19



 

   

   

 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None 

1. Background 
1.1 Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (“2003 Act”) requires the Council to review, determine and 

publish its Licensing Act 2003 Policy Statement (“policy statement”) every three years. 
1.2 The current policy statement was adopted by Full Council on the 30th of March 2009.  
1.3 In order for the Council to comply with its statutory duty under section 5 of the 2003 Act, a revised 

policy must be adopted by the Council no later than March 2012. 
Licensing Act 2003 

1.4 The 2003 Act is the primary legislation that deals with the licensing requirements relating to:- 
(a) the sale by retail of alcohol,  
(b) the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club,  
(c) the provision of regulated entertainment, and  
(d) the provision of late night refreshment. 

1.5 The licensable activities listed above are authorised through the issue of:- 
(a) a premises licence; or 
(b) a club premises certificate; or 
(c) a temporary event notice. 

1.6 The Council is obligated to promote the four licensing objectives when discharging its functions 
under the 2003 Act with the.  These are:- 
(a) the prevention of crime and disorder;  
(b) public safety;  
(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and  
(d) the protection of children from harm. 
The Policy Statement 

1.7 The draft proposed policy statement is attached at Appendix 2 of this report. 
1.8 The policy statement sets out the principles the Council will apply when determining applications 

under the 2003 Act for the next three years. It also provides guidance to licence holders and 
applicants on how to make an application and advises them how the Council determines 
applications. 

1.9 As a result of the fact that the primary legislation and case law, as it relates to the scope of the 
draft policy statement, has largely remained unchanged since the adoption of the current policy 
statement, revisions have been minimal.  A breakdown of these is attached at Appendix 3 of the 

Page 20



 

   

   

 

report. 
 

Statutory Guidance 
1.10 Section 4 of the 2003 Act states that, in carrying out its functions, the Council must ‘have regard 

to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182.  
1.11 Listed below (1.12 to 1.22) are relevant extracts from the guidance. 

Fundamental Principles  
1.12 All statements of policy should also begin by stating the four licensing objectives, which the 

licensing policy should promote. In determining its policy, a licensing authority must have regard 
to this Guidance and give appropriate weight to the views of consultees. The Guidance is 
important for consistency, particularly where licensing authority boundaries meet. (para 13.13) 

1.13 While statements of policy may set out a general approach to making licensing decisions, they 
must not ignore or be inconsistent with provisions in the 2003 Act. For example, a statement of 
policy must not undermine the right of any individual to apply under the terms of the 2003 Act for 
a variety of permissions and to have any such application considered on its individual merits. 
(para 13.14) 

1.14 Similarly, no statement of policy should override the right of any person to make representations    
on an application or to seek a review of a licence or certificate where provision has been made for 
them to do so in the 2003 Act. (para 13.15) 

1.15 Statements of policies should make clear that: 
• licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, by qualifying clubs and 

at temporary events within the terms of the 2003 Act; and 
• the conditions attached to various authorisations will be focused on matters which are within 

the control of individual licensees and others with relevant authorisations, i.e. the premises 
and its vicinity. (para 13.16) 

1.16 Whether or not incidents can be regarded as being “in the vicinity” of licensed premises is a 
question of fact and will depend on the particular circumstances of the case. In cases of dispute, 
the question will ultimately be decided by the courts. But statements of licensing policy should 
make it clear that in addressing this matter, the licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct 
impact of the activities taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public living, 
working or engaged in normal activity in the area concerned. (para 13.17) 

1.17 A statement of policy should also make clear that licensing law is not the primary mechanism for 
the general control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are away from 
the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond the direct control of the individual, club or business 
holding the licence, certificate or authorisation concerned. Nonetheless, it is a key aspect of such 
control and licensing law will always be part of a holistic approach to the management of the 
evening and night-time economy in town and city centres. (para 13.18) 
Duplication 

1.18 Statements of licensing policy should include a firm commitment to avoid attaching conditions that 
duplicate other regulatory regimes as far as possible. Chapter 10 provides further detail on this 
issue. (para 13.19) 

Page 21



 

   

   

 

Standard Conditions 
1.19 Statements of policy should also make it clear that a key concept underscoring the 2003 Act is for 

conditions to be tailored to the specific premises concerned. This effectively rules out 
standardised conditions, as explained in paragraph 10.13 of this Guidance. However, it is 
acceptable for licensing authorities to draw attention in their statements of policy to pools of 
conditions which applicants and others may draw on as appropriate. (para 13.20) 
Enforcement  

1.20 As part of their statement of policy, the Government strongly recommends that licensing 
authorities should express the intention to establish protocols with the local police and the other 
enforcing authorities as appropriate on enforcement issues. This would provide for a more 
efficient deployment of licensing authority staff, police officers environmental health officers, and 
others who are commonly engaged in enforcing licensing law and the inspection of licensed 
premises. (para 13.21) 

1.21 In particular, these protocols should also provide for the targeting of agreed problem and high risk 
premises which require greater attention, while providing a lighter touch for low risk premises 
which are well run. In some local authority areas, the limited validity of public entertainment, 
theatre, cinema, night café and late night refreshment house licences has in the past led to a 
culture of annual inspections regardless of whether the assessed risks make such inspections 
necessary. The 2003 Act does not require inspections to take place save at the discretion of 
those charged with this role. The principle of risk assessment and targeting should prevail and 
inspections should not be undertaken routinely but when and if they are judged necessary.  

1.22 This should ensure that resources are more effectively concentrated on problem premises. (para 
13.22)   

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 To ensure that the Council complies with its duties under section 5 of the 2003 Act. 
2.2 To ensure that the Council can effectively discharge its licensing function under the 2003 Act.  

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 The only alternative would be for the Council not to adopt the policy statement. However this 

option would result in the Council failing to comply with its duty and function under the 2003 Act 
as outlined under point 3 above. 

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 On the 29th of July 2011 the Licensing Committee approved a draft policy statement for 

consultation. 
4.2 Section 5(3) of the 2003 Act stipulates a number of statutory consultees the Council must consult 

with when determining its policy statement. These are the chief officer of police, the fire authority, 
the representatives of premises and personal licence holders and club registration certificates as 
it sees fit, and other persons that are seen to represent businesses and residents in the area. 

4.3 A list of consultees is attached at Appendix 4. 
4.4 In light of the above a consultation was undertaken between the 3rd of August and the 26th of 

October 2011. 

Page 22



 

   

   

 

4.5 The consultation was undertaken in accordance with the Consultation Guidance published by the 
Cabinet Office. 

4.6 During the consultation period five responses were received. A copy of the comments and officer 
response is attached at Appendix 5. 

4.7 On the 2nd of December 2011 the Licensing Committee gave consideration to the 
abovementioned comments and responses and resolved to approve and recommend adoption of 
the draft policy by Full Council. 

Report author Contact officer: Louis Krog, louis.krog@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Senior Licensing Officer 
01242 77 5004 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Draft Proposed Policy Statement 
3. Breakdown of Amendments  
4. List of Consultees 
5. Consultee Comments & Officer Response 

Background information 1. Licensing Act 2003 
2. Amended guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 (October 2010) 
3. Licensing Committee Friday, 29th July, 2011 report “Review of 

Licensing Policy Statement” (and appendices) 
4. Licensing Committee Friday, 2nd December, 2011 report “Review 

of Licensing Policy Statement” (and appendices) 
 

Page 23



 

   
$51gvg5i2.doc Page 6 of 6 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-4 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1. If the draft policy is not 
adopted, the Council will 
fail to comply with its duty 
under section 5 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

Senior 
Licensing 
Officer 

February 
2012 

2 6 12  Adoption of the draft 
policy statement. 

30/03/12 Senior 
Licensing 
Officer 

 

 If the draft policy is not 
adopted, the Council risks 
not being able to 
effectively discharge its 
licensing function under 
the 2003 Act. 

Senior 
Licensing 
Officer 

February 
2012 

2 3 6  Adoption of the draft 
policy statement. 

30/03/12 Senior 
Licensing 
Officer 

 

 

P
age 24



 

 1 

  
 
 

Cheltenham Borough 
Council 

 

Licensing Act 2003 
Licensing Policy 

Statement 
 

 
Approved by Council 

xx 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Licensing Section 
Cheltenham Borough Council 
Municipal Offices 
Promenade 
Cheltenham 
GL52 9SA 
 
01242 265200  
licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk    

 
 

 
 

Page 25



 

 2 

Contents  
Section Page Number 
1. Introduction 3 
2.  Licensing Principles and Process  3 
3.  Scope 4 
4.  Licensing objectives 4 
5.  Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates 
- The Operating Schedule 
- Guidance on Operating Schedule 
   a) Crime and Disorder 
   b) Public Safety 
       Pub watch’ scheme 
       Best Bar None 
   c) Public Nuisance 
       Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 
   d) Protection of children from harm 
       Plans 

5 
5 
6 
6 
7 
8 
8 
9 
10 
10 
11 

6. Representations 11 
7. Reviews 13 
8. Appeals 13 
9. Temporary Event Notices (TENs) 13 
10. Integrating Strategies 14 
11. Planning Control 15 
12. Off Sales of Alcohol 15 
13. Late Night Refreshment 16 
14. Theatres, Cinemas and Other Performance Venues 16 
15. Applications for extended hours 17 
16. Cumulative Impact 18 
17. Sexual Entertainment Venues 19 
18. Enforcement 
- Investigation of Offences 
- Responsibility for Prosecutions 

19 
20 
20 

  
Appendices   
Appendix A - Statutory Consultees 21 
Appendix B - Responsible Authorities 22 
Appendix C - Delegated Functions 
(This does not form part of the policy but is included for ease of reference) 

24 
Appendix D - Glossary 
(This does not form part of the policy but is included for ease of reference) 

25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



 

 3 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This Licensing Policy Statement (‘this Policy’) has been produced in 

accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 (‘the Act’) and is in 
line with guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act. Section 5 of the Act 
requires Cheltenham Borough Council (‘the Council’), acting in its capacity as 
the Licensing Authority to prepare and publish a statement of its licensing 
policy every three years. 

 
1.2 This policy was last reviewed in 2009.  In determining the policy the Council 

has taken into consideration any comments made by consultees (Appendix A) 
during the 12 week consultation.  The Council has also taken into consideration 
revisions in the Statutory Guidance, changes in legislation and the experience 
of administering and enforcing the Act since its introduction when determining 
this policy. 

 
1.3 The main purpose of this policy is to provide clarity to applicants, interested 

parties and responsible authorities on how the Council will determine 
applications for the sale/supply of alcohol, the provision of regulated 
entertainment and the provision of late night refreshment and also to provide a 
basis for all licensing decisions taken by the Council over the next three years.  
It will also inform elected Members of the parameters within which licensing 
decisions can be made. 

 
1.4 Through this policy the Council hopes that residents of and visitors to 

Cheltenham will be able to enjoy their leisure time safely and without fear of 
violence, intimidation or disorder while at licensed premises. 

 
1.5 An effective licensing policy, alongside other initiatives, will work towards 

promoting the positive aspects of deregulation under the Act, such as 
promoting tourism, increasing leisure provision and encouraging the 
regeneration of the town centre as well as controlling the negative impacts such 
as increase in noise, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and crime and disorder. 

 
1.6 It should be understood that this policy and the section 182 Guidance cannot 

anticipate every scenario or set of circumstances that may arise and as such 
there may be circumstances where the policy or guidance may be departed 
from in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives and where it is 
deemed appropriate to do so. In such cases the Council will give full reasons 
for departing from this policy. 

2.  Licensing Principles and Process  
 
2.1 This policy sets out the process the Council will adopt in dealing with licence 

applications with particular regard to the various types of premises and 
permissions and the various conditions that can be attached to licences if 
relevant representations are made. It also highlights the Council’s undertaking 
to avoid duplication with other statutory provisions and its commitment to work 
in partnership with other enforcement agencies. 

 
2.2 The Council is the Licensing Authority under the Act and is responsible for 

granting premises licences, club premises certificates, temporary events 
notices and personal licences in the Borough.  

 
 
 

Page 27



 

 4 

2.3 The objective of this policy is to:  
 

(a) promote the four licensing objectives;  
 
(b) ensure that the premises are appropriate for their proposed use;  
 
(c) ensure the premises layout and condition is acceptable for the proposed 

use; and  
 
(d) ensure that the premises are being managed responsibly.  

 
2.4 The Council's powers and duties as Licensing Authority are delegated by the 

Council to its Licensing Committee, Licensing sub committees and officers. The 
Council approaches these delegations in accordance with Appendix B to this 
policy.  

3.  Scope 
 
3.1  This policy relates to the licensable activities defined by section 1(1) of the Act, 

namely:- 
 

(a) retail sales of alcohol; 
 
(b) the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club; 
 
(c) the provision of regulated entertainment; and  
 
(d) the provision of late night refreshment. 

4.  Licensing objectives 
 
4.1  The Council will carry out its licensing functions under the Act with a view to 

promoting the four licensing objectives, which are:- 
 

(a) The prevention of crime and disorder; 
 
(b) Public safety; 
 
(c) The prevention of public nuisance; and 
 
(d) The protection of children from harm. 

 
4.2 The aim of the licensing process is to regulate licensable activities so as to 

promote the licensing objectives.  
 
4.3 In determining a licensing application, the overriding principle adopted by the 

Council will be that each application is determined on its merits. Licence 
conditions will be tailored to the individual application and only those necessary 
to promote the licensing objectives will be imposed. 

 
4.4 The Council will also have regard to wider considerations affecting the 

residential population and the amenity of the area. These include littering, 
noise, street crime and the capacity of the infrastructure.  

 

Page 28



 

 5 

4.5 Each of the four objectives is of equal importance and will be considered in 
relation to matters centred on the premises or within the control of the licensee 
and the effect which the operation of that business has on the vicinity. 

5.  Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates 
 
5.1 The relevant application forms and associated documents are obtainable from 

the Council’s website at http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/licensing or from the 
Licensing Section during normal office hours. 

 
5.2 Along with the application form, applicants must also submit an operating 

schedule and scaled drawings of the premises to which the application relates. 
 
5.3 Through their operating schedule, applicants will be expected, where 

necessary, to demonstrate the positive steps taken to promote the licensing 
objectives. 

 
The Operating Schedule 
 
5.4 The operating schedule is a key document and, if prepared comprehensively, 

will form the basis on which premises can be licensed without the need for 
additional extensive conditions. The Council expects an operating schedule to 
indicate the steps that the applicant proposes to take to promote the licensing 
objectives.  

 
5.5 Applicants are strongly recommended to discuss their operating schedules with 

the responsible authorities prior to submitting them. 
 
5.6 Applicants will be expected to propose practical measures to prevent 

disturbance to local residents and to indicate what action will be taken to 
prevent or reduce noise emanating from the premises.  

 
5.7 The complexity and detail required in the operating schedule will depend upon 

the nature and use of the premises. For premises such as a public house 
where public entertainment is not provided, only a relatively simple document 
will be required. For a major public entertainment venue it will be expected that 
issues such as public safety and crime and disorder will be addressed in detail. 
The Council will provide general advice on the drafting of operating schedules. 

 
5.8 The operating schedule must be on the prescribed form and include a 

statement of the following:-  
 

(a) Full details of the licensable activities to be carried on at and the intended 
use of the premises;  

 
(b) The times during which the licensable activities will take place;  
 
(c) Any other times when the premises are to be open to the public;  
 
(d) Where the licence is only required for a limited period, that period;  
 
(e) Where the licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, the name and 

address of the individual to be specified as the designated premises 
supervisor;  

 
(f) Whether alcohol will be supplied for consumption on or off the premises or 

both;  

Page 29



 

 6 

 
(g) The steps which the applicant proposes to promote the licensing 

objectives. 
 
5.9 All applicants for the grant or variation of a premises licence or club premises 

certificate are required to provide an operating schedule as part of their 
application.  

 
Guidance on Operating Schedule 
 
5.10  The following guidance is intended to assist applicants by setting out criteria 

and considerations that they should bear in mind when drawing up an operating 
schedule.  They alert applicants to any matters that responsible authorities are 
likely to consider when deciding whether to make representations on an 
application or whether to call for a review.  

 
a) Crime and Disorder 
 
5.11 The promotion of the licensing objective, to prevent crime and disorder, places 

a responsibility on licence holders to become key partners in promoting this 
objective.  

 
5.12 Applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their operating schedule that 

suitable and sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented 
and maintained to reduce or prevent crime and disorder on and in the vicinity of 
their premises, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their 
premises and events.  

 
5.13 When addressing the issue of crime and disorder, the applicant should 

demonstrate that those factors that impact on crime and disorder have been 
considered. These factors may include:-  

 
(a) Underage drinking;  
 
(b) Drunkenness on premises;  
 
(c) Public drunkenness;  
 
(d) Drugs;  
 
(e) Violent behaviour; and  
 
(f) Anti-social behaviour.  

 
5.14 In making their decision, regard should be given to the levels of crime and 

disorder in and around the venue; the level of compliance with conditions on 
existing licences; and any available evidence on crime and disorder issues. 

 
5.15 Annex D part 1 of the Secretary of State’s revised Guidance sets out matters 

that may be relevant to the imposition of conditions relating to crime and 
disorder on licensed premises. Where relevant representations are received 
the Council may impose appropriate conditions on premises licences and club 
premises certificates in accordance with this guidance.  

 
5.16 Appropriate conditions include:- 
 

(a) adoption of a ‘Challenge 21or Challenge 25’ policy; 
 

Page 30



 

 7 

(b) adoption of best practice guidance including our voluntary code of practice 
for Reducing Alcohol Related Violence (RARV); 

  
(c) agreeing a prescribed capacity for the  premises; 
 
(d) requirements for an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs to customers, 

based on capacity, and for areas to be allocated permanently for seated 
customers in order to prevent overcrowding, which can lead to disorder 
and violence; 

 
(e) a requirement for Security Industry Authority registered door supervisors to 

control numbers of persons entering the premises and to deny entry to 
individuals who appear drunk, disorderly or intent on crime; 

 
(f) requirements that drinking vessels be made of toughened glass or plastic 

or other materials that do not form a sharp edge when broken, and that 
glass bottles are not passed to customers. This may be a particular 
concern if drinks are to be consumed outside premises; 

 
(g) restrictions on drinking in areas within and outside the premises; 
 
(h) limitations on the types of promotions of alcoholic drinks, so as not to 

encourage excessive drinking, or drunkenness; 
 
(i) the maintenance of good order by the management, particularly where 

alcohol is supplied for consumption and where large numbers of people 
are admitted; 

 
(j) dedicated communications networks between management teams, local 

police and other licensed premises to provide early warning of disorder; 
 
(k) warning signs about crime prevention measures; 
 
(l) clear policies and measures to prevent weapons or illegal drugs being 

brought onto the premises and measures to discourage the use of illegal 
drugs; and/or 

 
(m) the installation and maintenance of appropriately sited closed circuit 

television cameras (CCTV) to be operational during the period of the 
licence, and other appropriate times both inside and immediately outside 
the premises which can provide images of a suitable quality for use as 
evidence. 

 
5.17 Capacity limits are commonly made a condition of a licence on public safety 

grounds but should also be considered for licensed pubs and clubs where 
overcrowding may lead to disorder and violence. If such a condition is 
necessary, door supervisors may be needed to ensure the numbers are 
appropriately controlled.  

 
b) Public Safety 
 
5.17 The Council in its role as Licensing Authority must try to ensure the safety of 

people visiting and working in licensed premises. The Council will need to be 
satisfied that measures to promote public safety including risk assessments, 
setting safe capacities and adequate means of escape are put in place and 
maintained, if not adequately provided for by other regulatory regimes.  

 
 

Page 31



 

 8 

5.18 Consideration should be given to whether:  
 

(a) appropriate and satisfactory general and technical risk assessments, 
management procedures and certificates have been made available to the 
relevant responsible authority and to the Licensing Authority, that 
demonstrate that the public will be safe within and in the vicinity of the 
premises; 

 
(b) the premises already has a licence or a fire certificate that specifies the 

maximum number of people that can attend it or be present and, if not, 
whether a risk assessment has been undertaken to assess the maximum 
number of people in terms of capacity in various parts of the premises, so 
that they can be operated safely and can be evacuated safely in the event 
of an emergency; 

 
(c) there are procedures proposed to record and limit the number of people on 

the premises with opportunities for going outside and readmission; 
 
(d) patrons can arrive at and depart from the premises safely; 
 
(e) music, dance and performance venues will use equipment or special 

effects that may affect public safety (i.e. moving equipment, pyrotechnics, 
strobe lights, smoke machines); 

 
(f) there are defined responsibilities and procedures for medical and other 

emergencies and for calling the emergency services, and/or 
 
(g) the levels of compliance with conditions on existing licences relating to 

public safety. 
 
5.19 The Council seeks to encourage the use of toughened glassware and 

polycarbonate where appropriate in licensed premises. Where a relevant 
representation is received the Council will consider imposing a condition 
prohibiting the sale of alcohol in annealed glass containers and require the use 
of polycarbonate or other safer alternatives in order to promote public safety in 
licensed venues. 

 
Pub watch’ scheme  
 
5.20 The Borough-wide Nightsafe network encourages its members to work together 

to promote the licensing objectives in their premises by providing a forum for 
sharing information, disseminating best practice and meeting with 
representatives of the Council, the police and other responsible authorities. The 
Council actively supports the scheme and is keen to support the development 
of more schemes where there is a demand.  

 
Best Bar None 
 
5.21 Best Bar None (BBN) is a national award scheme supported by the Home 

Office and aimed at promoting responsible management and operation of 
alcohol licensed premises. It was piloted in Manchester in 2003 and found to 
improve standards in the night time economy, with premises now competing to 
participate.  The aim of BBN is to reduce alcohol related crime and disorder in a 
town centre by building a positive relationship between the licensed trade, 
police and local authorities.  The Council will actively encourage licensed 
premises to signup to the BBN scheme. 

Page 32



 

 9 

c) Public Nuisance 
 
5.22 The Council will expect applicants to set out in their operating schedules the 

steps taken, or proposed to be taken, to deal with the potential for public 
nuisance arising from the operation of the premises. 

 
5.23 Applicants should identify and describe through a risk assessment how these 

risks will be managed. Public nuisance could include low-level nuisance 
perhaps affecting a few people living locally as well as major disturbance 
affecting the whole community.   

 
5.24 The role of the Council is to maintain an appropriate balance between the 

legitimate aspirations of the entertainment industry and the needs of residents 
and other users of the town including businesses, workers, shoppers and 
visitors.  

 
5.25 Playing of music can cause nuisance both through noise breakout and by its 

effect on patrons, who become accustomed to high sound levels and to 
shouting to make themselves heard, which can lead to them being noisier when 
leaving premises. Other major sources of noise nuisance are vehicles 
collecting customers, the slamming of car doors and the sounding of horns. 
These noises can be particularly intrusive at night when ambient noise levels 
are lower.  

 
5.26 Where relevant representations are received, the Council may attach 

appropriate conditions to licences, necessary to support the prevention of 
undue noise disturbance from licensed premises.  Where premises remain 
open after midnight the licence holder, will be expected to provide facilities 
which are relevant to controlling noise and the patrons of those premises late at 
night. The Council also expects that premises which produce noise generating 
licensable activities are acoustically controlled and engineered to a degree 
where the noise from the premises when compared to the ambient noise level 
will not cause undue disturbance.  

 
5.27 The provision of tables and chairs outside the premises, either on the highway 

or on private land, and the provision of beer gardens, can enhance the 
attractiveness of the venue. It can have the benefit of encouraging a continental 
style café culture and family friendly venues. However, late at night, tables and 
chairs and beer gardens can cause significant public nuisance to residents 
whose homes overlook these areas. 

 
5.28 More recently the introduction of the new ‘smoke free public places’ legislation 

in July 2007 has led to an increase in the number of people outside licensed 
venues. Where outside facilities are provided the licensing authority expects 
applicants to provide details in their application of:-  

 
(a) the location of open air areas;  
 
(b) how the outside areas will be managed to prevent noise, smell, or 

obstruction and nuisance to neighbours and the public.  
 
5.29 Licensees and their staff are expected to have sufficient measures in place to 

prevent such problems arising including a suitable litter and waste 
management program to ensure that the area outside the premises is kept free 
of litter at all times. 

 

Page 33



 

 10 

5.30 Where the Council receives relevant representations, or where a responsible 
authority or an interested party seeks a review, the Council may consider 
imposing conditions to improve the management of the outside area or 
prohibiting or restricting the use of these areas in order to promote the public 
nuisance objective.  

 
5.31 Conditions may include maximum noise levels over particular time periods, the 

installation of acoustic lobbies; provision of signs, publicity and dispersal 
policies. 

 
Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 
5.32 The Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 gives local authorities the power to 

designate, with the consent of the police, a locality as an alcohol disorder zone 
(ADZ) where there is a high level of alcohol related nuisance or disorder. Whilst 
the Licensing Act 2003 empowers licensing authorities to tackle alcohol related 
crime, disorder and public nuisance that is attributable to individual premises 
through the modification, suspension or revocation of licences upon review, it is 
not always possible to identify a clear relationship between problems in the 
public space and specific licensed premises. The proposal, consideration and 
designation of ADZs would enable local authorities to tackle such problems. 
Designation also permits local authorities to levy compulsory charges on 
certain licence holders for above-normal levels of enforcement activity by that 
authority and the police. The licensing authority would however prefer where 
possible to work with licensees to achieve improvements to alcohol related 
problems without the need to identify Alcohol Disorder Zones under this Act. 

 
d) Protection of children from harm 
 
5.32 The Council needs to satisfy itself that there are appropriate measures in place 

to protect children from harm. 
 
5.33 The Council will expect applicants, where necessary to consider the measures 

necessary to promote the licensing objective of protecting children from harm 
when on the premises. 

 
5.34 These measures may include staff training on how to control the entry of 

children and young people under 18 and the vetting of staff who will supervise 
them. Applicants will have to give particular regard to these measures in 
applications for licences involving:- 
 
(a) the sale of alcohol; 
 
(b) children’s performances; 
 
(c) attractions or performances likely to attract children. 

 
5.35 It is an offence to sell alcohol to children. In this context, children are defined as 

individuals under 18. The provisions of the Act are that unaccompanied 
children under 16 should not be on “premises being used exclusively or 
primarily for the supply of alcohol” (eg “alcohol led” premises such as pubs, 
bars and nightclubs). In addition, it is an offence to allow unaccompanied 
children under 16 on premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on the 
premises after midnight but before 05:00. 

 
 
 

Page 34



 

 11 

5.36 Issues for consideration include:- 
 

(a) installing effective measures to check the age of those young people who 
appear under 21 to ensure that alcohol is not sold to those under 18 and 
those under 16 are accompanied in alcohol led premises;  

 
(b) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the; 
 
(c) exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided at the premises; 
  
(d) accompanied children under 16 on the premises of which the primary 

purpose is supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises are taking a 
table meal or are being entertained by a live performance; 

 
(e) the hour to which accompanied children under 16 are proposed to be on 

the premises where the exclusive or primary purpose of the services 
provided at the premises is the supply of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises; 

 
(f) due regard is paid to industry codes of good practice on the labelling and 

display of alcoholic drinks; 
 
(g) there are adequate procedures for identifying unaccompanied or lost 

children and ensuring that they are kept safe and adequately supervised 
until they can be handed over to a responsible adult; 

 
(h) the likelihood of children being attracted to the premises; eg by the nature 

of activities or facilities provided whether or not these are licensed; 
 
(i) there is evidence of heavy, binge or underage drinking on the premises; 
 
(j) the premises commonly provides entertainment or services of an adult or 

sexual nature; 
 
(k) there is a strong element of gambling on the premises; 
 
(l) age restricted films are to be shown classified in accordance with the 

recommendations of the British Board of Film Classification; 
 
(m) the number of adults required for the supervision of children and the 

suitability and vetting of those adults to ensure they pose no risk to 
children. Obtaining Enhanced Disclosure from the Criminal Records 
Bureau may be appropriate in some cases. 

 
Plans 
 
5.37 A plan must also be attached to an application for a premises licence or a club 

premises certificate. The plan should be at a scale of 1:100. The plans do not 
have to be professionally drawn, however, they must be to scale and contain 
the relevant information as required under regulation. The Licensing Authority 
can accept plans of a scale other than 1:100, however this must be approved 
prior to submitting the application.  

6.  Representations 
 
6.1 The Council has discretion on whether to grant applications for licences and to 

impose conditions on granting and reviewing licences, only when relevant 

Page 35



 

 12 

representations are made by “interested parties” or by “responsible authorities“ 
(see Appendix B).  

 
6.2 In brief "relevant representations" is the expression used in the Act for 

comments including objections on applications. 
 

For a representation to be relevant it must:- 
 

(a) relate to the effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives (prevention of crime and disorder, prevention of public 
nuisance, public safety or protection of children from harm); 

 
(b) be made by an interested party or responsible authority; 
 
(c) not be 'frivolous or vexatious' or, in the case of a review, 'repetitious' if 

made by an interested party; or 
 
(d) if it concerns the Designated Premises Supervisor be made by a chief 

officer of police and include a statement explaining the reasons for the 
objection. 

 
Interested Parties Include:- 

 
(a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises; 
 
(b) a body representing a person living in the vicinity of the premises; a person 

involved in business in the vicinity of the premises; and 
 
(c) a body representing a person involved in such a business. 

 
6.3 All interested parties and responsible authorities will have a period 28 days 

(starting on the day after the application is received by the Council) in which 
they can make representations to the Council about the application. 
Representations must be made in writing. 

 
6.4 If the Council considers that the representations are relevant it must hold a 

hearing to consider those representations (unless all agree that this is 
unnecessary). The Council will then have the option to:- 

 
(a) grant or vary the licence in the same terms as it was applied for; 
 
(b) decide that it is necessary to refuse to issue or vary the licence; 
 
(c) decide to grant or vary the licence, but to modify the conditions; 
 
(d) exclude from the scope of the licence a licensable activity. 

 
6.5 Where no relevant representations are received it is the duty of the Council to 

grant a licence subject to conditions consistent with the operating schedule and 
the mandatory conditions under the Act.  

 
6.6 This policy also does not override the right of any person/body to make 

representations on an application or seek a review of a licence or certificate, 
where provision has been made for them to do so in the Act.   

 
6.7 If there have been police representations in relation to the individual specified 

in the application for a premises licence or certificate or authorisation as the 
designated premises supervisor, the Council will consider any factors relating 

Page 36



 

 13 

to that individual that might undermine the prevention of crime and disorder 
licensing objective, including the previous character of the individual and the 
individual's experience and training and ability to monitor the premises at all 
times when they are open.  

 
6.8 All applicants for the grant of a personal licence will be required to undertake a 

criminal record check. Where a criminal record check discloses an unspent 
relevant conviction (See schedule 4 of the Act) and the police object to the 
application on crime prevention grounds the Licensing Sub Committee shall 
normally refuse such an application unless there are exceptional and 
compelling circumstances to justify the granting of a licence.  

7. Reviews 
 
7.1 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible authority, 

or an interested party, may ask the Council to review the licence because of a 
matter arising at the premises in connection with any of the four licensing 
objectives. 

 
7.2 In every case, the application for review must relate to particular premises for 

which a licence is in existence and must be relevant to the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.  

 
7.3 The necessary forms and documents is available from the Council’s website at 

http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/licensing or from the Licensing Section during 
normal office hours. 

8. Appeals 
 
8.1 Anyone aggrieved by a decision of the Council has a right of appeal. This is set 

out in Schedule 5 of the Act. 
 
8.2 The Council will inform the appropriate parties of their right of appeal in 

accordance with the Act, when confirming a decision of the Licensing Sub-
Committee. 

 
8.3 Aggrieved parties should lodge any appeal with the Magistrates' Court within 

21 days of the notification of the decision. 

9. Temporary Event Notices (TENs)  
 
9.1 Any person aged 18 or over may use premises for one or more licensable 

activities for a period not exceeding 96 hours and provided that a minimum 10 
working days notice is given to the Council and the Chief Officer of Police 
before the event is due to start.  

 
9.2 A temporary events notice (TEN) can only be used where the maximum 

number of people attending the event is less than 500. In all other cases a 
premises licence will be required.  

 
9.3 The limit on the number of TENs which may be given by any applicant is five 

within the same year, unless the applicant holds a personal licence, in which 
case the limit will be 50 within the same year.  

 

Page 37



 

 14 

9.4 Only 12 TENs may be given in respect of the same premises in a calendar year 
and in respect of these premises there is an overriding maximum aggregate 
duration of 15 days.  

 
9.5 There must be a minimum of 24 hours between events notified by the premises 

user in respect of the same premises.  
 
9.6 The Police may object to a TEN by sending a counter-notice on the grounds of 

crime and disorder or may insist on certain conditions. The Police must give the 
premises user and the Council any counter-notice within 48 hours of being 
notified.  

 
9.7 If the Council receives a counter-notice, a hearing will be held to determine 

whether permission should be granted for the proposed event. If no counter-
notices are served the event will be able to proceed.  

 
9.8 It is recommended that an applicant applying for a TEN should give at least 28 

days prior notice of their intended event and that at the same time of submitting 
their application to the Licensing Authority they serve notice to the Police. 

 
9.9 Applicants are also encouraged to consult responsible authorities prior to 

formal applications being made. 
 
9.10 The processing of applications by the Council is controlled by a strict statutory 

timetable, therefore, the Council will not accept an application unless it is 
complete in all respects at the time of submission. 

 
9.11 The Police have the power to close down events with no notice on grounds of 

disorder, the likelihood of disorder or because of public nuisance caused by 
noise coming from the premises. 

10. Integrating Strategies 
 
10.1 The Council will seek to discharge its responsibilities by linking to and 

supporting Government and Council strategies and policies so far as they 
impact on the objectives of the Act including:- 

 
(a) Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy; 
 
(b) Enforcement Concordat and the Councils Enforcement policy; 
 
(c) Reducing Alcohol Related Violent Crime and Disorder Codes of Practice 

(RARV); 
 
(d) Local drugs and alcohol strategies; 

 
(e) The Governments alcohol harm reduction strategy; and 
 
(f) The Best Bar None Scheme. 

 
10.2 The Council regards licensing as the most appropriate tool in ensuring that 

the licensing objectives are promoted and will avoid as far as is possible any 
duplication with other regulatory regimes and legislation.  

 
10.3 As part of a wider package of initiatives the Council is aiming to tackle the 

negative impacts associated with alcohol consumption through their Codes of 
Practice on Reducing Alcohol Related Violent Crime and Disorder and 

Page 38



 

 15 

encouraging alcohol licensed premises to join Cheltenham’s Best Bar None 
scheme. The Licensed Trade are encouraged to take ownership of these 
codes and schemes, which have the potential to significantly improve 
standards in Licensed Premises. These Codes of Practice have received high 
acclaim and been recognised as Best Practice by the Home Office. 

 
10.4 The Council will continue to develop appropriate partnership arrangements, 

working closely with the police and fire authorities, local businesses, 
community representatives and local people, in meeting these objectives.   

11.  Planning Control  
 
11.1 Planning permission is usually required for the establishment of new premises 

and where there is a material change of use of premises.  
 
11.2 Applicants are encouraged to ensure that the proposed activity will constitute 

a lawful planning use and the hours sought do not exceed those authorised 
by any planning permission. Where the hours authorised by the relevant 
planning permission are different to the licensing hours for those premises, 
the applicant will be expected to observe the earlier closing time. Premises 
operating in breach of their planning permission would be liable to 
enforcement action under planning legislation.  

 
11.3 Similarly, where structural alterations are required to premises, applicants are 

encouraged to obtain the necessary building control approval.  

12. Off Sales of Alcohol 
 
12.1 This applies to premises where the sale of alcohol is exclusively for 

consumption off the premises, i.e. shops, stores and supermarkets etc. 
 
12.2 Revised Government Guidance recommends that shops, stores and 

supermarkets selling alcohol should generally be permitted to match the 
hours during which they may sell alcohol with their normal trading hours, 
unless there are exceptional reasons related to the licensing objectives, in 
particular the prevention of crime and disorder and public nuisance. The sale 
of alcohol to underage young people which apart from being a criminal 
offence, can give rise to disorder, public nuisance and concerns over public 
safety and harm to children; and the sale of alcohol to both adult and 
underage young people who consume it on the way to other premises can 
give rise to problems of drunkenness and disorderly behaviour. 

 
12.3 The Council will consider any representation made by the police, other 

responsible authorities, and relevant representations from interested parties 
in determining applications. 

 
12.4 Under the Council’s Designation Order (Section 13 of the Criminal Justice 

and Police Act 2001) which came into force on 1st March 2005, the police 
have powers to stop street drinking and seize alcohol and receptacles.  

 
12.5 Where the police make representations against the grant of a further licence 

for off sales, because of their serious concerns over problems of street 
drinking or late night disorder associated with the off sale of alcohol in the 
area, the Council may give specific consideration to restricting the number, 
type, and the hours of premises selling alcohol exclusively for consumption off 
the premises.  

Page 39



 

 16 

 
12.6 When requested by the police, the Council may impose conditions that there 

should be no sale of alcoholic beverages over a specified limit of alcohol by 
volume or of specified quantities (e.g. of beers, lagers and ciders over 5.5% 
alcoholic content by volume). 

13. Late Night Refreshment   
 
13.1 Applications for premises offering late night take away food and drink will be 

considered on their individual merits. However, the impact upon the licensing 
objectives of people gathering at such premises after other licensed premises 
have closed can be considerable, and in determining licensing hours following 
the receipt of relevant representations regard will therefore be had to the 
density and closing times of other licensed premises in the vicinity 

 
13.2 Late night refreshment includes the supply of hot food or hot drink at any time 

between the hours of 23.00 and 05.00, whether for the consumption on or off 
the premises (Schedule 2 of the Act). Late night refreshment premises that 
serve hot food or hot drink exclusively by service to customers seated at 
tables will be treated as restaurants in terms of this policy.  

 
13.3 Premises which supply hot food and hot drink for consumption off the 

premises which are open after 23.00 can attract large groups of customers, 
many of whom have been consuming alcohol in pubs, bars, or night clubs 
sometimes some distance away. The congregation of people around these 
premises can lead to additional noise and disturbance. The Police have 
raised concerns about the level of crime and disorder that happens outside 
take-away food premises late at night due to alcohol fuelled behaviour, and 
the opportunities for crime afforded by the congregation of people. The 
consumption of food outside premises can also result in food waste and litter 
on pavements, to an extent that amounts to a public nuisance. 

14. Theatres, Cinemas and Other Performance Venues 
 
14.1 The Council welcomes the vital contribution that theatres, cinemas, concert 

halls and other performance venues make in providing the diverse cultural 
and entertainment value that attracts people of all ages into Cheltenham. The 
Council accepts that these types of uses are unlikely to be linked with crime 
and disorder, and generally have less impact on residents than other 
licensable activities. 

 
14.2 Performance venues will be subject to conditions on public safety related to 

the staging of special effects and the exhibition of film is subject to mandatory 
conditions on the admittance of children. 

 
14.3 The range and diversity of these events may make it a requirement to have 

provisions in the licence for a specific “event plan” to be agreed for each 
event rather than to rely solely on conditions within the premises license. 

 
14.4 Some of these events because of their prominence attract very large crowds. 

Sound from outdoor events is not enclosed and carries across the town and 
therefore may cause widespread nuisance.  The extent and frequency of 
these events in relation to the areas where the impact is felt will be 
considered in determining applications for premises licences for outdoor 
licensable activities. 

 

Page 40



 

 17 

15.  Applications for extended hours 
 
15.1 Cheltenham has a large concentration of licensed premises in the centre of 

town and many currently operate into the early hours of the morning.  
 
15.2 The issues of late night/early morning opening hours can be extended 

opportunities for crime and disorder, the limited capacity of the transport 
system to serve the extent of late night activity and issues of public nuisance.  

 
15.3 Statutory guidance provides for: 
 

“The hours during which the premises are permitted to be open to the public 
or to members and their guests can be restricted by the conditions of a 
premises licence or a club premises certificate for the prevention of public 
nuisance. But this must be balanced by the potential impact on disorder which 
may result from arbitrarily fixed closing times. However, there is no general 
presumption in favour of lengthening licensing hours and the four licensing 
objectives should be paramount considerations at all times.” 

 
15.4 On receipt of an application for extended hours and where relevant 

representations have been received the Council will need to consider:- 
 

(a) whether there is residential accommodation in the proximity of the 
premises that would be likely to be adversely affected by premises being 
open or carrying out operations at the hours proposed; 

 
(b) that the proposed hours of the licensable activities and when customers 

will be permitted to remain on the premises; 
 
(c) the proposed hours when any music, including incidental music, will be 

played; 
 
(d) the hours when customers will be allowed to take food or drink outside 

the premises or be within open areas which form part of the premises; 
 
(e) the existing hours of licensable activities and the past operation of the 

premises (if any) and hours of licensable premises in the vicinity; 
 
(f) whether customers and staff have adequate access to public transport 

when arriving at and leaving the premises, especially at night; 
 
(g) the capacity of the premises; 
 
(h) the type of use: recognising that premises that sell alcohol, play music for 

dancing, provide late night refreshment or take-away food, are more likely 
to be associated with crime and disorder and public nuisance than 
restaurants, theatres, cinemas, other performance venues or qualifying 
clubs. 

 
15.5 Where relevant representations are received from responsible authorities 

and/or interested parties, the Councils may seek to restrict the operational 
hours of premises where this is necessary to promote the licensing objectives. 
The Council may impose further limitations in hours upon review of the 
licence, particularly where the premises is shown to be the focus or cause of 
nuisance or anti-social behaviour. 

Page 41



 

 18 

16.  Cumulative Impact  
 
16.1 Cumulative impact concerns the potential impact on the promotion of the 

licensing objectives of a concentration of types of licensed premises in one 
area. 

 
16.2 This can become a particular concern in areas where the growth in the 

number of premises that primarily serve alcohol is perceived to be at a high 
level in relation to the size of the town. 

 
16.3 Although the Council does not currently have designated cumulative impact 

areas, it may adopt a special policy regarding cumulative impact where it 
considers that a significant concentration of licensed premises will or is 
having an impact on the licensing objectives and granting of further licences 
in that area would add to this impact. It will take the decision only after it is 
satisfied that there is evidence to support such a decision.  

 
16.4 The absence of a special policy does not prevent any responsible authority or 

interested party making representations on a new application for the grant, or 
variation, of a licence on the grounds that the premises will give rise to a 
negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives.  The 
overall effect of the grant of the licence should be considered in relation to 
evidence of cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 

 
16.5 Special policies should however never be used as grounds for revoking an 

existing licence or certificate when representations are received about 
problems with those premises. The “cumulative impact” on the promotion of 
the licensing objectives of a concentration of multiple licensed premises 
should only give rise to a relevant representation when an application for the 
grant or variation of a licence or certificate is being considered. A review must 
relate specifically to individual premises, and by its nature, “cumulative 
impact” relates to the effect of a concentration of many premises.  

 
16.6 The Council also recognises that there are other mechanisms both within and 

outside of the licensing regime that are available for addressing the impact of 
unlawful and antisocial behaviour and nuisance once consumers are away 
from the premises e.g.  

 
(a) positive measures to provide a safe and clean town centre environment 

in partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other 
service providers within the Council; 

 
(b) the provision of CCTV surveillance in the town centre, provision of taxi 

marshalls, provision of public conveniences open late at night, street 
cleaning and litter patrols;  

 
(c) powers to designate parts of the Borough as places where alcohol may 

not be consumed publicly;  
 
(d) police enforcement of the law with regard to disorder and anti-social 

behaviour, including the issue of fixed penalty notices;  
 
(e) the prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at such 

premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk; 
 

Page 42



 

 19 

(f) the confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas 
e.g. use of the powers of confiscation contained in the Confiscation 
(Young Persons) Act 1997; 

 
(g) police powers to close down instantly for up to 24 hours any licensed 

premises or temporary events on the grounds of disorder, the likelihood 
of disorder or noise emanating from the premises causing a nuisance; 

 
(h) the power of police, other responsible authority or a local resident or 

business to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question.  
 
16.7 The Council will address these issues in line with the strategic objectives for 

crime and disorder reduction within the Borough. 

17.  Sexual Entertainment Venues 
 
17.1 The Council has adopted the amended provisions of schedule 3 of the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by section 27 
of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 (‘the 2009 Act’) with respect to “relevant 
entertainment”, that is:- 

 
(a) any live performance; or 
 
(b) any live display of nudity. 

 
which is of such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must reasonably be 
assumed to be provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually 
stimulating any member of the audience (whether by verbal or other means). 

 
17.2 The adopted provisions came into effect on the 1st of December 2010 in 

Cheltenham.   
 
17.3 Any premises that wants to offer relevant entertainment on a regular basis, 

that is more frequently that 24 hours once a month on no more 11 occasions 
a year can no longer offer this under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 
as a result of the abovementioned adoption.  These premises must apply for 
a Sexual Entertainment Venue (SEV) licence. 

 
17.4 Premises that wants to offer relevant entertainment on an irregular basis, can 

still do so under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.  These premises 
must be authorised for the performance of dance and the performance of 
recorded music. 

18.  Enforcement 
 
18.1 In terms of regulation, our aim is to target those premises which are causing 

problems within our communities whilst supporting well managed premises 
and community activities, which provide worthwhile opportunities for the 
enjoyment of leisure time without having a negative impact. Premises that 
produce disorder, or threaten public safety, generate public nuisance, or 
threaten the well being of our children will be targeted for enforcement action.  

 
18.2 Once licensed, it is essential that premises are maintained and operated so 

as to ensure the continued promotion of the licensing objectives and 
compliance with the specific requirements of the Act.  The Council will make 

Page 43



 

 20 

arrangements to monitor premises, undertake inspections to support the 
licensing objectives and take appropriate enforcement action. 

 
18.3 The Council will also establish enforcement protocols with the police and 

other enforcement agencies to ensure efficient and targeted joint enforcement 
is undertaken on a regular basis. 

 
18.4 This does not prevent action being taken by any individual authority at any 

time should offences become apparent.  
 
Investigation of Offences  
 
18.5 When a relevant authority has become aware of any offence under the Act, 

the authority may:-  
 

(a) Take appropriate intervention action to secure and preserve evidence to 
support a potential prosecution and provide witness evidence should it be 
necessary.  

 
(b) Early discussions with the appropriate Primary Enforcement Agency, 

including (unless in cases of extreme urgency) the Council’s enforcement 
officers. 

 
(c) Supply the relevant Primary Enforcement Agency in a timely manner all 

of the relevant evidence (whether subsequently used or unused).  
 
(d) Set out in writing details of the offence and notify the Primary 

Enforcement Agency for action to be taken/considered.  
 
(e) This does not exempt the relevant authority making appropriate staffing 

arrangements to respond to complaints and managing high demand 
premises.  

 
18.6 Once in receipt of a request to take action, the Primary Enforcement Agency 

will:-  
 

(a) assess the facts and take appropriate action in accordance with the 
Enforcement Protocol for that authority and take appropriate timely action 
proportionate to the overall problems that exist to the area in support of 
the Licensing Objectives  

 
(b) inform the relevant authority and stakeholders that initiated the complaint 

or supplied the information of the action taken.  
 
18.7 Regular liaison meetings will take place between the licensing enforcement 

officers and the police licensing officers. 
 
Responsibility for Prosecutions  
 
18.8 Section 186 of the Act provides that proceedings for offences under the Act 

may be instituted by:-  
 

(a) Licensing Authority.  
 
(b) The Director of Public Prosecutions, or  
 
(c) Trading Standards Officers for offences under section 146 or 147.  

Page 44



 

 21 

APPENDIX A - CONSULTATION 
 
This document has been developed by the Council in consultation with 
representatives of the following key stakeholder groups and organisations:  
 
(a) The Gloucestershire Constabulary  

 
(b) Gloucestershire Fire Service  

 
(c) Bodies representing holders of premises licences, club premises licences and 

personal licences in the Council's area  
 

(d) Representatives from local businesses  
 

(e) Representatives of the Council's Planning and Public  Protection Services  
 

(f) Trade Associations  
 

(g) Independent licence holders  
 

(h) Local residents  
 

(i) Ambulance service  
 

(j) Gloucestershire County Council’s education services and Trading Standards  
 

(k) Gloucestershire Youth Services 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 

 22 

APPENDIX B – Responsible Authorities  
Applicants are required under the Act to send copies of their application to the 
following responsible authorities in the Cheltenham area: 
 
GLOUCESTERSHIRE CONSTABULARY 
 
Gloucestershire Constabulary 
Licensing Unit,  
Community Engagement Dept,  
No 1 Waterwells, Waterwells Drive,  
Quedgeley 
Gloucester 
GL2 2AN 
Direct line: 01452 754482  Switchboard : 0845 090 1234  
Fax: 01452 754797 
Email:  Licensing@Gloucestershire.Police.uk 
 
GLOUCESTERSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE 
 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service 
Service Delivery Support 
Waterwells Drive 
Quedgeley 
Gloucester 
GL2 2AX 
Tel: 01452 753333 
Fax:   01452 753304 
Email:  fire.safety@glosfire.gov.uk 
 
POLLUTION PREVENTION 
 
Environmental Protection 
Public Protection  
Cheltenham Borough Council 
Municipal Offices 
Promenade 
Cheltenham 
GL50 1PP 
Tel:   01242 264 204 
Fax: 01242 26 4210 
 
HEALTH AND SAFETY ENFORCEMENT  
 
If you are uncertain who enforces Health and Safety on your premises please 
assume it is Cheltenham Borough Council and forward a copy of the application to 
the address below:-  
 
WHERE THE LOCAL AUTHORITY IS THE ENFORCING AUTHORITY: 
 
Public Protection - Occupational Health and Safety  
Cheltenham Borough Council 
Municipal Offices 
Promenade 
Cheltenham 
GL50 1PP 
Tel: 01242 775020 
Fax: 01242 264210 

Page 46



 

 23 

 
WHERE THE HSE ARE THE ENFORCING AUTHORITY:  
 
Health and Safety Executive  
4th Floor, The Pithay  
All Saints Street  
BRISTOL  
BS1 1ND  
Telephone: 0117 988 6000  
Fax: 0117 926 2998  
Email: (i) For service employment e.g. Central and Local Government, NHS etc. the 
contact is paula.Johnson@hse.gsi.gov.uk 
(ii) For other employment e.g. manufacture and repair, agriculture, transport, the 
contact is nigel.chambers@hse.gsi.gov.uk 
 
LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY 
 
Local Planning Authority 
Built Environment  
Cheltenham Borough Council 
Municipal Offices 
Promenade 
Cheltenham 
GL50 1PP 
Tel:  01242 264138 
Fax: 01242 227323 
 
CHILD PROTECTION 
 
Children & Young People's Directorate 
Safeguarding Manager 
Gloucestershire County Council 
Quayside Wing 
Shire Hall 
Gloucester 
GL1 2RH 
Telephone: 01452 426321 
Fax: 01452 425148 
Email: Duncan.siret@gloucestershire.gov.uk 
 
TRADING STANDARDS 
 
Trading Standards 
Gloucestershire County Council, Trading Standards,  
Hillfield House  
Denmark Road 
Gloucester  
GL1 3LD 
Telephone: (01452) 426201 
Fax: (01452) 426274  
E mail: tradstds@gloucestershire.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



 

 24 

APPENDIX C - Delegated functions 
 
Matter to be dealt with Full Committee Sub Committee Assistant 

Director 
Community 
Services 

Application for personal 
licence 

 If a police 
objection 

If no objection  
made 

Application for personal 
licence with unspent 
convictions 

 All cases  

Application for premises 
licence/club premises 
certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation 
is made 

If no relevant 
representation 
is made 

Application for 
provisional statement 

 If a relevant 
representation 
is made 

If no relevant 
representation 
is made 

Application to vary 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation 
is made 

If no relevant 
representation 
is made 

Application to vary 
designated personal 
licence holder 

 If a police 
objection 

All other cases 

Request to be removed   All cases 
Application for transfer 
of premises licence 

 If a police 
objection 

All other cases 
Applications for interim 
authorities 

 If a police 
objection 

All other cases 
Application to review 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 All cases  

Decision on whether a 
complaint or objection is 
irrelevant, frivolous, 
vexatious etc 

  All cases 

Decision to object when 
Local Authority is a 
consultee and not the 
lead authority 

 All cases  

Determination of a 
police objection to a 
temporary event notice 

 All cases  

Final approval of 
licensing policy (post 
consultation). 

Full Council   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



 

 25 

APPENDIX D - GLOSSARY 
 
DCMS - Department of Culture, Media, and Sport 
 
Entertainment Facilities - Facilities for enabling persons to take part in 
entertainment.   
 
Personal Licence - authorises an individual to supply or authorise the supply of 
alcohol in accordance with a premises licence 
 
Premises Licence - authorises the premises to be used for one or more licensable 
activity 
 
Relevant Representation - is only relevant if it relates to the likely effect of the grant 
of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives.  A 
representation that fails to do so is ‘irrelevant’ for the purposes of the Act. 
 
Club Premises Certificate - This is a licence granting ‘qualifying club’ status to 
specific premises, according to a number of qualifying conditions, including the 
provision that there are at least 25 members and that alcohol is only supplied by or 
on behalf of the club. 
 
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) - The Personal Licence Holder named on 
the Premises Licence as being in day-today control of the premises through whom all 
alcohol sales must be authorized. 
 
Hearing - When an application for a new licence or to vary an existing licence goes 
to a Licensing Sub- Committee for consideration. 
 
Objection notice - A procedure whereby the Police can object to the grant of a 
premises licence, variation for a premises licence or personal licence or to a 
Temporary Event Notice. (See also Relevant representation) 
 
Personal Licences - licence granted to an individual and authorises that person to 
supply alcohol or authorise the supply of alcohol in accordance with a premises 
licence. The licence lasts for 10 years and can be renewed. 
 
Premises Licence - A licence granted in relation to specific premises and will specify 
the nature of the licensable activity and any applicable conditions. 
 
Regulated entertainment - Regulated entertainment covers the provision of 
entertainment or of entertainment facilities. 
 
In order for the provision of entertainment or entertainment facilities to be regulated, 
the entertainment or entertainment facilities must be provided: 
 
• For members of the public or a section of the public; or 
• For members of a regulated club or their guests; or 
• At a charge with the intention of making a profit. 
 
 
 

Page 49



Page 50
This page is intentionally left blank



Breakdown of Amendments/Revisions  

1. The inclusion of the Best Bare None scheme as a recognised scheme for promoting Public Safety 
in the borough. 

Best Bar None 

5.21 Best Bar None (BBN) is a national award scheme supported by the Home Office and aimed at 
promoting responsible management and operation of alcohol licensed premises. It was piloted in 
Manchester in 2003 and found to improve standards in the night time economy, with premises now 
competing to participate.  The aim of BBN is to reduce alcohol related crime and disorder in a town 
centre by building a positive relationship between the licensed trade, police and local authorities.  
The Council will actively encourage licensed premises to signup to the BBN scheme. 

 

2. Replaced “17. Nudity, Striptease and Sex Related Entertainment” with a new heading “17.  Sexual 
Entertainment Venues”. 

17.  Sexual Entertainment Venues 

17.1 The Council has adopted the amended provisions of schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 
2009 (‘the 2009 Act’) with respect to “relevant entertainment”, that is:- 

 
(a) any live performance; or 
(b) any live display of nudity. 
 
which is of such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be 
provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the audience 
(whether by verbal or other means). 
 

17.2 The adopted provisions came into effect on the 1st of December 2010 in Cheltenham.   
 

17.3 Any premises that wants to offer relevant entertainment on a regular basis, that is more frequently 
that 24 hours once a month on no more 11 occasions a year can no longer offer this under the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 as a result of the abovementioned adoption. These premises 
must apply for a Sexual Entertainment Venue (SEV) licence. 

 
17.4 Premises that wants to offer relevant entertainment on an irregular basis, can still do so under the 

Page 51



provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.  These premises must be authorised for the performance of 
dance and the performance of recorded music. 

 
Officer Comment: The statutory provision in respect of the licensing of sexual entertainment in licensed 
premises has changed since the adoption of the current policy in 2009.  The regulation of sexual 
entertainment has been removed form the provisions of the 2003 Act. 
 

 

Page 52



������������	�
���
���� ���������	�
�	�����������	��

�	������������ ���������	�
�	����	���������������	����

��	�
����
�����	��	�����������
��������	���������	�
������������

�	�������������������
����	�	�����������
���� ��
�	���������
����
�!���	������
"���
�����#���$����	�������	������������
�������	�%������	&�	'������&����
!��������	������
 &�"�		���������	&�	'�������
"�	��������
"������������(���	��������&����
 ��)�	�
�*��&��������
!�)��*����������	������&����
�����������#����
��
��������#�����	���	�
"�������� ��'�	���������	�
!�!���������	�
�����
��'����������	�
$�	)�������
����������	
#������������+����������"��������,��	���	�
$��

��	�
����
�����	��	�����������
�����������������	��������

#����	�&����-����(���������
����	�

�����
�&�$�(�"�&��	�

�����
�&�$�(������	������	�
���!��&
��	��
��������

�����
�&�
�&��	���+��&&�	���
,�
�	�������������#��
�	�����

�����
�&�	�&����������	��	�����������
��	���	�
��
.��
����+�
���������#���
�����������/���������	�0���

Page 53



Page 54
This page is intentionally left blank



Consultee Comments  Officer Comments  
 
Cheltenham Bowling Club  
 
Thank you for your letter of 3 August. Cheltenham 
Bowling Club is content with the objectives and 
conditions applying to our current licence. These 
allow the club to operate activities commensurate 
with a sports club, while being mindful of our 
responsibility to be a 'good neighbour'. Should your 
review decide to change the conditions of our 
existing licence we would appreciate the opportunity 
to comment prior to implementation. 
 
Cheltenham Bowling Club, is a non-profit making 
organisation providing recreational facilities for the 
local community and we, like other sports clubs, are 
struggling with rising running costs especially 
utilities. Should your review look at the cost of 
licensing fees, we would like you to consider a 
reduction for sports clubs registered with the 
Community Amateur Sports Club Scheme. 
 
Royal Oak Cheltenham  
 
I write as regards the consultation period in respect 
of CBC's Licensing Policy. I am a long standing 
lessee in the town, and have traded at The Royal 
Oak for nearly 11 years. 
 
My licensing record is without blemish and I would 
wish to make a general comment about Licensing in 
the town rather than a point by point assessment of 
your policies.  
 
In respect of the 4 key licensing objectives it strikes 
me that crime and disorder and public nuisance 
make the most headlines in our borough. This is 
generally as a result of excessive drinking by 
minorities, purchased from numerous sources, but 
often accredited to pubs within the town. 
 
What we have in society is an onerous regulatory 
process that is applied to the majority in order to 
legislate against behaviour inflicted on us all by a 
small minority.  
 
The massive majority of people who visit licensed 
premises do so in an orderly and legal way and 
consume alcohol in a sensible and modest way, 
often to accompany a meal. 
 
Where abuse of the Licensing Laws do take place 
either by suppliers of alcohol (off licenses, 
supermarkets, pubs or bars etc) or consumers of 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A review of licence conditions does not form part 
of this policy review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A review of licence fees does not form part of this 
policy review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



alcohol, the full weight of the law and regulation 
should be targeted wholly at those individuals. We 
are hacked off at being the silent majority who 
comply with the law, train our staff and supervise our 
alcohol sales, yet we continue to get all the bad 
press related to alcohol abuse and street disorder. 
 
I would ask, in the previous period prior to this 
current review, how many premises had their 
licenses reviewed or removed. How many personal 
licenses were removed? Were there personal 
prosecutions for disorder? Have those committing 
offences under the 2003 been bought to book and 
fined/prosecuted? 
 
I suggest that the Council and Police need to focus 
their efforts in the correct places, namely;  
 
'Off sales' where many younger drinkers are buying 
cheap alcohol and preloading prior to going out. 
Price point is clearly an issue here, and perhaps 
beyond your influence? 
 
'On sales' premises who then subsequently admit 
and serve this people who are clearly drunk  
 
Those who are arrested as drunk, or admitted to 
hospital drunk should be fined for public disorder 
offences (hopefully a system exists for on the spot 
fines that remove the need for court action). I 
suggest that drunk people can clearly afford to pay 
fines, because they can afford to get drunk. 
 
I am aware of the progress that has been made by 
the Police and Nightsafe in the town and the 
numerous measures that they have taken in 
conjunction with Licensees to improve the safety of 
the town, this we all applaud. I do hope that we can 
focus our efforts more pro-actively in freeing up the 
burdens of regulation on law biding and professional 
operators and their customers, whilst aiming 
regulation at the source of our problems, namely 
those who create nuisance, public disorder and anti-
social behaviour. 
 
Cheltenham College  
 
Thank you for your letter elated 3rd August, in respect 
of the review of Cheltenham Borough Council's 
Licensing Policy Statement. 
 
With regard to the wider issues raised by the policy 
document itself the College has only one real 
concern and that is the powers afforded to the Police 
at paragraph 9.11. Whilst we fully understand the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments noted but it is not considered 
specifically relevant to this policy review and as a 
result no amendments to the policy have been 
made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The power to close premises on grounds of 
disorder (or the likelihood of disorder) or because 
of public nuisance is a power attributed to the 
Police by the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003. 

Page 56



need for a mechanism to close down an event that 
has got out of hand, we do have concerns over the 
power to close down an event, which in the 
subjective opinion of a police officer may become 
troublesome or be a public nuisance through being 
noisy.  
 
The College has a license that permits it to hold 
outdoor entertainment. We have rarely exercised 
that privilege, but would be concerned that, on the 
grounds of one complaint, the function could be 
closed on the decision of a single police officer, 
leading to considerable inconvenience to guests and 
loss of income to the school. 
 
Although Paragraph 14.3, to some degree, implies 
that the risk of this happening would be lessened 
through careful event planning and consulting with 
the Council and Police in advance, we would 
respectfully suggest that the Council revisits 
paragraph 9.11 and considers a caveat that prevents 
the closure of activities which are conducted in 
accordance with license conditions and, if necessary, 
a pre approved event plan, on the subjective opinion 
of a solitary police officer. 
 
I note your comments in respect of a "Best Bar 
None" scheme and would be interested to receive 
further details. 
 
Cheltenham Motor Club 
 
Thank you for sending me in the post a hardcopy of 
the draft licensing policy statement for the next 3 
years. 
  
Having read the document I feel we should have no 
issues with it at Cheltenham Motor Club.  
  
However, I do have concerns about the possible 
amendments to the act via the police responsibility 
act going through the House of Lords at present. In 
particular I have concerns about the following:- 
  
• having to pay a late night levy as we stay open 

after midnight on Fridays and Saturdays  
• that persons who do not live in the vicinity of 

Cheltenham Motor Club can have a say on our 
licensed activities  

• that the right of appeal would effectively be 
withdrawn 

 
I would be interested in your views on Theresa May's 
proposals as I feel it is yet again heavily weighted 
against the on trade and the off trade get away very 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The provisions of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 
2003 do not fall within the scope of this policy 
review and as a result no amendments to the 
policy have been made. 
 
 
 
 
As mentioned, the power to close premises on 
grounds of disorder (or the likelihood of disorder) 
or because of public nuisance is a power 
attributed to the Police by the Anti-Social 
Behaviour Act 2003.   
 
It would not be within the Council’s powers to 
prescribe additional conditions not prescribed in 
law. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments have been noted but the provisions of 
the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 
2011 does not fall within the scope of this policy 
review and as a result no amendments to the 
policy have been made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



lightly again. 
 
 
Cheltenham Rugby Club 
 
I have received your letter of 3rd August. 
  
As Secretary of the Cheltenham Rugby Club I would 
like to state that we have always received excellent 
and helpful service, when we have been in touch 
with yourselves on Licensing matters. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments noted. 

 
 
 

 

Page 58



 

 Page 1 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet - 7 February 2012 
Council - 10 February 2012 

General Fund Revenue and Capital - Revised Budget 2011/12 and 
Final Budget Proposals 2012/13 for Consultation 

 
Accountable member Cabinet Member for Community Development and Finance, John 

Webster 
Accountable officer Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer), Mark Sheldon 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

All scrutiny committees 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes 
Executive summary This report summarises the revised budget for 2011/12 and the 

Cabinet’s final budget proposals for 2012/13 for consultation. 
Recommendations Cabinet / Council 

1. Note the revised budget for 2011/12. 
2. Consider the budget assessment by the Section 151 Officer at 

Appendix 10 in agreeing the following recommendations. 
3. Approve the final budget proposals including a proposed 

council tax for the services provided by Cheltenham Borough 
Council of £187.12 for the year 2012/13 (a 0% increase based on 
a Band D property). 

4. Approve the growth proposals, including one off initiatives at 
Appendix 3. 

5. Approve the savings / additional income at Appendix 4. 
6. Approve the reserve re-alignments at Appendix 5, as outlined in 

section 9. 
7. Approve the proposed capital programme at Appendix 6, as 

outlined in Section 10. 
8. Note the updated Medium Term Financial Strategy at Appendix 

7 including the impact of the ‘bridging the gap’ programme on 
the forecast budget gap. 

9. Approve the proposed Property Maintenance programme at 
Appendix 8, as outlined in Section 11. 

10. Approve a level of supplementary estimate of £100,000 for 
2011/12 as outlined in section 14. 

Agenda Item 11
Page 59



 

 Page 2 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

 
Financial implications As contained in the report and appendices. 

Contact officer: Mark Sheldon.  
E-mail: mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264123 

Legal implications The budget setting process must follow the Council's Budget and Policy 
Framework Rules. 
The Localism Act 2011 contains requirements for local authorities to hold a 
referendum where council tax is proposed above a specific % increase. 
The government is progressing statutory regulations which will set out the 
processes to be undertaken and the proposal is that a referendum be 
required for proposed increases in council tax over 3.5%. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis 
E-mail: peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

In the spirit of building on our positive industrial relations environment, the 
recognised trade unions received a budget briefing at a Joint Consultative 
Committee on 24 November 2011 and 2nd February 2012. The final 
budget proposals (Appendix 4) details the savings generated from a 
number of restructures that have already taken place this year. Dialogue 
with the recognised trade unions will continue in order to ensure that the 
potential impact on employees are kept to a minimum and in doing so help 
to avoid the need for any compulsory redundancies. The Council’s policies 
on managing change and consultation regarding any redundancies will be 
followed.  
On going, it is important that capacity is carefully monitored and managed 
in respect of any reductions on FTE and reduced income streams.   
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy 
E-mail: julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264355 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The aim of the final budget proposals is to direct resources towards the 
key priorities identified in the Council’s Corporate Business Plan whilst 
recognising the reduction in government funding. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The draft budget contains a number of proposals for improving the local 
environment, as set out in this report. 

Page 60



 

 Page 3 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

1. Background 
1.1 In accordance with the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework Rules, which is part of the 

Council’s constitution, the Cabinet is required to prepare interim budget proposals for the 
financial year ahead and consult on it’s proposals for no less than four weeks prior to finalising 
recommendations for the Council to consider in February 2011. The consultation took place 
between the period 14th December 2011 to 13th January 2012 and this report sets out the final 
budget proposals for 2012/12. 

2. Budget Assessment of the Section 151 Officer 
2.1 Under Section 25 of the 2003 Local Government Act, there is a legal requirement for the Section 

151 Officer to make a report to the authority when it is considering its budget, council tax and 
housing rents (see separate report on HRA to Council) covering the robustness of estimates and 
adequacy of reserves. The Act requires Councillors to have regard to the report in making 
decisions at the Council’s budget and council tax setting meeting.  

2.2 Traditionally this has been a separate report to council but, following a review by the Budget 
Working Group, it was recommended that a more succinct assessment be incorporated in the 
main budget report. In responding to this request, the Section 151 Officer has taken a risk based 
approach to his assessment which is attached at Appendix 10. 

3. 2011/12 Revised Budget 
3.1 The budget monitoring report to the end of August 2011, considered by Cabinet on 18th October 

2011, identified a potential projected overspend of £476k for the current year, 2011/12. In 
response, the Senior Leadership Team implemented a freeze on all unspent supplies and 
services budgets which included leasing costs for the purchase of new vehicles and equipment. 
As a result of the action taken, the revised budget for 2011/12, which includes projected savings 
in employee related and supplies and services budgets, is now projected to have managed the 
projected overspend to zero.  

 
4. Finance Settlement 
4.1 The Government’s comprehensive spending review (CSR10) in 2010 determined the level of 

funding for the whole of the public sector for the period 2011/12 to 2012/13. The following table 
summarises the updated headline figures for the level of Government support to the Council 
released on 7th February 2011. 

 2010/11 £m 2011/12 £m 2011/12 £m 
adjusted 

2012/13 £m 
Revenue Support Grant 1.118 1.440 1.440  
Cheltenham’s share of 
Redistributed Business Rates 

7.701 4.658 4.658  

Formula Grant   8.819 6.098 6.098 5.518 
less formula grant adjustment e.g. 
concessionary fares 

(1.631) - (0.046)  
Adjusted formula grant 7.188 6.098 6.052 5.518 
Actual cash (decrease) over 
previous year 

 (1.090)  (0.534) 
% cash cut  (15.16%)  (8.82%) 
 

Page 61



 

 Page 4 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

4.2 In the coalition Government’s comprehensive spending review in October 2010, the Chancellor of 
the Exchequer announced that councils would receive a cut in government support of 7.1% in 
each of the next 4 years, a total of 28.4%. This was in line with the assumptions for a reduction in 
government support modelled in the council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) although 
the council anticipated some front loading and planned for a 10.7% cut in 2011/12. 

4.3 The actual settlement was very different. The council received a cash reduction in government 
support (revenue support grant plus share of redistributed non domestic rates) of £1.090m, a cut 
of 15.16% in 2011/12 followed by a further projected cash cut of £534k (8.82%) in 2012/13. 
Cumulatively, this equates to a 23.23% cut over 2 years. Funding levels for the following 2 years 
i.e. 2014/15 and 2015/16, have yet to be announced but it is likely that they will continue to impact 
on the council’s finances detrimentally. 

5. The Cabinet’s general approach to the 2012/13 budget 
5.1 The Cabinet’s budget strategy for 2012/13, approved at a meeting on 18th October 2011, included 

an estimate of £824k for the 2012/13 budget gap i.e. the financial gap between what the Council 
needs to spend to maintain services (including pay and price inflation) and the funding available 
assuming a 9.57% cut in government support. A technical change to the 2012/13 settlement was 
made on 7th February 2011, which provided an additional £45k in government support which 
represents a revised cash reduction of 8.82%.  

  
5.2 The final assessment of the budget gap for 2012/13, based on the detailed budget preparation 

undertaken over recent months and the financial settlement is £972k which takes into account, 
structural shortfalls within the 2011/12 budget such as car parking income and green waste sales. 

 
5.3 In November 2011, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced that the Government intends to 

make funding available to help councils freeze their council tax in 2012/13. Unlike for 2011/12, the 
council tax freeze grant for 2012/13 will involve a single one-off payment and this will not be built 
into the baseline (i.e. no further grant payments will be made over the Spending Review period). 
Whilst the Cabinet are proposing to take up the Governments offer to freeze council tax at 
2011/12 levels it recognises that this will put additional pressure on the 2013/14 budget as this 
decision will add circa £200k to the funding gap. 

 
5.4 In preparing the final budget proposals, the Cabinet and officers have made the following 

assumptions: 
 
• Prepared a standstill budget projection under a general philosophy of no growth in levels of 

service with the exception of Taxi Marshall’s, tree maintenance and license costs for ‘Huddle’, 
costing £44k annually, which have now been permanently built into the base budget. The Taxi 
Marshall’s service had previously been funded from the Licensing Equalisation Reserve which is 
has now been used up.   

• Provided for inflation for contractual, statutory, and health and safety purposes at an appropriate 
inflation rate where proven.  

• Not budgeted for pay inflation for 2012/13. 
• Increased income budgets based on an average increase in fees and charges of 2.5% with the 

exception of property rents which have not been inflated but are now set in line with rent 
projections based on property leases. The Cabinet intend to freeze car park charges, hire 
charges for its entertainment’s venues and building control fees at current year’s levels which 
have been shown as growth within the final budget proposals. 

• Assessed the impact of prevailing interest rates on the investment portfolio, the position in 
respect of Icelandic banks and the impact of HRA self-financing, the implications of which have 
been considered by the Treasury Management Panel. 

Page 62



 

 Page 5 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

• Allowed for a council tax freeze, in line with the coalition Government’s request, on the basis that 
it will be funded though a specific grant for one year only. 

• The budget has been prepared to take account of the new local authority company, Ubico, from 
1st April 2012.  A number of services which were currently delivered within the operations team 
are being retained within the council and not transferring to the company; this includes cemetery 
and crematorium, parks development and public protection which now sit within the wellbeing 
and culture division.  The council will continue to retain the customer service elements of the 
services within scope of the company and these are being transferred to the resources division, 
and the client officer (which is being shared with Cotswold district council) will sit in the 
commissioning division.  In addition, the budget takes into account the impact of the creation of 
the GO shared service, incorporating Financial Services, Payroll and Human Resources. Both 
Ubico and GO will change the accounting arrangements for these services such that detailed 
budgets will sit either in Ubico or GO and the council will hold a budget from the recharge of the 
cost of the services back to the council and for the residual client services. This work has yet to 
be finalised but will not impact on the net cost of services. 

5.5 The key aims in developing the approach to the budget were to: 
 
• Protect frontline services, as far as possible 

 
• Continue to develop longer term plans for efficiencies over the period of the MTFS including 

increasing emphasis on shared services and commissioning services.  
 
5.6 Once again, there has been considerable activity during the course of the year to develop this 

longer term strategy for closing the funding gap. The Cabinet have worked with officers to develop 
the ‘Bridging the Gap (BtG)’ programme using the BtG group supported by the Senior Leadership 
team. The Cabinet’s final budget proposals for closing the budget gap in 2012/13, the result of 
this work, are detailed in Appendix 4, split into: 

 
• Decisions already made by council and therefore built into the base budget, totalling £254k. 
 
• Proposals yet to be agreed by council which are not built into the base budget, totalling £866k 

which includes a contribution from New Homes Bonus (NHB) of £250k. 
 
5.7 The Cabinet and SLT have been anticipating having to make significant savings and have been 

actively managing vacancies and staffing levels in order to minimise the impact of service 
reviews, system’s thinking and savings initiatives and cuts. As a result, the reduction in staffing 
numbers (4.9 full time equivalents) outlined in the budget proposals have been achieved at 
minimal cost to the taxpayer. 

 
5.8 Following the consultation period, a number of changes have been made to the budget to reflect 

further consideration of the proposals and their impact on the organisation which are documented 
in the supporting appendices to the report and summarised as follows:  
 

 
Summary of changes to Interim Budget proposals 2012/13 – Revenue 
item 

£ 
Increase in tax base 
 

(4,547) 
Adjustment to pension fund contribution expenditure in respect of the 2010 
formal valuation of the pension fund 
 

(120,000) 

Contribution to Joint Core Strategy Reserve to fund CBC’s contribution to 
Joint Core Strategy work 2012/13 to 2015/16 
 

120,000 

Reduction of £7k additional income identified from new allotment plots in 
2012/13 to £2k, to reflect the part year effect of the new plots which will be 

5,000 

Page 63



 

 Page 6 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

available from early 2013, subject to planning permission. 
 
Operations Manager Post – pending review of savings delivered by the Local 
Authority Company - one off £30k funding by realignment of unused single 
status and LABGI reserve. 
 

nil 

Advance payment in 2011/12 of Everyman Theatre repairs grant 2012/13 – 
as per council decision June 2011. Funded from Property Repairs & 
Renewals fund. 
 

nil 

Transitional support for Cheltenham Arts Council – subject to further review. 
 

5,000 
Transitional support for Citizens Advice Bureau (£30k for 2012/13 and £30k 
for 2013/14) subject to a sound business case. To be funded from the 
General Reserve. 
 

nil 

Freeze building control fees – loss of increased inflationary income of £9,800 
offset by increases savings from service restructuring 
 

nil 

Reduced contribution to General Balances 
 

5,453 
 

Changes to Capital programme 
 

Summary of changes to Interim Budget proposals 2012/13 – Capital item £ 
Virtual e-mail – capitalised cost of software to ensure secure e-mail exchange 
between GO partners - £22k funded from the Capital Reserve. 
 

nil 

Phase II of Imperial and Montpellier Gardens investment programmes and 
investment in infrastructure in Pittville park – subject to / funded from part of 
the sale proceeds of Montpellier Lodge. 
 

200,000 

 
6. Service growth 
6.1 The Cabinet’s initial approach was that, given the difficult financial situation, there should be no 

growth in services which has an impact on revenue expenditure except where there is a statutory 
requirement or a compelling business case for an 'invest to save' scheme. The growth identified in 
the budget proposals supported by Cabinet meets these criteria and reflect the need to invest in 
business processes, infrastructure and schemes which support the BtG programme.  

 
6.2 The New Homes Bonus (NHB) scheme was designed to address the disincentive within the local 

government finance system for local areas to welcome growth. The scheme is designed to 
provide local authorities with the means to mitigate the strain the increased population causes 
whilst promoting a more positive attitude to growth and creating an environment in which new 
housing is more readily accepted. Whilst funding is not ring-fenced for a specific purpose, it is 
designed to allow the ‘benefits of growth to be returned to local communities’. 

 
6.3 An assessment of projected allocations for NHB based on housing commitments over the period 

of the MTFS allows for £250k to be built into the 2012/13 base budget which is sustainable over 
the period of the MTFS. This leaves a further £333k allocation of NHB in 2012/13 which the 
Cabinet proposes to fund the following one-off investment and an aspiration to take a similar 
approach in future years. 

 
• A further £50k towards addressing youth work issues that the County can no longer fund in the 

way that it traditionally did. 
 

Page 64



 

 Page 7 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

• £141.5k for small environmental works to tackle environmental issues costing up to a maximum 
of £15k. 

 
• £141.5k towards a Promoting Cheltenham fund to support events, projects and initiatives that will 

stimulate economic and business growth in Cheltenham. 
 
6.4 The full list of proposals for growth, including one off initiatives, is included in Appendix 3.   
 
7. Treasury Management  
7.1 Appendix 2 summarises the budget estimates for interest and investment income activity taking 

into account the following changes, considered by the Treasury Management Panel, at its 
meeting on 21st November 2011 and 26th January 2012. 

 
7.2 Security of capital remains the Council’s main investment objective. The solvency issues 

surrounding Europe in addition to the downgrades of some UK banks has meant the Council has 
scaled back its lending list, and will start to repay temporary debt with maturing investments rather 
than re-invest. For 2012/13 interest payable will reduce by £10,600 and interest receivable will 
reduce by £127,400. Interest rates are expected to remain at low levels for the foreseeable future. 
Interest payable to the HRA for reserves and balances held within the Council’s overall balances 
will reduce by £32,500. 

 
7.3 The government are going ahead with changes which will have a major impact on the way the 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is financed from April 2012. One of the changes is the 
methodology for splitting the current loans the council has and charging the coupon rate of a loan 
instead of a weighted average rate to the HRA loans. This has resulted in an additional £232,200 
of borrowing costs being transferred to the HRA. 

 
7.4 As a result, the net impact on the 2012/13 budget is an increase in net treasury income of 

£147,900. 
 
7.5 The council has been actively pursuing the deposits from the three Icelandic owned banks, Glitnir, 

Landsbanki and Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander (KSF). Recently the Icelandic Supreme Court 
upheld the District Court decision that the test cases involving Local Authority deposits with 
Landsbanki and Glitnir banks as having priority creditor status. This means that local authority 
deposits will be at the front of the queue in getting the deposits back. Recently the Icelandic 
district court confirmed that the Supreme Court decision would apply to non-test cases. As such, it 
is expected that the council will receive back 98% of the Landsbanki deposits and 100% of the 
Glitnir deposits. So far 63p in the pound has been received from KSF and future total distributions 
should be in the range of 79p to 86p in the pound. Based on current assumptions, the council will 
receive between £10.2-10.45m of the original £11m deposited with the Icelandic banks. 

 
7.6 This has enabled the council to reduce its Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), as an element of 

the capital direction received in 2009 is no longer required, which will save the council £155,000.  
This has been built into the base budget projection for 2012/13. 

 
8. Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
8.1 The MTFS identified a funding gap for the period 2012/13 – 2016/17 of £2.5m.The MTFS 

projection has been reassessed to include the latest view of financial implications of more recent 
developments and include projected funding levels is contained in Appendix 7.  

 
9. Reserves 
9.1 The Cabinet has taken the opportunity to review the reserves held by the council on the advice of 

SLT and the Section 151 Officer. Some realignment of reserves, detailed in Appendix 5, are 
proposed to fund the Operations Manager post and the intention to fund, subject to business case 
the CAB transitional payments for two years, from the General Reserve. 

Page 65



 

 Page 8 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

 
10. Capital Programme  
10.1 The proposed capital programme for the period 2012/13 to 2016/17 is at Appendix 6.  
 
10.2 The programme includes provisional sums for infrastructure investment to be funded from the 

Civic Pride reserve.  The council has now concluded the sale of the Midwinter site and the receipt 
has been set aside for now and may soon receive a receipt from North Place and Portland Street 
car parks during 2012/13.  Officers are currently working on the costing of the aspirations in the 
Asset Management Plan which will help Members prioritise and agree the use of these receipts.  

 
11. Property Maintenance Programmes 
11.1 The budget proposals include a proposal to defer the increase in annual contribution of £200k to 

the planned maintenance reserve by a further year, in response to the challenging financial 
position. In line with the budget working group’s suggestions to Cabinet, the planned maintenance 
programme was reviewed by the Asset Management Working Group and is attached at Appendix 
8 for approval. 

 
12. Reasons for recommendations 
12.1 As outlined in the report. 
13. Consultation and feedback 
13.1 The formal budget consultation on the detailed interim budget proposals took place over the 

period 14th December 2011 to 13th January 2012.  The Cabinet sought to ensure that the 
opportunity to have input into the budget consultation process was publicised to the widest 
possible audience. During the consultation period, interested parties including businesses, 
tenants, a residents focus group, staff and trade unions were encouraged to comment on the 
initial budget proposals. They were asked to identify, as far as possible, how alternative proposals 
complement the Council’s Business Plan and Community Plan and how they can be financed. 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committees were invited to review the interim budget proposals 
meetings in January 2011 and comments were fed back to the Cabinet.  

13.2 A summary of the budget consultation responses and the Cabinet’s response to it in arriving at 
the final budget proposals, are contained in Appendix 9. A copy of the detailed responses are 
available in the Member’s room. 

14. Supplementary Estimates 
14.1 Under financial rule B11.5, the Council can delegate authority to the Cabinet for the use of the 

General Reserve up to a certain limit. This is to meet unforeseen expenditure which may arise 
during the year for which there is no budgetary provision. It would be prudent to allow for a total 
budget provision of £100,000 for supplementary estimates in 2012/13 to be met from the General 
Reserve, the same level as in 2011/12. 

 
15. Alternative Budget Proposals 
15.1 It is important that any political group wishing to make alternative budget proposals should 

discuss them, in confidence, with the Section 151 Officer and / or the appropriate Strategic 
Director / Chief Executive (preferably channelled through one Group representative) to ensure 
that the purpose, output and source of funding of any proposed changes are properly identified. 

15.2 It is important that there is time for Members to carefully consider and evaluate any alternative 
budget proposals. Political groups wishing to put forward alternative proposals are not obliged to 
circulate them in advance of the budget-setting meeting, but in the interests of sound and lawful 

Page 66



 

 Page 9 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

decision-making, it would be more effective to do so, particularly given that they may have 
implications for staff. 

16. Final Budget Proposals and Council Approval 
16.1  The Cabinet have presented firm budget proposals having regard to the responses received.  In 

reaching a decision, the Council may adopt the Cabinet’s proposals, amend them, refer them 
back to the Cabinet for further consideration, or in principle, substitute its own proposals in their 
place. 

16.2  If it accepts the recommendation of the Cabinet, without amendment, the Council may make a 
decision which has immediate effect. Otherwise, it may only make an in-principle decision. In 
either case, the decision will be made on the basis of a simple majority of votes cast at the 
meeting. 

16.3  An in-principle decision will automatically become effective 5 working days from the date of the 
Council’s decision, unless the Leader informs the Section 151 Officer in writing within 5 working 
days that he objects to the decision becoming effective and provides reasons why. It should be 
noted that a delay in approving the budget may lead to a delay in council tax billing with 
consequential financial implications.  

16.4  In that case, another Council meeting will be called within 7 working days of the date of appeal 
when the Council will be required to re-consider its decision and the Leader’s written submission. 
The Council may (i) approve the Cabinet’s recommendation by a simple majority of votes cast at 
the meeting or (ii) approve a different decision which does not accord with the recommendation 
of the Cabinet by a majority. The decision will then become effective immediately. 

17. Performance management – monitoring and review 
17.1 The scale of budget cuts will require significant work to deliver within the agreed timescales and 

there is a danger that it diverts management time from delivery of services to delivery of cuts.  
There are regular progress meetings to monitor the delivery of savings and this will need to be 
matched with performance against the corporate strategy action plan to ensure that resources are 
used to best effect and prioritised.   

17.2 The delivery of the savings workstreams included in the finalbudget proposals, if approved by full 
council will be monitored via the BtG group. 

18. Conclusions 
18.1 As outlined throughout the report, the economic situation and severe cuts to public spending are 

having a major impact on the budget setting process. The budget proposals for 2012/13 have 
been prepared in a climate of uncertainty and have been severely impacted upon by the 
continued economic downturn. Low interest rates coupled with suppressed income levels have 
presented a huge challenge for both Officers and Members in preparing a budget for the year 
ahead. Future funding gaps, coupled with the uncertainty of the implications for local government 
of a public sector spending squeeze point to a challenging period for the Council.  

18.2 The Council continues to find itself under pressure in the following key areas: 
• The cost implications of providing a wide range of services, including many discretionary 

services. 
 
• The impact of the performance of the pension fund, due to falling stock markets, on 

employment costs. 
 

• The cost of maintaining a large property portfolio. 
 

Page 67



 

 Page 10 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

• The impact of low interest rates on investment income. 
 

• The impact of sustained low income levels.  
 
18.3 As part of the Council’s medium term financial planning, it is important to continue to prepare for a 

number of challenges, including the identification of savings required for future years to bridge 
future funding gaps, maintaining the Council’s substantial asset portfolio, meeting new 
government targets and local customer demand for improved services. 

Report authors Mark Sheldon, Section 151 Officer, 
Tel 01242 264123 
e-mail address mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Paul Jones, Head of Financial Services 
Tel. 01242 775154;   
e-mail address paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Summary net budget requirement 
3. Growth 
4. Savings / additional income 
5. Projection of reserves 
6. Capital programme 
7. Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
8. Planned Maintenance Programme 
9. Summary of budget consultation and Cabinet response 
10. Section 151 Officer budget assessment  

Background information 1. Finance settlement 2012/13 
 

 

Page 68



 

   
$3tvlrj5g.doc Page 11 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

Risk Assessment  - Final budget 2012/13             Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred 
to risk 
register 

1 If the council is 
unable to find long 
term solutions to 
bridge the MTFS 
gap it will may find 
difficult to prepare 
future budgets 
without making 
unplanned cuts in 
service provision. 

Section 151 
Officer 

15 
December 
2010 

3 3 9 Reduce The council’s approach to 
resolving the funding gap is 
managed by the ‘Bridging the 
Gap’ (BtG) programme.              
The council’s commissioning 
programme aims to identify 
additional longer term 
solutions.  

Ongoing 
during 
course 
of year 

Section 151 
Officer 

 

2 If the income targets 
are not sound 
robust then there is 
a risk that the 
income identified 
within the budget 
will not materialise 
during the course of 
the year. 

Section 151 
Officer 

15 
December 
2010 

3 3 9 R Professional judgement is 
used to prepare budgets 
taking into account the current 
economic situation and 
previous performance.  
Regular monitoring and 
reporting of income targets to 
SLT / Cabinet identify any 
issues which require 
corrective action.  

Ongoing 
during 
course 
of year 

Section 151 
Officer 

 

3 If when developing 
the strategy to meet 
the MTFS gap, the 
council does not 
make the public 
aware of its financial 
position and clearly 
articulates why it is 
making changes to 
service delivery then 
there may be 
confusion as to what 
services are being 
provided and 
customer 

Director of  
Commissioning  

15 
December 
2010 

3 3 9 R As part of the development of 
BtG and commissioning 
programmes there will need to 
be a clear communication 
strategy. 
Commissioning decisions will 
be based on customer needs 
and requirements and this 
should help address 
satisfaction levels. 

Ongoing 
during 
course 
of year 

Communications 
team to support 
the BTG 
programme 

 

P
age 69



 

   
$3tvlrj5g.doc Page 12 of 12 Last updated 31 January 2012 
 

satisfaction may 
decrease. 

4 The MTFS assumes 
a reliance on shared 
services delivering 
savings. If these 
savings do not 
materialise or 
shared service 
projects do not 
proceed as 
anticipated then 
other savings will 
need to be found. 

Strategic 
Director 

15 
December 
2010 

3 3 9 R All shared services are 
operated under Prince 2 
principles and are the 
responsibility of a named 
sponsor and dedicated 
project resource, with a 
clear business case. Risk 
logs are maintained for the 
shared service projects 
which are continually 
monitored and regularly 
reviewed with quarterly 
reports to Cabinet as part 
of ongoing corporate 
budget monitoring 

Ongoing 
during 
course 
of year 

Pat Pratley  

5 If over the life of the 
MTFS, the one off 
cost of new 
initiatives cannot be 
offset by savings 
there may be an 
increased 
dependency on the 
General Reserve. 

Section 151 
Officer 

15 
December 
2010 

3 3 9 R Future realignment of 
reserves may be required in 
order to increase the General 
Reserve. 

Ongoing 
during 
course 
of year 

Mark Sheldon 
(working with 
SLT and 
Cabinet) 

 

6 If the council does 
not manage and 
deliver its 
commissioning 
agenda it may not 
have the flexibility to 
make the savings 
required in future 
years and the 
greater burden of 
savings may fall on 
the retained 
organisation 

Section 151 
Officer 

15 
December 
2010 

3 3 9 R Contracts, SLAs and other 
shared service agreements 
will need to be drafted and 
negotiated to ensure that 
there is sufficient flexibility 
with regards to budget 
requirements 

Ongoing 
during 
course 
of year 

Director of  
Commissioning  

 

 

P
age 70



APPENDIX 2

NET GENERAL FUND BUDGET 2011/12 REVISED AND 2012/13

2011/12 2011/12 2012/13
GROUP ORIGINAL REVISED ORIGINAL
Projected cost of 'standstill' level of service £ £ £

Commissioning 2,942,800 2,872,650 3,164,200
Built Environment 1,166,850 1,262,166 813,600
Wellbeing & Culture 4,672,200 4,595,250 5,789,650
Resources 1,340,650 1,558,950 1,391,350
Operations 4,793,500 4,740,800 3,619,400
Strategic Directors (16,450) (1,450) (81,250)
Programmed Maintenance (Revenue) 482,100 588,400 1,056,000
Business Change 734,800 1,016,900 591,325
Savings from vacancies (480,000) (69,650) (480,000)
Bad debt provision 40,000 40,000 40,000

15,676,450 16,604,016 15,904,275

Capital Charges (2,097,600) 534,600 (1,913,300)
Interest and Investment Income 521,800 597,200 373,900
Use of balances and reserves 173,643 (2,990,024) 252,045
Proposed Growth recurring - Appendix 3 164,400
Proposed Growth one-off - Appendix 3
Savings / Additional income identified - Appendix 4 (866,400)
LAA Performance Reward Grant (180,424)
New Homes Bonus (290,275)
Specific Grant in lieu of council tax freeze 2011/12 (197,000) (197,800)
Specific Grant in lieu of council tax freeze 2012/13 (199,000)
NET BUDGET 14,077,293 14,077,293 13,715,920

Deduct:
Revenue Support Grant (1,439,927) (1,439,927) (108,705)
National Non-Domestic Rate (4,658,405) (4,658,405) (5,607,741)
Collection Fund Contribution (59,500) (59,500) (34,000)

(6,157,832) (6,157,832) (5,750,446)

NET SPEND FUNDED BY TAX 7,919,461 7,919,461 7,965,474

Band ‘D’ Tax £187.12 £187.12 £187.12
Increase per annum £0.00
Increase per week £0.00
% Rise 0.00%

Page 71



Page 72
This page is intentionally left blank



PR
OP

OS
AL

S F
OR

 G
RO

WT
H

AP
PE

ND
IX 
3

Re
f

Di
vis

ion
Pr
oje

ct 
Na

me
De

sc
rip

tio
n

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

£
£

£
£

£
£

SU
PP

OR
TE

D 
GR

OW
TH

 

1
W

ell
be

ing
 & 

Cu
ltu

re
Pu

bli
c P

rot
ec

tio
n -

 Ta
xi 

Ma
rsh

all
s

To
 co

nti
nu

e t
he

 se
rvi

ce
 of

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 ta
xi 

ma
rsh

all
s 

in 
the

 to
wn

 ce
ntr

e t
o m

ain
tai

n s
afe

ty 
in 

the
 ni

gh
tim

e 
ec

on
om

y.
    

   1
7,0

00
  

    
 17

,00
0 

    
  1

7,0
00

 

2
Re

so
urc

es
IT 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re

Hu
dd

le 
is 

a "
clo

ud
" b

as
ed

 ap
pli

ca
tio

n t
ha

t e
na

ble
s 

tea
m 

me
mb

ers
 wi

thi
n p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

pro
jec

ts 
to 

wo
rk 

co
lla

bo
rat

ive
ly 

an
d s

ha
re 

do
cu

me
nts

.  F
un

din
g i

s 
req

uir
ed

 to
 es

tab
lish

 a 
ba

se
 bu

dg
et 

for
 lic

en
ce

 
co

sts
.

    
    

 7,
00

0 
    

    
7,0

00
  

    
   7

,00
0 

3
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Tre
es

 Bu
dg

et
Ad

dit
ion

al 
an

nu
al 

tre
e m

ain
ten

an
ce

 bu
dg

et.
    

   2
0,0

00
  

    
 20

,00
0 

    
  2

0,0
00

 

4
W

ell
be

ing
 & 

Cu
ltu

re
To

wn
 H

all
 an

d P
um

p R
oo

m 
Le

ttin
gs

 in
co

me

To
 no

t in
cre

as
e t

he
 le

ttin
gs

 fe
e i

nc
om

e i
n l

ine
 wi

th 
inf

lat
ion

, to
 ke

ep
 th

e f
ee

s a
nd

 ch
arg

es
 co

mp
eti

tiv
e 

an
d r

efl
ec

tiv
e o

f th
e c

urr
en

t e
co

no
mi

c c
lim

ate
.

    
   1

1,7
00

  
    

 11
,70

0 
    

  1
1,7

00
 

5
W

ell
be

ing
 & 

Cu
ltu

re
Ar

ts 
Co

un
cil 

Gr
an

t
Tra

ns
itio

na
l s

up
po

rt t
o C

he
lte

nh
am

 Ar
ts 

Co
un

cil 
- 

su
bje

ct 
to 

fur
the

r re
vie

w
    

    
 5,

00
0 

6
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Bu
ild

ing
 co

ntr
ol 

inc
om

e

To
 no

t in
cre

as
e b

uil
din

g c
on

tro
l fe

es
 in

 lin
e w

ith
 

inf
lat

ion
, to

 re
fle

ct 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
do

wn
tur

n i
n b

uil
din

g 
co

ntr
ol 

inc
om

e l
ev

els
.  T

his
 wi

ll b
e o

ffs
et 

by
 sa

vin
gs

 
de

live
red

 fro
m 

a s
taf

fin
g r

es
tru

ctu
re 

- s
ee

 Bt
G 

sc
he

du
le 

(A
pp

en
dix

 4)
.

    
    

 9,
80

0 
    

    
9,8

00
  

    
   9

,80
0 

To
 no

t in
cre

as
e c

ar 
pa

rki
ng

 in
co

me
 ch

arg
es

 in
 lin

e 

    
    
 R
ev
en
ue
 C
os
ts 
    
    
   

    
  C

ap
ita
l C

os
ts 
    
 

7
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Ca
r P

ark
ing

 in
co

me

To
 no

t in
cre

as
e c

ar 
pa

rki
ng

 in
co

me
 ch

arg
es

 in
 lin

e 
wit

h i
nfl

ati
on

, to
  re

fle
ct 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

do
wn

tur
n i

n c
ar 

pa
rki

ng
 in

co
me

 le
ve

ls.
    

   9
3,9

00
  

    
 93

,90
0 

    
  9

3,9
00

 
    
 16

4,4
00
  
   1

59
,40

0 
    
15
9,4

00
 

    
    
    
    
-   

    
    
   -
   

    
    
   -
   

SU
PP

OR
TE

D 
GR

OW
TH

 (F
UN

DE
D 
FR

OM
 C
IVI
C 
PR

ID
E R

ES
ER

VE
)

8
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Civ
ic 

Pr
ide

CB
C 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n t
o E

as
t P

rom
en

ad
e r

ep
av

ing
 by

 
GC

C,
 pl

us
 st

ree
t fu

rni
tur

e c
os

ts.
    

  1
45

,00
0 

9
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Civ
ic 

Pr
ide

CB
C 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n t
o W

es
t P

rom
en

ad
e r

ep
av

ing
 by

 
GC

C.
  1

00
,00

0 

10
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Civ
ic 

Pr
ide

Up
gra

de
 of

 Pr
om

en
ad

e p
ed

es
tria

nis
ed

 ar
ea

 
inc

lud
ing

 re
mo

de
llin

g o
f tr

ee
 pi

ts,
 pr

ov
idi

ng
 se

ati
ng

, 
re-

po
int

ing
 ex

ist
ing

 Yo
rks

ton
e.

    
  1

00
,00

0 

11
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Civ
ic 

Pr
ide

Re
mo

de
llin

g o
f S

he
rbo

rne
 Pl

ac
e C

ar 
Pa

rk 
int

o a
 

Gr
ee

n c
ar 

pa
rk 

for
 sh

ort
 st

ay
 bu

s u
se

.
    

  1
00

,00
0 

12
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Civ
ic 

Pr
ide

Sc
he

me
 fo

r S
t.M

ary
's c

hu
rch

ya
rd

    
    

50
,00

0 

Pa
ge

 1 
of 

2

Page 73



PR
OP

OS
AL

S F
OR

 G
RO

WT
H

AP
PE

ND
IX 
3

Re
f

Di
vis

ion
Pr
oje

ct 
Na

me
De

sc
rip

tio
n

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

£
£

£
£

£
£

    
    
 R
ev
en
ue
 C
os
ts 
    
    
   

    
  C

ap
ita
l C

os
ts 
    
 

13
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Civ
ic 

Pr
ide

Pu
bli

c S
pa

ce
 D

es
ign

er
    

   3
5,0

00
  

    
 35

,00
0 

    
   3

5,0
00
  
    
 35

,00
0 

    
    
    
  - 
  

    
  3
95
,00

0 
  1
00
,00

0 
    
    
   -
   

SU
PP

OR
TE

D 
GR

OW
TH

 (F
UN

DE
D 
FR

OM
 JO

IN
T C

OR
E S

TR
AT

EG
Y R

ES
ER

VE
)

14
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Jo
int

 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y

CB
C 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n t
o J

oin
t C

ore
 St

rat
eg

y C
os

ts 
    

   3
0,0

00
  

    
 30

,00
0 

    
  3

0,0
00

 
    
   3

0,0
00
  
    
 30

,00
0 

    
  3
0,0

00
 

SU
PP

OR
TE

D 
GR

OW
TH

 (F
UN

DE
D 
FR

OM
 C
AP

ITA
L R

ES
ER

VE
)

15
Re

so
urc

es
IT 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re

Up
gra

de
 of

 M
icr

os
oft

 O
ffic

e r
eq

uir
ed

 as
 ve

rsi
on

 
cu

rre
ntl

y u
se

d i
s a

n e
nd

 of
 lif

e p
rod

uc
t a

nd
 no

 
lon

ge
r s

up
po

rte
d b

y M
icr

os
oft

.  
    

  1
20

,00
0 

16
Re

so
urc

es
IT 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re
Up

gra
de

 of
 C

ivic
a s

ys
tem

 to
 en

su
re 

PC
I 

co
mp

lia
nc

y.
    

56
,20

0 

17
Re

so
urc

es
IT 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re
Vir

tua
l e

-m
ail

 ap
pli

an
ce

 lic
en

ce
 -s

ett
ing

 up
 of

 e-
ma

il 
co

nn
ec

tio
n b

etw
ee

n a
ll G

O 
Pa

rtn
er 

au
tho

riti
es

.
    

    
22

,00
0 

18
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Civ
ic 

Pr
ide

Im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 G
ros

ve
no

r T
err

ac
e C

ar 
Pa

rk 
inc

lud
ing

 m
ak

ing
 a 

Gr
ee

n c
ar 

pa
rk,

 im
pro

vin
g 

lin
ka

ge
s t

o t
he

 H
igh

 St
ree

t, i
mp

rov
ed

 su
sta

ina
bil

ity
 - 

rai
nw

ate
r h

arv
es

tin
g, 

PV
 ce

lls 
etc

.
    

  1
50

,00
0 

    
    
    
   -
   
    
    
    
  - 
  
    
    
    
  - 
  

    
  2
92
,00

0 
    
56
,20

0 
    
    
   -
   

    
    
    
   -
   
    
    
    
  - 
  
    
    
    
  - 
  

    
  2
92
,00

0 
    
56
,20

0 
    
    
   -
   

SU
PP

OR
TE

D 
GR

OW
TH

 (F
UN

DE
D 
FR

OM
 PR

OP
ER

TY
 R
&R

 R
ES

ER
VE

)

19
Pr

og
ram

me
 M

ain
ten

an
ce

Ca
rbo

n R
ed

uc
tio

n
Ev

ap
ora

tio
n s

yst
em

 in
 IC

T S
erv

er 
Ro

om
    

   1
3,0

00
 

20
Pr

og
ram

me
 M

ain
ten

an
ce

Ca
rbo

n R
ed

uc
tio

n
Ne

w L
ED

 po
ol 

lig
hts

 at
 Le

isu
re@

    
   1

0,0
00

 
    
   2

3,0
00
  
    
    
    
 -  
  
    
    
    
 -  
 

    
    
    
    
-   

    
    
   -
   

    
    
   -
   

SU
PP

OR
TE

D 
GR

OW
TH

 (F
UN

DE
D 
FR

OM
 G
EN

ER
AL

 R
ES

ER
VE

)

21
Op

era
tio

ns
Lo

ca
l A

uth
ori

ty 
Jo

int
 W

as
te 

Co
mp

an
y

De
po

t O
pe

rat
ion

s M
an

ag
er 

po
st 

fun
de

d f
or 

20
12

/13
, fu

nd
ed

 fro
m 

Ge
ne

ral
 R

es
erv

e
    

   3
0,0

00
 

22
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

Cit
ize

n A
dv

ice
 Bu

rea
u

Tra
ns

itio
na

l s
up

po
rt t

o C
itiz

en
s A

dv
ice

 Bu
rea

u f
or 

20
12

/13
 an

d 2
01

3/1
4 f

un
de

d f
rom

 th
e G

en
era

l 
Re

se
rve

 - s
ub

jec
t to

 bu
sin

es
s c

as
e

    
   3

0,0
00

  
    

 30
,00

0 
    
   6

0,0
00
  
    
 30

,00
0 

Pa
ge

 2 
of 

2

Page 74



Br
idg
ing
 th
e G

ap
 Pr
og
ram

me
 (B
tG
) - 
sa
vin
gs
 / a
dd
ito
na
l in
co
me

AP
PE

ND
IX

 4

20
12
-13

 
Sa

vin
gs

 / 
Ad

dn
l In

co
me

    
    

  
£

Bu
ilt 

int
o B

as
e 

Bu
dg

et 
20
12
/13

    
    

    
  

£

No
t b

uil
t in

to 
Ba

se
 B
ud

ge
t 

20
12
/13

    
    

    
 

£
20
13
/14

 £
20
14
/15

 £
20
15
/16

 £
20
16
/17

 £

FT
E 

Lo
ss
es
 

20
11
/12

FT
E 

Lo
ss
es
 

20
12
/13

Ind
ica

tiv
e e

qu
ali
ty 
/ d
ive

rsi
ty 
im
pa
ct 
at 
dr
aft
 bu

dg
et 
sta

ge
Se
rvi
ce
 / R

isk
 Im

pli
ca
tio
ns

CO
RP

OR
AT
E

RE
ST

RU
CT

UR
E O

F A
DM

IN
IST

RA
TIO

N 
SU

PP
OR

T F
OR

 SE
NI
OR

 LE
AD

ER
SH

IP 
TE

AM
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
 

15
,00

0
0

15
,00

0
1.0

No
 sp

ec
fic
 eq

ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

 id
en
tifi
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 
pro

po
sa
l - 
an
y 

sta
ffin

g r
eo
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
ill f

ollo
w 
ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 af

fec
ted

 st
aff

 an
d T

rad
e U

nio
ns
 to

 en
su
re 

fai
rne

ss
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s.

Th
ere

 m
ay
 be

 ad
dit
ion

al 
pre

ss
ure

 on
 SL

T t
o u

nd
ert

ak
e m

ore
 

ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n, 

div
ert

ing
 va

lua
ble

 tim
e f

rom
 m

ore
 cr

itic
al 
wo

rk.
 

CO
MM

ISS
IO
NI
NG

RE
VIE

W
 O
F C

OR
PO

RA
TE

 C
OM

MU
NI
CA

TIO
NS

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
   20
,00

0
20
,00

0
1.0

No
 sp

ec
fic
 eq

ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

 id
en
tifi
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 
pro

po
sa
l - 
an
y 

sta
ffin

g r
eo
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
ill f

ollo
w 
ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 af

fec
ted

 st
aff

 an
d T

rad
e U

nio
ns
 to

 en
su
re 

fai
rne

ss
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s.

It w
ill b

e i
mp

ort
an
t to

 en
su
re 

tha
t th

e p
ub
lic 

ha
ve
 th

e r
igh

t le
ve
l o
f 

inf
orm

ati
on
 to

 ac
ce
ss
 se

rvi
ce
s.

ON
E L

EG
AL

 R
EO

RG
AN

ISA
TIO

N
20
,00

0
0

20
,00

0
No

 sp
ec
fic
 eq

ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

 id
en
tifi
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 
pro

po
sa
l - 
an
y 

sta
ffin

g r
eo
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
ill f

ollo
w 
ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 af

fec
ted

 st
aff

 an
d T

rad
e U

nio
ns
 to

 en
su
re 

fai
rne

ss
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

LO
CA

L G
OV

ER
NM

EN
T A

SS
OC

IAT
IO
N 
(LG

A)
 - S

AV
IN
G 
RE

SU
LT

IN
G 
FR

OM
 

RE
DU

CT
IO
N 
IN
 M

EM
BE

RS
HI
P C

OS
T

30
0

30
0

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

OR
GA

NI
SA

TIO
NA

L D
EV
EL
OP

ME
NT

 &
 C
HA

NG
E

CO
RP

OR
AT

E T
RA

IN
IN
G 
- IN

CR
EA

SE
D 
US

E O
F L

MS
 LE

AR
NI
NG

 G
AT

EW
AY

2,0
00

0
2,0

00
2,0

00
2,0

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

W
ill n

ee
d t

o w
atc

h c
ap
ac
ity
 if 
de
ve
lop

ing
 be

sp
ok
e e

-le
arn

ing
.

RE
MO

VE
 ES

SE
NT

IAL
/R
EG

UL
AR

 C
AR

 U
SE

R 
ST

AT
US

62
,10

0
0

62
,10

0
7,0

00
4,5

00

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Ha
ve
 no

t b
ee
n a

ble
 to

 re
ac
h a

gre
em

en
t w

ith
 TU

s a
t p

res
en
t, m

ay
 

ne
ed
 to

 in
tro

du
ce
 ne

w 
arr

an
ge
me

nt 
se
pa
rat

ely
 (in

div
idu

al 
sig

n u
p 

to 
ne
w 
ap
pro

ac
h).

 Pr
ep
ari

ng
 br

ief
ing

 no
te 

for
 SL

T, 
int
ran

et 
up
da
te,

 w
ill o

ffe
r 1

21
s. 
Ma

y b
e r

ed
uc
ed
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 fro

m 
red

uc
ed
 al
low

an
ce
.

OP
ER

AT
IO
NS

ES
TA

BL
ISH

ME
NT

 O
F L

OC
AL

 AU
TH

OR
ITY

 JO
IN
T W

AS
TE

 C
OM

PA
NY

 W
ITH

 
CO

TS
W
OL

D 
DI
ST

RI
CT

 C
OU

NC
IL

83
,00

0
0

83
,00

0
93
,00

0

Du
e t

o t
he
 si
ze
 of

 th
is 
pro

jec
t, a

 se
pa
rat

e e
qu
ali
ty 
im
pa
ct 
ha
s 

be
en
 ca

rrie
d o

ut.
 Th

e a
ss
es
sm

en
t id

en
tife

d t
ha
t th

e p
roj

ec
t w

ou
ld 

be
 po

ten
tia
lly 

po
sit
ive

 fo
r a

ll p
rot

ec
ted

 eq
ua
lity

 gr
ou
ps
. S

ev
en
 

ac
tio
ns
 ha

ve
 be

en
 id
en
tifi
ed
 w
hic

h w
ill b

e t
ak
en
 fo

rw
ard

 du
rin

g t
he
 

co
urs

e o
f th

e y
ea
r.

ES
TA

BL
ISH

ME
NT

 O
F L

OC
AL

 AU
TH

OR
ITY

 JO
IN
T W

AS
TE

 C
OM

PA
NY

 W
ITH

 
CO

TS
W
OL

D 
DI
ST

RI
CT

 C
OU

NC
IL 
- R

OL
E O

F C
LIE

NT
 O
FF

IC
ER

 FO
R 
LA

C
-30

,00
0

0
-30

,00
0

As
 ab

ov
e

WE
LL
BE

IN
G 
& 
CU

LT
UR

E
IN
CR

EA
SE

 C
OS

T O
F H

AL
L H

IR
E F

OR
 W

ED
DI
NG

S A
T T

HE
 PI

TT
VIL

LE
 PU

MP
 R
OO

MS
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   
Inc

rea
se
 in
 co

st 
of 

we
dd
ing

s b
y £

22
5 f

rom
 £1

,90
0 t

o £
2,1

25
.

5,0
00

5,0
00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Th
ere

 is
 co

nti
nu
ed
 pr

es
su
re 

on
 al
l in

co
me

 ge
ne
rat

ing
 ac

tiv
itie

s 
du
e t

o t
he
 on

go
ing

 do
wn

tur
n i
n t

he
 ec

on
om

y a
nd
 th

e a
ss
oc
iat
ed
 

ris
k o

f d
eli
ve
rin

g r
ev
en
ue
 ta

rge
ts.
  

* E
VE

RY
MA

N 
TH

EA
TR

E P
HA

SE
D 
GR

AN
T R

ED
UC

TIO
N 
(O

VE
R 
6 Y

EA
RS

)   
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
 

Ph
as
ed
 re

du
cti
on
 in
 gr

an
t o

ve
r 6

 ye
ars

 re
su
ltin

g f
rom

 th
e r

en
eg
oti
ati
on
 of

 le
as
e a

nd
 

su
pp
ort

 fo
r th

e g
ran

t a
plli

ca
tio
n o

f £
25
0k
 to

wa
rds

 th
ea
tre

 re
fur

bis
hm

en
t c
os
ts 
an
d l
oa
n 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n f

or 
£1
m 

(to
tal
 £3

0k
 ov

er 
6 y

ea
rs)

5,0
00

5,0
00

0
5,0

00
5,0

00
5,0

00

Th
e g

ran
t re

du
cti
on
 m

ay
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th

e E
ve
rym

an
's 
ab
ility

 to
 

pro
vid

e o
utr

ea
ch
 w
ork

 w
hic

h i
s p

art
icu

lar
ly v

alu
ed
 by

 co
mm

un
ity
 

gro
up
s; 
the

 ev
ery

ma
n h

as
 fo

cu
se
d r

ec
en
tly 

on
 w
ork

 w
ith
 BM

E 
co
mm

un
itie

s. 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 W

ellb
ein

g &
 C
ult
ure

 to
 ke

ep
 an

 ov
erv

iew
 

of 
eq
ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

.

Ma
y i
mp

ac
t o

n t
he
 op

era
tio
ns
 of

 th
e E

ve
rym

an
 Th

ea
tre

. W
hil
st 

the
 ca

pit
al 
inv

es
tm

en
t p

roj
ec
t is

 no
w 
co
mp

let
e a

nd
 th

e T
he
atr

e i
s 

we
ll p

os
itio

ne
d t

o d
eli
ve
r it

s b
us
ine

ss
 pl
an
s, 
the

 co
nti
nu
ati
on
 of

 
the

 re
ce
ss
ion

 an
d w

ith
 th

e d
ow

ntu
rn 

in 
the

 ec
on
om

y m
ay
 ha

ve
 a 

be
ari

ng
 on

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

bu
dg
ets

. 
* R

ED
UC

TIO
N 
IN
 G
RA

NT
 FU

ND
IN
G 
TO

 C
HE

LT
EN

HA
M 

FE
ST

IVA
L O

F  
PE

RF
OR

MI
NG

 
AR

TS
10
,80

0
10
,80

0
0

Th
e g

ran
t re

du
cti
on
 m

ay
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th

e f
ina

nc
ial
 su

sta
ina

bil
ity
 of

 
the

 C
he
lte
nh
am

 Fe
sti
va
l o
f P

erf
orm

ing
 Ar

ts 
wh

ich
 pr

ov
ide

s 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r c

hil
dre

n a
nd
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

. D
ire

cto
r 

of 
W
ellb

ein
g &

 C
ult
ure

 to
 ke

ep
 an

 ov
erv

iew
 of

 eq
ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

.

Ma
y i
mp

ac
t o

n t
he
 op

era
tio
n a

nd
 su

sta
ina

bil
ity
 of

 th
e F

es
tiv
al.

* R
EV

IEW
 O
F A

LL
OT

ME
NT

S S
ER

VIC
E -

 AB
OV

E I
NF

LA
TIO

N 
IN
CR

EA
SE

 IN
 C
HA

RG
ES

 
TO

 C
OV

ER
 C
OS

T O
F S

ER
VIC

E  
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

 
25
,00

0
0

25
,00

0
Th

e i
nc
rea

se
 in
 ch

arg
es
 fo

r a
llot

me
nts

 m
ay
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th

e a
bil
ity
 

of 
so
me

 in
div

idu
als

 to
 af

for
d t

he
ir a

llot
me

nts
. D

ire
cto

r o
f 

W
ellb

ein
g &

 C
ult
ure

 to
 ke

ep
 an

 ov
erv

iew
 on

 th
e e

qu
ali
ty 
im
pa
ct 
of 

thi
s p

rop
os
al.

AD
DI
TIO

NA
L I
NC

OM
E F

RO
M 

NE
W
 AL

LO
TM

EN
T P

LO
TS

2,0
00

0
2,0

00
5,0

00
Int
rod

uc
tio
n o

f 1
00
 ne

w 
allo

tm
en
t p

lot
s, 
su
bje

ct 
to 

pla
nn
ing

 
pe
rm

iss
ion

, e
sti
ma

ted
 to

 be
 av

ail
ab
le 
ea
rly
 20

13
. P

art
 ye

ar 
ad
dit
ion

al 
inc

om
e i
n 2

01
2/1

3.
LE

ISU
RE

 & 
CU

LT
UR

E C
OM

MI
SS

IO
NI
NG

 EX
ER

CI
SE

- P
ric
e i
nc
rea

se
s t
o s

om
e s

erv
ice

s a
t 1

.5%
 ab

ov
e i
nfl
ati
on
ary

 in
cre

as
e (

su
bje

ct 
to 

ma
rke

t 
co
nd
itio

ns
)

14
,00

0
0

14
,00

0
Th

e p
ric
e i
nc
rea

se
s m

ay
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th

e a
bil
ity
 of

 so
me

 cu
sto

me
rs 

to 
ac
ce
ss
 le
isu

re@
. D

ire
cto

r o
f W

ellb
ein

g &
 C
ult
ure

 to
 ke

ep
 an

 
ov
erv

iew
 on

 th
e e

qu
ali
ty 
im
pa
ct 
of 

thi
s p

rop
os
al.

So
me

 se
rvi
ce
s a

re 
hig

hly
 pr

ice
 se

ns
itiv

e; 
if t
he
 pr

ice
 of

 so
me

 
pro

du
cts

 is
 in
cre

as
ed
 be

yo
nd
 m

ark
et 

tol
era

nc
es
 th

e i
nc
om

e t
arg

et 
wil

l n
ot 

be
 ac

hie
ve
d a

nd
 pe

rce
ive

d v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne
y /
 co

mp
eti
tiv
e 

ed
ge
 lo
st.

- In
co
me

 fro
m 

a c
on
ce
ss
ion

 sc
he
me

 ru
n w

ith
 th

e U
niv

ers
ity
 of

 G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

.  
"U
niv

ers
al"
 is
 de

sig
ne
d t

o e
nc
ou
rag

e s
tud

en
t a

cti
vit
y v

ia 
the

 pu
rch

as
e o

f m
em

be
rsh

ips
 

an
d o

the
r s

erv
ice

s a
cro

ss
 th

e y
ea
r.

15
,00

0
0

15
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

If t
he
 up

tak
e o

nto
 th

e s
ch
em

e a
nd
 its

 va
rie

d c
om

po
ne
nts

 is
 no

t 
ac
hie

ve
d t

he
n t

he
 as

so
cia

ted
 in
co
me

 w
ill n

ot 
be
 ac

hie
ve
d. 

 N
ew

 
stu

de
nt 

fee
 st
ruc

tur
es
 an

d c
ha
ng
es
 in
 co

st 
of 

livi
ng
 m

ay
 al
so
 

im
pa
ct 
up
on
 th

is.
- R

es
tru

ctu
rin

g L
eis

ure
@
 ho

us
ek
ee
pin

g a
nd
 cu

sto
me

r s
erv

ice
s t
ea
ms

45
,00

0
45
,00

0
0

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Re
str

uc
tur

es
 ha

ve
 al
rea

dy
 be

en
 co

mp
let
ed
.

- In
cre

as
ed
 nu

mb
er 

& v
olu

me
 of

 ch
ild
ren

's 
ac
tiv
ity
 se

ss
ion

s e
.g 

bir
thd

ay
 pa

rtie
s, 
dro

p i
n 

se
ss
ion

s.
3,0

00
0

3,0
00

Th
is 
is 
a p

rop
os
al 
for

 ad
dit
ion

al 
fac

iliti
es
 fo

r c
hil
dre

n a
nd
 yo

un
g 

pe
op
le.
 

If t
he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

se
 se

ss
ion

s d
oe
s n

ot 
res

ult
 in
 gr

ow
th 

in 
att

en
da
nc
es
 an

d b
oo
kin

gs
 th

e i
nc
om

e w
ill n

ot 
be
 ac

hie
ve
d.

- In
co
me

 fro
m 

the
 U
niv

ers
ity
 of

 G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 us
ing

 Le
isu

re@
 to

 pr
ov
ide

 th
e h

all 
fac

iliti
es
 ne

ed
ed
 to

 de
live

r it
s P

E t
ea
ch
er 

tra
ini
ng
.

3,0
00

0
3,0

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Fu
ll v

alu
e o

ffs
et 

ag
ain

st 
po
ss
ibl
e l
os
s o

f o
the

r b
us
ine

ss
 in
 th

e h
all 

hir
es
 ar

ea
 in
 pa

rtic
ula

r.
BO

X O
FF

IC
E B

OO
KIN

G 
FE

E I
NC

RE
AS

E &
 R
ES

TR
UC

TU
RE

48
,00

0
0

48
,00

0
2.0

Th
e p

rop
os
al 
wil

l le
ad
 to

 a 
sm

all 
inc

rea
se
 in
 th

e c
os
t o

f p
urc

ha
sin

g 
tic
ke
ts 
fro

m 
the

 To
wn

 H
all 

bo
ok
ing

 of
fic
e t

he
ref

ore
 no

 de
trim

en
tal
 

eq
ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

 ha
ve
 be

en
 id
en
tifi
ed
 at

 th
is 
sta

ge
. A

ny
 st
aff

ing
 

reo
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
ill f

ollo
w 
ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 af

fec
ted

 st
aff

 an
d T

rad
e U

nio
ns
 to

 en
su
re 

fai
rne

ss
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s.

£3
0k
 of

 th
e B

tG
 sa

vin
gs
 w
ill b

e d
eli
ve
red

 th
rou

gh
 th

e r
es
tru

ctu
re 

of 
the

 Bo
x O

ffic
e w

hic
h w

ill n
ot 

im
pa
ct 
on
 se

rvi
ce
 de

live
ry.
 Th

e 
£1
8k
 bo

ok
ing

 fe
e i
nc
rea

se
 is
 de

pe
nd
an
t u

po
n s

us
tai
ne
d t

ick
et 

sa
les

 w
hic

h, 
as
 pr

ev
iou

sly
 st
ate

d, 
is 
un
de
r c

on
tin
ue
d p

res
su
re 

du
e t

o t
he
 on

go
ing

 do
wn

tur
n i
n t

he
 ec

on
om

y. 
 

Pa
ge
 1 
of 
2

Page 75



Br
idg
ing
 th
e G

ap
 Pr
og
ram

me
 (B
tG
) - 
sa
vin
gs
 / a
dd
ito
na
l in
co
me

AP
PE

ND
IX

 4

20
12
-13

 
Sa

vin
gs

 / 
Ad

dn
l In

co
me

    
    

  
£

Bu
ilt 

int
o B

as
e 

Bu
dg

et 
20
12
/13

    
    

    
  

£

No
t b

uil
t in

to 
Ba

se
 B
ud

ge
t 

20
12
/13

    
    

    
 

£
20
13
/14

 £
20
14
/15

 £
20
15
/16

 £
20
16
/17

 £

FT
E 

Lo
ss
es
 

20
11
/12

FT
E 

Lo
ss
es
 

20
12
/13

Ind
ica

tiv
e e

qu
ali
ty 
/ d
ive

rsi
ty 
im
pa
ct 
at 
dr
aft
 bu

dg
et 
sta

ge
Se
rvi
ce
 / R

isk
 Im

pli
ca
tio
ns

AR
T G

AL
LE

RY
 & 

MU
SE

UM
 PR

OJ
EC

TE
D 
SA

VIN
G 
IN
 N
ET

 R
UN

NI
NG

 C
OS

TS
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
Sa

vin
gs
 w
hic

h f
ollo

w 
the

 re
op
en
ing

 of
 th

e n
ew

 Ar
t G

alle
ry 
& M

us
eu
m 

as
 pe

r th
e b

us
ine

ss
 

ca
se
 pr

oje
cti
on
s s

up
pli
ed
 to

 th
e H

eri
tag

e L
ott

ery
 Fu

nd
. F

urt
he
r a

dd
itio

na
l o
ne
 of

f s
av
ing

s 
wil

l b
e g

en
era

ted
 du

rin
g t

he
 te

mp
ora

ry 
clo

su
re 

in 
20
11
/12

 an
d 2

01
2/1

3.
50
,00

0

No
ne

 id
en

tifi
ed

.
Bu

sin
es

s c
as

e i
s d

ep
en

de
nt 

up
on

 in
cre

as
ed

 tu
rno

ve
r a

nd
 co

mm
erc

ial
 

ac
tiv

ity
.

RE
SO

UR
CE

S
SO

UR
CI
NG

 ST
RA

TE
GY

 - R
EV

EN
UE

S &
 BE

NE
FIT

S  
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

 
Sa

vin
gs
 fro

m 
Sy

ste
ms

 Th
ink

ing
10
9,1

00
10
9,1

00
0

2.9
Th

is 
is 
a l
arg

e p
roj

ec
t w

hic
h w

ill h
av
e s

ign
ific

an
t im

pa
cts

 on
 st
aff

 
an
d c

us
tom

ers
 w
hic

h w
ill n

ee
d t

o b
e s

ub
jec

t to
 a 

sta
nd
 al
on
e 

eq
ua
lity

 im
pa
ct 
as
se
ss
me

nt.
 

Th
ere

 is
 le
ss
 re

so
urc

e t
o d

ea
l w

ith
 an

y f
utu

re 
ad
dit
on
al 
de
ma

nd
s 

on
 th

e s
erv

ice
 re

su
ltin

g f
rom

 th
e m

ov
e t

o u
niv

ers
al 
cre

dit
.

FL
EX

IBL
E R

ET
IR
EM

EN
T O

F C
US

TO
DI
AN

5,0
00

0
5,0

00
0.4

No
 sp

ec
fic
 eq

ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

 id
en
tifi
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 
pro

po
sa
l   
- 

an
y s

taf
fin
g r

eo
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
ill f

ollo
w 
ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 af

fec
ted

 st
aff

 an
d T

rad
e U

nio
ns
 to

 en
su
re 

fai
rne

ss
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s.

Th
ere

 w
ill b

e a
 re

du
ce
d p

oo
l o
f s
taf

f to
 ca

ll o
n t

o m
an
ag
e b

uil
din

g 
iss

ue
s a

t th
e M

un
icip

al 
Of
fic
es
.

RE
NE

GO
TIA

TIO
N 
OF

 R
EG

EN
T A

RC
AD

E L
EA

SE
 (C

ab
ine

t a
pp
rov

ed
 on

 26
th 

Ju
ly 2

01
1)

75
,00

0
75
,00

0
0

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne

BU
ILD

 N
EW

 H
OM

ES
 BO

NU
S I

NC
OM

E I
NT

O 
BA

SE
 BU

DG
ET

25
0,0

00
0

25
0,0

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Th
ere

 m
ay
 be

 le
ss
 m

on
ey
 av

ail
ab
le 
to 

fun
d o

ne
 of

f p
roj

ec
ts 

pre
vio

us
ly f

un
de
d f

rom
 th

is 
inc

om
e s

tre
am

.

DE
FE

RR
ED

 IN
CR

EA
SE

D 
CO

NT
RI
BU

TIO
N 
TO

 PR
OP

ER
TY

 R
EP

AIR
S &

 R
EN

EW
AL

S 
RE

SE
RV

E
20
0,0

00
0

20
0,0

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Th
e a

nn
ua
l p
rog

ram
me

 of
 m

ain
ten

an
ce
 m

ay
 ha

ve
 to

 be
 re

du
ce
d 

in 
lin
e w

ith
 a 

res
ou
rce

s a
va
ila
ble

 w
hic

h c
ou
ld 
lea

d t
o a

 
de
ter

ior
ati
on
 in
 th

e u
pk
ee
p o

f th
e c

ou
nc
ils 

bu
ild
ing

s a
nd
 th

e t
ow

ns
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
.

RE
ST

RU
CT

UR
E I

N 
RE

VE
NU

ES
 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T (

IN
CL

UD
IN
G 
RE

TIR
EM

EN
T)

15
,00

0
0

15
,00

0
0.5

No
 sp

ec
fic
 eq

ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

 id
en
tifi
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 
pro

po
sa
l   
- 

an
y s

taf
fin
g r

eo
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
ill f

ollo
w 
ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 af

fec
ted

 st
aff

 an
d T

rad
e U

nio
ns
 to

 en
su
re 

fai
rne

ss
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s.

Th
ere

 is
 le
ss
 re

so
urc

e t
o d

ea
l w

ith
 an

y f
utu

re 
ad
dit
on
al 
de
ma

nd
s 

on
 th

e s
erv

ice
 re

su
ltin

g f
rom

 th
e m

ov
e t

o u
niv

ers
al 
cre

dit
.

GO
 PA

RT
NE

RS
HI
P: 

FIN
AN

CI
AL

 SE
RV

IC
ES

 & 
HU

MA
N 
RE

SO
UR

CE
S  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
Ini
tia
l b
us
ine

ss
 ca

se
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
of 

the
 G
O 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f a
n E

RP
 

sy
ste

m 
(Fi

na
nc
e /

HR
/pr

oc
ure

me
nt)

 an
d t

he
 cr

ea
tio
n o

f c
en
tre

s o
f e

xc
elle

nc
e f

or 
pro

ce
ss
ing

 tra
ns
ac
tio
ns
 (p

ay
rol
l, p

ay
me

nts
, in

vo
icin

g) 
/ p

rod
uc
tio
n o

f b
as
ic 
rep

ort
ing

 / 
sta

tem
en
t o

f a
cc
ou
nts

, V
AT

, g
ov
ern

me
nt 

ret
urn

s e
tc.

No
ne

 id
en

tifi
ed

.
Tra

ns
ac

tio
na

l p
roc

es
sin

g (
ac

co
un

ts 
rec

eiv
ab

le,
 pa

ya
ble

, p
ay

rol
l e

tc.
) m

ay
 

no
t u

nd
ert

ak
en

 lo
ca

lly 
an

d t
he

re 
is 

like
ly 

to 
be

 m
ore

 se
lf s

erv
ice

 by
 

ma
na

ge
rs 

an
d u

se
rs 

of 
the

 sy
ste

ms
. T

he
 re

su
ltin

g s
ign

ific
an

t c
ult

ura
l 

ch
an

ge
 w

hic
h w

ill r
eq

uir
e s

up
po

rt /
 re

so
urc

ing
 in

 or
de

r to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

e 
tra

ns
itio

n i
s s

uc
ce

ss
ful

.
Sh

are
d S

erv
ice

 sa
vin

gs
20

2,0
00

Ind
ire

ct 
sa
vin

gs
 fro

m 
the

 re
tai
nm

en
t o

rga
nis

ati
on
 fro

m 
eff

icie
nc
y o

f th
e s

ha
red

 se
rvi
ce
 (to

 
be
 id
en
tifi
ed
 by

 th
e r

eta
ine

d o
rga

nis
ati
on
)

30
,00

0

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

sa
vin

gs
37

,70
0

BU
ILT

 EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
ME

RG
IN
G 
ON

 ST
RE

ET
 AN

D 
OF

F S
TR

EE
T P

AR
KIN

G 
TE

AM
S

10
,00

0
0

10
,00

0
1.0

No
 sp

ec
fic
 eq

ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

 id
en
tifi
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 
pro

po
sa
l - 
an
y 

sta
ffin

g r
eo
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
ill f

ollo
w 
ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 af

fec
ted

 st
aff

 an
d T

rad
e U

nio
ns
 to

 en
su
re 

fai
rne

ss
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s.

Th
ere

 is
 a 

ris
k t
ha
t if
 th

e c
ou
nc
il w

ere
 to

 lo
se
 th

e c
urr

en
t c
ivi
l 

pa
rki
ng
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
se
rvi
ce
 pr

ov
ide

d o
n s

tre
et 

on
 be

ha
lf o

f G
CC

, 
the

re 
wo

uld
 be

 si
gn
ific

an
t fi
na
nc
ial
 im

pli
ca
tio
ns
 in
 te

rm
s o

f s
up
po
rt 

se
rvi
ce
 an

d a
cc
om

mo
da
tio
n c

os
ts 
wh

ich
 w
ou
ld 
ne
ed
 to

 be
 

es
tab

lish
ed
.

ME
RG

ER
 O
F S

TR
AT

EG
IC
 LA

ND
 U
SE

 AN
D 
HO

US
IN
G 
EN

AB
LIN

G 
FU

NC
TIO

NS
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
   

14
,50

0
0

14
,50

0
2.0

No
 sp

ec
fic
 eq

ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

 id
en
tifi
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 
pro

po
sa
l - 
an
y 

sta
ffin

g r
eo
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
ill f

ollo
w 
ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 af

fec
ted

 st
aff

 an
d T

rad
e U

nio
ns
 to

 en
su
re 

fai
rne

ss
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s.

A r
ed
uc
tio
n i
n s

taf
fin
g c

ap
ac
ity
 m

ay
 m

ak
e i
t d

iffi
cu
lt t
o d

ea
l w

ith
 

wo
rk 

vo
lum

es
 if 
the

re 
is 
an
 up

tur
n i
n t

he
 nu

mb
er 

of 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
. 

Th
is 
sit
ua
tio
n w

ill b
e k

ep
t u

nd
er 

rev
iew

.

RE
DU

CE
 G
RA

NT
S T

O 
RE

GE
NE

RA
TIO

N 
PA

RT
NE

RS
HI
PS

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
(O

ak
ley

 an
d H

es
ter

s W
ay
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s) 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

Re
du
ce
 bo

th 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

s b
y £

2k
 ea

ch
 pe

r a
nn
um

 ov
er 

5 y
ea
rs.

4,0
00

4,0
00

0
4,0

00
4,0

00
4,0

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
; th

e f
un
din

g r
ed
uc
tio
n w

as
 ag

ree
d l
as
t y
ea
r a

nd
 

ha
s b

ee
n b

uil
t in

to 
the

ir c
urr

en
t 3

 ye
ar 

ag
ree

me
nts

. 
Ris

ks
 fro

m 
red

uc
ing

 th
is 
fun

din
g s

up
po
rt h

av
e b

ee
n m

itig
ate

d 
thr

ou
gh
 di
alo

gu
e w

ith
 th

e a
ffe

cte
d o

rga
nis

ati
on
s a

nd
 ph

as
ing

 of
 

the
 gr

an
t re

du
cti
on
s o

ve
r tw

o y
ea
rs.

RE
OR

GA
NI
SA

TIO
N 
OF

 EC
ON

OM
IC
 D
EV

EL
OP

ME
NT

25
,00

0
0

25
,00

0
5,0

00
1.0

No
 sp

ec
fic
 eq

ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

 id
en
tifi
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 
pro

po
sa
l - 
an
y 

sta
ffin

g r
eo
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
ill f

ollo
w 
ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 af

fec
ted

 st
aff

 an
d T

rad
e U

nio
ns
 to

 en
su
re 

fai
rne

ss
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s.

W
hil
st 
the

re 
wil

l b
e a

 re
du
cti
on
 in
 in
itia

tiv
es
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 di
rec

t 
fin
an
cia

l s
up
po
rt t

o i
nd
ivi
du
al 
bu
sin

es
se
s, 
the

 co
un
cil'

s s
tra

teg
ic 

ap
pro

ac
h w

ill f
oc
us
 on

 ac
tiv
itie

s a
im
ed
 at

 fo
ste

rin
g t

he
 co

nd
itio

ns
 

wit
hin

 w
hic

h b
us
ine

ss
es
 ha

ve
 th

e b
es
t c
ha
nc
e o

f s
uc
ce
ss
.

RE
ST

RU
CT

UR
E O

F B
UI
LD

IN
G 
CO

NT
RO

L
9,8

00
0

9,8
00

No
 sp

ec
fic
 eq

ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

 id
en
tifi
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 
pro

po
sa
l - 
an
y 

sta
ffin

g r
eo
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
ill f

ollo
w 
ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 af

fec
ted

 st
aff

 an
d T

rad
e U

nio
ns
 to

 en
su
re 

fai
rne

ss
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s.

Th
e p

rop
os
al 
to 

no
t in

fla
te 

bu
ild
ing

 co
ntr

ol 
inc

om
e b

y i
nfl
ati
on
 w
ill 

be
 fu

nd
ed
 by

 sa
vin

gs
 ge

ne
rat

ed
 fro

m 
a s

taf
fin
g r

es
tru

ctu
re,

 
res

ult
ing

 in
 a 

nil
 ne

t s
av
ing

 - s
ee
 G
row

th 
Sc

he
du
le 
(A
pp
en
dix

 3)
.

RE
ST

RU
CT

UR
E O

F B
UI
LT

 EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
 D
IVI

SIO
N

25
,00

0
0

25
,00

0
1.0

No
 sp

ec
fic
 eq

ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

 id
en
tifi
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 
pro

po
sa
l - 
an
y 

sta
ffin

g r
eo
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
ill f

ollo
w 
ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 af

fec
ted

 st
aff

 an
d T

rad
e U

nio
ns
 to

 en
su
re 

fai
rne

ss
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s.

Th
ere

 w
ill b

e a
 re

du
cti
on
 in
 st
rat

eg
ic 
ho
us
ing

 ca
pa
cit
y w

hic
h i
s 

like
ly t

o h
av
e s

om
e i
mp

ac
t o

n t
he
 co

un
cil'

s a
bil
ity
 to

 co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ork

ing
 in
 ar

ea
s s

uc
h a

s t
he
 su

pp
ort

ing
 pe

op
le 

pro
gra

mm
e. 

SIN
GL

E A
DV

IC
E C

ON
TR

AC
T R

E-
TE

ND
ER

25
,00

0
0

25
,00

0

Th
e s

pe
cif
ica

tio
n f

or 
the

 ad
vic

e a
nd
 in
clu

sio
n c

on
tra

ct 
wa

s b
uil
t 

on
 an

 un
de
rst

an
din

g o
f n

ee
ds
 of

 ou
r c

us
tom

ers
 an

d t
he
ref

ore
 

foc
us
ed
 on

 th
os
e g

rou
ps
 w
ho
 ar

e l
ea
st 
ab
le 
to 

he
lp 
the

ms
elv

es
. 

Th
e a

ss
es
sm

en
t p

roc
es
s c

on
sid

ere
d t

he
 te

nd
ers

 ag
ain

st 
thi
s 

cri
ter

ia 
an
d a

lso
 ab

ou
t a

ga
ins

t o
the

r e
qu
ali
ty 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

s s
uc
h 

as
 ac

ce
ss
 to

 th
e s

erv
ice

.

No
 si
gn
ific

an
t ri

sk
s t
o t

he
 au

tho
rity

 ha
ve
 be

en
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

CH
AR

GE
 FO

R 
DI
SC

RE
TIO

NA
RY

 AD
VIC

E I
N 
RE

LA
TIO

N 
TO

 LI
ST

ED
 BU

ILD
IN
GS

 AN
D 

OT
HE

R 
HE

RI
TA

GE
 AS

SE
TS

5,0
00

0
5,0

00
Th

e p
ric
e i
nc
rea

se
s m

ay
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th

e a
bil
ity
 of

 so
me

 cu
sto

me
rs 

to 
ac
ce
ss
 th

is 
se
rvi
ce
. T

he
 D
ire

cto
r o

f B
uil
t E

nv
iro

nm
en
t to

 ke
ep
 

an
 ov

erv
iew

 of
 an

y p
ote

nti
al 
eq
ua
lity

 im
pa
cts

.

If t
he
 co

un
cil 

ch
arg

es
 fo

r th
is 
se
rvi
ce
, th

ere
 is
 an

 in
cre

as
ed
 ris

k 
tha

t th
e o

wn
ers

 of
 lis

ted
 bu

ild
ing

s a
nd
 ot

he
r h

eri
tag

e a
ss
ets

 m
ay
 

un
de
rta

ke
 w
ork

s w
ith
ou
t s
ee
kin

g t
he
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 ad

vic
e a

nd
 

co
ns
en
ts.

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   T

OT
AL
S  
    
   

1,1
20
,30

0
25
3,9

00
86
6,4

00
44
1,0

00
15
,50

0
9,3

00
0

7.9
4.9

* A
s p
rev

iou
sly
 ag
ree

d b
y c
ab
ine
t/c
ou
nc
il a
fte
r d
isc
us
sio
n w

ith
 th
e r
ele
va
nt 
org

an
isa
tio
ns
. 

Pa
ge
 2 
of 
2

Page 76



AP
PE

ND
IX 

5

PR
OJ

EC
TIO

N 
OF

 R
ES

ER
VE

S 
TO

 31
ST

 M
AR

CH
 20

13
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
20

11
/12

20
12

/13
20

12
/13

20
12

/13
Pu

rp
os

e o
f R

es
er

ve
31

/3/
11

Mo
ve

me
nt

Mo
ve

me
nt

Re
se

rv
e

31
/3/

12
Mo

ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
bu

dg
et 

an
d

31
/3/

13
Re

ve
nu

e
Ca

pit
al

Re
-al

ign
me

nt
Re

ve
nu

e
Ca

pit
al

on
e o

ff 
gr

ow
th

EA
RM

AR
KE

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

Ot
he

r
BR

01
Sin

gle
 S
tat

us
 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f S
ing

le 
St
atu

s
(14

,24
7.0

0)
3,6

00
.00

10
,64

7.0
0
*

0.0
0

0.0
0

BR
02

Pe
ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu

tur
e p

en
sio

n l
iab

ilit
y

(28
,37

3.3
8)

(50
,00

0.0
0)

(78
,37

3.3
8)

(10
0,0

00
.00

)
(17

8,3
73
.38

)
BR

04
Ec

on
om

ic 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Re
se
rve

To
 fu

nd
 fu

tur
e e

co
no
mi
c s

tud
ies

(14
,20

0.0
0)

(14
,20

0.0
0)

(14
,20

0.0
0)

BR
05

IB
S 
Lic

en
se
 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 co

st 
of 

IB
S 
lic
en
se
 pa

id 
up
 fro

nt
(14

8,7
00
.00

)
(14

8,7
00
.00

)
(14

8,7
00
.00

)
BR

06
Ke

ep
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 Ti
dy
 R
es
erv

e
Ke

ep
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 Ti
dy
 ca

mp
aig

n -
 sc

he
me

 co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns

(62
6.2

7)
(62

6.2
7)

(62
6.2

7)
BR

08
Gr
av
e M

ain
ten

an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
Lo
ng
-te

rm
 gr

av
e m

ain
ten

an
ce

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

BR
09

Cu
ltu
ral
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu

tur
e a

rts
 fa

cil
itie

s/a
cti
vit
y

(22
,36

1.0
0)

(22
,36

1.0
0)

15
,00

0.0
0

(7,
36
1.0

0)
BR

10
LA

BG
I R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu

tur
e e

co
no
mi
c /
 cu

ltu
ral
 de

ve
lop

me
nt

(76
,05

2.8
6)

45
,00

0.0
0

21
,05

2.8
6
*

(10
,00

0.0
0)

10
,00

0.0
0

0.0
0

BR
12

Ho
us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 cy

cli
ca
l h
ou
sin

g s
toc

k c
on
dit
ion

 su
rve

ys
(10

5,0
24
.83

)
24
,50

0.0
0

(80
,52

4.8
3)

(7,
50
0.0

0)
(88

,02
4.8

3)
BR

13
Tw

inn
ing

 R
es
erv

e
Tw

inn
ing

 to
wn

s c
ivi
c v

isi
ts 
to 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m

(17
,40

0.0
0)

(17
,40

0.0
0)

(17
,40

0.0
0)

BR
14

Flo
od
 A
lle
via

tio
n R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu

tur
e f

loo
d r

es
ilie

nc
e w

ork
, d

ele
ga
ted

 to
 th

e F
loo

d 
wo

rki
ng
 gr

ou
p f

or 
all
oc
ati
on

(34
8,0

93
.52

)
13
3,9

10
.00

(21
4,1

83
.52

)
50
,00

0.0
0

(16
4,1

83
.52

)
BR

15
Ar
t G

all
ery

 &
 M
us
eu
m 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Re
se
rve

(2,
00
0,0

00
.00

)
(12

2,0
00
.00

)
58
4,0

00
.00

(1,
53
8,0

00
.00

)
1,4

16
,00

0.0
0

(12
2,0

00
.00

)
BR

25
Pu

mp
 R
oo
m 

Ins
ura

nc
e R

es
erv

e
Ins

ura
nc
e r

es
erv

e f
or 

sto
len

 je
we

lle
ry

(28
,06

6.1
1)

11
,00

0.0
0

(17
,06

6.1
1)

(17
,06

6.1
1)

BR
26

Mu
se
um

 S
ho
p R

es
erv

e
Ac

cu
mu

lat
ed
 pr

ofi
ts 
he
ld 
for

 M
us
eu
m 

sh
op
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
0.0

0
0.0

0
0.0

0
BR

27
TIC

 S
ho
p R

es
erv

e
Ac

cu
mu

lat
ed
 pr

ofi
ts 
he
ld 
for

 TI
C 
sh
op
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
(11

,72
9.1

8)
11
,70

0.0
0

(29
.18

)
(29

.18
)

BR
30

GF
 In
su
ran

ce
 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t in

itia
tiv
es
 / e

xc
es
s /
 pr

em
ium

 
inc

rea
se
s

(15
9,9

71
.44

)
38
,60

0.0
0

(12
1,3

71
.44

)
(12

1,3
71
.44

)
BR

42
Ve

hic
le 
Le
as
ing

 E
qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
Pu

rch
as
e o

f v
eh
icl
es
 an

d e
qu
ipm

en
t

(11
6,0

85
.24

)
(11

6,0
85
.24

)
(11

6,0
85
.24

)
BR

45
Jo
int
 C
ore

 S
tra

teg
y R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 Jo

int
 C
ore

 S
tra

teg
y

(23
4,5

80
.36

)
(23

4,5
80
.36

)
(12

0,0
00
.00

)
30
,00

0.0
0

(32
4,5

80
.36

)
BR

54
Le
ga
l S

taf
f R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 se

t-u
p c

os
ts 
of 

On
e L

eg
al

(19
,35

0.0
0)

19
,35

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

To
 pu

mp
 pr

im
e c

ivi
c p

rid
e i
nit
iat
ive

 / m
atc

h f
un
din

g
(1,

08
3,1

97
.60

)
25
8,1

00
.00

(82
5,0

97
.60

)
22
6,9

00
.00

43
0,0

00
.00

(16
8,1

97
.60

)
(4,

42
8,0

58
.79

)
(3,

43
8,5

98
.93

)
(1,

48
8,1

98
.93

)
Re

pa
irs

 &
 R

en
ew

als
 R

es
er

ve
s

BR
52

Co
mm

ute
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
De

ve
lop

er 
co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 to

 fu
nd
 m

ain
ten

an
ce

(26
3,6

29
.37

)
39
,00

0.0
0

(22
4,6

29
.37

)
39
,00

0.0
0

(18
5,6

29
.37

)
BR

78
Hig

hw
ay
s I
ns
ura

nc
e R

es
erv

e
Co

un
ty 
hig

hw
ay
s -

 in
su
ran

ce
 ex

ce
ss
es

(15
,00

0.0
0)

(15
,00

0.0
0)

(15
,00

0.0
0)

BR
83

Co
un
cil
 Ta

x/B
en
efi
ts 
IT 

Re
se
rve

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
fun

d t
o c

ov
er 

so
ftw

are
 re

lea
se
s

(30
,00

0.0
0)

(30
,00

0.0
0)

(30
,00

0.0
0)

BR
88

I.T
. R

ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
fun

d
(13

3,0
64
.70

)
79
,40

0.0
0

(53
,66

4.7
0)

6,3
00
.00

(47
,36

4.7
0)

BR
89

Pla
nn
ed
 M
ain

ten
an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
20
 ye

ar 
ma

int
en
an
ce
 fu

nd
(1,

02
5,9

29
.12

)
(44

,60
0.0

0)
52
4,0

00
.00

(54
6,5

29
.12

)
16
3,0

00
.00

13
1,0

00
.00

22
3,0

00
.00

(29
,52

9.1
2)

(1,
46

7,6
23

.19
)

(86
9,8

23
.19

)
(30

7,5
23

.19
) Pa

ge
 1

Page 77



AP
PE

ND
IX 

5

PR
OJ

EC
TIO

N 
OF

 R
ES

ER
VE

S 
TO

 31
ST

 M
AR

CH
 20

13
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
20

11
/12

20
12

/13
20

12
/13

20
12

/13
Pu

rp
os

e o
f R

es
er

ve
31

/3/
11

Mo
ve

me
nt

Mo
ve

me
nt

Re
se

rv
e

31
/3/

12
Mo

ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
bu

dg
et 

an
d

31
/3/

13
Re

ve
nu

e
Ca

pit
al

Re
-al

ign
me

nt
Re

ve
nu

e
Ca

pit
al

on
e o

ff 
gr

ow
th

EA
RM

AR
KE

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

Eq
ua

lis
ati

on
 R

es
er

ve
s

0.0
0

BR
63

Re
nt 

All
ow

an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n

Cu
sh
ion

 im
pa
ct 
of 

flu
ctu

ati
ng
 ac

tiv
ity
 le
ve
ls

(11
9,6

55
.60

)
39
,10

0.0
0

(80
,55

5.6
0)

39
,10

0.0
0

(41
,45

5.6
0)

BR
64

Pla
nn
ing

 A
pp
ea
ls 
Eq

ua
lis
ati
on

Fu
nd
ing

 fo
r o

ne
 of

f a
pe
als

 co
st 
in 
ex
ce
ss
 of

 re
ve
nu
e b

ud
ge
t

(38
,95

5.0
9)

(38
,95

5.0
9)

(38
,95

5.0
9)

BR
65

Lic
en
sin

g F
ee
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n

Pa
st 
inc

om
e s

urp
lus

es
 to

 cu
sh
ion

 im
pa
ct 
of 

rev
ise

d l
eg
isl
ati
on

(28
,35

5.0
0)

17
,00

0.0
0

(11
,35

5.0
0)

(11
,35

5.0
0)

BR
66

Int
ere

st 
Eq

ua
lis
ati
on

To
 co

ve
r a

ny
 ad

dit
ion

al 
los

se
s a

ris
ing

 in
 th

e v
alu

e o
f Ic

ela
nd
ic 

de
po
sit
s a

nd
/or

 to
 re

du
ce
 th

e b
orr

ow
ing

 ar
isi
ng
 fro

m 
the

 
ca
pit
ali
sa
tio
n o

f th
e l
os
se
s

(2,
78
7,5

94
.76

)
2,5

00
,00

0.0
0

(28
7,5

94
.76

)
(28

7,5
94
.76

)
BR

72
Lo
ca
l P

lan
 E
qu
ali
sa
tio
n

Fu
nd
 cy

cli
ca
l c
os
t o

f lo
ca
l p
lan

 in
qu
iry

(55
,03

0.0
0)

55
,00

0.0
0

(30
.00

)
(30

.00
)

BR
76

Ele
cti
on
s/E

lec
tor

al 
Re

g. 
Eq

ua
lis
ati
on

Fu
nd
 cy

cli
ca
l c
os
t o

f lo
ca
l e
lec

tio
ns

(11
,50

0.0
0)

(61
,20

0.0
0)

(72
,70

0.0
0)

72
,70

0.0
0

0.0
0

(3,
04

1,0
90

.45
)

(49
1,1

90
.45

)
(37

9,3
90

.45
)

Re
se

rv
es

 fo
r c

om
mi

tm
en

ts
BR

91
Ol
d Y

ea
r C

red
ito
r R

sv
e -

 R
R

Ap
pro

ve
d b

ud
ge
t c
arr

y f
orw

ard
s

(35
1,2

00
.00

)
35
1,2

00
.00

0.0
0

0.0
0

CA
PI

TA
L

BR
77

Ca
pit
al 
Re

se
rve

 - G
F H

ou
sin

g
To

 fu
nd
 H
ou
sin

g G
en
era

l F
un
d c

ap
ita
l e
xp
en
dit
ure

(90
2,4

76
.15

)
37
0,0

00
.00

(53
2,4

76
.15

)
(53

2,4
76
.15

)
BR

92
Ca

pit
al 
Re

se
rve

 - G
F

To
 fu

nd
 G
en
era

l F
un
d c

ap
ita
l e
xp
en
dit
ure

 
(90

1,7
99
.68

)
(75

1,6
93
.00

)
93
8,3

00
.00

(71
5,1

92
.68

)
(70

0,0
00
.00

)
91
2,0

00
.00

29
2,0

00
.00

(21
1,1

92
.68

)
(1,

80
4,2

75
.83

)
(1,

24
7,6

68
.83

)
(74

3,6
68

.83
)

TO
TA

L E
AR

MA
RK

ED
 R

ES
ER

VE
S

(11
,09

2,2
48

.26
)

(6,
04

7,2
81

.40
)

(2,
91

8,7
81

.40
)

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 

BA
LA

NC
E

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 B
ala

nc
e -

 R
R

Ge
ne
ral
 ba

lan
ce

(2,
61
9,5

07
.03

)
39
3,0

57
.00

10
9,4

00
.00

(31
,69

9.8
6)

(2,
14
8,7

49
.89

)
53
,45

5.0
0

60
,00

0.0
0

(2,
03
5,2

94
.89

)
(2,

61
9,5

07
.03

)
(2,

14
8,7

49
.89

)
(2,

03
5,2

94
.89

)

TO
TA

L G
EN

ER
AL

 FU
ND

 R
ES

ER
VE

S 
AN

D 
BA

LA
NC

ES
(13

,71
1,7

55
.29

)
2,9

90
,02

4.0
0

2,5
25

,70
0.0

0
0.0

0
(8,

19
6,0

31
.29

)
(25

2,0
45

.00
)

2,4
59

,00
0.0

0
1,0

35
,00

0.0
0

(4,
95

4,0
76

.29
)

Pr
oje

cte
d A

nn
ua

l R
ed

uc
tio

n
5,5

15
,72

4.0
0

3,2
41

,95
5.0

0

* N
o l
on
ge
r r
eq
uir
ed
 fo

r o
rig
ina

l p
urp

os
e

Pa
ge

 2

Page 78



AP
PE

ND
IX 
6

GE
NE
RA
L F

UN
D 
CA
PIT

AL
 PR

OG
RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he

me
 

Sc
he

me
 D
es

cri
pti

on
Or

igi
na

l
Pa

ym
en

ts
Bu

dg
et

Re
vis

ed
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Sc
he

me
to

20
11

/12
Bu

dg
et

20
12

/13
20

13
/14

20
14

/15
20

15
/16

20
16

/17
 

 
 

 
Co

st
31

/03
/11

ag
ree

d
20

11
/12

27
/06

/11
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

RE
SO

UR
CE
S

Pr
op
ert
y S

erv
ice
s

Va
rio
us

C/
R

Pr
og
ram

me
d M

ain
ten

an
ce

Ne
w 
cre

ma
tor
s

65
5,0

00
52
4,0

00
13
1,0

00

Fin
an
cia
l S
erv

ice
s

GC
ER

P
C

GO
 E
RP

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
ER

P 
sy
ste

m 
wit
hin

 th
e G

O 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
42
1,7

00
21
2,3

09
20
9,4

00
21
9,4

00

DC
40
02

C
Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
 A
irp
ort

Co
ntr
ibu

tio
n t
ow
ard

s t
he
 re
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
pro

jec
t - 
£1
.2m

 lo
an

1,2
00
,00

0
0

1,2
00
,00

0

IC
T

DC
32
11

C
W
ork

ing
 Fl
ex
ibl
y

De
liv
er 
co
un
cil
 se

rvi
ce
s a

t a
 tim

e a
nd
 pl
ac
e w

hic
h s

uit
 th
e c

us
tom

er.
 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f C
itri
x e

nv
iro
nm

en
t to

 de
liv
er 
bu
sin
es
s a

pll
ica
tio
ns
 to
 th
e 

ho
me

 / r
em

ote
 us

ers
 de

sk
top

35
,30

0
35
,30

0

DC
32
13

C
St
ora

ge
 A
rea

 N
etw

ork
St
ora

ge
 fo
r th

e c
ou
nc
il’s
 da

ta 
in 
a s

ec
ure

, e
xp
an
da
ble

 an
d r
ob
us
t 

en
vir
on
me

nt
15
5,0

00
14
2,2

97
12
,70

0
12
,70

0

DC
40
03

C
Te
lep

ho
ny
 sw

itc
h u

pg
rad

e
Up
gra

de
 of
 op

era
tin
g s

ys
tem

, v
oic
e s

ys
tem

 an
d c

on
tac

ts 
ce
ntr
e w

ith
 th
e 

be
ne
fit 
of 
fut
ure

-pr
oo
fin
g t
he
 co

un
cil
's 
sy
ste

m 
an
d a

dd
ing

 fle
xib
ilit
y.

70
,30

0
70
,30

0
70
,30

0

WE
LL
BE
IN
G 
& 
CU
LT
UR
E

Pa
rks

 &
 G
ard

en
s

LC
60
01

S
S.
10
6 P

lay
 ar
ea
 re
fur
bis
hm

en
t

De
ve
lop

er 
Co
ntr
ibu

tio
ns

76
,50

0
54
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0

LC
60
06

C
Pla

y A
rea

 E
nh
an
ce
me

nt
On
go
ing

 pr
og
ram

me
 of
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 an

d r
efu

rbi
sh
me

nt 
of 
pla

y a
rea

s t
o 

en
su
re 
the

y i
mp

rov
e a

nd
 m
ee
t s
afe

ty 
sta

nd
ard

s 
80
,00

0
80
,00

0
80
,00

0
80
,00

0
80
,00

0
80
,00

0
80
,00

0

LC
60
11

P
Pit
tvi
lle
 P
ark

 B
oa
tho

us
e

En
ha
nc
em

en
ts 
to 
Pit
tvi
lle
 P
ark

 in
clu
din

g t
he
 B
oa
tho

us
e b

rid
ge
 fu
nd
ed
 fro

m 
Se
ve
rn 
Tre

nt 
W
ate

r C
om

mu
nit
y F

un
d a

wa
rde

d f
oll
ow
ing

 th
e f
loo

ds
 in
 20

07
.

72
,00

0
72
,00

0

LC
60
15

P
Le
ck
ha
mp

ton
 H
ill 
dry

 st
on
e w

all
Ma

tch
 fu
nd
ed
 w
ith
 N
atu

ral
 E
ng
lan

d t
o c

on
str
uc
t d
ry 
sto

ne
 w
all
ing

 on
 

Le
ck
ha
mp

ton
 H
ill 
sit
 of
 sp

ec
ial
 sc
ien

tifi
c i
nte

res
t (S

SS
I)

62
0,0

00
67
7,3

63
0

0

Ce
me
ter
y &

 C
rem

ato
riu
m

LC
60
22

Bu
ria
l C
ha
pe
l

Inv
es
t to

 sa
ve
 sc
he
me

 to
 co

nv
ert
 bu

ria
l c
ha
pe
l to

 ha
nd
le 
cre

ma
tio
ns
.

11
0,0

00
99
,82

9
10
,10

0
10
,10

0

Cu
ltu
ral
 Se

rvi
ce
s

LC
40
06

R/
P

Ar
t G
all
ery

 &
 M
us
eu
m 
De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Sc
he
me

Co
un
cil
's 
co
mm

itm
en
t to

 ne
w 
sc
he
me

 as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il 2
0th

 Ju
ly 
20
08

1,0
00
,00

0
2,0

30
,00

0
4,2

70
,00

0

LC
40
07

C
Ev
ery

ma
n T

he
atr
e

Co
ntr
ibu

tio
n t
ow
ard

s t
he
 re
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
pro

jec
t - 
£1
m 
loa

n a
nd
 £2

50
k g

ran
t

1,2
50
,00

0
1,2

50
,00

0
1,2

50
,00

0

Co
mm

un
ity
 Sa

fet
y

EC
00
06

C
CC

TV
/To

wn
 C
en
tre
 in
itia
tiv
e

Ex
pa
ns
ion

 of
 on

 st
ree

t C
CT
V 
in 
the

 to
wn
 ce

ntr
e t
o i
nc
rea

se
 sa

fet
y a
nd
 

se
cu
re 
the

 en
vir
on
me

nt
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0

Pa
ge
 1

Page 79



AP
PE

ND
IX 
6

GE
NE
RA
L F

UN
D 
CA
PIT

AL
 PR

OG
RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he

me
 

Sc
he

me
 D
es

cri
pti

on
Or

igi
na

l
Pa

ym
en

ts
Bu

dg
et

Re
vis

ed
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Sc
he

me
to

20
11

/12
Bu

dg
et

20
12

/13
20

13
/14

20
14

/15
20

15
/16

20
16

/17
 

 
 

 
Co

st
31

/03
/11

ag
ree

d
20

11
/12

27
/06

/11
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

BU
ILT

 EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
Int
eg
rat
ed
 Tr
an
sp
or
t

EC
00
33

C
CC

TV
 in
 C
ar 
Pa
rks

Ad
dit
ion

al 
CC

TV
 in
 or
de
r to

 im
pro

ve
 sh

op
pin

g a
rea

s a
nd
 re
du
ce
 fe
ar 
of 

cri
me

10
4,8

00
14
,80

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0

EC
00
60

C
Ca
r p
ark

 m
an
ag
em

en
t te

ch
no
log

y

Th
e u

pg
rad

e o
f th

e c
ar 
pa
rk 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
tec

hn
olo

gy
 at
 se

lec
ted

 si
tes

 su
ch
 

as
 R
eg
en
t A
rca

de
 is
 es

se
nti
al 
as
 th
e e

xis
tin
g m

an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
tem

s a
nd
 

ha
rdw

are
 ha

ve
 no

w 
rea

ch
ed
 th
e e

nd
 of
 th
eir
 lif
e c

yc
le.

25
0,0

00
13
0,0

00
12
0,0

00

EC
00
51

C
Re
-jo
int
ing

 H
igh

 S
tre
et/
Pr
om

en
ad
e p

ed
es
tria

nis
ed
 ar
ea

Re
-jo
int
ing

 w
ork

s r
eq
uir
ed
 to
 im

pro
ve
 sa

fet
y a
nd
 ap

pe
ara

nc
e o

f th
e c

ore
 

co
mm

erc
ial
 ar
ea

60
,00

0
51
,99

3
7,7

00
7,7

00

Ho
us
ing

 

HC
74
40

C/
SC

G
Di
sa
ble

d F
ac
ilit
ies
 G
ran

ts

Ma
nd
ato

ry 
Gr
an
t fo

r th
e p

rov
isi
on
 of
 bu

ild
ing

 w
ork

, e
qu
ipm

en
t o
r m

od
ify
ing

 
a d

we
llin
g t
o r
es
tor
e o

r e
na
ble

 in
de
pe
nd
en
t li
vin
g, 
pri
va
cy
, c
on
fid
en
ce
 an

d 
dig

nit
y f
or 
ind

ivi
du
als
 an

d t
he
ir f
am

ilie
s.

60
0,0

00
60
0,0

00
60
0,0

00
60
0,0

00
60
0,0

00
60
0,0

00
60
0,0

00

HC
74
45

C
Ad
ap
tat
ion

 S
up
po
rt G

ran
t

Us
ed
 m
os
tly
 w
he
re 
es
se
nti
al 
rep

air
s (
he
alt
h a

nd
 sa

fet
y) 
are

 id
en
tifi
ed
 to
 

en
ab
le 
the

 D
FG

 w
ork

 to
 pr
oc
ee
d (
e.g

. e
lec
tric

al 
wo
rks

).  
26
,00

0
26
,00

0
26
,00

0
26
,00

0
26
,00

0
26
,00

0
26
,00

0

HC
74
00

PS
DH

He
alt
h &

 S
afe

ty 
Gr
an
t / 
Lo
an
s

A 
ne
w 
for
m 
of 
as
sis
tan

ce
 av

ail
ab
le 
un
de
r th

e c
ou
nc
il's
 H
ou
sin
g R

en
ew
al 

Po
lic
y 2
00
3-0

6

HC
74
05

PS
DH

Va
ca
nt 
Pr
op
ert
y G

ran
t

A 
ne
w 
for
m 
of 
as
sis
tan

ce
 av

ail
ab
le 
un
de
r th

e c
ou
nc
il's
 H
ou
sin
g R

en
ew
al 

Po
lic
y 2
00
3-0

6
32
4,4

00
32
4,4

00

HC
74
10

PS
DH

Re
no
va
tio
n G

ran
ts

Gr
an
ts 
pro

vid
ed
 un

de
r th

e H
ou
sin
g G

ran
ts,
 C
on
str
uc
tio
n a

nd
 R
eg
en
era

tio
n 

Ac
t 1
99
6

HC
74
55

LA
A 
/ C

W
arm

 &
 W
ell

A 
Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
-w
ide

 pr
oje

ct 
to 
pro

mo
te 
ho
me

 en
erg

y e
ffic

ien
cy
, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 ta
rge

ted
 at
 th
os
e w

ith
 he

alt
h p

rob
lem

s
60
,00

0
60
,00

0
60
,00

0
60
,00

0

HC
92
00

C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na
bli
ng

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
in 
su
pp
ort
 of
 en

ab
lin
g t
he
 pr
ov
isi
on
 of
 ne

w 
aff
ord

ab
le 
ho
us
ing

 
in 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 re
gis
ter
ed
 S
oc
ial
 La

nd
lor
ds
 an

d t
he
 H
ou
sin
g C

orp
ora

tio
n

34
5,0

00
27
0,0

00

HC
92
00

C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na
bli
ng

Tra
ns
for
ma

tio
na
l im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to
 pr
iva
te 
ho
us
eh
old

s i
n S

t. P
au
l's 
to 
as
sis
t 

the
m 
in 
rai
sin
g t
he
 st
an
da
rd 
of 
the

ir d
we
llin
gs
 in
 lin
e w

ith
 ne

w 
bu
ild
 co

un
cil
 

ho
us
ing

 st
oc
k.

55
,00

0
13
0,0

00

HC
92
00

C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na
bli
ng

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
in 
su
pp
ort
 of
 en

ab
lin
g t
he
 pr
ov
isi
on
 of
 ne

w 
aff
ord

ab
le 
ho
us
ing

 
in 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 B
oro

ug
h H

om
es

1,7
90
,00

0
1,7

90
,00

0
2,9

00
,00

0

OP
ER
AT
IO
NS

C
Ve
hic
les
 an

d r
ec
yc
lin
g c

ad
die

s
Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
ve
hic
les
 an

d r
ec
yc
lin
g e

qu
ipm

en
t 

1,4
46
,15

3

BU
DG

ET
 PR

OP
OS

AL
S F

UT
UR
E C

AP
ITA

L 
PR
OG

RA
MM

E:
29
2,0

00
20
0,0

00
20
0,0

00
20
0,0

00
20
0,0

00

Pa
ge
 2

Page 80



AP
PE

ND
IX 
6

GE
NE
RA
L F

UN
D 
CA
PIT

AL
 PR

OG
RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he

me
 

Sc
he

me
 D
es

cri
pti

on
Or

igi
na

l
Pa

ym
en

ts
Bu

dg
et

Re
vis

ed
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Sc
he

me
to

20
11

/12
Bu

dg
et

20
12

/13
20

13
/14

20
14

/15
20

15
/16

20
16

/17
 

 
 

 
Co

st
31

/03
/11

ag
ree

d
20

11
/12

27
/06

/11
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

CA
PIT

AL
 SC

HE
ME

S -
 R
EC
LA
SS
IFI
ED
 AS

 
RE
VE
NU
E

DC
10
66

C
La
nd
 &
 P
rop

ert
y p
res

ale
 co

sts
Pr
op
ert
y &

 Le
ga
l c
os
ts 
as
so
cia
ted

 w
ith
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
ts

LC
60
05

C
All
otm

en
ts

All
otm

en
t E
nh
an
ce
me

nts
 - n

ew
 to
ile
ts,
 pa

th 
su
rfa
cin
g, 
fen

cin
g, 
sig
na
ge
, 

an
d o

the
r im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to
 in
fra
-st
ruc

tur
e.

35
3,1

00
34
2,8

43
10
,20

0
10
,20

0

EC
00
54

C
De
po
t R
ati
on
ali
sa
tio
n

Co
sts
 as

so
cia
ted

 w
ith
 in
co
rpo

rat
ing

 Te
wk
es
bu
ry 
Bo
rou

gh
 C
ou
nc
il w

ith
in 
the

 
De
po
t s
ite
 at
 S
win

do
n R

oa
d

30
0,0

00
27
2,7

80
27
,20

0
27
,20

0

TO
TA
L C

AP
ITA

L P
RO

GR
AM

ME
8,3

21
,60

0
9,2

44
,25

3
9,8

29
,00

0
1,1

16
,00

0
1,0

56
,00

0
1,0

56
,00

0
1,0

56
,00

0

Fu
nd
ed
 by
:

G
Go

ve
rnm

en
t G

ran
ts

SC
G
Sp

ec
ifie

d C
ap
ita
l G

ran
t (D

FG
)

30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
LA

A
LA

A P
erf
orm

an
ce
 R
ew

ard
 G
ran

t
60
,00

0
60
,00

0
60
,00

0
60
,00

0
P
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Fu

nd
ing

76
8,0

00
2,8

54
,00

0
PS

DH
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r D

ec
en
t H

om
es
 G
ran

t
32
4,4

00
32
4,4

00
HL

F
He

rita
ge
 Lo

tte
ry 
Fu
nd
ing

75
0,0

00
HR

A
Ho

us
ing

 R
ev
en
ue
 Ac

co
un
t C

on
trib

uti
on

10
0,0

00
10
0,0

00
R
Pr
op
ert
y P

lan
ne
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
65
5,0

00
52
4,0

00
13
1,0

00
R
AG

&M
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
1,0

00
,00

0
58
4,0

00
1,4

16
,00

0
S
De

ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 S1

06
76
,50

0
54
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
C
Ge

ne
ral
 Ba

lan
ce
s

10
9,4

00
10
9,4

00
C
HR

A C
ap
ita
l R

ec
eip

ts
39
0,0

00
39
0,0

00
C
HR

A C
ap
ita
l R

ec
eip

ts
39
0,0

00
39
0,0

00
C
GF

 C
ap
ita
l R

ec
eip

ts
12
0,0

00
C
HI
P C

ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
37
0,0

00
37
0,0

00
C
Pr
ud
en
tia
l B
orr
ow

ing
3,6

00
,00

0
3,8

46
,15

3
4,1

00
,00

0
C
GF

 C
ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
1,3

30
,30

0
93
8,3

00
91
2,0

00
70
0,0

00
70
0,0

00
70
0,0

00
70
0,0

00
8,3

21
,60

0
9,2

44
,25

3
9,8

29
,00

0
1,1

16
,00

0
1,0

56
,00

0
1,0

56
,00

0
1,0

56
,00

0

Pa
ge
 3

Page 81



Page 82
This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 1

1.  Introduction  
 
1.1  The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is the council’s key financial planning document for 

the General Fund budget. It sets out and considers the financial implications of the council’s 
objectives and priorities and factors in financial pressures, including reducing government 
funding. The aim of the MTFS is to ensure a stable and sustainable financial position that will 
allow the council to achieve its vision, aims and ambitions over the next 5 years (2012/13 – 
2017/18). 

 
1.2 The council is committed to maximising the use of scarce resources and directing resources 

towards its priorities whilst keeping council tax at an affordable level. The MTFS is reviewed 
regularly during the budget process and reported to Members at the budget setting annually. 

 
1.3 This year’s review is once again overshadowed by the national economic  climate. The council 

faces a major challenge in managing the impact of the recession on budgets and services, 
including the impact of sustained low interest rates coupled with tight government grant 
settlements.  

 
1.4 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is not included, as a separate budget and Business Plan is 

produced for the HRA to cover its planning processes. 
 
2.  Links to other council plans 
 
2.1 Cheltenham Borough Council's Corporate Strategy 2010 to 2015 was agreed in March 2010. The 

strategy sets out what the council is hoping to achieve over the next five years and what actions 
were planned to be taken in the first year (2010/11) to support these longer-term plans.  

 
2.2 The corporate strategy provides an over-arching long term framework for the MTFS, annual 

budget and action plan which will be reviewed and updated annually.  
 
 The council’s objectives  
2.3 The council agreed that it should move to fewer high-level objectives to help us be clearer about 

our priorities and that these objectives must reflect the reality of community needs and provide a 
framework for community outcomes. 

 
2.4 The strategy sets out the following three community objectives: 

• Enhancing and protecting our environment; 
• Strengthening our economy; and 
• Strengthening our communities. 

 
2.5 These are supported by two cross-cutting objectives of: 

• Enhancing the provision of arts and culture; and 
• Ensuring we provide value for money services that effectively meet the needs of our 

customers. 
 
 The council’s outcomes 
2.6 The outcomes are critical in that they describe the improvements we will make to improve the 

well-being of the whole population of Cheltenham. By putting outcomes centre-stage in our 
strategy, we are making a commitment that our customers and communities will judge us by how 
well we are improving the quality of life rather than other measures of success. 

 
2.7 Some of these outcomes we will be able to deliver by ourselves, but for many other outcomes we 

will have to work in partnership with other organisations.  
 

Page 83



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 2

2.8 From the consultation activities and the needs analysis we are proposing a set of outcomes the 
council should be focusing on. 

 
 

Objectives Outcomes 
Enhancing and protecting 
our environment. 

Cheltenham has a clean and well-maintained environment. 
Cheltenham’s natural and built environment is enhanced and 
protected. 
Carbon emissions are reduced and Cheltenham is able to 
adapt to the impacts of climate change. 

Strengthening our 
economy. 
 

Cheltenham is able to recover quickly and strongly from the 
recession. 
We attract more visitors and investors to Cheltenham. 

Strengthening our 
communities. 

Communities feel safe and are safe. 
People have access to decent and affordable housing. 
People are able to lead healthy lifestyles. 
Our residents enjoy a strong sense of community and involved 
in resolving local issues. 

Enhancing the provision of 
arts and culture. 

Arts and culture are used as a means to strengthen 
communities, strengthen the economy and enhance and 
protect our environment. 

Ensuring we provide value 
for money services that 
effectively meet the needs 
of our customers. 

The council delivers cashable savings, as well as improved 
customer satisfaction overall and better performance through 
the effective commissioning of services. 

 
  
2.9 The outcomes also relate back to the nine community aims set out in Cheltenham’s Sustainable 

Community Strategy. This means that the council is continuing its commitment to support the 
delivery of the community strategy. 

 
2.10 The role of the MTFS is to support the delivery of the council’s objectives and outcomes. A key 

delivery driver for this to be achieved is through joint plans with partners and stakeholders alike 
which are detailed in section 8 below. 

 
3.  Financial projections – revenue resource requirements 
 
3.1  The key aim of the MTFS is to develop a series of financial projections to determine the longer 

term financial implications, in order to deliver the aims set out in the council’s business plan. 
 
3.2 As in previous years, the approach is to use the current financial year as a base position, inflate 

this to the price base of the budget year, and add unavoidable spending pressures and the 
implications of immediate priorities and previous decisions. This is then measured against the 
projection of available funding to determine affordability. The package of measures required to 
equalise the two forms the financial strategy to ‘bridge’ the funding gap for each financial year. 

 
3.3 The projections of the funding gap based on council tax increases of 2.5%, 3.5% and 5% are 

shown in Table 1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 3

 
 
 
Table 1: Projection of Funding Gap 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 
 £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Net Cost of Services brought forward from 
previous year (assuming a balanced 
budget has been set) 

 13,715,920 13,652,774 13,635,945 13,888,167 14,137,376 

       
Increased costs of existing services       
General Inflation  200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 
Employee related expenditure  212,200 190,000 358,800 366,100 373,700 
Pension costs - 2004 Revaluation  50,000     
Pension costs - 2010 Revaluation  82,000     
Pension costs - 2013 Revaluation   120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 
Landfill Tax  41,100 41,100    
       
Income        
Fees and Charges  (280,400) (290,000) (299,700) (309,700) (319,900) 
Investment Income  (32,100)     
Specific grant to fund council tax freeze  199,000  197,987   
       
Reserves       
Property repairs & renewals fund  200,000 200,000 200,000 107,000  
       
Projected Net Cost of Service 13,715,920 14,387,720 14,113,874 14,413,032 14,371,567 14,511,176 
       
Government Grants (5,716,446) (5,430,624) (5,159,093) (5,159,093) (5,159,093) (5,159,093) 
Collection Fund surplus (34,000)      
Council Tax (assumes 2.5% increase  
from 2012/13) 

(7,965,474) (8,222,150) (8,476,852) (8,729,075) (8,978,284) (9,223,912) 
       
Projected Funding Gap - 734,946 477,929 524,864 234,190 128,171 
       
Cumulative Funding Gap  734,946 1,212,875 1,737,739 1,971,929 2,100,100 
       
       
Funding Gap Projections:       
Council Tax (assumes 3.5% increase)  (654,730) (391,937) (433,087) (136,644) (24,892) 
Cumulative Funding Gap  (654,730) (1,046,667) (1,479,754) (1,616,398) (1,641,290) 
       
Council Tax (assumes 5.0% increase)  (534,406) (217,563) (241,773) 24,696 149,368 
Cumulative Funding Gap  (534,406) (751,969) (993,742) (969,046) (819,678) 
       

 
3.4 The key assumptions for the preparation of these projections are explained below. 
 
4. General 
 
4.1  The net cost of services has been estimated by using the ‘approved’ 2012/13 base budget 

(subject to council approval on 10th February 2012) as the base for future projections through to 
2017/18. 

 
4.2  General inflation on supplies, services, and non-domestic rates has been projected based on 

previous detailed information. Gas and electricity prices will remain static until the contracts come 
up for renewal at the end of April 2012. Current feedback from our advisors indicates that the 
council should not expect a significant price rise when entering into new contracts.  Work is 
ongoing in respect of the energy tenders and the council will aim to buy from the market at the 
most appropriate time to get the lowest prices, given the best information available.  Gas 
transportation and distribution charges have increased by around 2% since April 2011.  This 
equates to around £8,400 additional annual cost.  Further price increases may occur over the 
length of the MTFS, although at present these are unknown. 

 
4.3 The retail cost of fuel is heavily linked to the global cost of oil and the Dollar/Sterling exchange 

rate. The recent increase in the global cost of oil appears to have now stabilised, however, 
current prices are still fluctuating resulting in an uncertain picture for the future. 

Page 85



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 4

 
4.4  Major contracts and agreements are rolled forward based on the specified inflation indices in the 

contract or agreement. 
 
 Employee related costs 
4.5  In line with the 2010 budget report a pay freeze on public sector pay settlements (excluding 

increments) in 2011/12 and 2012/13 is factored into the projections. The Chancellor’s autumn 
statement announced that public sector pay increases for 2013/14 and 2014/15 will be capped at 
1%. Pay awards in local government are covered by collective bargaining between employers 
and trade unions and this is not subject to direct control from central government. However, it is 
reasonable to assume that the local government employers will mirror what happens in the rest of 
the public sector and this assumption has been built into the projections. Pay settlements for the 
years 2016/17 and onwards are estimated to be 2% per annum.  

 
4.6 The net cost of service assumes an employee turnover saving of 3% of gross pay budget. 
 
4.7  The council is part of the Gloucestershire Pensions Fund, which is administered by the County 

Council. The rate of contribution paid to the fund by participating employers is set following a 
triennial revaluation of the Fund by the appointed actuary. The triennial revaluation of the Fund 
was based on the position as at 31st March 2010, found that the Fund’s objective of holding 
sufficient assets to meet the estimated current cost of providing members’ past service benefits 
was not met at the valuation date. 

 
4.8  Contribution rates are calculated on an individual basis for each participating employer. For the 

council’s element of the fund, the funding level was  assessed at 66% (compared with 75.3% in 
2007), with a shortfall of £38.1m. The fund actuary is aiming for this deficit to be recovered over a 
20 year period, giving the following target contribution rates for the council (for this three-year 
valuation period): 

 
• a 14.60% future service rate which should cover the liabilities scheme member’s build up in 

the future, plus 
 

• an annual lump sum past service deficit contribution of £1.525m, to cover the shortfall in the 
fund. 

 
4.9  The Secretary of State for Communities & Local Government announced in November 2011 that 

new reforms to public service pensions will be introduced on 1st April 2014, with regulations in 
place from 1st April 2013. The single solution will be built on the basis of career average earnings 
and can include zero increases in employee contributions, provided that overall financial 
constraints set by the government can be met.  The flexible retirement age will be built around 
the scheme’s normal retirement age, equal to the State pension age, or 65, whichever is the 
later, and applies to both active members and deferred members (new scheme service only).   

 
4.10 Following recent events, the Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer) has discussed the 

current position with the actuary who has indicated that, given the uncertainty over this area of 
activity future projections of potential increases in contributions resulting from the 2013 
revaluation should be based on 1% per annum over remainder of the period of the MTFS. 

 
 Landfill tax 
4.11  Central Government is applying a cost escalator for landfill tax which increases the cost of 

commercial waste disposal by £8 per tonne, year on year until 2014/15. Although factored into 
the projections at £41,100 per annum, it is worth noting that all commercial operators will face the 
same cost challenge. It is not unreasonable, therefore, to expect the market to stand an above 
inflationary increase in fees to cover this additional cost. This does not give the Authority a 
disadvantageous cost structure compared with the local competition. 

Page 86



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 5

 Fees and charges 
4.12  A general assumption for a 2.5% increase in fees and charges (including car parking) has been 

factored in. However, reviews of all charges are required annually by Service Managers. 
 
 Treasury management 
4.13     Investment income from cash investments falls in 2012/13. This is largely due to maturing 

deposits being used to reduce temporary borrowing balances throughout the year. Whilst there is 
an option to take out prudential borrowing, it has been assumed for MTFS purposes that the 
capital programme will continue to be financed from capital receipts, grants (including S106 
developer contributions), and revenue contributions and that borrowing will only take place if 
absolutely necessary. 

 
4.14  Debt interest is forecast to be £32,100 favourable in 2013/14 as the impact of a maturing loan 

takes effect. 
 
 Specific grant – Council Tax freeze 
4.15 The Government has confirmed a second year of council tax freeze grant equivalent to a 2.5% 

tax increase. Unlike 2011/12, the government has confirmed that this grant will only be payable in 
2012/13 and this has been factored into the MTFS. For Cheltenham this equates to £199,000. 

 
4.16 The council tax freeze grant of £197,987 to support a council tax freeze in 2011/12 has now been 

built into the government support grant. However, for financial planning purposes, it is assumed 
that this grant will cease at the end of the current spending review in 2015/16 and has been built 
into the projections. 

 
 Property maintenance 
4.17 Current projections (as detailed in the amended 20 year maintenance programme) indicate a 

requirement to fund property maintenance of circa £1.4m per annum from revenue contributions 
which will be achieved in 2016/17. 

 
 Government support 
4.18 The main issue in terms of funding availability is the estimation of the level of Government grant 

which the council will receive. Although this has been set for the period to 2012/13 as part of the 
Comprehensive Spending Review 2010 (CSR10), future settlements may impact on effective 
longer-term financial planning and sustainability. 

 
4.19 Given the severity of the cuts to funding levels, the two year proposal does not provide stability 

and predictability in local government funding. 
 
4.20 For the purpose of projecting the funding gap, it is estimated that the level of government grant 

and share of the national non domestic rates pool will decrease by a further 5% in 2013/14 and 
5% reduction in 2014/15 (i.e. a 31.28% reduction overall for the period of the spending review 
CSR10). 

 
 Council Tax 
4.21 Collection fund surpluses arise from higher than anticipated rates of collection of the council tax 

collection rates. This is assessed annually although the current economic climate could have an 
adverse impact on this source of one off funding and therefore no increases have been assumed 
for the period covered in this MTFS. 

 
4.22 The taxbase represents the total number of chargeable properties in the borough, expressed as 

band D. The net budget requirement is divided by the taxbase to calculate the level of council tax 
for band D each year. The council’s taxbase is expected to increase each year for the purposes 
of modelling the MTFS.  
 

Page 87



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 6

 Funding gap 
4.23 Given Government restrictions on local authorities increasing council tax and the subsequent 

reduction in government funding, the council has faced a significantly more challenging financial 
position. The latest projections indicate a gap of £2.1m for the period of the MTFS (2012/13 to 
2017/18) assuming a ‘standstill’ position in central government funding with 2.5% annual increase 
in council tax. The improvement in the baseline 5 year projection reflects the following: 

 
• impact of capping pay increases on pay 
• delivery of the BtG programme savings in the earlier years 
• achieving the target annual funding level for property maintenance 

 
5.  Strategy for ‘bridging’ the projected funding gap 
 
5.1  The council could reduce the projected funding gap by increasing council tax above 2.5%. 

Council tax increases of 5% would generate an additional circa £200,000 income per annum 
although this approach would be unpopular in the current economic climate and the electorate 
now have the right under the Localism Act to call a referendum if it is felt that a council tax 
increase is too high. 

 
5.2  The council has identified a number of work-streams which form the longer term strategy for 

‘bridging the gap’ which are detailed below. 
 
 Service reviews and ‘Systems Thinking’ 
5.3  The council is keen to ensure that services are of the highest quality and lowest cost. Service 

reviews, which involve benchmarking, have been used to support the commissioning programme. 
Also the council uses ‘systems thinking’ as a strategy for improving service delivery by: 

 
• designing the service to meet customers needs and expectations, and 
• optimising the realisation of cashable efficiency gains by removing failure demand and waste 

from the system 
 
5.4 The principal aim of the work is to examine how services are provided in order to seek 

improvements and efficiencies and reduce costs through the use of ‘systems thinking’ analytical 
approaches. This has also been very successful with ‘interventions’ in a number of areas which 
have resulted in more efficient services and are projected to deliver savings in the process. 

 
 Asset management 
5.5 The council has a significant property portfolio including some key public buildings which place 

significant pressure on the council’s budget and represents a significant cost to the tax payer. 
Annually the council is planning to increase its budget by some £200k (equivalent to 2.5% council 
tax increase) in order to pay the annual cost of around £1.4m on the maintenance of public 
buildings. 

 
5.6 The council is aiming to reduce the net cost of the council’s property portfolio through increasing 

income streams or reducing management and operational costs of the council’s property 
portfolio. The council has an updated Asset Management Plan which outlines the council’s 
strategic approach to asset management. 

 
5.7 The asset base is under constant review to identify potential property disposals which could both 

raise capital resources (capital receipts) and reduce the incidental costs of holding properties 
(e.g. on-going maintenance costs, business rates, etc). Similarly, vacant properties are being 
reviewed to identify alternative uses that might better support the council’s business plan 
objectives and generate an income.  

  
 

Page 88



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 7

 Shared services 
5.8 There has been major progress in the establishment of shared service arrangements with some 

significant achievements being made. The council has established a shared audit service with 
Cotswold District council and West Oxfordshire District council and shared Legal and Building 
Control services with Tewkesbury Borough council. 

 
5.9 A more significant and complex piece of work is the programme for a shared Enterprise 

Resource Planning (ERP) system to replace individual payroll, HR, finance and procurement 
systems with 3 other districts (Cotswold District Council, Forest of Dean District Council and West 
Oxfordshire District Council) and Cheltenham Borough Homes. This system will become the 
platform for a full shared service which will help to reduce the cost of ‘back office’ functions and 
management structures. 

 
5.10 Additionally, we’re uniting with Cotswold District Council to form a company called Ubico Ltd from 

April 2012, a company which will provide high quality environmental services including waste and 
recycling collections and street cleaning, producing savings for both councils. 

 
 Commissioning  
5.11.1 Commissioning is defined by the Cabinet Office as "the cycle of assessing the needs of people in 

an area, designing and then securing appropriate service". Commissioning requires better 
partnership/cross agency working, prioritisation to ensure resources (finance, people and assets) 
are used to best effect to deliver clearly defined outcomes which all parties to the commissioning 
approach are aligned behind.  

 
5.11.2 By adopting this strategic approach services will be transformed, where warranted, and may not 

necessarily as at present be provided through a directly employed workforce; a mixed economy 
(sharing services, outsourcing, creation of "not for profit" vehicles, third sector) approach to 
delivery of services may result. The key tests for commissioning will be good quality services, 
with outcomes for the citizen and community at the heart of their provision and which have long 
term financial viability. 

 
5.12 The MTFS assumes some initial savings targets from commissioning from the initial review of the 

services stage. Whilst there are currently no targets for specific commissioning projects there is 
an expectation, from within the organisation and amongst members, that this approach will 
deliver savings over the period of the MTFS. 

 
 The residual funding gap 
5.13 Taking into account that the identified work-streams are delivered throughout the period covered 

by this MTFS, the projected residual funding gap (assuming a 2.5% increase in council tax 
annually) is shown below in Table 2. 

 
 

Table 2: Projection of Residual Funding Gap 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 
 £ £ £ £ £ 
Projected Funding Gap @ 2.5% Council Tax 
(Table 1) 

734,946 477,929 524,864 234,190 128,171 
      
Identified Work-streams      
Service Reviews (18,300) (10,500) (4,300)   
Asset Management (10,000) (5,000) (5,000)   
Shared Services (269,700)     
Commissioning (93,000)     
Other Major Projects (50,000)     
      
Projected Residual Funding Gap 293,946 462,429 515,564 234,190 128,171 
      
Cumulative Projected Residual Funding Gap 293,946 756,375 1,271,939 1,506,129 1,634,300 

 

Page 89



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 8

5.14 It should be noted that the current MTFS does not assume any recovery in the current economic 
climate and therefore, the view could be taken that the current MTFS predicts the worst case 
scenario. 

 
5.15 The council is seeing the impact of the economic downturn on many services. As the economic 

crisis has deepened, the council has witnessed a more significant reduction in income levels for 
many of its service areas resulting in the need to revise income estimates further downwards. 
The income from development control, property rentals, land charges and car parking has 
declined to unprecedented levels. In addition, the Bank of England base rate cut to 0.5% has 
resulted in a significant reduction in the base budget for investment interest. 

 
5.16 Recovery within the economy over the course of the current MTFS would obviously assist in 

closing the projected funding gap although some costs (e.g. pay awards) may also increase. 
 
6.  Financial projections – Capital resource requirements 
 
6.1 The council’s capital strategy is geared towards ensuring the maximisation of resources available 

to the council. 
 
6.2 The council has budgeted to make a revenue contribution to capital outlay (RCCO) Capital 

Reserve of £700,000 per annum and this is now embedded within the base budget. This reserve 
funds part of the capital programme which generally consists of 3 areas of expenditure (i) 
replacement of play equipment (ii) replacement of CCTV equipment and (iii) mandatory costs of 
disabled facilities grant, totalling £500,000. Assuming additional one off schemes of circa 
£200,000, the council has an approximate capital programme to be funded from RCCO of 
£700,000 annually. 

 
6.3 The remainder of the capital programme is funded from other sources e.g. specific grants. In 

order to progress new capital schemes not already identified within the MTFS, the council will 
need to prioritise the use of available resources detailed in the Capital Strategy e.g. potential 
receipts from the sale of Midwinter site and North Place / Portland Street car parks, consider the 
of other assets or prudential borrowing. 

 
7.  Financial projections - reserves 
 
7.1  The General Reserve is held to protect existing service levels from reductions in income levels as 

a result of the economic downturn and other unforeseen circumstances. CIPFA’s Local Authority 
Accounting Panel (LAAP) issued a guidance bulletin on local authorities’ reserves and balances. 

 
7.2   As part of the annual budget setting process and in reviewing the MTFS, the council needs to 

consider the establishment and maintenance of reserves. These can be held for three main 
purposes: 

 
• a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and avoid unnecessary 

temporary borrowing – this forms part of general reserves; 
• a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies – this also forms 

part of general reserves; 
• a means of building up funds (earmarked reserves) to meet known or predicted requirements. 

 
7.3  The council has, over a number of years, earmarked significant funds for specific reserves. 

These are reviewed twice yearly by full council under the guidance of the Section 151 Officer. 
Over the course of this MTFS, the value of earmarked reserves will be reduced as they are used 
to finance planned expenditure. Also, the reserve used to finance the capital programme and 
property maintenance will reach the levels required to fund existing commitments within this 
MTFS 

Page 90



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 9

 
7.4  The proposed net budget requirement for 2012/13 is £13,715,920, which includes a net transfer 

to reserves of £252,045. When taking into account the proposals to support one-off growth in 
2012/13 and revenue contributions used to fund the capital programme, the level of reserves held 
by the council is projected to be £4,954,076 by 31st March 2013. 

 
7.5  The projected position for General Fund reserves to 2017/18 is shown below in Table 4: 
 
Table 4: General Fund Reserves Projection 2010/11 to 2017/18 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

£ 
m

illi
on

Projected Level Minimum Reserve Level Target Reserve Level

  
7.6  In view of the current economic climate, the Section 151 Officer has maintained that General 

Reserves should be maintained in the range of £1.5m to £2m.  
 
7.6.1 A review of the adequacy of the level of reserves remains a key element of the Section 151 

Officers annual review of the budget. 
 
8.  Working in partnership 
 
8.1 Partnerships form the basis of an increasing range of the council’s services and extend from joint 

activities within a loose working arrangement to complex and formally structured vehicles for 
service delivery. 

 
8.2 The council welcomes the opportunity to work with partner organisations to deliver our proposed 

outcomes as this adds value for the taxpayers of Cheltenham but will always seek to ensure that 
the: 

 
• Financial viability of partners is assured before committing to an agreement 
• Responsibilities and liabilities of each of the partners is clearly understood by parties to any 

agreement; 
• Accounting arrangements are established before any payments are made; and 
• Implications of the terms and conditions of any funding arrangements are considered before 

any monies are accepted. 

Page 91



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 10

 
8.3 Some of the areas that we are working in partnership include: 
 

• We have established a joint local authority company with Cotswold District Council that will 
deliver a range of environmental services including waste and recycling collections and 
environmental maintenance; 

• We work with a wide range of community groups such as friends of groups, Tidy Cheltenham, 
Cheltenham in Bloom, who are leading the way in improving their local environments; 

• We are working in partnership with Gloucestershire County Council and other partners to 
coordinate the Cheltenham Local Development Taskforce project that will result in significant 
investment into the borough to secure its longer-term economic success; 

• We work in partnership through the Public Sector Employment Partnership to develop a 
range of workforce development initiatives such as improved NVQ training and the 
apprenticeship scheme; 

• We work with the Cotswold and Forest destination management organisation to ensure that 
there is a coordinated approach to promoting the county; 

• The council has over 4,500 properties which are managed by Cheltenham Borough Homes 
which is our Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO); 

• Gloucestershire NHS and the council jointly-fund a Healthy lifestyles development officer who 
delivers a programme of activities in the borough to improve their health and wellbeing; 

• We provide a range of grant funding to voluntary sector partners who are able to deliver cost 
effective services to their communities, including Gloucestershire Association for Voluntary 
and Community Action which is responsible for co-ordinating and representing the voluntary 
sector in the town; 

• We support a wide range of organisations that are providing a diverse  range of arts and 
cultural activities in the borough such as Cheltenham Festivals and the Everyman Theatre. 

 
9.  Areas of uncertainty associated with the MTFS  
 
9.1  The review has also highlighted a significant number of areas where the impact on revenue 

spending cannot be quantified with sufficient accuracy, at this point in the process. The 
‘uncertainties’ associated with the MTFS include the following: 

 
 VAT on car parks 
9.2 The Isle of Wight (I.O.W.) local authority, along with three others, successfully argued at a VAT 

Tribunal, that they should not have to charge VAT on off-street car parking.  Total claims have 
been lodged, including 2010/11, totalling £12,618,336.  Cheltenham Borough Council will 
continue to account for VAT on off-street car parking but will also continue lodging claims with 
HMRC for repayment, in order to protect its position. 

  
 Compound interest claim 
9.3 The ‘Sempra Metals’ case was brought before the High Court to determine whether taxpayers 

should be entitled to compound interest on overpaid VAT.  The High Court agreed this in principal 
but allowed the six year time limit under the Limitation Act to stand meaning their claim falls out of 
time.  However, the time limit point has been appealed to the Court of Appeal.   

 
9.4 Following the High Court’s decision, the council, under advisement, pursued a compound interest 

claim in the High Court.  This followed claims being pursued by other local authorities, including 
Bristol City Council.  A further case for compound interest was put forward by ‘Littlewoods’.  In 
January 2012, the ECJ released the opinion of the Advocate General (“AG”) on the case which 
although not binding on the ECJ tends to be followed in the majority of cases. 

 
9.5 The AG considered two EU law principles when looking at UK statute (which currently awards 

interest only on a simple basis). She concluded that awarding only simple interest did not breach 

Page 92



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 11

the EU law principle of effectiveness, and said that it was for the national court to make a 
separate reference to the ECJ if it considered that there might be a breach of the principle of 
equivalence of treatment (i.e. that reclaims based on domestic law were treated more favourably 
than reclaims based on EU law).  

 
9.6 If the ECJ follows this Opinion, it will mean that taxpayers are highly unlikely to receive any 

compound interest, i.e. any additional payment of interest beyond whatever simple interest they 
have already received. This Opinion is perhaps unsurprising in the context of the economic 
climate across the European Union, but it appears to take an unusual approach on a number of 
points of law. Therefore it remains possible (but no more than that) that the ECJ could take a 
different view.  

 
9.7 It therefore appears unlikely at present that the council will be successful in its claim of upwards 

of £583k, although this position will be continually monitored. 
 
 Adequacy of capital resources and property repairs and renewals fund (reserve) 
9.8 The Director of Resources has raised the issue of the long term financing of the council’s capital 

programme on a number of occasions. The work to cost the Asset Management Plan remains 
outstanding. This work should identify additional funding requirements over the coming years and 
may consider alternative forms of financing, including prudential borrowing. 

 
 Trade refuse VAT claim 
9.9 HMRC decided during Spring 2011 that local authority run trade waste services were outside the 

scope of VAT.  It came to the conclusion that the running of such a service by a local authority 
was operated under Article 13 (1) of European Directive 2006/112.  HMRC state that the 
requirement under Section 45(1) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, which places a duty 
on waste collection authorities to collect waste from commercial premises if requested by the by 
the occupier of the premises, falls within this article. 

 
9.10 Consequently, local authorities have been advised to submit claims for overpaid VAT on their 

trade waste income back to January 2008, which is the time frame within which claims can be 
made of HMRC.   

 
9.11 CBC have instructed their VAT advisors, LAVAT, to work with them on this claim, and will be 

robustly presenting a case to HMRC demonstrating that the service has been run at a “net cost” 
to the council and it will therefore not be ‘unjustly enriched’ by being repaid VAT. 

 
 New Homes Bonus 
9.12 The government introduced the New homes bonus as a cash incentive scheme to reward 

councils for new home completions and for bringing empty homes back into use. This provides 
match funding of Council Tax for six years (based on national average for Band D property – i.e. 
£8,600 per dwelling over six years), plus a bonus of £350 for each affordable home (worth £2,100 
over six years). 

 
9.13 Funding is not ring-fenced and is designed to allow the ‘benefits of growth to be returned to 

communities’. Funding is split 80:20 between district and county authorities. 
 
9.14 The government has made this a permanent feature of the local government finance system with 

an extra £450 million available nationally over the first two years, with additional costs being met 
from the redistribution of formula grant. 

 
9.15 The Council will need to decide how it wishes to budget further NHB income, as it will be an 

important element of future financing arrangements, dependent on both the rate of housing 
delivery locally and how this compares with delivery in other authorities across England. 
However, housing projections are notoriously difficult to predict accurately over the longer term 

Page 93



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 12

and will need to be assessed prudently in making any assumptions about likely resource 
availability. 

 
 Off-Street parking income 
9.16 Income from off-street parking continues to fall for a number of reasons, including the downturn in 

the economy and changing shopping habits. The 2012/13 budget has been reduced by a further 
£100,000 to take account of this continued and sustained decline in income levels.  It is not 
anticipated that this position will improve in the near future given the economic climate, and as a 
result inflationary increases have not been applied to car parking charges for 2012/13.   

 
 Proposals for Business Rate retention 
9.17 Currently the Council collects £48m of business rates in Cheltenham which it pays into a central 

government pool and receives back some £4.7 million from the pool.    
  
9.18 From April 2013 the government is proposing to allow authorities to retain a fixed percentage of 

any growth in business rates over and above inflation (RPI), as a means of encouraging 
authorities to promote development in their areas.  In two tier areas as in Cheltenham any growth 
will be shared with the county council on an 80:20 basis with 80% going to the district council.  
This means the more an authority ‘grows’ its business rates, the more income it will retain. 

 
9.19 However if business rates in an area grow by less than inflation or reduce as a result of the 

closure of businesses, some of the lost income will have to be borne by the local authorities for 
that area.  There will be a ‘safety net’ to support authorities whose business rates drop by more 
than a set percentage, however the level at which this will operate is not yet known. 

 
9.20 Any growth or reduction in business rates will be measured against each authority’s position at 1 

April 2013, which will be set through a system ‘tariffs’ (payments to) or ‘top-ups’ (receipts from) 
the government, reflecting the uneven distribution across the country of business rates due. 

 
9.21 The changes, as with the proposals for changes in council tax benefit (see below), represent a 

major change in the way risk is shared with the government.  When rates are pooled nationally 
(as now) the risk of a reduction in the amount collected during the year is borne nationally by the 
central pool.  Under the proposals, although authorities get the benefit of any growth from 1 April 
2013, they also bear the risk of reduced growth from that date, up to the safety net level. 

 
9.22 Under the proposals the rate at which business rates are levied will continue to be set by the 

government.  During the consultation period the council argued for this rate to be set by local 
authorities, as a means of mitigating the risk of reduced income, or as a minimum for there to be 
a safety net to protect authorities against large reductions in rates. 

 
9.23 Also under the proposals authorities will be allowed to ‘pool’ their business rates with other 

authorities, should they wish.  This would mean sharing not only any growth in rates over the 
pooled area but also the risk of reduced income.  This may benefit areas like Cheltenham with 
tightly drawn boundaries and the potential for ‘out-of-town’ development. 

 
9.24 Due to the lack of detail about how the scheme will work (e.g. the percentage of growth to be 

retained and the level at which the safety net will operate), it is very difficult to estimate the effect 
of the proposals on Cheltenham.  It is possible that, given the potential growth from new 
developments in the town from 2013/14 that the council may benefit, however it will also need to 
bear the cost of reduced income should businesses in the town close or relocate. The council is 
working with councils in Gloucestershire to establish the impact of the proposals on the MTFS.  

 
 Localising support for Council Tax 
9.25 Currently council tax benefit is payable to eligible tax payers based on a national scheme.  The 

cost to the council (which is charged to the general fund) is met by a 100% subsidy from the 

Page 94



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 13

government.  In addition reduced subsidy is payable on eligible overpayments.  The council 
currently pays out around £7.1 million in such benefits and receives £7.15 million in subsidy. 

 
9.26 From 1 April 2013 the government is proposing to ‘localise’ council tax benefits.  A fixed subsidy 

equivalent to the current subsidy reduced by 10% will be payable to local authorities, who will be 
required to design their own council tax benefit schemes, subject to them making adequate 
provision for vulnerable groups.  Benefits will be offered as reductions or discounts on the council 
tax payable.  The proposals are part of a wider set of welfare reforms, designed to increase local 
accountability and decision making. 

 
9.27 Authorities may be able to design local schemes that can be funded within the reduced 

government subsidy.  If the cost of the local scheme is less than the subsidy received then the 
local authorities will benefit, however if the cost is more then they have to bear the additional 
cost.  In two tier areas the savings or additional cost will be shared between the county, district 
and on the basis of precepts; Cheltenham’s share being around 10%.   

 
9.28 The changes, as with the proposals for changes in business rates (see above), represent a major 

change in the way risk is shared with the government.  At present the risk of  the actual cost 
exceeding the budgeted subsidy is currently borne by the government, who meet the actual cost 
of the scheme.  Under the new proposals the risk of claims exceeding the subsidy received is 
borne by the local authorities, who will not be able to revise schemes in the year.   

 
9.29 It is very difficult at present to estimate the effect of the proposals on Cheltenham, as this will 

depend largely on the local scheme that is adopted, the mix of vulnerable and non-vulnerable 
claimants and changes in the local economy.  As with other benefits, those relating to council tax 
are demand led, and the actual cost will depend on the actual number and amount of benefits 
awarded.  However If it is assumed that a local scheme can be designed so that it can be funded 
by a reduced subsidy of 10%, even a 5% overspend would cost Cheltenham an additional 
£30,000 per annum.   

 
9.30 During the consultation period the council argued that the timescale for implementing the 

changes was too tight, with the need to design, consult on and agree a local scheme by 31 
January 2013.  The need for a safety net was also suggested, although the government have 
indicated they may review grant allocations annually based on previous shares of expenditure.      

 
 Icelandic banks 
9.31 The council has £9.1m of un-recovered investments with Icelandic banks which went into 

administration in October 2008.  The council is due to recover 100% of the deposit from Glitnir 
before the end of 2011/12 financial year and 31% of the deposits with Landsbanki in early 2012. 
The MTFS assumes the receipt of these distributions followed by smaller distributions as notified 
by the Landsbanki Winding up Board.  

 
10.  Risk associated with the MTFS 
 
10.1  There are inevitable risks associated with the assumptions for both revenue and capital 

projections. Employee turnover may vary from that assumed with both financial and service 
consequences. Net expenditure may be more than has been assumed, either as a consequence 
of additional demand, reduced income following a fall in demand e.g. further reductions in car 
parking; or for new responsibilities which are inadequately provided for within government grant. 

 
10.2  On the capital side, major projects that require additional resources and rely on a level of new 

capital receipts may prove to be optimistic in the current economic climate. 
 
10.3  The MTFS assumes that the current system of local government funding will continue. 
 

Page 95



 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2017/18                              APPENDIX 7 
 

 14

10.4  There are additional risks associated with the wider economic situation. Inflation and interest rate 
assumptions may prove to be incorrect, although this has been factored in to some extent by 
assuming the worst case scenario. 

 
10.5  The prospect of business failures and a reduction in available tenants may result in rent 

reductions or rent free periods in order to attract new occupiers to the council’s commercial 
property portfolio. 

 
10.6  The Council continues to review the MTFS regularly and highlight changes to the BtG 

programme board and the council’s Senior Leadership Team. 
 
11.  Conclusion  
 
11.1  The council has a track record of strong financial management but is now in a period of 

significant volatility and uncertainty. The council needs to plan now to ensure that its strong 
financial position continues throughout the period covered by this MTFS and beyond. 

 
11.2  The development of this strategy for closing the budget gap is an important and on-going issue 

for the council. 
 

Page 96



Pla
nn

ed
 M

ain
ten

an
ce

 Pr
og

ram
me

 20
12

/13
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
8

Ite
m

Pr
op

ert
y N

am
e

Ele
me

nt
De

sc
rip

tio
n

To
tal

 £
All
 Pr

op
ert

ies
 (H

&S
)

All
Co

ns
eq

ue
nti
al 
wo

rks
 fro

m 
ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t in

sp
ec
tio
ns

2,0
00

    
    

  
An

y
Co

ns
eq

ue
nti
al 
wo

rks
 fro

m 
leg

ion
ell
a r

isk
 m

an
ag
em

en
t in

sp
ec
tio
ns

5,0
00

    
    

  
2

All
 Pr

op
ert

ies
 (W

C's
)

All
Ge

ne
ral

 ru
nn

ing
 re

pa
irs
 an

d r
ed
ec
ora

tio
ns
 to

 Pu
bli
c W

C's
5,0

00
    

    
  

Ar
t G

all
ery

/M
us
eu

m
All

Re
org

an
isa

tio
n/r

ed
ec
ora

tio
n o

f g
en
era

l o
ffic

e a
rea

s
10

,00
0

    
    

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t

o G
CC

 Li
bra

ry 
sta

ff r
oo
m

1,0
00

    
    

  
Co

ve
rin

g
Ins

tal
lat
ion

 of
 co

ld-
fus

ion
 m

em
bra

ne
 to

 of
fic
e f

lat
 ro

ofs
35

,00
0

    
    

Do
ors

Ov
erh

au
l re

pa
irs
 an

d r
ed

ec
ora

tio
n (

Hu
gh

 C
as
so
n W

ing
)

1,0
00

    
    

  
Ele

ctr
ica

l
Co

ns
eq

ue
nti
al 
rep

air
s r

eq
uir

ed
 by

 w
irin

g c
yc
lica

l te
st

2,0
00

    
    

  
Fix

tur
es

Re
pla

ce
 flo

or 
fin
ish

es
/ca

rpe
ts

5,0
00

    
    

  
Re

pla
ce
 flo

or 
fin
ish

es
/ca

rpe
ts 
to 

off
ice

s
6,0

00
    

    
  

Lin
ing

s
Re

de
co
rat

ion
 of

 pu
bli
c a

rea
s (

Hu
gh
 C
as
so
n W

ing
)

5,0
00

    
    

  
Me

ch
an

ica
l

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

ma
in 
bo

ile
rs 

(H
ug
h C

as
so
n W

ing
)

60
,00

0
    

    
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 

he
ati
ng

 pu
mp

s/ 
va
lve

s/ 
pip

ew
ork

 (H
ug
h C

as
so
n W

ing
)

10
,00

0
    

    
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 

he
ati
ng

 co
ntr

ols
/BM

S p
an
el 
(H
ug
h C

as
so
n W

ing
)

25
,00

0
    

    
Se

cu
rity

Se
cu
rity

/fir
e a

lar
m 

int
erf

ac
e t

o n
ew

 bu
ild
ing

 up
gra

de
s

10
,00

0
    

    
Be

rkl
ey
 M

ew
s 

Ca
no

py
Ge

ne
ral

 re
pa

irs
 to

 gl
az
ing

, b
ea
ds
 an

d f
las

hin
gs

1,0
00

    
    

  
Co

ve
rin

g
Ge

ne
ral

 re
pa

irs
 to

 pi
tch

ed
 ro

of 
co
ve
rin

gs
/fla

sh
ing

s
1,0

00
    

    
  

RW
 G
oo

ds
Ge

ne
ral

 re
pa

irs
 to

 ra
inw

ate
r g

oo
ds

1,0
00

    
    

  
Ste

elw
ork

Re
de

co
rat

ion
s t
o C

olo
nn

ad
e s

tru
ctu

ral
 st
ee
lwo

rk/
sta

irs
2,0

00
    

    
  

Su
rfa

ce
s

Ge
ne

ral
 re

pa
irs
 to

 bo
un

da
ry 
pa
ths

/w
all
s/e

lem
en
ts

1,0
00

    
    

  
5

Ce
me

ter
y C

ha
pe

l
All

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t o

f P
ub

lic 
To

ile
ts

20
,00

0
    

    
Ce

me
ter

y G
ard

en
s

Gr
av
es

Gr
av
e/m

em
ori

al 
ma

int
en

an
ce
/H
&S

 re
pa

irs
6,0

00
    

    
  

Su
rfa

ce
s

Ge
ne

ral
 re

pa
irs
 to

 m
ac
ad

am
 dr

ive
s/p

ath
s a

nd
 ed

gin
gs

12
,00

0
    

    
Ce

ntr
al 
De

po
t (S

win
do

n R
d) 

Co
ve
rin

g
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 

roo
f c
ov
eri

ng
 (E

lec
tric

al 
su
b-s

tat
ion

)
2,0

00
    

    
  

Ele
ctr

ica
l

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

wir
ing

 an
d f

itti
ng
s

5,0
00

    
    

  
Me

ch
an

ica
l

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

ele
ctr

ic 
wa

ter
 he

ate
rs

1,0
00

    
    

  
Ce

ntr
al 
Nu

rse
ry

Co
ntr

ols
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 

en
vir
on

me
nta

l c
on
tro

l c
om

pu
ter

 sy
ste

m/
eq
uip

me
nt

15
,00

0
    

    
Me

ch
an

ica
l

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t o

f a
uto

 ro
of-

lig
ht 

ve
nti
lat
ion

 eq
uip

me
nt

25
,00

0
    

    
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 

the
rm

al 
sc
ree

ns
 to

 G
ree

nh
ou
se
 1,

 2,
 3 

an
d 5

5,0
00

    
    

  
9

Ch
ap

el 
W
alk

 C
P

Str
uc
tur

e
Re

fur
bis

hm
en

t o
f b

ou
nd

ary
 fe

nc
es

8,0
00

    
    

  
10

Civ
ic 
Am

en
ity
 C
en

tre
Dr
ain

ag
e

Re
ne

w 
dra

ina
ge

 pr
ov
isio

n t
o s

po
ttin

g c
om

po
un
d

20
,00

0
    

    
11

Cla
ren

ce
 St

ree
t L

ibr
ary

Me
ch
an

ica
l

Ma
int
ain

ing
 ca

st 
iro

n h
ea

tin
g p

ipe
wo

rk 
(Li

bra
ry)

 50
/50

 fu
nd
ing

1,0
00

    
    

  
Gr

os
ve
no

r T
err

ac
e M

ult
i-S

tor
ey
 C
P

Str
uc
tur

e
Ro

llin
g p

rog
ram

me
 of

 st
ruc

tur
al 
co
nc
ret

e r
ep
air

s
10

,00
0

    
    

Str
uc
tur

al 
ins

pe
cti
on

s
2,0

00
    

    
  

Im
pe

ria
l S

q B
ee

r P
av
ilio

n
Ca

no
py

Re
de

co
rat

ion
 to

 de
co
rat

ive
 ca

no
py
 m

eta
lwo

rk
2,5

00
    

    
  

W
all
s

Re
de

co
rat

ion
 to

 bl
oc
kw

ork
/re

nd
er 

wa
lls

50
0

    
    

    
 

W
oo

dw
ork

Re
de

co
rat

ion
 to

 do
ors

/se
rve

ry 
an
d o

the
r w

oo
dw

ork
1,0

00
    

    
  

14
Me

mo
ria

ls/
Sta

tue
s/F

ou
nta

ins
All

Re
de

co
rat

ion
s t
o C

rim
ea

n S
eb
as
top

ol 
W
ar 

Me
mo

ria
l (G

ran
t c
on
dit
ion

)
5,0

00
    

    
  

15
Mu

nic
ipa

l O
ffic

e
An

y
Ge

ne
ral

 re
pa

irs
 to

 an
y e

lem
en
t

15
,00

0
    

    
16

Pit
tvi
lle
 C
ric
ke
t H

all
Ele

ctr
ic 
Lig

hti
ng

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

lig
hti
ng

 la
mp

s t
o m

ain
 ha

ll (
re-

lam
p)

4,0
00

    
    

  
Pit

tvi
lle
 Pu

mp
 R
oo

m
All

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t o

f m
ale

 pu
bli
c t
oil
et 

fac
iliti

es
20

,00
0

    
    

12 13 171 3 4 6 7 8

Page 97



Pla
nn

ed
 M

ain
ten

an
ce

 Pr
og

ram
me

 20
12

/13
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
8

Fix
tur

es
Re

fur
bis

hm
en

t c
lea

nin
g/r

ew
irin

g o
f c
ha

nd
eli
ers

15
,00

0
    

    
Flo

ors
Re

su
rfa

cin
g o

f B
all
roo

m 
flo
ori

ng
 w
ith
 po

lyu
ret

ha
ne
 la
cq
ue
r

8,5
00

    
    

  
Pit

tvi
lle
 R
ec
 C
en

tre
 C
P

Dr
ain

ag
e

Pe
rio

dic
 cl
ea

nin
g o

f u
nd

erg
rou

nd
 dr

ain
ag
e

1,0
00

    
    

  
Ele

ctr
ic 
Lig

hti
ng

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

ex
ter

na
l lig

hti
ng
 la
mp

s (
re-

lam
p)

1,0
00

    
    

  
Su

rfa
ce
s

Su
rfa

ce
 m

ark
ing

 re
-lin

ing
 to

 ca
r p

ark
5,0

00
    

    
  

Pit
tvi
lle
 R
ec
rea

tio
n C

en
tre

All
Hig

h l
ev
el 
cle

an
ing

 of
 st
ee

lwo
rk/

cla
dd
ing

 et
c

2,0
00

    
    

  
Fix

tur
es

Bir
d c

on
tro

l m
ea

su
res

 to
 ex

ter
na
l e
lem

en
ts 
(ro

llin
g p

rog
ram

e)
2,0

00
    

    
  

Ge
ne

ral
 re

pa
irs
 an

d s
erv

ice
 of

 lig
hti
ng
 co

nd
uc
tor

 sy
ste

m
2,0

00
    

    
  

Flo
ors

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t o

f w
oo

de
n s

pru
ng
 flo

or 
- s

an
d/r

e-s
ea
l

10
,00

0
    

    
Me

ch
an

ica
l

Ris
k m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nn

ua
l B

MS
 ch

ec
ks

1,0
00

    
    

  
Ro

of
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 

sh
ee

t s
tee

l ro
of 

de
ck
 an

d i
ns
ula

te
45

,00
0

    
    

Pit
tvi
lle
 Sw

im
mi
ng

 Po
ol

Ele
ctr

ic 
Lig

hti
ng

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

lig
hti
ng

 la
mp

s t
o m

ain
 & 

lea
rni

ng
 po

ol 
ha
lls

2,0
00

    
    

  
Ele

ctr
ica

l
Co

ns
eq

ue
nti
al 
rep

air
s r

eq
uir

ed
 by

 w
irin

g c
yc
lica

l te
st

1,0
00

    
    

  
Str

uc
tur

e
De

ep
 cl
ea

n o
f d

ivin
g b

oa
rd 

tow
er,

 in
c. 
rep

air
 in
sp
ec
tio
n

1,0
00

    
    

  
De

ep
 cl
ea

n o
f d

uc
tin
g &

 w
all
 til
ing

 ab
ou

t d
ivin

g p
oo
l/to

we
r

2,0
00

    
    

  
Pr
inc

e o
f W

ale
s S

tad
ium

Ele
ctr

ica
l

An
nu

al 
ma

int
en

an
ce
 of

 tra
ck
 hi
gh
 lig

hti
ng

8,0
00

    
    

  
Irri

ga
tio
n

Irri
ga

tio
n p

um
p h

ou
se
 & 

eq
uip

me
nt 

ma
int
en
an
ce

1,0
00

    
    

  
Su

rfa
ce
s

Re
su
rfa

cin
g a

nd
 re

lin
ing

 of
 ru

nn
ing

 tra
ck
 su

rfa
ce
 (C

ap
ita
l W

ork
s)

18
0,0

00
    

  
Pr
om

en
ad

e L
on

g G
ard

en
s

Fix
tur

es
Re

-et
ch
 na

me
s o

n c
en

tra
l m

em
ori

al
12

,00
0

    
    

Str
uc
tur

e
Ge

ne
ral

 cl
ea

nin
g/m

ino
r re

pa
ir w

ork
 - W

ar 
Me

mo
ria

l
2,5

00
    

    
  

22
Ro

ya
l W

ell
 Bu

s S
tat

ion
Bo

lla
rds

Re
ne

w 
bo

lla
rd 

pro
tec

tio
n p

rov
isio

n t
o e

ntr
an
ce

8,0
00

    
    

  
23

St 
Ma

ry'
s M

iss
ion

Co
ve
rin

g
Re

pla
ce
 po

lym
er 

me
mb

ran
e c

ov
eri

ng
 (w

ith
 15

 ye
ar 

gu
ara

nte
e)

9,0
00

    
    

  
24

St.
 G
eo

rge
's 
Ro

ad
 C
P

Str
uc
tur

e
Re

me
dia

l re
pa

irs
 to

 re
arm

os
t b

ou
nd
ary

 w
all

5,0
00

    
    

  
To

wn
 H
all

All
Re

fur
bis

hm
en

t o
f m

ale
 an

d f
em

ale
 pu

bli
c t
oil
et 

fac
iliti

es
30

,00
0

    
    

Dr
ain

ag
e

Dr
ain

ag
e r

ep
air

s t
o p

ub
lic 

toi
let
s (

as
 pe

r s
urv

ey
 re

po
rt)

5,0
00

    
    

  
Fix

tur
es

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

flo
or 

fin
ish

es
/vi
ny
l to

 st
ag
e

6,0
00

    
    

  
Flo

ors
Re

pa
irs
 to

 su
sp
en

de
d t

im
be

r fl
oo
r (c

ate
rin

g s
tor

e)
5,0

00
    

    
  

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t o

f w
oo

de
n f

loo
rin

g -
 de

ep
 cl
ea
n &

 re
-w
ax
 (T

ret
ex
)

3,0
00

    
    

  
Lin

ing
s

Pr
ov
ide

 pa
rtit

ion
s/d

oo
r to

 IC
T c

om
ms

 eq
uip

me
nt 

in 
clo

ak
roo

m
1,0

00
    

    
  

26
Ch

ris
tm

as
 Ill
um

ina
tio
ns

Lig
hti
ng

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
LE

D 
lig
hti
ng

 fe
sto

on
s a

nd
 la
mp

-po
st 
sa
ils

5,0
00

    
    

  
Me

ch
an

ica
l

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t o

f g
ree

nh
ou

se
 irr

iga
tio
n s

ys
tem

s
16
,00

0.0
0

   
Co

ntr
ols

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

en
vir
on

me
nta

l c
on
tro

l c
om

pu
ter

 sy
ste

m 
ad
dit
ion

al 
co
sts

15
,00

0.0
0

   
Me

ch
an

ica
l

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

the
rm

al 
sc
ree

ns
 ad

dit
ion

al 
co
sts

10
,00

0.0
0

   

Str
uc
tur

e
De

ck
 re

su
rfa

cin
g/t

o l
ev
els

 8 
an
d 9

 (to
p d

ec
ks
 on

ly)
18
0,0

00
.00

 
Str

uc
tur

e
Co

nc
ret

e r
ep

air
s t
o l
ow

er 
de

ck
s

10
,00

0.0
0

   
Str

uc
tur

e
Iso

lat
ed

 re
pa

irs
 to

 de
ck
 su

rfa
ce
s

30
,00

0.0
0

   

All
Sta

te 
an

d c
on

dit
ion

 su
rve

ys
48
,00

0.0
0

   

To
tal

1,0
56

,00
0

£ 
Ne

ce
ss

ary
 w
or
k t

o i
nfo

rm
 th

e 2
0 y

ea
r p

lan
ne

d m
ain

ten
an

ce
 pr

og
ram

me

Th
e a

bo
ve
 co

sts
 w
ere

 id
en

tifi
ed

 fo
llo

wi
ng

 re
-ev

alu
ati

on
 of

 co
nd

itio
n a

nd
  re

ce
nt 

rec
eip

t o
f c

os
t e

sti
ma

tes
 fr
om

 sp
ec

ial
ist

s s
up

pli
ers

28
Gr

os
ve
no

r T
err

ac
e M

ult
i-S

tor
ey
 C
P

Th
e a

bo
ve
 co

sts
 id

en
tifi

ed
 fo

llo
wi
ng

 ch
an

ge
 of

 pr
ior

ity
 fo

r c
ar 

pa
rki

ng
 pr

ov
isi

on
 du

e 
to 

ex
pe

cte
d c

los
ur
e o

f N
or
th 

Pla
ce

 an
d P

or
tla

nd
 St

ree
t c

ar 
pa

rks

21 25 27
Ce

ntr
al 
Nu

rse
ry

29
All
 Pr

op
ert

ies

18 19 20

Page 98



 
 

BUDGET CONSULTATION 2012/13 – APPENDIX 9  

Page 1

 
BUDGET CONSULTATION 2012/13 – SUMMARY OF RESPONSES 
 
9 completed surveys were received in total.  
 
Q1.   
Given the need to find savings of £1.15m in 2012/13, do you think the council 
has compiled a list of proposals which is broadly acceptable given the 
circumstances? 
 
    % 
Yes 6 67 
No 3 33 
Total 9 100 
 
 
Q2. 
Are there any proposals for cuts which you do not support? 
 
  Response % 
A reduction in the number of staff - 5 jobs will be lost 1 33.3% 
No Grant to the Cheltenham Arts Council 2 66.7% 
TOTAL 3 100.0% 
 
 
Q3. 
If you have answered No to Question 1, what savings could be made instead of 
the proposals you do not support? 

 
None suggested 

 
Q4. 
Given the need to make further savings in future in response to more 
reductions in government funding where should the council continue to look to 
make savings? Please identify any services you believe where the council 
should reduce, or stop funding? 
 
• Carry out a cost-benefit analysis of Cheltenham Festivals 
• Aim for natural wastage to avoid redundancies 
• Privatise the Leisure Centre 
• Utilise School facilities 
• Stop funding for The Everyman Theatre 
• Sub-let space in Council Buildings 
• Move the Police Station into the Municipal Offices 
• Scrap the brown bin service 
• Senior Management should be expected to take pay cuts 
• Scrap all allowances and overtime 
• No Grants funding for any projects/organisations 
• Review CEO’s Pay & Pension package 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 99



 
 

BUDGET CONSULTATION 2012/13 – APPENDIX 9  

Page 2

 

Q5. 
Finally, do you have any general comments about the proposed budget? 
 
• “Residents would be able to give better feedback if the council made clear 

exactly what services would be affected, or are proposed to be affected”. 
• “Cheltenham is known as a garden town and although understanding the 

need for the marquees in the Imperial and Montpellier Gardens.  We must 
make sure what remains are of the highest order”. 

• “From a distance I have the impression that the council might manage with 
less senior managers, though I would accept that the quality of a reduced 
management cadre needs to be high”. 

• “Keep cutting and improving efficiency, lots of savings yet to be made”. 
 
 
Other responses were received from – 
• Jack Doran 
• Brian Carvell (Cheltenham Arts Council) 
• National Council for Voluntary Organisations 
• Niki Whitfield 
• Liz Penwill 
• Terry Fitzgerald – on behalf of the ‘the boys down the pub’ 

 
The Cheltenham Business Partnership, the council’s Overview and scrutiny 
committees and a focus group of residents were also consulted. Minutes / notes from 
these meetings as well as the responses from those named above are available in 
the member’s room.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



 
 

BUDGET CONSULTATION 2012/13 – APPENDIX 9  

Page 3

 

CABINET RESPONSE TO BUDGET CONSULTATION FOR 2012/13. 
 

1. There were only 16 submitted responses to the formal budget consultation probably 
because the draft budget was relatively uncontroversial and did not raise Council Tax or 
propose significant cuts. This included 9 completed surveys with 6 written responses on a 
range of issues from a number of individuals and organisations. A substantial majority 
broadly accepted the proposals. 
 

2. In addition to these responses all three Overview and Scrutiny Committees considered the 
budget and the usual formal bodies, such as the Parish Councils considered it, as did the 
Budget working Group and a special focus group of citizens, most of who had previously 
been involved in scrutinising the 2011/2012 budget 
 

3. Key issues that arose were as follows: 
 

3.1. Why has £250k of the New Homes Bonus been amalgamated into the base revenue   
budget? 

3.2. Why are we not looking to reduce Council Tax as real incomes drop? 
3.3. Why are we not proposing further cuts in pensions, senior management, politicians 

allowances and staff? 
3.4. The Green Waste scheme needs to be reviewed – it is too expensive. 
3.5. There was strong support for reinstating the verges contract into base budgets, and 

for further funding for tree maintenance. 
3.6. Why do we not ignore the Government and increase Council Tax? 
3.7. There was some concern at the cut to the Arts Council grant made in the 2011/12 

budget. 
3.8. Civic Pride initiatives and proposed works to the Town Centre were widely supported. 
3.9. Some people and organisations believe Car Parking charges should be reduced 

rather than frozen. 
 

4. New Homes Bonus. 
The amount of income from the New Homes Bonus has been calculated for the next 5 
years (the life time of the Medium Terms Financial Strategy) against planning permissions 
in the system and against historical experience. It is not related to any figures that may 
appear in the Joint Core Strategy which is yet to be agreed. The Cabinet opposes any new 
homes target greater than scenario A in the JCS consultation and is strongly opposed to 
the urban sprawl in the other scenarios. 
Given the reliability of the New Homes Bonus, all other local authorities in Gloucestershire, 
including the County Council, have absorbed part of it into base revenue budgets.  This 
year we are taking £250,000 out of a total NHB allocation of £583,000, and allocating the 
residue to two pots of money for ‘Promoting Cheltenham’ and ‘Environmental 
Improvements’ that can be bid into by organisations, community groups and businesses. 

 
5. Why are we not looking to reduce Council Tax as real incomes drop? 

Council Tax has been frozen for three years and in real terms declined against inflation 
and is only one source of funding for Council Services – the others being central 
government support and income from such things as investments and service charges 

Page 101



 
 

BUDGET CONSULTATION 2012/13 – APPENDIX 9  

Page 4

(such as Leisure@ and car parking). Council expenditure has been reduced against a 
23.23% cut in central government support over the last two years.  Income from 
investments has declined as interest rates have dropped. Income from car parking has 
also declined.  
The capacity to reduce Council Tax without a serious impact on services is limited, and it 
needs to be remembered that there are three parties involved in the calculation of Council 
Tax – with CBC being the least significant. At the band D rate, CBC collects £187.12p 
(12.66%), the Police £199.69 (13.52%) and the County Council £1,090.50 (73.82%). CBC 
is pursuing a long term strategy of becoming an enabling authority which commissions the 
most appropriate organisations to deliver services while reducing costs where it can be 
done. The prime aim is to maintain services, but to do them more economically, rather 
than drastically cutting services in order to reduce Council Tax. 
 

6. Why are we not proposing further cuts in pensions, senior management, politicians’ 
allowances and staff? 
Pensions are quite separate from Council Tax. Council contributions to the pensions 
system are being examined as part of a national initiative.  
Senior Management salaries (and indeed all salaries) have been frozen for the last two 
years and in real terms have declined by more than 10%. Last year, all Member 
allowances were frozen up to 2016, and Cabinet Member allowances cut by 5%. In our 
view Council employees have made significant sacrifices and continue to provide a good 
service despite increased pressure on them. 
 

7.  The Green Waste scheme needs to be reviewed – it is too expensive. 
The Green Waste scheme is more than paying for itself, but has not so far generated the 
income that was envisaged when the 2011/12 budget was agreed by Council despite it 
contributing to an increased recycling rate of around 50%. There is a view, forcibly 
expressed at the resident’s focus group meeting, that the £36 charge is excessive since 
the service was previously provided free and as much green waste is taken by individuals 
to the depot as is collected by the Council. The main justification for the scheme is an 
environmental one but in present financial circumstances there must be a charge for it. 
This issue needs to be tackled in the coming period and, if the current administration is 
returned following the May elections, will establish a member working group  with external 
co-optees to examine alternatives and the charging mechanism and level. In the mean 
time, the scheme has been extended to include paper bags in streets where it is difficult to 
collect brown bins.   
 

8. There was strong support for reinstating the verges contract into base budgets, and 
for further funding for tree maintenance. 
There was universal support for the reinstatement of this budget element and the addition 
of £20,000 for improved tree care, but if the County Council goes ahead with its proposed 
cuts to Cheltenham’s highways budget allocation, the service will deteriorate despite CBC 
reinstating its budget. The County Council seems to want CBC to pay for things that are its 
responsibility and we have objected to this most strongly. 
 

9. Why do we not ignore the Government and increase Council Tax? 
The Cabinet believes along with all other Council’s in Gloucestershire, that it is right to take 
advantage of Government support to freeze Council Tax for the next year but is aware that 

Page 102



 
 

BUDGET CONSULTATION 2012/13 – APPENDIX 9  

Page 5

because Government support will only be in place for a year, there will be a bigger than 
expected increase in Council Tax in the next budget round. At any rate, the Government 
still has capping legislation in place and has indicated that it would be prepared to use it to 
control public finances, and (under the Localism Act) increases above 3,5% will trigger a 
referendum. 
In CBC’s case the medium term financial strategy assumes a 2.5% annual uplift which is 
what the Government is prepared to pay. This amounts to c£200k. To increase Council 
Tax to, say, 5% would raise only £400k in total and runs the risk of Government capping – 
and, of course, we would forgo Government support so the whole amount would have to 
be paid for by Council Tax payers. 
 

10. There was some concern at the cut to the Arts Council grant made in the 2011/12 
budget. 
Historically, the Council allocated £10,000 to the Arts Council to distribute to Arts based 
organisations in the town. Last year, given the scale of the deficit, this was stopped but a 
sum of £6k was given to them as a one-off transition payment. Having looked again at this 
and given the arguments expressed by the Arts Council it is intended to make a payment 
again this year of £5k and look at ways in which this can be made more secure. 
 

11. Civic Pride initiatives and proposed works to the Town Centre were widely 
supported. 
Despite the difficult financial circumstances, the Cabinet’s determination to stick to its long 
term plans to improve the town through the Civic Pride initiative is widely supported and 
the Civic Pride reserve has been allocated to repair and improve   pavements in the 
Promenade and a scheme of works to St. Mary’s Churchyard including resurfacing 
footpaths. The view is that income from capital receipts from the sale of Council land and 
capital assets should be reinvested in the town and not used in any significant way to 
support revenue except indirectly by paying off debt and so reducing debt charges where 
appropriate. 
 

12. Some people and organisations believe Car Parking charges should be reduced 
rather than frozen. 
It is proposed to freeze Parking charges for the third successive year. There is a view that 
car parking charges are deterring people from coming into the town centre to shop and 
should be drastically reduced. The Chamber of Commerce is keen for the Council to 
provide funding to commission work to better understand the relationship between car 
parking charges and the town centre economy. This will be supported. 
There are a number of dimensions to this issue that make it more complex than it initially 
appears. While car journeys to the town centre may have declined, it does not appear that 
footfall has proportionately declined with more people walking or taking the bus to shop. 
The over 60’s, who benefit from free bus travel, take special advantage of this.  
Parking charges are not only a source of income for the Council, they are also a means of 
controlling the use of vehicles and consequent congestion, and if people are using other 
means of transport or walking more, then this is desirable despite the impact on CBC 
income. 
 With the development of Portland Street and North Place moving closer there is a need to 
provide good quality alternative parking to compensate for the loss of this major parking 

Page 103



 
 

BUDGET CONSULTATION 2012/13 – APPENDIX 9  

Page 6

facility, which is why the Cabinet is recommending a major investment in Gloucester 
Terrace multi-storey car park and the access to the east end of the High Street. 
The view of the Cabinet at the present time is that while there may be a case for parking 
price initiatives at certain times of the year or in certain locations, the current level of 
charge is not the most significant factor in attracting people to shop in the town centre. The 
unique attractiveness of the town centre as a place to shop and the range of shops 
available are the key reasons people visit the town which is why our view is that 
investment of the kind coordinated by Cheltenham Task Force and contained in this 
budget is the right way forward. 

 

Page 104



Se
cti
on
 25
 of
 th
e 2
00
3 L
oc
al 
Go
ve
rn
me

nt 
Ac
t - 
Bu
dg
et 
As
se
ss
me

nt 
– R

ep
or
t o
f th

e D
ire
cto

r o
f R
es
ou
rce

s (
Se
cti
on
 15
1 O

ffic
er)
 A
PP
EN
DI
X 1

0 
St
ate

me
nt 
of 
the

 Se
cti
on
 15
1 O

ffic
er 

Th
e p

urp
os

e o
f th

is 
rep

ort
 is
 to

 fu
lfil 

the
 le

ga
l re

qu
ire

me
nt 

un
de

r S
ec

tio
n 2

5 o
f th

e 2
00

3 L
oc

al 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t A

ct 
for

 th
e S

ec
tio

n 1
51

 O
ffic

er 
to 

ma
ke

 a 
rep

ort
 to

 
the

 au
tho

rity
 w
he

n i
t is

 co
ns

ide
rin

g i
ts 

bu
dg

et,
 co

un
cil 

tax
 an

d h
ou

sin
g r

en
ts 

(se
e s

ep
ara

te 
rep

ort
 to

 C
ou

nc
il) 

co
ve

rin
g t

he
 ro

bu
stn

es
s o

f e
sti
ma

tes
 an

d 
ad

eq
ua

cy
 of

 re
se

rve
s. 

Th
e A

ct 
req

uir
es

 C
ou

nc
illo

rs 
to 

ha
ve

 re
ga

rd 
to 

the
 re

po
rt i

n m
ak

ing
 de

cis
ion

s a
t th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 bu
dg

et 
an

d c
ou

nc
il t
ax

 se
ttin

g m
ee

tin
g. 

  
In 

ma
kin

g t
his

 re
po

rt I
 ha

ve
 co

ns
ide

red
 th

e r
isk

s a
ris

ing
 fro

m 
it, 

ou
tlin

ed
 in

 th
e t

ab
le 

be
low

, a
nd

 th
e c

ou
nc

ils 
mi

tig
ati

ng
 ac

tio
ns

 in
 ar

riv
ing

 at
 m

y c
on

clu
sio

ns
 

wh
ich

, in
 su

mm
ary

 ar
e: 

• S
up

pli
es

 an
d S

erv
ice

s a
nd

 st
aff

ing
 bu

dg
ets

 ar
e s

uff
icie

nt 
to 

ma
int

ain
 se

rvi
ce

s a
s p

lan
ne

d. 
• B

ud
ge

tin
g a

ss
um

pti
on

s f
or 

tre
as

ury
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
cti
vit
y r

efl
ec

t th
e i

mp
ac

t o
f s

us
tai

ne
d l

ow
 in

ter
es

t ra
tes

 an
d o

utc
om

e f
or 

the
 Ic

ela
nd

ic 
ba

nk
s. 

• A
pp

roa
ch

 to
 bu

dg
eti

ng
 fo

r in
co

me
 is
 pr

ud
en

t. 
• G

ive
n t

he
 m

od
ell
ing

 pr
oje

cti
on

s, 
the

 ap
pro

ac
h t

ak
en

 in
 bu

ild
ing

 in
to 

the
 ba

se
 bu

dg
et 

so
me

 of
 th

e N
ew

 H
om

es
 bo

nu
s r

ec
eip

ts 
in 

the
 M

TF
S i

s p
rud

en
t. 

• T
he

 M
TF

S a
ss
um

pti
on

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 fu
tur

e c
uts

 in
 go

ve
rnm

en
t s

up
po

rt, 
are

 pr
ud

en
t a

nd
 pl

an
nin

g f
or 

me
eti

ng
 fu

tur
e f

un
din

g g
ap

s r
em

ain
s e

ffe
cti
ve

.  
• T

he
 ap

pro
ac

h t
o f

ina
nc

ing
 m

ain
ten

an
ce

 is
 an

 ac
ce

pta
ble

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e f
ina

nc
ial
 sq

ue
ez

e. 
Lo

ok
ing

 ah
ea

d, 
the

 ne
ed

 to
 m

od
el 

an
d p

rio
riti

se
 fu

tur
e 

inv
es

tm
en

t a
sp

ira
tio

ns
 is
 be

co
mi

ng
 in

cre
as

ing
ly 
im

po
rta

nt.
 

• T
he

 le
ve

l o
f re

se
rve

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e G

en
era

l R
es

erv
e, 

is 
sa

tis
fac

tor
y. 

Ov
era

ll c
on
clu

sio
n 

My
 ov

era
ll v

iew
 is

 th
at 

the
 bu

dg
et 

is 
a r

ea
so

na
ble

 re
sp

on
se
 to

 ve
ry 

ch
all

en
gin

g f
ina

nc
ial

 ci
rcu

ms
tan

ce
s, 
wh

ich
 m

ain
tai

ns
 se

rvi
ce

s a
s f

ar 
as

 
po

ss
ibl

e, 
ma

xim
ise

s e
ffic

ien
cie

s a
nd

 pl
an

s f
or
 fu

tur
e f

ina
nc

ial
 ch

all
en

ge
s. 

 
Me
mb

ers
 ar
e a
sk
ed
 to
 co

ns
ide

r t
he
 ad

vic
e p

ro
vid

ed
 in
 th
is 
rep

or
t, i
n l
ine

 w
ith
 st
atu

tor
y d
uti
es
 pl
ac
ed
 on

 M
em

be
rs,
 ba

se
d u

po
n m

y a
ss
es
sm

en
t o
f 

the
 ro
bu
stn

es
s o

f th
e o

ve
ral
l b
ud
ge
t a
nd
 es
tim

ate
s i
n t
he
 M
ed
ium

 Te
rm
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 St
rat
eg
y. 
 

  

Page 105



Ar
ea
 of
 ris

k 
Co
un
cil
’s 
 ap

pr
oa
ch
 

Po
ten

tia
l R
isk
s 

Mi
tig
ati
on
 

Se
cti
on
 15
1 O

ffic
er 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
Pa

ge
 2 

of 
8 

La
st 

up
da

ted
 30

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

12
 

 1. 
Ro
bu
stn

es
s o

f th
e e
sti
ma

tes
  

Inf
lat
ion

 – 
do
 su

pp
lie
s a
nd
 se
rvi
ce
s 

bu
dg
ets

 al
low

 su
ffic

ien
t fo

r in
fla
tio
n?
 

 

1.1
 C
on

tra
ct 

inf
lat

ion
 ha

s b
ee

n a
llo
we

d f
or 

at 
the

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 co
ntr

ac
tua

l ra
te 

e.g
. 

uti
litie

s b
ud

ge
ts 

ref
lec

t n
eg

oti
ate

d r
ate

s. 
1.2

 In
 lin

e w
ith

 pr
ev

iou
s p

rac
tic
e, 

ge
ne

ral
 

inf
lat

ion
 ha

s n
ot 

be
en

 pr
ov

ide
d f

or 
un

les
s 

the
 re

lev
an

t p
rof

es
sio

na
l o

ffic
er 

ha
s 

ind
ica

ted
 th

at 
the

re 
are

 in
fla

tio
na

ry 
pre

ss
ure

s. 
 

  W
hil
st 

thi
s c

rea
tes

 
na

tur
al 

eff
icie

nc
y 

sa
vin

gs
 it 

co
uld

 
lea

d t
o i

ns
uff

icie
nt 

bu
dg

et 
to 

ma
int

ain
 

se
rvi

ce
s l
ev

els
. 

  Po
licy

 re
vie

we
d 

an
nu

all
y a

s p
art

 of
 th

e  
 

bu
dg

et 
se

ttin
g 

pro
ce

ss
. 

Th
e g

row
th 

pro
po

sa
l 

for
 ad

dit
ion

al 
tre

e 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 bu
dg

et 
is 
an

 ex
am

ple
 of

 su
ch

 
a r

ev
iew

 be
ing

 
ad

dre
ss
ed

.   

I a
m 
of 
the

 op
ini
on
 

tha
t s
erv

ice
 

ma
na
ge
rs 
ha
ve
 

su
ffic

ien
t b
ud
ge
ts 
to 

fun
d s

up
pli
es
 an

d 
se
rvi
ce
s e
xp
en
dit
ur
e 

in 
or
de
r t
o m

ain
tai
n 

ex
ist
ing

 se
rvi
ce
 

lev
els
. 

 

Em
plo

ye
e c
os
ts 
i.e
. p
ay
 / t
ur
no
ve
r 

tar
ge
ts 
/ p
en
sio

n c
os
ts 
– a
re 
bu
dg
ets

 
su
ffic

ien
t? 

         
    

 

1.3
 In

 lin
e w

ith
 go

ve
rnm

en
t p

oli
cy
, 

em
plo

ye
e b

ud
ge

ts 
for

 20
12

/13
 do

 no
t 

all
ow

 fo
r a

 pa
y a

wa
rd 

bu
t a

llo
w 
for

 
co

ntr
ac

tua
l in

cre
me

nta
l p

rog
res

sio
n f

or 
so

me
 st

aff
 be

low
 th

e t
op

 of
 th

eir
 gr

ad
e. 

 
  1.4

 Th
e n

et 
co

st 
of 

se
rvi

ce
 as

su
me

s a
n 

em
plo

ye
e t

urn
ov

er 
sa

vin
g o

f a
rou

nd
 3%

 of
 

gro
ss
 pa

y b
ud

ge
t w

hic
h e

qu
ate

s t
o a

n 
es

tim
ate

d a
nn

ua
l s
av

ing
 of

 c£
48

0,0
00

.  
   1.5

 Th
e M

TF
S a

llo
ws

 fo
r p

ay
 aw

ard
s f

or 
1%

 fo
r 2

01
3/1

4 a
nd

 2%
 th

ere
aft

er.
  

    

Th
ere

 is
 

un
ce

rta
int

y o
ve

r 
the

 pa
y f

ree
ze

 
   Gi
ve

n t
he

 im
pa

ct 
of 

the
 ec

on
om

ic 
clim

ate
 an

d 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 of
 

se
rvi

ce
s, 

the
re 

ma
y 

be
 le

ss
 C
BC

 
tur

no
ve

r / 
sa

vin
g. 

 Gi
ve

n i
nfl

ati
on

ary
 

pre
ss
ure

 an
d  

pro
lon

ge
d p

eri
od

 of
 

pa
y f

ree
ze

 th
ere

 
ma

y b
e u

pw
ard

 
pre

ss
ure

 on
 pa

y 
ab

ov
e 2

% 

Fu
nd

 an
y a

dd
itio

na
l 

bu
dg

et 
in 

20
12

/13
 

fro
m 

the
 G

en
era

l 
Re

se
rve

 an
d b

uil
d i

nto
 

ba
se

 bu
dg

et 
for

 
20

13
/14

. 
Ba

se
d o

n p
rev

iou
s 

ye
ar’

s e
xp

eri
en

ce
 th

is 
ha

s b
ee

n a
ch

iev
ed

 
bu

t n
ee

ds
 to

 be
 

clo
se

ly 
mo

nit
ore

d i
n 

the
 si
gn

ific
an

t c
ha

ng
e 

in 
se

rvi
ce

 de
live

ry 
mo

de
ls.
 

Re
vie

w 
MT

FS
 

pro
jec

tio
ns

 re
gu

lar
ly 

an
d f

ee
d i

nto
 Bt

G 
gro

up
 / S

LT
. 

  

I a
m 
sa
tis
fie
d t
ha
t th

e 
Co
un
cil
 ha

s 
su
ffic

ien
t b
ud
ge
tar
y 

pr
ov
isi
on
 fo
r 

em
plo

ye
e r
ela
ted

 
co
sts

 in
 20
12
/13
 an

d 
is 
be
ing

 pr
ud
en
t in

 
pla

nn
ing

 fo
r p
ote

nti
al 

fut
ur
e i
nc
rea

se
s i
n 

pa
y a
nd
 pe

ns
ion

 
fun

d c
os
ts 
in 
the

 
MT

FS
.   

 

Page 106



Ar
ea
 of
 ris

k 
Co
un
cil
’s 
 ap

pr
oa
ch
 

Po
ten

tia
l R
isk
s 

Mi
tig
ati
on
 

Se
cti
on
 15
1 O

ffic
er 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
Pa

ge
 3 

of 
8 

La
st 

up
da

ted
 30

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

12
 

  
1.6

 Th
e b

ud
ge

t p
rov

ide
s f

or 
ex

ist
ing

 
pe

ns
ion

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

n r
ate

s a
nd

 th
e M

TF
S 

all
ow

s f
urt

he
r in

cre
as

es
 in

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

n 
rat

es
 at

 th
e n

ex
t tr

ien
nia

l re
va

lua
tio

n i
n 

20
13

.  
   

Un
ce

rta
int

y i
n t

he
 

ec
on

om
y /

 fu
nd

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 an
d 

lac
k o

f a
gre

em
en

t 
ov

er 
pe

ns
ion

 
ch

an
ge

s m
ay

 
inc

rea
se

 pe
ns

ion
 

fun
d d

efi
cit
s. 

 

Re
vie

w 
ba

se
d o

n 
ac

tua
ria

l a
dv

ice
. 

 Na
tio

na
l n

eg
oti

ati
on

s 
ov

er 
red

uc
ing

 pe
ns

ion
 

be
ne

fits
 m

ay
 im

pro
ve

 
the

 su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 of

 
the

 pe
ns

ion
 fu

nd
. 

 
Tr
ea
su
ry 
Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
– a
re 

bu
dg
eti
ng
 as
su
mp

tio
ns
 pr
ud
en
t a
nd
 

the
 ap

pr
oa
ch
 to
 tr
ea
su
ry 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
ris
k t
ole

rab
le?

 
 

 

    

1.7
 D
es

pit
e p

rev
iou

s s
ign

ific
an

t in
ve

stm
en

t 
ret

urn
s, 

the
 tre

as
ury

 m
an

ag
em

en
t b

ud
ge

ts 
are

 no
w 
ba

se
d o

n s
us

tai
ne

d l
ow

 in
ter

es
t 

rat
es

 an
d n

o i
nc

rea
se

 is
 fa

cto
red

 in
to 

the
 

MT
FS

.  
     1.8

 Th
e b

ud
ge

t a
ss
um

es
 th

e r
ev

ers
al 

of 
so

me
 of

 th
e ‘

wr
itin

g o
ff’ 

of 
as

su
me

d l
os

s o
f 

Ice
lan

dic
 ba

nk
 de

po
sit
s f

oll
ow

ing
 th

e 
Ice

lan
dic

 su
pre

me
 co

urt
 de

cis
ion

 
co

nfi
rm

ing
 pr

ior
ity
 st

atu
s f

or 
loc

al 
au

tho
riti

es
 ba

se
d o

n n
oti

fie
d p

ote
nti

al 
dis

trib
uti

on
 le

ve
ls.
  

1.9
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il a

dh
ere

s t
o t

he
 C
IPF

A 
Co

de
 of

 Pr
ac

tic
e f

or 
Tre

as
ury

 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

20
02

 an
d u

pd
ate

s i
ts 

Po
licy

 
an

d S
tra

teg
y s

tat
em

en
ts 

an
nu

all
y. 

Th
e 

An
nu

al 
Inv

es
tm

en
t S

tra
teg

y, 
wh

ich
 se

ts 
the

 tre
as

ury
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ara

me
ter

s 
wit

hin
 w
hic

h O
ffic

ers
 op

era
te,

 is
 re

gu
lar

ly 
rev

iew
ed

 on
 th

e a
dv

ice
 of

 ex
ter

na
l 

ad
vis

ors
 an

d a
nn

ua
lly 

ap
pro

ve
d b

y t
he

 
Tre

as
ury

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

an
el 

/ C
ou

nc
il. 

Flu
ctu

ati
ng

 in
ter

es
t 

rat
es

 / i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

inc
om

e c
ou

ld 
im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e n
et 

co
st 

of 
se

rvi
ce

s. 
 

 Ac
tua

l d
ist
rib

ute
d 

rec
eip

ts 
ma

y b
e 

su
bje

ct 
to 

flu
ctu

ati
on

s i
n 

ex
ch

an
ge

 ra
tes

. 
  Gi
ve

n t
he

 
un

ce
rta

int
y i
n t

he
 

ec
on

om
y a

nd
 

fin
an

cia
l 

ins
titu

tio
ns

, th
ere

 
ma

y b
e a

 ris
k t

o 
fut

ure
 de

po
sit
s. 

 

 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 
red

uc
ed

 it’
s r

eli
an

ce
 

on
 in

ve
stm

en
t in

ter
es

t 
to 

su
pp

ort
 th

e n
et 

bu
dg

et 
an

d i
n t

urn
 

red
uc

ed
 th

e r
isk

 an
d 

im
pa

ct 
of 

the
 vo

lat
ility

 
of 

int
ere

st 
rat

es
 on

 th
e 

bu
dg

et.
 

Ad
jus

t fu
tur

e r
es

idu
al 

ca
pit

ali
sa

tio
n w

rite
 of

f 
to 

ref
lec

t a
ctu

al 
rec

eip
ts.

  
   Th

e I
nv

es
tm

en
t 

Str
ate

gy
 is
 re

vie
we

d 
an

nu
all
y t

o e
ns

ure
 

se
cu

rity
 of

 pu
bli
c 

mo
ne

y. 
Fo

llo
win

g t
he

 
ba

nk
ing

 cr
isis

, 
tre

as
ury

 ad
vis

ors
, 

Ar
lin
gC

los
e, 

co
nti

nu
e 

to 
ad

vis
e t

he
 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d T

MP
 on

 po
licy

. 

I a
m 
sa
tis
fie
d t
ha
t, 

giv
en
 th
e p

rev
ail
ing

 
low

 in
ter
es
t r
ate

s, 
the

 
bu
dg
eti
ng
 

as
su
mp

tio
ns
 fo
r 

inv
es
tm
en
t in

ter
es
t 

an
d t
he
 lik
ely
 

ou
tco

me
 fo
r 

Ice
lan

dic
 ba

nk
s a
re 

rea
so
na
ble

; th
e 

tre
as
ur
y p
oli
cy
 is
 in
 

ac
co
rd
an
ce
 w
ith
 

ex
ter
na
l a
dv
ice
 an

d 
tha

t tr
ea
su
ry 
rel
ate

d 
de
cis
ion

s (
as
 

me
as
ur
ed
 by
 th
es
e 

ind
ica
tor
s) 
are

 in
 

ac
co
rd
an
ce
 w
ith
 th
e 

pr
ud
en
tia
l c
od
e. 

 
  

Page 107



Ar
ea
 of
 ris

k 
Co
un
cil
’s 
 ap

pr
oa
ch
 

Po
ten

tia
l R
isk
s 

Mi
tig
ati
on
 

Se
cti
on
 15
1 O

ffic
er 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
Pa

ge
 4 

of 
8 

La
st 

up
da

ted
 30

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

12
 

 

1.1
0 I

n l
ine

 w
ith

 th
e c

od
e, 

pru
de

nti
al 

ind
ica

tor
s w

hic
h m

ea
su

re 
the

 fin
an

cia
l 

im
pa

ct 
of 

tre
as

ury
 an

d b
orr

ow
ing

 de
cis

ion
s 

are
 in

clu
de

d i
n t

he
 An

nu
al 

Inv
es

tm
en

t 
Str

ate
gy

. T
he

 in
dic

ato
rs 

for
 20

12
/13

 
inc

lud
e t

he
 im

pli
ca

tio
ns

 of
 th

e b
orr

ow
ing

 
for

 th
e H

RA
 to

 fa
cili

tat
e s

elf
 fin

an
cin

g a
nd

 
rem

ov
al 

fro
m 

the
 ho

us
ing

 su
bs

idy
 sy

ste
m.

 
 

Bo
rro

win
g l

im
its
 

co
uld

 be
 ex

ce
ed

ed
 

 

Pr
ud

en
tia

l in
dic

ato
rs 

are
 m

on
ito

red
 an

d 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 TM

P./
 

co
un

cil 
 

 

  

 

Inc
om

e, 
Ch
arg

ing
 an

d D
em

an
d -
 ar
e 

es
tim

ate
s a
t r
ea
lis
tic
 an

d s
us
tai
na
ble

 
lev
els
? 

 

1.1
1 T

he
 C
ou

nc
il p

rov
ide

s a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
de

ma
nd

 le
d s

erv
ice

s e
.g.

 ca
r p

ark
ing

, la
nd

 
ch

arg
es

, le
isu

re@
ch

elt
en

ha
m 

etc
. T

he
 

es
tim

ate
s f

or 
20

12
/13

 ha
ve

 be
en

 pr
ep

are
d 

on
 th

e a
dv

ice
 of

 of
fic
ers

 w
ho

 ha
ve

 ta
ke

n a
 

pro
fes

sio
na

l v
iew

 on
 in

co
me

 le
ve

ls,
 ba

se
d 

on
 th

eir
 op

ini
on

 ab
ou

t th
e c

on
tin

ue
d 

im
pa

ct 
of 

the
 ec

on
om

ic 
do

wn
tur

n. 
 1.1

2 N
o a

ss
um

pti
on

s h
av

e b
ee

n m
ad

e i
n 

the
 M

TF
S i

n r
es

pe
ct 

of 
im

pro
vin

g i
nc

om
e 

lev
els

, a
lth

ou
gh

 it 
as

su
me

s i
nfl

ati
on

ary
 

inc
rea

se
s i
n a

ll f
ee

s a
nd

 ch
arg

es
. 

1.1
3 T

he
 C
ou

nc
il o

pe
rat

es
 in

 so
me

 hi
gh

ly 
co

mp
eti

tiv
e m

ark
ets

 an
d f

ee
s a

nd
 ch

arg
es

 
ca

n b
e d

ete
rm

ine
d b

y m
an

ag
ers

 fo
llo
win

g 
be

nc
hm

ark
ing

 ag
ain

st 
the

 co
mp

eti
tio

n. 
 

Ex
ist
ing

 in
co

me
 

lev
els

 m
ay

 no
t b

e 
su

sta
ina

ble
. 

       Inf
lat

ion
ary

 
inc

rea
se

s m
ay

 no
t 

be
 ac

hie
va

ble
 in

 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
clim

ate
. 

Inf
lex

ibi
lity

 m
ay

 
me

an
 th

at 
se

rvi
ce

s 
ca

nn
ot 

res
po

nd
 to

 
the

 m
ark

et 
an

d 
loo

se
 in

co
me

.  

Ca
r p

ark
ing

 in
co

me
 

tar
ge

ts 
ha

ve
 be

en
 

red
uc

ed
 by

 a 
fur

the
r 

£1
00

k. 
Re

gu
lar

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d r
ep

ort
ing

 to
 

Ca
bin

et 
on

 si
gn

ific
an

t 
va

ria
nc

es
 in

 in
co

me
 

str
ea

ms
. 

Ke
ep

 M
TF

S 
as

su
mp

tio
ns

 un
de

r 
rev

iew
 an

d f
ee

d i
nto

 
BtG

 pr
og

ram
me

. 
Ch

an
ge

s t
o f

ee
s a

nd
 

ch
arg

es
 ar

e n
ot 

res
tric

ted
 to

 th
e 

an
nu

al 
bu

dg
et 

se
ttin

g. 
Th

e s
ch

em
e o

f 
de

leg
ati

on
 al

low
s f

or 
ch

an
ge

s i
n p

ric
ing

 to
 

be
 im

ple
me

nte
d 

du
rin

g t
he

 ye
ar.

 
   

Ov
era

ll, 
I a
m 
sa
tis
fie
d 

tha
t th

e e
sti
ma

tes
 fo
r 

inc
om

e a
re 
ba
se
d 

up
on
 re
as
on
ab
le 

as
su
mp

tio
ns
 w
hic

h 
tak

e i
nto

 ac
co
un
t th

e 
pr
ev
ail
ing

 ec
on
om

ic 
co
nd
itio

ns
 an

d t
ha
t 

mo
nit
or
ing

 
arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ar
e i
n 

pla
ce
.   

 

Page 108



Ar
ea
 of
 ris

k 
Co
un
cil
’s 
 ap

pr
oa
ch
 

Po
ten

tia
l R
isk
s 

Mi
tig
ati
on
 

Se
cti
on
 15
1 O

ffic
er 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
Pa

ge
 5 

of 
8 

La
st 

up
da

ted
 30

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

12
 

 Go
ve
rn
me

nt 
su
pp
or
t –
 ar
e t
he
 

as
su
mp

tio
ns
 pr
ud
en
t? 

 

1.1
4 T

he
 es

tim
ate

s f
or 

20
12

/13
 pr

ov
ide

 fo
r 

the
 fin

an
cia

l s
ett

lem
en

t n
oti

fie
d b

y t
he

 
De

pa
rtm

en
t fo

r C
om

mu
nit

ies
 an

d L
oc

al 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t (D

CL
G)

 w
hic

h i
s i
n l

ine
 w
ith

 
the

 G
ov

ern
me

nt’
s C

om
pre

he
ns

ive
 

Sp
en

din
g R

ev
iew

 (C
SR

10
). 

1.1
5 W

hil
st 

the
re 

is 
no

 in
dic

ati
on

 of
 fu

tur
e 

ye
ars

 fu
nd

ing
 pr

op
os

als
, th

e M
TF

S 
as

su
me

s a
 fu

rth
er 

5%
 cu

t in
 20

13
/14

 an
d 

20
14

/15
.  

 

 1.1
6 T

he
 M

TF
S c

on
sid

ers
 th

e 
co

ns
ide

rab
le 

ch
an

ge
s i
n f

un
din

g s
tre

am
 

res
ult

ing
 fro

m 
loc

al 
bu

sin
es

s r
ate

s 
ret

en
tio

n f
rom

 Ap
ril 

20
13

. 
1.1

7 T
he

 bu
dg

et 
as

su
me

s £
25

0k
 is
 to

p 
slic

ed
 fro

m 
the

 N
ew

 H
om

es
 Bo

nu
s (

NH
B)
 

an
d b

uil
t in

to 
the

 ba
se

 re
ve

nu
e b

ud
ge

t, 
ba

se
d o

n N
HB

 in
co

me
 re

ce
ipt

s o
ve

r th
e 

pe
rio

d o
f th

e M
TF

S a
s a

 re
su

lt o
f 

ad
dit

ion
al 

nu
mb

ers
 al

rea
dy

 de
live

red
. 

 

    Un
ce

rta
inl
y o

ve
r 

fut
ure

 fu
nd

ing
 

co
uld

 re
su

lt i
n t

he
 

co
un

cil 
ma

kin
g 

ins
uff

icie
nt 

all
ow

an
ce

 fo
r 

fut
ure

 re
du

cti
on

s i
n 

go
ve

rnm
en

t 
fun

din
g. 

Ma
y r

ed
uc

e 
inc

om
e i

f n
o g

row
th 

in 
bu

sin
es

s r
ate

s. 
  Th

is 
ma

y n
ot 

be
 a 

su
sta

ina
ble

 in
co

me
 

str
ea

m 
if h

ou
se

s 
are

 no
t b

uil
t. 

 

    Th
e s

ec
tio

n 1
51

 
Of

fic
er 

mo
nit

ors
 

rel
ev

an
t g

ov
ern

me
nt 

po
licy

 an
d u

se
s o

the
r 

co
un

cils
 to

 co
mp

are
 

bu
dg

eti
ng

 
as

su
mp

tio
ns

. 
  Co

un
ty 

wid
e S

ec
tio

n 
15

1 o
ffic

ers
 ar

e j
oin

tly
 

wo
rki

ng
 to

 as
se

ss
 

im
pli
ca

tio
ns

. 
As

su
mp

tio
ns

 ar
e 

ba
se

d o
n a

 pr
ud

en
t 

vie
w 
of 

po
ten

tia
l 

lev
els

 of
 N
HB

 an
d 

co
mp

are
d w

ith
 

ne
igh

bo
uri

ng
 co

un
cils

. 

De
sp
ite
 th
e l
ac
k o

f 
cla
rit
y o

ve
r f
utu

re 
go
ve
rn
me

nt 
fun

din
g, 

I a
m 
co
mf
or
tab

le 
tha

t 
the

 co
un
cil
 ha

s b
ee
n 

su
ffic

ien
tly
 pr
ud
en
t 

in 
bu
dg
eti
ng
 fo
r 

fur
the

r r
ed
uc
tio
ns
 in
 

go
ve
rn
me

nt 
su
pp
or
t.  
 

 

2. 
Me
diu

m 
Te
rm
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 St
rat
eg
y 

(M
TF
S)
 an

d s
tra
teg

y f
or
 ‘B
rid
gin

g t
he
 

Ga
p (
Bt
G)
 – 
are

 th
e a
ss
um

pti
on
s 

rea
so
na
ble

? 
NB

: S
ou

nd
 fin

an
cia

l m
an

ag
em

en
t 

req
uir

es
 th

at 
the

 Se
cti

on
 15

1 O
ffic

er 
an

d C
ou

nc
illo

rs 
ha

ve
 fu

ll r
eg

ard
 to

 
aff

or
da

bil
ity

 w
he

n m
ak

ing
 

2.1
 Th

e M
TF

S p
red

ict
s t

he
 fu

nd
ing

 
sc
en

ari
o a

nd
 es

tim
ate

s t
he

 fu
nd

ing
 ga

p f
or 

the
 ne

xt 
5 y

ea
rs 

mo
de

lle
d u

sin
g v

ari
ou

s 
sc
en

ari
os

. 
2.2

 Th
e M

TF
S a

ss
um

es
 sa

vin
gs

 / 
ad

dit
ion

al 
inc

om
e f

rom
 th

e ‘
BtG

’ 
pro

gra
mm

e f
rom

 sh
are

d s
erv

ice
s /

 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
s, 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 an

d c
rea

tio
n 

Ac
tua

l p
roj

ec
tio

ns
 

ma
y v

ary
 fro

m 
pre

dic
tio

ns
. 

 La
ck
 of

 fo
rw

ard
 

pla
nn

ing
 fo

r c
uts

 
co

uld
 re

su
lts
 in

 
sa

lam
i s
lici

ng
 of

 

An
nu

al 
rev

iew
s o

f 
MT

FS
 pr

oje
cti
on

s 
ap

pro
ve

d b
y c

ou
nc

il. 
 Th

e ‘
BtG

’ p
rog

ram
me

 
me

ets
 m

on
thl

y a
nd

 
rec

eiv
es

 up
da

tes
 of

 
MT

FS
 / ‘

BtG
’ w

ork
 

Th
e c
ou
nc
il’s
 

ap
pr
oa
ch
 to
 

mo
de
llin

g a
nd
 

mo
nit
or
ing

 th
e M

TF
S 

an
d p

lan
nin

g f
or
 

me
eti
ng
 fu
tur
e 

fun
din

g g
ap
s 

rem
ain

s e
ffe
cti
ve
.  

Page 109



Ar
ea
 of
 ris

k 
Co
un
cil
’s 
 ap

pr
oa
ch
 

Po
ten

tia
l R
isk
s 

Mi
tig
ati
on
 

Se
cti
on
 15
1 O

ffic
er 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
Pa

ge
 6 

of 
8 

La
st 

up
da

ted
 30

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

12
 

 rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s a
bo

ut 
the

 lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit
y’s

 fu
tur

e r
ev

en
ue

 an
d c

ap
ita

l 
pr
og

ram
me

.  
 

of 
the

 LA
C.
 

     2.3
 Th

e c
ou

nc
il h

as
 tra

dit
ion

all
y p

rov
ide

d 
‘on

e o
ff’ 

fun
din

g f
or 

inv
es

tm
en

t in
 sy

ste
ms

 
or 

sta
ff c

os
ts 

i.e
. a

dd
itio

na
l s
ho

rt-t
erm

 
res

ou
rce

, re
du

nd
an

cy
 / p

en
sio

n c
os

ts 
fun

de
d f

rom
 sa

vin
gs

 or
 th

e G
en

era
l 

Re
se

rve
. 

bu
dg

ets
. 

Be
ne

fits
 re

ali
sa

tio
n 

of 
pro

jec
ts 

ma
y n

ot 
de

live
r a

s p
lan

ne
d. 

    If o
pp

ort
un

itie
s t

o 
av

oid
 re

du
nd

an
cy
 

co
sts

 ar
e n

ot 
ma

na
ge

d, 
the

 
Ge

ne
ral

 R
es

erv
e i

s 
pla

ce
d u

nd
er 

pre
ss
ure

.  

str
ea

ms
. P

roj
ec

t 
bo

ard
s h

av
e r

ob
us

t 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

co
ntr

ols
 

an
d m

on
ito

rin
g w

hic
h 

fee
d i

nto
 ‘B

tG
’ / 

SL
T 

mo
nth

ly 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 

rep
ort

s. 
Ca

ref
ul 

wo
rkf

orc
e 

pla
nn

ing
 an

d v
ac

an
cy
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
co

nti
nu

es
 an

d i
s 

mo
nit

ore
d b

y S
LT

. 
Th

e l
ev

el 
of 

the
 

Ge
ne

ral
 R
es

erv
e i

s 
he

ld 
at 

an
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 

lev
el 

to 
pro

vid
e a

 
rea

so
na

ble
 le

ve
l o

f 
as

su
ran

ce
. 

 

3. 
Pr
op
os
ed
 le
ve
l o
f c
ou
nc
il t
ax
 

inc
rea

se
 – 
is 
it a

 re
as
on
ab
le?

 
 

NB
: In

 se
ttin

g t
he

 le
ve
l o

f c
ou

nc
il t

ax
, 

Me
mb

ers
 ne

ed
 to

 be
 m

ind
ful

 of
 th

e 
im

pa
ct 

of 
the

 de
cis

ion
 on

 th
e M

TF
S 

an
d f

utu
re 

fun
din

g g
ap

s. 

3.1
 Th

e f
ina

l b
ud

ge
t p

rop
os

als
 as

su
me

 a 
co

un
cil 

tax
 fre

ez
e f

or 
20

12
/13

 w
hic

h i
s i
n 

lin
e w

ith
 th

e G
ov

ern
me

nt’
s a

sp
ira

tio
n. 

Th
is 

wil
l c
os

t th
e C

ou
nc

il c
£1

99
k i
n l

os
t in

co
me

 
ba

se
d o

n t
he

 or
igi
na

lly 
pla

nn
ed

 co
un

cil 
tax

 
inc

rea
se

 of
 2.

5%
 fu

nd
ed

 by
 go

ve
rnm

en
t 

gra
nt 

for
 1 

ye
ar 

on
ly.
 Th

e b
ud

ge
t d

oe
s n

ot 
co

ns
ide

r ra
isin

g c
ou

nc
il t
ax

 at
 2.

5%
 or

 
ab

ov
e. 

3.2
 Th

e M
TF

S m
od

els
 4 

ye
ars

 of
 gr

an
t fo

r 
the

 fre
ez

ing
 th

e c
ou

nc
il t
ax

 in
 20

11
/12

 an
d 

the
 im

pa
ct 

of 
its
 w
ith

dra
wa

l. 
 

Th
e l

im
ite

d 
go

ve
rnm

en
t 

su
pp

ort
 in

cre
as

es
 

pre
ss
ure

 on
 th

e 
fun

din
g g

ap
 in

 
20

13
/14

.  

Th
e ‘

BtG
’ p

rog
ram

me
 

pla
ns

 fo
r fu

tur
e 

fun
din

g g
ap

s. 
Av

oid
ed

 pr
op

os
ed

 
go

ve
rnm

en
t 

req
uir

em
en

t fo
r a

 
ref

ere
nd

um
 fo

r 
inc

rea
se

s o
ve

r 3
.5%

 
the

reb
y a

vo
idi
ng

 
ex

pe
ns

e /
 im

pa
ct 

on
 

co
mm

un
ity
.  

Gi
ve
n t
he
 su

pp
or
t 

off
ere

d b
y t
he
 

go
ve
rn
me

nt 
in 

fre
ez
ing

 co
un
cil
 ta
x, 

the
 de

cis
ion

 to
 fr
ee
ze
 

co
un
cil
 ta
x i
s 

rea
so
na
ble

 an
d t
he
 

im
pa
ct 
on
 th
e M

TF
S 

ha
s b

ee
n c

on
sid

ere
d. 

  

Page 110



Ar
ea
 of
 ris

k 
Co
un
cil
’s 
 ap

pr
oa
ch
 

Po
ten

tia
l R
isk
s 

Mi
tig
ati
on
 

Se
cti
on
 15
1 O

ffic
er 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
Pa

ge
 7 

of 
8 

La
st 

up
da

ted
 30

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

12
 

 4. 
Is 
the

 ap
pr
oa
ch
 to
 fin

an
cin

g t
he
 

ma
int
en
an
ce
 pr
og
ram

me
 an

d t
he
 

As
se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t P
lan

 (A
MP

) 
so
un
d?
 

  

4.1
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il is

 no
t y

et 
in 

a p
os

itio
n 

wh
ere

 it 
ha

s e
no

ug
h m

on
ey

 bu
ilt 
int

o t
he

 
ba

se
 re

ve
nu

e b
ud

ge
t to

 fu
nd

 th
e a

nn
ua

l 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 bu
dg

et 
(ci

rca
 £1

.4m
) fo

r th
e 

pro
pe

rty
 po

rtfo
lio
. A

s a
 re

su
lt, 

an
 

inc
rem

en
tal

 in
cre

as
e i

n r
ev

en
ue

 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t

o f
un

d p
lan

ne
d m

ain
ten

an
ce

 
is 
fac

tor
ed

 in
to 

the
 M

TF
S. 

Th
e b

ud
ge

t 
as

su
me

s a
 de

fer
ral

 of
 th

e p
rop

os
ed

 £2
00

k 
inc

rea
se

 in
 re

ve
nu

e c
on

trib
uti

on
 to

 th
e 

res
erv

e w
hic

h f
un

ds
 th

e r
ep

air
s a

nd
 

ma
int

en
an

ce
 pr

og
ram

me
. 

   4.2
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 AM
P s

et 
the

 ge
ne

ral
 

dir
ec

tio
n f

or 
its
 as

se
ts.

 Th
e f

ull
y c

os
ted

 
“sh

op
pin

g l
ist
” o

f a
sp

ira
tio

ns
 fo

r th
e 

Co
un

cil’
s p

rop
ert

y p
ort

fol
io 

inc
lud

ing
 

ca
pit

al 
an

d r
ev

en
ue

 im
pli
ca

tio
ns

 / f
un

din
g 

op
tio

ns
 is
 ou

tst
an

din
g. 

Th
ere

 m
ay

 be
 

ins
uff

icie
nt 

an
nu

al 
bu

dg
et 

to 
fun

d 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 
pro

gra
mm

es
. 

      Th
e r

ec
eip

t fr
om

 
the

 M
idw

int
er 

sit
e 

an
d N

ort
h P

lac
e /

 
Po

rtla
nd

 St
ree

t, 
co

uld
 be

 us
ed

 in
 an

 
ad

 ho
c m

an
ne

r.  

Th
e m

ain
ten

an
ce

 
pro

gra
mm

e i
s 

rev
iew

ed
 by

 th
e A

ss
et 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
W
ork

ing
 

Pa
rty

 (A
MW

P)
. 

Th
e f

un
din

g s
tra

teg
y 

for
 th

e p
lan

ne
d 

ma
int

en
an

ce
 

pro
gra

mm
e i

s 
an

nu
all
y r

ev
iew

ed
 to

 
en

su
re 

tha
t th

e 
pro

gra
mm

e c
an

 be
 

fin
an

ce
d. 

 Co
sti
ng

 of
 th

e A
MP

 is
 

un
de

rw
ay

 w
hic

h w
ill 

ind
ica

te 
wh

at 
ca

n b
e 

aff
ord

ed
 fro

m 
ex

ist
ing

 
res

ou
rce

s /
 fu

tur
e 

ca
pit

al 
/ p

ote
nti

al 
pru

de
nti

al 
bo

rro
win

g. 

Th
e a
ss
um

pti
on
s f
or
 

fin
an
cin

g t
he
 ca
pit
al 

pr
og
ram

me
 an

d t
he
 

pla
nn
ed
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 

pr
og
ram

me
 in
 th
e 

20
12
/13
 bu

dg
et 
are

 
rea

so
na
ble

. In
 

mo
vin

g f
or
wa
rd
, th

e 
Co
un
cil
 m
us
t 

co
nti
nu
e t
o e

ns
ur
e 

tha
t it
 m
ax
im
ise
s t
he
 

us
e o

f, a
nd
 

mi
nim

ise
s t
he
 co

st 
of,
 its

 as
se
t p
or
tfo
lio
. 

   
5. 
Ar
e t
he
 co

un
cil
s R

es
erv

es
 at
 

rea
so
na
ble

 le
ve
ls?

 
 NB

: T
he
 re
qu
ire
me

nt 
for
 fin

an
cia
l 

res
erv

es
 is
 ac
kn
ow
led
ge
d i
n s

tat
ute

. 
Se
cti
on
 32
 an

d 4
3 o

f th
e L

oc
al 

Go
ve
rn
me

nt 
Fin

an
ce
 A
ct 
19
92
 

req
uir
es
 bi
llin

g a
uth

or
itie

s t
o h

av
e 

reg
ard

 to
 th
e l
ev
el 
of 
res

erv
es
 ne

ed
ed
 

for
 m
ee
tin
g e

sti
ma

ted
 fu
tur
e 

ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
wh
en
 ca
lcu

lat
ing

 th
e 

bu
dg
et 
req

uir
em

en
t. 

5.1
 Th

e f
ina

l b
ud

ge
t p

rop
os

als
 in

clu
de

 a 
sc
he

du
le 

of 
the

 re
se

rve
s h

eld
 by

 th
e 

Co
un

cil,
 st

ati
ng

 th
eir

 pu
rpo

se
 to

ge
the

r w
ith

 
ac

tua
l a

nd
 pr

op
os

ed
 ch

an
ge

s b
etw

ee
n 

ye
ars

.  
 5.2

 Th
e M

TF
S p

rov
ide

s a
 lo

ng
er 

ter
m 

pro
jec

tio
n o

f re
se

rve
s i
nd

ica
tin

g a
 gr

ad
ua

l 
red

uc
tio

n i
n t

he
 le

ve
l o

f re
se

rve
s o

ve
r th

e 
ne

xt 
5 y

ea
rs.

 Th
is 
ref

lec
ts 

the
 us

e o
f s

om
e 

of 
the

 ea
rm

ark
ed

 re
se

rve
s s

et 
as

ide
 to

 
fun

d s
pe

cif
ic 
sp

en
din

g p
lan

s e
.g.

 pe
ns

ion
s, 

Ar
t G

all
ery

 an
d M

us
eu

m 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

 At
 

the
 en

d o
f th

e 5
 ye

ar 
pe

rio
d o

f th
e M

TF
S, 

the
 to

tal
 le

ve
l o

f re
se

rve
s, 

inc
lud

ing
 th

e 

Re
se

rve
 le

ve
ls 

ma
y n

ot 
be

 
su

ffic
ien

t. 
     

Th
es

e a
re 

rev
iew

ed
 

on
 a 

reg
ula

r b
as

is 
an

d 
ha

ve
 be

en
 ag

ain
 in

 
the

 pr
oc

es
s o

f 
fin

ali
sin

g t
he

 bu
dg

et 
pro

po
sa

ls.
 

    

Ov
era

ll, 
I a
m 
sa
tis
fie
d 

tha
t th

e p
ro
jec
ted

 
lev
els
 of
 re
se
rve

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e l
ev
el 
of 

the
 G
en
era

l R
es
erv

e, 
are

 ad
eq
ua
te 
for
 th
e 

for
thc

om
ing

 ye
ar.
 

 

Page 111



Ar
ea
 of
 ris

k 
Co
un
cil
’s 
 ap

pr
oa
ch
 

Po
ten

tia
l R
isk
s 

Mi
tig
ati
on
 

Se
cti
on
 15
1 O

ffic
er 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
 

 
Pa

ge
 8 

of 
8 

La
st 

up
da

ted
 30

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

12
 

 Wi
thi
n t
he
 st
atu

tor
y a
nd
 re
gu
lat
or
y 

fra
me
wo
rk 
it i
s t
he
 re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y o
f 

the
 Se

cti
on
 15
1 O

ffic
er 
to 
ad
vis
e t
he
 

au
tho

rit
y o
n i
ts 
lev
el 
of 
res

erv
es
. 

Co
un
cil
lor
s, 
on
 th
e a
dv
ice
 of
 th
e 

Se
cti
on
 15
1 O

ffic
er,
 sh

ou
ld 
ma

ke
 

the
ir o

wn
 ju
dg
em

en
ts 
on
 su

ch
 

ma
tte
rs 
tak

ing
 in
to 
ac
co
un
t lo

ca
l 

cir
cu
ms

tan
ce
s. 
Th
e a
de
qu
ac
y o
f 

res
erv

es
 ca
n o

nly
 be

 as
se
ss
ed
 at
 a 

loc
al 
lev
el 
an
d r
eq
uir
es
 a 

co
ns
ide

rab
le 
de
gr
ee
 of
 pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
jud

ge
me

nt.
 Th

e a
ss
es
sm

en
t n
ee
ds
 to
 

be
 m
ad
e i
n t
he
 co

nte
xt 
of 
the

 
au
tho

rit
y’s
 M
TF
S, 
its
 w
ide

r f
ina

nc
ial
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt,
 an

d a
ss
oc
iat
ed
 ris

ks
 

ov
er 
the

 lif
eti
me

 of
 th
e p
lan

. T
he
 

Se
cre

tar
y o
f S
tat
e h

as
 re
se
rve

d 
po
we
rs 
to 
se
t a
 m
ini
mu

m 
lev
el 
of 

res
erv

es
 to
 be

 he
ld 
by
 co

un
cil
s i
f 

req
uir
ed
. 

 

Ge
ne

ral
 R
es

erv
e, 

is 
es

tim
ate

d t
o b

e c
irc

a 
£3

.8m
 20

17
/18

. 
 5.

3 T
he

 pl
an

ne
d m

ain
ten

an
ce

 re
se

rve
 is
 

red
uc

ed
 ov

er 
the

 pe
rio

d o
f th

e M
TF

S. 
 

   5.4
 O

n t
he

 ad
vic

e o
f th

e S
ec

tio
n 1

51
 

Of
fic
er,

 th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 pr
ev

iou
sly

 ag
ree

d 
to 

ma
int

ain
 its

 G
en

era
l R

es
erv

e a
t 

ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
10

% 
of 

ne
t o

pe
rat

ing
 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re,
 or

 a 
lev

el 
be

tw
ee

n £
1.5

m 
an

d 
£2

m.
 Th

is 
rem

ain
s m

y a
dv

ice
. 

 
 

5.5
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 m

an
ag

ed
 to

 de
live

r 
se

rvi
ce

s w
ith

ou
t c

all
ing

 on
 th

e G
en

era
l 

Re
se

rve
.  

5.6
 Th

e c
ou

nc
il p

lac
es

 re
lia
nc

e p
rot

ec
tio

n 
pro

vid
ed

 by
 ea

rm
ark

ed
 re

se
rve

s. 
 

  Ins
uff

icie
nt 

fun
din

g 
for

 an
nu

al 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 
 Pr
es

su
re 

on
 G

R 
fro

m 
the

 ne
ed

 to
 

dri
ve

 ou
t s

av
ing

s /
 

fun
din

g o
f o

ne
 of

f 
inv

es
tm

en
t e

.g.
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 et

c. 
  Op

po
rtu

nit
y c

os
t o

f 
ho

ldi
ng

 re
se

rve
s. 

 
Po

ten
tia

l to
 

inc
rea

se
 th

e r
isk

 of
 

us
e o

f G
R.
 

  Th
e M

TF
S a

ss
um

es
 

inc
rea

se
s i
n t

he
 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n t
o t

he
 

an
nu

al 
bu

dg
et 

for
 

ma
int

en
an

ce
. 

20
12

/13
 bu

dg
et 

pro
po

sa
ls 
ma

int
ain

 
the

 G
en

era
l R

es
erv

e 
at 

c£
2m

. R
eg

ula
r 

rev
iew

s o
f re

se
rve

 
lev

els
 an

d i
nc

rea
se

 
Ge

ne
ral

 R
es

erv
e 

wh
en

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 

ari
se

. 
 Re

se
rve

s r
ev

iew
ed

 
reg

ula
rly

. R
ed

uc
ed

 
nu

mb
er 

of 
sp

ec
ific

all
y 

ea
rm

ark
ed

 re
se

rve
s 

ov
er 

rec
en

t y
ea

rs.
 

6. 
Is 
the

 bu
dg
et 
ba
lan

ce
d?
 

Th
ere

 is
 a 
leg

al 
req

uir
em

en
t u
nd
er 

the
 Lo

ca
l G
ov
ern

me
nt 
Ac
t 1
99
2, 

se
cti
on
 32
 an

d 4
3 t
o s

et 
a b

ala
nc
ed
 

bu
dg
et 

Th
e b

ud
ge

t p
rop

os
als

 in
clu

de
s b

ud
ge

ts 
for

 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

an
d i

nc
om

e a
nd

 us
e o

f o
ne

 of
f 

res
erv

es
 to

 ei
the

r fu
nd

 on
e o

ff e
xp

en
dit

ure
, 

cre
ate

s r
es

erv
es

 to
 fu

nd
 fu

tur
e e

xp
en

dit
ure

  
or 

ph
as

e i
n t

he
 im

pa
ct 

of 
inc

rea
se

d 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

as
 pe

r th
e M

TF
S w

ith
ou

t 
dra

win
g o

n t
he

 G
en

era
l R

es
erv

e. 

Un
su

sta
ina

ble
 

bu
dg

et 
su

pp
ort

ed
 

by
 th

e G
en

era
l 

Re
se

rve
. 

An
nu

al 
S1

51
 O

ffic
er 

bu
dg

et 
as

se
ss
me

nt 
 

I a
m 
sa
tis
fie
d t
ha
t th

e 
pr
op
os
ed
 bu

dg
et 
is 

ba
lan

ce
d a

nd
 

the
ref
or
e m

ee
ts 
the

 
leg

al 
req

uir
em

en
t to

 
se
t a
 ba

lan
ce
d 

bu
dg
et.
 

 

Page 112



 

   

$os0lcwnb.doc Page 1 of 7 Last updated 31 
January 2012 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 7 February 2012 

Council – 10 February 2012 
Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 

 
Accountable member Councillor John Webster, Cabinet Member Finance and Community 

Development 
Accountable officers Mark Sheldon, Director of resources 

Jane Griffiths, Director of commissioning 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Social and community 

Ward(s) affected All  
Key Decision No  
Executive summary In October the Cabinet agreed an outline Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

Business Plan, written in partnership with Cheltenham Borough Homes 
(CBH).   Following consultation and further work with the council’s treasury 
management advisors, the council is now in a position to approve a 
business plan. 
 
This document sets out plans for the management and maintenance of 
CBC-owned housing stock for the 30 year period from 2012 to 2042. It has 
been developed at a time of significant changes in national policy that 
impact on social housing. These include reform of the council housing 
finance system, welfare reform and the necessary development of 
alternative models for the delivery of new stock following a reduction in 
direct government grant.  The HRA is managed by CBH on behalf of the 
council and the business plan will therefore set the strategic direction for 
CBH over the life of the management agreement. 
 
The move from the HRA subsidy system to a self financing regime is to be 
welcomed as it will provide both an increase in resources and greater local 
control of those resources.  We have received the final details of the self 
financing arrangements which will provide additional resources of 
approximately £13.8 m over the first ten years.  This will be used to repay 
debt, invest in the existing stock to provide better quality homes, establish a 
programme of new build and improve services to tenants.  
 
In developing the business plan CBH have prepared a pro-active Asset 
Management Strategy which ensures that stock decisions are made through 
effective business planning protocols.  The Asset Management Strategy is 
one of the key tools, which helps the council and CBH to meet and respond 
to varying housing need and demand. 
 
The strategy is to use the additional resources arising from self financing in 
three ways: 

Agenda Item 12
Page 113



 

   

$os0lcwnb.doc Page 2 of 7 Last updated 31 
January 2012 

 

� New Build – CBC will ask managing agent, CBH to identify delivery 
models for the provision of new housing.  Our aim is to establish a 
continuous programme of new build, recognising that the scale of that 
programme may be restrained by availability of land and affordability. 

� Existing Stock - priorities will include measures to address fuel poverty, 
the improvement of external areas through a continuation of the 
neighbourhood works programme, a review of sheltered housing  

� Services to tenants – CBH will be requested to invest in further 
community development to address issues of anti-social behaviour, 
financial and social exclusion and unemployment 

 
The development of HRA business plan was informed by a member 
seminar last year and by the cross party member housing review group.  
The plan has been informed by the opinions of tenants and leaseholders 
and other stakeholder partners and a consultation exercise was undertaken 
in November and December this year. 
 
The business plan has been prepared using advice from the council’s 
treasury management advisors (Arlingclose) who have modelled different 
debt scenarios.  Their advice is that the plan as presented has the ability to 
service existing and new borrowing, and has sufficient flexibility to schedule 
maturities if cash flow assumptions are not achieved. 
 
CBH will work with the council to develop detailed proposals for each of the 
strands which will be brought back through the appropriate approval 
process for consideration.  
 
 

Recommendations The Cabinet are asked to endorse the strategy as outlined in the 
business plan at Appendix 2, and recommend Council to approve the 
strategy as part of the budget setting process. 

 
Financial implications The financial implications are set out in the business plan. 

Contact officer: Paul Jones, paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk,      
01242 775154 

Legal implications There are no legal implications as a direct result of this report. 
Contact officer: Donna Ruck, Solicitor     
donna.ruck@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272696 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

No HR implications arising as a direct result of the content of this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy,  
julie.mccarthy @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks The key risks are set out in appendix 1 and a more detailed analysis 
is set out in the business plan itself 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The HRA business plan has been developed in the context of the of the 
council’s corporate strategy.  As detailed proposals are brought back for 
each strand of the work equality impact assessments will be undertaken. 

Page 114



 

   

$os0lcwnb.doc Page 3 of 7 Last updated 31 
January 2012 

 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

 

1. Background 
2.1 The previous system for council housing finance had been criticised by local authorities, tenants 

and housing professionals for some years. It was based on an impenetrable and volatile subsidy 
system that was underfunded and redistributive and did not give a stable basis for long term 
business planning.  

2.2 The reform of council housing finance has involved all three major political parties. In 2009 the 
previous Labour government commissioned a comprehensive review which culminated in a 
consultation process with all stakeholders. Following on from this the government then published 
a ‘prospectus for the future of council housing’ in March 2010 as a second stage consultation 
document. This document proposed the dismantling of the subsidy system through a ‘self 
financing debt settlement’. This was accompanied by a financial model to be used for the 
calculation of debt settlements; the assumptions used in the model; and indicative figures for each 
authority. Essentially, self financing enables local Council’s to buy their way out of the national 
subsidy system with a one off payment funded by very favourable borrowing rates from the 
PWLB. The properties are valued and any outstanding debt is subtracted from that value, and the 
difference paid back to the Government, who get a very substantial (national) capital receipt. 
Council’s are then in a position where they can spend their rental income according to local 
priorities. 

2.3 Following the change in government in May 2010 the coalition indicated that it would support the 
completion of HRA reform and carry forward the reforms to a conclusion. In February 2011 the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) published ‘Implementing self-
financing for council housing’. This document set out the methodology, financial parameters and 
timetable for the reforms and contained key financial information so that councils could see how 
they would be affected. This enabled local authorities to begin planning for the start of self-
financing. This policy document was accompanied by ‘a local authority financial model’ with 
indicative figures, a user guide and a report on the model inputs. This was not a consultation 
document as the Localism Bill, which was passing through Parliament, provided for the change to 
be compulsory for all local authorities in April 2012.  

2.4 Published on the 28th July 2011 the document ‘Self-financing: Planning the transition’ set out in 
detail the steps central government and councils should take between before April 2012 to make 
these reforms a reality. It also set out the accounting and regulatory framework that would support 
self-financing. CIPFA published a consultation document which sought to resolve accounting 
issues arising from the introduction of self financing. 

2.5 The reforms will:  

� scrap the current subsidy system through a one off debt settlement for each authority with 
future borrowing controlled by a debt cap.   Rent increases are determined according to 
Government guidelines, and this advice contains the assumptions on which our projections 
are based'. 

� give councils the resources, incentives and flexibility they need to more effectively manage 
their housing stock for the long-term and to drive up quality and efficiency  

� provide tenants with the information they need to hold their landlord to account, by 
replacing the current opaque system with one which has a clear relationship between the 
rent a landlord collects and the services they provide 

Page 115



 

   

$os0lcwnb.doc Page 4 of 7 Last updated 31 
January 2012 

 

� replace the current annual subsidy payment with interest charges on additional debt. The 
balance of these two figures determines the initial net impact on the authority. The key 
variables looking forward are assumptions about future rent levels, interest rates and need 
to spend 

 
2.6 The settlement figure for Cheltenham is £27.881m which is calculated as the net present value of 

30 year notional cash flows of Cheltenham’s rent income and expenditure and section 2 of the 
attached business plan gives further details of the assumptions used in developing the plan. 

2.7 The DCLG reserves the power to re-open the settlement in the future but this is likely only to be 
used if there is a major change in policy which would have a substantial, material impact on the 
value of the business. No further guidance on HRA ring fence will be published we will continue to 
operate under existing guidelines using principle of ‘who benefits pays’.  

2.8 There is concern that the current economic situation and increase in rents using the government 
formula will mean that tenants find it increasingly difficult to meet their obligations.  The HRA 
business plan has been prepared to take this into account and a greater allowance has been 
made for bad debt provision in arriving at the necessary calculations. 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The council needs to set out a business plan for the housing revenue account which takes 

account of the new self financing regime and puts greater emphasis on the management of 
housing debt.  Self financing will provide both an increase in resources and greater local control of 
those resources and the business plan sets out the financial projections.  The plan has been 
drafted on the basis that debt levels will be maintained and that the additional resources, after 
meeting current service levels and essential investment needs, are used for further investment, 
with the exception of a debt maturing in 2013.   

2.2 From the work undertaken with members and CBH board there was agreement that there should 
be a blended approach which includes new build, work to existing stock, environmental and 
sustainability improvements and earmarking of resource for developing the services delivered by 
CBH to help meet current and emerging local needs.  CBH will work up detailed plans and 
proposals for approval. 

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 The council could choose to prioritise one aspect over another but the consultation to date has 

shown an appetite for a blended approach. The outcome from consultation is set out in section 6  
of the HRA Business Plan which shows greatest support for new build and improvements 

3.2 The council’s treasury management advisors worked with officers on different alternative debt 
repayment models and provided advice on the most suitable options. 

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 CBH have undertaken a range of consultation activities over the last few months and these have 

been collated used to help shape the strategy needs to meet these aspirations.   
5. Performance management –monitoring and review 
5.1 The HRA will be monitored through the service level agreement for CBH and through the normal 

budget monitoring procedures.  Given the changes it will be important to monitor the financial 

Page 116



 

   

$os0lcwnb.doc Page 5 of 7 Last updated 31 
January 2012 

 

aspects closely over the first few years to ensure that assumptions made are realised and if not 
that corrective action is taken as required. 

Report author Contact officers 
Mark Sheldon Director of Resources , 
Mark.Sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 264123 
Jane Griffiths, Director of Commissioning 
Jane.Griffiths@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 264124 
Bob Dagger, Finance, CBH 
01242 264225 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Draft Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2012 to 2042 

Background information  
 

Page 117



 

   
$os0lcwnb.doc Page 6 of 7 Last updated 31 

January 2012 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 
The risk Original risk score 

(impact x likelihood) 
Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-4 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 DCLG reserves the power 
to re-open the settlement 
in the future but says it will 
only be used if there is a 
major change in policy 
which would have a 
substantial, material 
impact on the value of the 
business. 
 
There are significant 
treasury management 
implications arising from 
these proposals and it is 
essential that early advice 
on funding decisions is 
obtained.  
Rental income is still 
subject to Government 
policy. The surpluses 
shown are primarily driven 
by rent increase 
assumptions in line with 
current policy. 

 
 

Mark 
Sheldon 

20/09/11 3 3 9 Reduce Any investment 
decision should take 
into account the 
council's current 
view on interest 
rates.  ArlingClose 
Ltd, the council's 
treasury advisors, 
have been appointed 
to advise on the 
impact that the HRA 
subsidy reform will 
have in respect of 
Cheltenham.  The 
council has signed 
up to their Debt 
Allocation After 
Transfer (DAAT) 
service to ensure 
any borrowing limits 
are correctly 
allocated to the 
HRA. 

1.4.2012 Paul 
Jones 

Finance 
risk 
register 

 The  welfare reforms and 
benefit changes do not 
align to the proposed 
changes to social and 
affordable rents and there 

Mark 
Sheldon 

20/09/11 3 4 12 Reduce Set realistic target 
levels re bad debts 
Continue to monitor 
the HRA closely in 
first years of self 

31.3.2013 Bob 
Dagger 
CBH 

CBH 

P
age 118



 

   
$os0lcwnb.doc Page 7 of 7 Last updated 31 

January 2012 
 

is a risk as to what impact 
this may have on the HRA  

financing and 
establish support 
systems and 
programmes to help 
people not on 
benefits from 
suffering financial 
difficulties which may 
force them into 
benefit dependency. 

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-4 (4 being the greatest impact) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6 (6 being most likely) 

Impact Description Impact 
score 

 Probability Likelihood Description 
Likelihood 
Score 

Negligible  1 0% - 5% Almost 
impossible  1 

Marginal 2 5% - 15% Very low 2 

Major 3 15% - 30% Low 3 

Critical 4 30% - 60% Significant 4 

  60% - 90% High 5 

  > 90% Very high 6 
 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 
 
 

P
age 119



Page 120
This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

APPENDIX 2  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council  
HRA Business Plan 2012 to 2042  
draft version: January 2012  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 121



 

Page 1 of 21 

CONTENTS 
 
 
1  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND INTRODUCTION  ............................................... 2 
1.1  executive summary ...................................................................................... 2 
1.2  introduction .................................................................................................... 2 

2  FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS  ................................................................................ 5 
2.1  The move to self f inancing ......................................................................... 5 
2.2  The key variables and our assumptions ................................................. 5 
2.3  Our project ions ............................................................................................. 6 
2.4  Debt profi le .................................................................................................... 9 
2.5  Sensit ivi ty Analysis ...................................................................................... 9 

3  DEBT MANAGEMENT  ......................................................................................... 10 
4  ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY: summary  .............................................. 11 
4.1  Need to Spend ............................................................................................ 11 
4.2  Additional investment ................................................................................ 11 
4.3  New build homes ........................................................................................ 12 
4.4  Further investment in existing housing stock ...................................... 12 

5  RISK MANAGEMENT ......................................................................................... 13 
6  COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT  .......................................................................... 15 
6.1  tenants and the development of this business plan .......................... 15 
6.2  consultat ion results .................................................................................... 15 

7  MONITORING AND REVIEW  ............................................................................ 18 
8  CONCLUSIONS  ................................................................................................... 19 
APPENDIX 1 CBC HRA PROJECTIONS 2012/13 TO 2041/42  ........................ 20 
 
 
 

Page 122



 

Page 2 of 21 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND INTRODUCTION  
 
 
1.1 executive summary 
 
This document outlines our plans for the Council’s housing stock for the 30 year period from 
2012 to 2042. It has been produced at a time of unprecedented change for social housing which 
includes:- 
� Fundamental reform of council housing finance, moving from a national subsidy system to a 

self financing model 
� Wide-reaching welfare reform 
� The development of alternative financing models for the delivery of new stock 
 
Our financial projections indicate that the move to self financing will produce significant 
additional funds for investment in the stock and improvements to tenant services. In the first 10 
years we estimate that up to £13.8m could be available. In the longer term it is anticipated that 
annual surpluses will continue to increase allowing for both further investment and the 
repayment of debt. 
 
Our strategy is to use these additional funds in three ways:- 
� Invest in new build, recognising that that the scale of the programme may be restrained by 

the availability of land and affordability 
� Improvements to the existing stock above the decency standard, priorities to include 

measures to address fuel poverty (particularly in non traditional stock), external areas and a 
review of sheltered housing 

� Increased support for tenants to address issues of anti-social behaviour, financial exclusion 
and unemployment 

 
We have consulted with our tenants and other stakeholders to establish their priorities and the 
feedback will be used to inform both the type and balance of future investment. We have asked 
our managing agent, Cheltenham Borough Homes, to produce detailed proposals for each of 
the above spending areas. 
 
The delivery of our plans will require robust monitoring to ensure successful outcomes and we 
will undertake periodic reviews to identify any changes that may be required as a result of either 
external or internal factors. 
 
 
1.2 introduction 
   
1.2.1 background 
The Council currently owns just under 4,600 units of social housing, split 50/50 between houses 
and flats. All of the stock is at least 30 years old as Government policy has been to direct 
funding for new build through Housing Associations since the 1980’s. Our stock numbers have 
been reasonably stable for the last 5 years as annual losses from Right to Buy sales have 
diminished. 
 
In 2001, the Government introduced the requirement for all council homes to be brought up to 
the Decent Homes Standard by 2010. Following a detailed consideration of the options 
available to us, the Council decided to establish an Arms Length Management Organisation, 
Cheltenham Borough Homes (CBH) to manage and maintain the stock. In 2003, CBH was 
successful in achieving a “good” rating for its services from the Audit Commission which 
resulted in additional funding of £31m from the Government. When added to local resources 
this enabled an investment programme of £70m to deliver the decent homes standard for all the 
stock. This was completed in December 2008, 2 years ahead of schedule and within budget 

Page 123



 

Page 3 of 21 

 
CBH was re-inspected by the Audit Commission during 2007: the Audit Commission awarded it 
the highest possible rating, three stars for excellent services and excellent prospects for 
improvement. CBH remains a top performing ALMO.  
 
The Council has extended the CBH Management Agreement until 2020 and CBH has 
developed its Business Plan which provides a framework for consistent delivery on agreed 
objectives and an appreciation of resources to meet them. This sets out its strategic goals and 
operational priorities in detail for five years and then more generally to 2020. It has consulted 
widely with tenants in formulating this plan which ensures that current and developing customer 
need is married to local strategic priorities: helping to deliver the ambitions in the Community 
Strategy; the aims in the CBC Corporate Plan and the developing Housing and Homelessness 
Strategy. 
 
The main focus of its work will continue to be the delivery of our core landlord services, ensuring 
it is performing to excellent standards and is able to respond to meet changing customer 
expectations and need. Maintaining excellent performance, high customer satisfaction and 
efficient services will be supported by effective monitoring, benchmarking, customer 
involvement and scrutiny, coupled with the involvement of customers to ensure relevant focus 
and service user scrutiny. 
 
 
1.2.2 the future 
There is a large excess of housing need over supply in Cheltenham with ongoing high demand 
for council housing. Our experience of tenancy turnaround and lettings activity in our stock 
suggests continued high demand for all but a very limited number of properties and property 
types. There are, nonetheless, some areas of council housing at risk of changing patterns of 
demand and need which require investment to provide a long term, sustainable future for the 
stock. 
 
Our homes currently meet the Government’s ‘decency standard’ and we are committed to 
maintaining this level of decency into the future. Future investment will be proactive, identifying 
and replacing components and maintaining building elements before they fail. These will be 
identified by the use of stock condition software and physical surveys. CBH will also continue 
the neighbourhood works programme which seeks to improve the external environment for our 
communities. Our financial projections provide for the cost of this expenditure over the period of 
the plan. 
 

We understand the importance of healthy communities and we are committed to continue to 
improve these, and the lives of the people living within them, by working together with residents 
and partners. CBH is a key partner in this regard, delivering services and supporting 
communities to develop cohesiveness and sustainability. CBH carries out many community 
development activities in some of the most deprived areas in the borough. It will continue to 
support several of the key aims as set out in the developing Housing and Homelessness 
Strategy and Corporate Plan by:  
� improving opportunities to engage with education, training and employment  
� reducing the impact of welfare reform 
� promoting safer estates 
� reducing fuel poverty 
� reducing financial exclusion 
� promoting healthy living 
� carrying out projects supporting older people, often with health and mobility problems 
� carrying out projects supporting young people, often with support needs 
  
The Council and CBH have a strong track record of tenant involvement through a wide variety 
of mechanisms including meetings, conferences, focus groups and through newsletters and 
surveys. We are committed to continue to explore new, innovative and more effective ways of 

Page 124



 

Page 4 of 21 

engaging with more of our customers. This contact enables us to understand views and gauge 
satisfaction; improve services; reflect customer needs and aspirations; and increases 
accountability to the people and communities we serve.  
 
Tenants have played a key role in the successful development of our housing services; it is vital 
that this continues and that tenants play an increasing role in shaping both services and the 
ALMO business to 2020 and beyond. CBH will continue to offer and actively promote a range of 
engagement, involvement and development activities that will appeal to the widest possible 
audience. It will adopt a flexible approach to working with tenants responding to local 
circumstances and needs.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



 

Page 5 of 21 

2 FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS 
 
 
2.1 The move to self financing 
 
The Government has now confirmed its intent to abolish the existing HRA subsidy system and 
move to a self financing regime for local authority housing from April 2012. Our projections 
reflect the anticipated impact of this very significant change.  
 
For those authorities such as Cheltenham who currently pay into the subsidy system (£3.2m in 
2011/12), the change will be accompanied by a settlement of additional debt. The payment of 
an annual subsidy to Government will, therefore, in part be replaced by the cost of interest 
charges on that debt. It is currently estimated that those debt costs will be significantly less than 
the subsidy thus increasing available resources. Furthermore, existing operating surpluses are 
expected to rise as the yield from future rent increases exceed cost inflation. 
 
The draft determinations issued by DCLG in November 2011 show a settlement figure of 
£27.881m for Cheltenham. This is derived from a net present value calculation of 30 year 
notional cashflows of Cheltenham’s rent income and expenditure.  
 
 
2.2 The key variables and our assumptions 
 
2.2.1 Base Inflation 
 
Using the retail price index as a measure for inflation our projections assume: 
September 2011 - 5.6% 
September 2012 to 2014 - 2.75% 
Thereafter at 2.5% per year 
 
2.2.2 Rents 
 
Government policy is that the rent for each property should continue to move incrementally to 
the figure derived from a national formula. This rent restructuring should be completed by 
2015/16. Thereafter the formula rent will increase by inflation (as measured by the retail price 
index in the previous September) plus 0.5%. 
 
We have therefore assumed rent increases as follows:-  
April 2012   6.4% 
April 2013   3.6% 
April 2014   3.6% 
April 2015   3.6% 
April 2016 onwards at 3% p.a. 
 
2.2.3 Management & Maintenance costs 
 
We require our managing agent (CBH) to continue to seek value for money in the delivery of its 
services. Our projections for the cost of existing service levels in the early years of the plan 
target, in real terms, savings in the range of 1% to 2.5%. For 2016/17 onwards cost increases 
are currently shown at base inflation but these will be subject to further review. 
 
2.2.4 Interest Rates 
 
The additional debt to be taken on for self financing increases the impact of interest rate 
variations. As detailed in section 3 of our plan the initial cost will reflect both the rate paid on 

Page 126



 

Page 6 of 21 

existing HRA debt and that on new borrowing to finance the settlement. Given that the 
Government is now offering a discounted rate on borrowing for the settlement, we have 
estimated the overall average rate at 4.25%. 
 
2.2.5 Bad Debt Provision 
 
This has been increased over the early years of the plan (to 2% of rent income) to reflect the 
impact of the introduction of direct benefit payments to tenants. 
 
2.5.6 Reserves 
 
The projections assume a minimum contingency of £1.5m. 
 
 
2.3 Our projections 
 
This plan covers the 30 year period to 2041/42 and the full term projections are attached at 
Appendix 1. These give assurances to the sustainability of our plan and suggest very significant 
additional resources will be available in the long term.  
 
However it is more appropriate to concentrate on the short to medium term and the following 
table shows our summarised financial projections for the next 10 years.  
 
These are presented on the assumption that all additional resources, after meeting current 
service level costs and essential investment needs, are used for further investment (the only 
exception being the repayment of an existing debt at normal maturity date in 2013). Funds 
available for additional investment are estimated at £13.8m during that period. 
 
The level of annual surplus is restrained in years 5 to 9 by an increase in programmed 
investment during that period. From year 10 onwards the additional sums available for either 
increased investment and/or debt repayment show rapid growth. 
 
 
 

Page 127



 

Page 7 of 21 

 
Table 1 CHELTENHAM BC - HRA PROJECTIONS 2012/13 to 2021/22 
 
Key assumption - All surplus resources used for further investment  
Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Total 
 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22  
Revenue Account £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
            

Rents 17,716 18,330 18,960 19,613 20,179 20,762 21,361 21,978 22,612 23,265  
Interest receivable 35 61 84 113 101 93 88 83 82 84  
Other income 1,242 1,196 1,227 1,257 1,289 1,321 1,354 1,388 1,422 1,458  
            

Gross income 18,993 19,587 20,271 20,983 21,569 22,176 22,803 23,449 24,116 24,807  
            

Management 6,347 6,454 6,564 6,656 6,691 6,859 7,030 7,206 7,386 7,571  
Maintenance 3,845 3,903 3,961 4,060 4,162 4,265 4,372 4,482 4,593 4,708  
Bad debt provision 225 275 367 379 392 403 415 427 439 452  
Other 151 114 95 76 81 90 92 94 96 99  
Depreciation 5,127 5,255 5,386 5,521 5,659 5,801 5,946 6,094 6,247 6,403  
Interest payable 1,951 1,922 1,922 1,922 1,922 1,922 1,922 1,922 1,922 1,922  
Capital contribution 0 514 593 2,897 3,034 3,113 3,194 3,276 3,360 1,900  
            

Gross costs 17,646 18,437 18,888 21,511 21,941 22,453 22,971 23,501 24,043 23,055  
            
Surplus 1,347 1,150 1,383 -528 -372 -277 -168 -52 73 1,752  
HRA reserve b/fwd 2,712 2,667 3,817 5,200 4,672 4,300 4,023 3,855 3,803 3,876  
 4,059 3,817 5,200 4,672 4,300 4,023 3,855 3,803 3,876 5,628  
Debt repayment -1,392 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1,392 
HRA reserve c/fwd 2,667 3,817 5,200 4,672 4,300 4,023 3,855 3,750 3,876 5,628  
            

Capital Expenditure            

Core 5,192 4,521 4,662 7,064 7,304 7,487 7,674 7,865 8,062 6,717 66,548 
Additional Investment 0 1,383 1,417 1,454 1,489 1,527 1,566 1,605 1,645 1,686 13,772 
Financed by:-            
Capital Receipts 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100  
Depreciation Reserve 5,092 5,290 5,386 5,521 5,659 5,801 5,946 6,094 6,247 6,403  
Revenue Account 0 514 593 2,897 3,034 3,113 3,194 3,276 3,360 1,900  

P
age 128



 

Page 8 of 21 

Key assumption - All surplus resources used for further investment  
Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Total 
 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22  
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Debt forecast            
            

Opening debt 46,609 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217  
Repayment  -1,392 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Closing debt 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217 45,217  
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 129



 

   

 9 

 
2.4 Debt profile  
 
The current HRA debt is £18.728m and our estimates suggest this will be increased by a further 
£27.881m through the self financing settlement giving a revised total of £46.609m. The 
Government is setting a future borrowing limit for each authority at the sum of the current 
notional subsidy debt plus the settlement – for Cheltenham this is estimated as £53,328m. This 
means that there will be borrowing headroom of £6.719m at April 2012 which we could use if 
the HRA can meet the additional financing cost. 
 
Table 2 below shows the profile for repayment in the 30 year projections using the strategy 
outlined in paragraph 2.3 above and Section 3. The initial debt of £46.609m would be fully 
repaid by year 30. 
 
Table 2 HRA Debt profile – self financing 

HRA Debt vs Borrowing Limit

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31
YEARS

DE
BT

 (£
'00

0)

debt

borrow ing cap

  
2.5 Sensitivity Analysis 
 
Our draft projections are based on information available at January 2012 and are still subject to 
significant change which may follow from a revision of the debt settlement and variations to 
interest rates and the retail price index. 
 
The following chart quantifies the impact of changes in the key variables on the first 10 years of 
our plan: 
 
Variable Change Impact on 10 yr surplus 
  £’m 
Interest Rates +1% throughout period -5.09 
Rent Increases -1% p.a. throughout period  -9.71 
 
We have used cautious assumptions of these variables in the projections to minimise the risk of 
adverse variances. 
 

Page 130



 

   

 10 

3 DEBT MANAGEMENT 
 
 
The move to a self financing HRA places a greater emphasis of the management of housing 
debt, ensuring that the costs of the HRA are clearly identified and do not impact on the General 
Fund. In future, the management of the HRA debt pool will be an integral part of the HRA 
business planning process. 
 
Currently we maintain a single pool of debt for both HRA and General Fund purposes from 
which an apportionment of interest costs is charged to the HRA. It is now proposed that existing 
Council debt at 31st March 2012 will be split into two separate pools, one for the General Fund 
and one for the HRA. This will result in an average interest rate of 4.32% being charged on the 
existing debt of £18.728m attributable to the HRA.   
 
The cost of new borrowing subsequently taken for HRA purposes, particularly to fund the self 
financing settlement of £27.881m, will also be directly attributable to the HRA and will not impact 
on the General Fund. The Government has announced that local authorities will be allowed to 
borrow at a discounted rate from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) to pay for the settlement 
in March 2012.  
 
A range of options are available in deciding the future balance between investment and debt 
repayment. Following discussions with our treasury management advisors our strategy reflects 
the following objectives: 
 
� Debt repayment should not prejudice investment options i.e. given the long term nature of 

the plan the Council requires both flexibility for future decisions and contingency for adverse 
variation in the planning assumptions 

� Debt interest should be minimised 
� Debt should not be held unnecessarily 
 
The financial projections assume that debt repayment in the medium term will be limited to 
normal maturity of existing debt. This will enable the majority of surplus resources in the first 10 
years of self financing to be available for investment in new build and the existing stock. 
As annual surpluses increase it is anticipated there will be sufficient resources to continue 
further investment and make significant debt repayments. This would suggest that borrowing 
taken in March 2012 to finance the settlement should have a range of maturity dates from year 
16 onwards. Our projections suggest that all debt can be repaid before the end of the 30 year 
period without prejudicing investment options. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131



 

   

 11 

4 ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY: summary 
 
 
This strategy considers the current investment needs of the CBH-managed housing stock, with 
reference to recent investment (last 5 years), proposed mid-term investment (next 5 years) and 
the overall 30 year Investment Plan which supports the CBH Business Plan. It also reviews a 
related range of strategic, property data and sustainability issues in order to present an overall 
account of the aspirations of CBH in respect of the quantity, quality and robustness of housing 
stock under ownership and management.  
 
CBH has carried out stock condition surveys across 25% of homes in the last 12 months and 
has introduced new Asset Management software – PIMMS 4 Communities.  These actions 
support both the collection of accurate property attribute data and the analysis thereof that 
informs robust property investment planning.  This in turn contributes to the comprehensiveness 
and accuracy of both HRA and Business Planning. Below is a summary of the key points from 
the Asset Management Plan.  
 
4.1 Need to Spend 
 
Following the formation of CBH an investment plan was devised which had at its core the 
delivery of Decent Homes by March 2010.  This target was met in December 2008 and since 
that time CBH has had a general investment programme based upon stock condition data and 
stock investment software which jointly inform the need to spend. In broad terms this can be 
summarised under the following headings: 
� A Neighbourhood Works programme delivering environmental improvements to blocks 
� Works to void properties, including a small number of major voids 
� Investment in non-traditional housing to maintain its integrity 
� Works to improve the insulation standards in properties 
� The provision of level access showers and other aids & adaptations 
� Works to building fabric - maintenance of walls and roofs 
� Structural works as and when needs arise 
� Replacement of boilers and heating systems 
� The replacement of windows and doors 
� The testing and removal of asbestos where required 
� Upgrading and replacement of lifts to sheltered housing schemes 
� The replacement of door entry systems 
� Fire protection works as required 
� Maintenance of digital aerial systems to communal blocks 
� Electrical testing, upgrades and rewires 
� The completion of decent homes works to any omitted properties 
� The provision of transformational improvements to properties within St Paul’s regeneration 

scheme 
 
Through a software programme (PIMMS 4 Communities) CBH is able to forecast the total need 
to spend over a 30-Year period.  This is detailed in full in the Asset Management Plan and is 
supplemented by additional expenditure for items included above but outside of the capacity of 
the PIMMS calculation.  
 
 
4.2 Additional investment  
 
From April 2012 there will be significant changes to the HRA and new challenges for CBC and 
CBH.  It is currently estimated that the HRA reform will generate resources for additional 
investment. CBC and CBH have been jointly reviewing in a broad sense the options for utilising 
this available finance over coming years. 
 

Page 132



 

   

 12 

It has been generally agreed that there are three key themes for this investment, being: 
� The maintenance of a programme for new build homes to address housing need in the 

Borough 
� The provision of additional funding to invest in existing housing stock 
� The enhancement of Neighbourhood Services through new initiatives 
 
 
4.3 New build homes 
 
CBH has successfully delivered the first new homes development of 16 units at Brighton Road 
and is on site with a further 48 new homes within the St Paul’s regeneration project.  Despite 
the setback of not securing Social Housing Grant from the Homes and Communities Agency 
(HCA) in the recent funding round, CBC and CBH remain committed to delivering the balance of 
the regeneration scheme at St Paul’s (Phase 2) and concluding the replacement of defective 
Tarran bungalows by redeveloping Cakebridge Place.   
 
In addition there are currently four garage sites with planning consent for redevelopment under 
the garage site rationalisation programme. 
 
CBH has now been mandated to review options for these sites and to consider alternative 
funding arrangements to capital grant from the HCA. CBH will report back to CBC in February 
2012 with proposals for further consideration. 
 
CBH also has a mandate to liaise with developers looking at other CBC land assets, with a view 
to fulfilling the role of social housing provider or manager. Option reviews will again be carried 
out for discussion with CBC as above.  
 
 
4.4 Further investment in existing housing stock 
 
A key aspect of the consideration being given to programme options is the increasing 
prevalence of fuel poverty as energy prices continue to rise with significant increases forecast 
for the future. CBH is currently reviewing the optimum methodology for addressing fuel poverty 
including the opportunities provided through the adoption of renewable technologies. 
 
CBH recognises that some of the current sheltered housing stock is suffering from low demand 
arising from its bedsit nature. Conversion to  flats is an expensive option and would result in an 
overall loss of units. CBH will, however, need to address the occurrence of bedsits within three 
of the sheltered schemes within the near future.  
 
Whilst the worst of the non-traditional stock is being addressed through the redevelopment of 
the Tarran bungalow sites at Brighton Road and Cakebridge Place, there remains a core of 
‘Cornish’ non-traditional properties that will require significant investment within the life of the 
current investment plan. This is most likely to take the form of a standard works programme for 
Precast Reinforced Concrete (PRC) homes.  
 
Whilst the Neighbourhood Works programme has addressed (and will continue to address) the 
external environment of blocks of properties, there are estate-based homes that also merit 
environmental improvements. The Transformational Improvements at St Paul’s will provide a 
demonstration of the benefits to be gained from such investment and will help inform investment 
decisions for other areas.  
 

Page 133



 

   

 13 

5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Below are general descriptions of key housing risks as identified by the Housing Working 
Group. Many of these risks are shared with our ALMO.   Further details are contained within our 
risk register. 
 
Localism Bill  
� Allocations and Transfers 
If existing tenants are to be given priority outside of the allocations system our ability to make 
best use of stock to meet housing need and support stronger communities may be detrimentally 
affected. 
� Flexible tenancies 
Fixed term tenancies may create a range of issues; they may discourage households to improve 
their financial situation, generating more demand for social housing from those coming to the 
end of their fixed term tenancies, increasing homelessness, and producing bureaucratic and 
costly challenges for Registered Providers (RPs) in enforcing the termination of these tenancies. 
 
As the localism bill is still in development, there is a risk to the local authority in setting its 
strategic direction or policy whilst there is an opportunity for emerging legislation to change it. 
 
Affordable Homes Programme 
� Affordable rents 
If affordable rents on new build and % conversion rates from social rents to affordable rents are 
calculated without sufficient regard to local market forces, there is a heightened risk of 
households experiencing affordability issues, falling into arrears and becoming homeless. RPs 
may experience an increase in void times, with a resulting loss in revenue, plus an increased 
risk of crime/anti-social behaviour in these areas.  
� New Build 
RPs are not obliged to generate new build in this district using any increase in revenue they 
receive from affordable rents. Market forces may put pressure on them to finance new build 
outside the district.   
 
Welfare Reform 
� Local Housing Allowance changes 
If existing tenants that are to be affected by the changes are not aware of the impact on them 
and their requirements than we will see an increase in people struggling to afford their 
properties and conversely an increase in debt issues and homelessness cases. 
� Affordability of the Private Rented Sector 
Changes to the LHA and other welfare reforms will lead to private rented accommodation 
becoming less affordable and less accessible. This will create more demand for social housing 
and will lead to increased homelessness and use of temporary accommodation, leading to 
increased financial costs to the Local Authority. 
� The implementation of the Universal Credit 
This will heighten the risk of vulnerable households mismanaging their financial affairs, as lump 
sum payments will be made directly to them. It is expected that all will have access to basic 
bank accounts. 
� Changes to HB calculations  
Changes on bedroom entitlement in the social housing sector will lead to accommodation being 
less affordable for those under-occupying social housing. 
� Houses in multiple occupancy 
There is likely to be an increase in houses of multiple occupation as under 35s become affected 
by the single room rent, which heightens the risk of lower accommodation standards within the 
district. 
 

Page 134



 

   

 14 

Low income households who do manage to access private rented accommodation are more 
likely to be forced into poorer standard accommodation which will be compounded further by the 
loss of Private Sector Renewal Funding. 
 
Self-financing 
� DCLG reserves the power to re-open the settlement in the future but says it will only be used 

if there is a major change in policy which would have a substantial, material impact on the 
value of the business 

� There are significant treasury management implications arising from these proposals and it 
is essential that funding decisions are taken with the benefit of specialist advice  

� Rental income is still subject to Government policy. The surpluses shown are primarily 
driven by rent increase assumptions in line with current policy 

� There are a range of other assumptions used in our projections which are subject to external 
factors. Timely and robust monitoring will be required to identify variations and take 
corrective action 

 
Supporting People 
The failure to agree a county wide approach to implementing the strategy would result in an 
inability to manage the budget pressures and could result in reduction of services and/or failure 
to provide appropriate and integrated housing related support services.  This would then impact 
disproportionately on the most vulnerable members of our community and may increase 
demand on homelessness budget. 
 
 

Page 135



 

   

 15 

6 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 
 
We wish our plan to be informed by the opinions of our tenants and other stakeholder partners. 
A range of consultation exercises were undertaken in the development of this Business Plan 
over a period of two months in late 2011. Involving people in the decisions we make which 
affect them is important to us. Council tenants have played a key role in the setting up of and 
the continuing successful development of CBH, helping the ALMO to achieve recognition as a ‘3 
star excellent’ organisation.  
 
6.1 tenants and the development of this business plan 
 
During October to December 2011, CBH used a wide range of methods in order to both raise 
awareness of the new self financing model and to obtain local views regarding new services 
and support provisions.  
 
In order to engage with high numbers and ‘need to reach’ groups, CBH used means other than 
the regular Community Involvement events including:  
� CBH Surveys (Repair & Community Involvement)  
� Neighbourhood Meetings 
� Community Development events 
� Community Representatives to survey their local areas 
� Working groups 
� Focus groups 
� Learning Curve workshops 
� Reception areas  
� Community House & Hub  
� Website 
� Telephone surveys  
� Public events 
� Community Centres  
� Customer Excellence Group (CEG) 
 
6.2 consultation results 
 
In total, 591 people responded to the survey during the period of consultation. One of the key 
questions asked of people in the consultation exercise sought to extract opinion as to what was 
the most important way to spend any additional money arising as a result of the self financing 
regime. 
 
Three options were provided and the following pie chart shows the results. It shows the choices 
made by respondents for the ‘most important’ category only as a percentage of all choices 
against that category. It can be seen that there is a clear steer from respondents that both 
‘building new homes’ and ‘carrying out improvements to existing homes and communities’ were 
of the most importance. Building new homes was indicated as most important slightly more 
frequently than improvements to existing homes and communities at 45% and 42%, 
respectively. The ‘more services to support tenants’ option was indicated as being the most 
important the least number of times, gaining a 13% proportion of the responses.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 136



 

   

 16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The following charts show the responses linked to each of the three options. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Should new homes be built, 61% of respondents ranked that they should be built for families. 
This was followed by people with disabilities at 18%, older people at 13% and single people at 
8%.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Linked to Option 1: for whom should new homes be built? 

8%

18%

13% 61%

families
older people
single people
people with disabilities

What is the most important way to spend additional money? 

13%

45%

42%

option 1: building new council
homes 
option 2: improvements to
homes and local communities 
option 3: more services to
support tenants

Linked to Option 2: what additional improvements should be 
considered inside and outside of homes? 

13%

6%

48%

25%

8% energy efficiency to reduce heating
costs security measures
fencing and boundary walls
lighting
other

Page 137



 

   

 17 

Should additional improvements be made inside or outside of homes 48% of respondents 
indicated that it would be most important to carry out works to improve energy efficiency and 
reduce heating costs. 25% indicated that security measures would be most important, followed 
by fencing and boundary walls at 13% and security measures at 8%. Some respondents 
indicated specific works that fall within the above categories, these included: 
� Works to windows 
� Cycle stores 
� Heating improvements 
� Cavity wall insulation 
� Damp reduction works 
� Solar panels to all properties 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The distribution of responses as to which additional services should be considered is more 
varied, with the top five all within a 10% range of each other. ‘Anti-social behaviour’ emerged as 
the most important with 22% closely followed by services for vulnerable people at 18/%, family 
support at 14% and victim support and jobs and training at 12%.  Community development and 
regeneration plus more welfare advice received 10% and 5%, respectively. Some respondents 
indicated that there were other areas to consider, these included: 
� Help with looking after garden  
� Finance support and guidance, e.g. money advice, how to live debt free, learning to save 
� Young people services 
� Childcare support, e.g. breakfast groups, playschools 
 

Linked to Option 3: which do you consider to be the four most 
important additional services?

18%

10%
5%

7%
12%

12%

14%

22% anti-social behaviour
family support
vulnerable people
victim support
community development and
regeneration
more welfare advice 
jobs and training 
annual property checks 

Page 138



 

   

 18 

7 MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 
 
The HRA Business Plan will be monitored quarterly By CBH, looking at variations against 
budgets and reviewed annually, generating a report for the council. It is anticipated that it will 
require substantial review after three years followed by further reviews every five years.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 

2 3 

4 

CBH annual 
review 

CBH quarter 1 
monitoring 

CBH quarter 2 
monitoring  

CBH quarter 3 
monitoring 

CBC annual 
report 

 
HRA 

monitoring 

Page 139



 

   

 19 

8 CONCLUSIONS 
 
We welcome the move to a self financing regime as a significant opportunity for increased 
investment in social housing for Cheltenham. Our financial projections anticipate up to £13.8m 
available in the first 10 years of the plan. We intend to adopt a blended approach to the use of 
these resources with funds being directed to 3 spending streams:- 
 
• Investment in new build, recognising that the scale of the programme may be restrained 

by the availability of land and affordability 
• Improvements to the existing stock above the decency standard.  Priorities to include 

measures to address fuel poverty (particularly in non traditional stock), external areas 
and a review of sheltered housing 

• Increased support for tenants to address issues of anti-social behaviour, financial 
exclusion and unemployment 

 
We have asked CBH to develop detailed plans, informed by tenant and stakeholder feedback, 
for the delivery of this additional investment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 140



 

    20 

 

P
age 141



Page 142
This page is intentionally left blank



D
R
A
F
T

 H
R

A
 B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n 
20

12
 to

 2
04

2 

 
 

 
 

1

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 C
B

C
 H

R
A

 P
R

O
JE

C
TI

O
N

S
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 T

O
 2

0
4

1
/4

2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Y
ea

r
1

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

10
11

12
13

14
15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22
23

24
25

26
27

28
29

30

20
12

/1
3

20
41

/4
2

R
ev

en
u

e 
A

cc
o

u
n

t 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 
£'

00
0 

£'
00

0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
en

ts
 

17
,7

16
 

18
,3

30
 

18
,9

60
 

19
,6

13
 

20
,1

79
 

20
,7

62
 

21
,3

61
21

,9
78

 
22

,6
12

 
23

,2
65

 
23

,9
37

 
24

,6
28

25
,3

39
26

,0
70

26
,8

22
27

,5
96

28
,3

93
29

,2
12

30
,0

55
30

,9
22

31
,8

14
32

,7
32

33
,6

77
34

,6
48

 
35

,6
48

 
36

,6
76

 
37

,7
34

 
38

,8
23

 
39

,9
42

 
41

,0
95

 

In
te

re
st

 r
ec

ei
va

bl
e 

35
 

61
 

84
 

11
3 

10
1 

93
 

88
 

83
 

82
 

84
 

12
1 

16
3 

18
0 

10
3 

16
3 

14
4 

20
5 

11
5 

19
1 

27
3 

32
4 

26
2 

37
5 

45
6 

54
5 

47
9 

68
8 

90
9 

1,
14

3 
1,

39
0 

O
th

er
 in

co
m

e 
1,

24
2 

1,
19

6 
1,

22
7 

1,
25

7 
1,

28
9 

1,
32

1 
1,

35
4 

1,
38

8 
1,

42
2 

1,
45

8 
1,

49
4 

1,
53

2 
1,

57
0 

1,
60

9 
1,

65
0 

1,
69

1 
1,

73
3 

1,
77

6 
1,

82
1 

1,
86

6 
1,

91
3 

1,
96

1 
2,

01
0 

2,
06

0 
2,

11
2 

2,
16

4 
2,

21
8 

2,
27

4 
2,

33
1 

2,
38

9 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

G
ro

ss
 in

co
m

e 
18

,9
93

 
19

,5
87

 
20

,2
71

 
20

,9
83

 
21

,5
69

 
22

,1
76

 
22

,8
03

23
,4

49
 

24
,1

16
 

24
,8

07
 

25
,5

52
 

26
,3

23
27

,0
89

27
,7

82
28

,6
35

29
,4

31
30

,3
31

31
,1

03
32

,0
67

33
,0

61
34

,0
51

34
,9

55
36

,0
62

37
,1

64
 

38
,3

05
 

39
,3

19
 

40
,6

40
 

42
,0

06
 

43
,4

16
 

44
,8

74
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

6,
34

7 
6,

45
4 

6,
56

4 
6,

65
6 

6,
69

1 
6,

85
9 

7,
03

0 
7,

20
6 

7,
38

6 
7,

57
1 

7,
76

1 
7,

95
4 

8,
15

3 
8,

35
6 

8,
56

6 
8,

78
0 

8,
99

9 
9,

22
4 

9,
45

5 
9,

69
1 

9,
93

4 
10

,1
82

10
,4

36
10

,6
97

 
10

,9
65

 
11

,2
39

 
11

,5
20

 
11

,8
08

 
12

,1
03

 
12

,4
06

 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
3,

84
5 

3,
90

3 
3,

96
1 

4,
06

0 
4,

16
2 

4,
26

5 
4,

37
2 

4,
48

2 
4,

59
3 

4,
70

8 
4,

82
6 

4,
94

7 
5,

07
1 

5,
19

7 
5,

32
7 

5,
46

1 
5,

59
7 

5,
73

7 
5,

88
0 

6,
02

7 
6,

17
8 

6,
33

3 
6,

49
1 

6,
65

3 
6,

81
9 

6,
99

0 
7,

16
5 

7,
34

4 
7,

52
7 

7,
71

5 

B
ad

 d
eb

t p
ro

vi
si

on
 

22
5 

27
5 

36
7 

37
9 

39
2 

40
3 

41
5 

42
7 

43
9 

45
2 

46
5 

47
9 

49
3 

50
7 

52
1 

53
6 

55
2 

56
8 

58
4 

60
1 

61
8 

63
6 

65
4 

67
4 

69
3 

71
3 

73
3 

75
5 

77
6 

79
8 

O
th

er
 

15
1 

11
4 

95
 

76
 

81
 

90
 

92
 

94
 

96
 

99
 

10
1 

10
3 

10
5 

10
8 

11
0 

11
2 

11
5 

11
7 

12
0 

12
3 

12
5 

12
8 

13
1 

13
4 

13
7 

14
0 

14
3 

14
6 

15
0 

15
4 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
5,

12
7 

5,
25

5 
5,

38
6 

5,
52

1 
5,

65
9 

5,
80

1 
5,

94
6 

6,
09

4 
6,

24
7 

6,
40

3 
6,

56
3 

6,
72

7 
6,

89
5 

7,
06

8 
7,

24
5 

7,
42

6 
7,

61
1 

7,
80

1 
7,

99
7 

8,
19

7 
8,

40
1 

8,
61

1 
8,

82
7 

9,
04

7 
9,

27
4 

9,
50

5 
9,

74
3 

9,
98

6 
10

,2
36

 
10

,4
92

 

In
te

re
st

 p
ay

ab
le

 
1,

95
1 

1,
92

2 
1,

92
2 

1,
92

2 
1,

92
2 

1,
92

2 
1,

92
2 

1,
92

2 
1,

92
2 

1,
92

2 
1,

92
2 

1,
89

2 
1,

73
1 

1,
59

9 
1,

52
5 

1,
45

1 
1,

29
2 

1,
13

3 
1,

13
3 

1,
08

8 
87

4 
70

4 
65

9 
57

1 
26

3 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

C
ap

ita
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

0 
51

4 
59

3 
2,

89
7 

3,
03

4 
3,

11
3 

3,
19

4 
3,

27
6 

3,
36

0 
1,

90
0 

1,
95

0 
2,

00
2 

2,
05

5 
2,

10
8 

2,
74

5 
2,

81
6 

2,
88

9 
2,

96
4 

3,
04

1 
2,

80
7 

2,
88

0 
2,

95
5 

3,
03

1 
3,

10
9 

87
7 

90
1 

92
6 

95
2 

97
8 

1,
00

5 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

G
ro

ss
 c

o
st

s 
17

,6
46

 
18

,4
37

 
18

,8
88

 
21

,5
11

 
21

,9
41

 
22

,4
53

 
22

,9
71

23
,5

01
 

24
,0

43
 

23
,0

55
 

23
,5

88
 

24
,1

04
24

,5
03

24
,9

43
26

,0
39

26
,5

82
27

,0
55

27
,5

44
28

,2
10

28
,5

34
29

,0
10

29
,5

49
30

,2
29

30
,8

85
 

29
,0

28
 

29
,4

88
 

30
,2

30
 

30
,9

91
 

31
,7

70
 

32
,5

70
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
u

rp
lu

s 
1,

34
7 

1,
15

0 
1,

38
3 

-5
28

 
-3

72
 

-2
77

 
-1

68
 

-5
2 

73
 

1,
75

2 
1,

96
4 

2,
21

9 
2,

58
6 

2,
83

9 
2,

59
6 

2,
84

9 
3,

27
6 

3,
55

9 
3,

85
7 

4,
52

7 
5,

04
1 

5,
40

6 
5,

88
3 

6,
27

9 
9,

27
7 

9,
83

1 
10

,4
10

 
11

,0
15

 
11

,6
46

 
12

,3
04

 

H
R

A
 r

es
er

ve
 b

/fw
d 

2,
71

2 
2,

66
7 

3,
81

7 
5,

20
0 

4,
67

2 
4,

30
0 

4,
02

3 
3,

85
5 

3,
80

3 
3,

87
6 

5,
62

8 
7,

59
2 

8,
41

9 
4,

80
9 

7,
64

8 
6,

76
3 

9,
61

2 
5,

38
8 

8,
94

7 
12

,8
04

15
,2

42
12

,2
83

17
,6

89
21

,4
33

 
25

,6
23

 
22

,5
19

 
32

,3
50

 
42

,7
60

 
53

,7
75

 
65

,4
21

 

4,
05

9 
3,

81
7 

5,
20

0 
4,

67
2 

4,
30

0 
4,

02
3 

3,
85

5 
3,

80
3 

3,
87

6 
5,

62
8 

7,
59

2 
9,

81
1 

11
,0

05
7,

64
8 

10
,2

44
9,

61
2 

12
,8

88
8,

94
7 

12
,8

04
17

,3
31

20
,2

83
17

,6
89

23
,5

22
27

,7
12

 
34

,9
00

 
32

,3
50

 
42

,7
60

 
53

,7
75

 
65

,4
21

 
77

,7
25

 

D
eb

t 
re

p
ay

m
en

t 
-1

,3
92

 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
-1

,3
92

-6
,1

96
0 

-3
,4

81
0 

-7
,5

00
0 

0 
-2

,0
89

-8
,0

00
0 

-2
,0

89
-2

,0
89

 
-1

2,
38

1 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

H
R

A
 r

es
er

ve
 c

/fw
d 

2,
66

7 
3,

81
7 

5,
20

0 
4,

67
2 

4,
30

0 
4,

02
3 

3,
85

5 
3,

80
3 

3,
87

6 
5,

62
8 

7,
59

2 
8,

41
9 

4,
80

9 
7,

64
8 

6,
76

3 
9,

61
2 

5,
38

8 
8,

94
7 

12
,8

04
15

,2
42

12
,2

83
17

,6
89

21
,4

33
25

,6
23

 
22

,5
19

 
32

,3
50

 
42

,7
60

 
53

,7
75

 
65

,4
21

 
77

,7
25

 

Page 143



Page 144
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

 Page 1 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2012 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 7 February 2012 
Council – 10 February 2012 

Housing Revenue Account - Revised Budget 2011/12 and Final 
Budget Proposals 2012/13 for Consultation 

 
Accountable member Cabinet Member for Community Development and Finance, John 

Webster 
Accountable officer Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer), Mark Sheldon 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Social and Community  

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes 
Executive summary This report summarises the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) revised 

budget for 2011/12 and the Cabinet’s final budget proposals for 
2012/13 for consultation. 

Recommendations 1. Note the revised HRA budget and capital programme for 
2011/12. 

2. Approve the 2012/13 HRA budget  including a proposed average 
rent increase of 6.43% (applied in accordance with rent 
restructuring guidelines) and increases in other rents and 
charges as detailed at Appendix 5. 

3. Approve the 2012/13 management fees and charges for 
Cheltenham Borough Homes as detailed in Section 4. 

4. Approve the 2012/13 HRA capital programme at Appendix 6. 
 
Financial implications As contained in the report and appendices. 

Contact officer: Mark Sheldon.  
E-mail: mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264123 

Agenda Item 13
Page 145



 

   

 Page 2 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2012 
 

Legal implications The Council cannot approve an HRA budget which would lead to an 
overall deficit on the account. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis 
E-mail: peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

No direct HR implications arising from this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy 
E-mail: julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264355 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The aim of the budget proposals is to direct resources towards the key 
priorities identified in the Council’s Corporate Business Plan. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The budget contains proposals for improving the local environment 
particularly in addressing the issue of energy reduction in Council owned 
dwellings 

  
 

1        Background 
1.1 The draft revenue budgets approved by Cabinet on 13th December 2011 have been amended as 

follows:- 
• Forecast interest costs have been reduced by £112,000 to reflect updated estimates of 

interest rates on the additional debt for the self financing settlement 
• It has been assumed that existing supporting people contracts will be extended to 30th 

September 2012 whilst alternative delivery models are evaluated, giving additional income 
of £75,000 

• Allowance has been made for the repayment of an existing loan which is due to mature in 
February 2013. This will reduce the reserve balance carried forward by £1,392,000 

1.2 It should be noted that the budget proposals are based on draft determinations from the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) which will not be confirmed until late 
January 2012. 

1.3 The budget proposals for 2012/13 recognise the scrapping of the current HRA subsidy system 
and the introduction of a new self financing regime for local authority housing. The Cabinet 
previously approved for consultation the first draft of a new 30 year HRA business plan which 
identifies the impact of this fundamental change. A final draft of the plan is presented at agenda 
item 8. This forecasts significant additional resources arising from self financing and recommends 
the use of those funds to finance programmes of new build, further improvements to existing 
stock and additional support services for tenants.  

Page 146



 

   

 Page 3 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2012 
 

2. 2011/12 Revised Budget 
2.1 The revised budget at Appendix 2 shows a reduction in deficit of £130,900 compared to the 

original estimate. Balances held in reserve were increased by an additional £684,200 following 
the 2010/11 outturn and the revised deficit for the year of £961,400 will leave a figure of 
£2,711,800 at 31st March 2012 (previously £1,896,700). This increase in reserves reflects 
£325,100 of additional resources and a further £490,000 which arises from deferred capital 
expenditure which will be required in 2012/13. 

2.2 Significant variations have been identified in budget monitoring reports and are summarised 
below:-   
Budget Heading Change in 

resources 
 £’000 

  
Reduction in revenue contributions required to fund capital 

programme 
139 

Reduction in interest payable (change in interest rates) 48 
Increase in HRA subsidy payable (change in interest rates) -66 
Additional interest receivable (impact of higher reserves) 19 
Other net -9 
  
Net Reduction in Deficit 131 

                                                                                                                                                  
3. 2012/13 Budget 
3.1 The Government published a series of draft determinations on 21st November 2011 which will 

enable the introduction of self financing from 1st April 2012. These included:- 
• a final review of notional rent and expenditure allowances to produce baseline figures for 

the valuation and debt settlement 
• a revised valuation model which uses the baseline data as uplifted for self financing 

calculations 
• a debt settlement for each authority to leave the subsidy system and the subsequent HRA 

borrowing cap                                                                                                                 
 
3.2 The draft HRA business plan anticipated a debt settlement of £38.4m for Cheltenham on the 

basis of previous DCLG projections, a higher than expected rent increase in April 2012 and a 
contingency for an adverse review of subsidy allowances. However, the draft determinations 
show that the south west region has again been treated favourably in the annual review and the 
settlement figure is reduced to £27.9m. This is very welcome news which will increase the level of 
additional resources arising from self financing. 
 

3.3 The baseline determination for 2012/13 shows an increase in guideline rent of 7.5% for 
Cheltenham. Government social rent policy uses the retail price index in the preceding September 
plus 0.5% to uplift the formula rent for the following financial year. In September 2011 this was 
5.6% so formula rents will be increased by 6.1% for 2012/13.  

 
           Rent restructuring, which will bring convergence between local authorities and housing 

associations, is still timetabled to complete in 2015/16. For Cheltenham tenants this will result in 
an average rent increase of 6.43% from April 2012 as illustrated by Appendices 4 and 5. This 
significant increase will be of concern to our tenants already facing other inflationary pressures in 
the economy but is effectively imposed on us by Government and has been assumed by them in 
both stock valuation and debt settlement calculations. 

 

Page 147



 

   

 Page 4 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2012 
 

3.4 The draft determination also includes increases in the baseline management, maintenance and 
major repair allowances which partly offset the increase in guideline rent. The changes proposed 
to individual elements are shown below:- 

 
Element of Subsidy % change  
Management Allowance +1.9% 
Maintenance Allowance +5.8% 
Major Repairs Allowance +4.9% 
Guideline Rent Income +7.5% 

 
3.5 The baseline figures for allowances are uplifted to reflect perceived under-funding before being 

used in a 30 year net present value model of notional income and expenditure. This produces a 
valuation of the stock for each authority which forms the basis of the debt settlement. 
 
Cheltenham’s allowances have been increased by an overall average of 17.94%, including a 
substantial increase in the major repairs allowance of 39%. The valuation is £53.3m which, after 
deducting the current notional debt of £25.4m, produces the debt settlement of £27.9m. The 
valuation figure of £53.3m will also be the HRA borrowing cap – this compares to actual HRA 
borrowing after settlement of £46.6m giving initial borrowing headroom of £6.7m. 

3.6 Significant changes to the HRA in 2012/13 as compared to the revised estimates for 2011/12 are 
itemised in the table below. These reflect the saving of the annual subsidy payment partly offset 
by additional debt charges from the settlement. Although the charge for depreciation increases, 
this will in turn reduce the need for revenue contributions to finance capital expenditure. The net 
impact is an increase in resources of £2,308,000 producing a surplus of £1,346,600 for the year.   

 
 
Budget Heading Change in 

resources 
 £’000 
HRA subsidy (system scrapped) 3,278 
Revenue contributions to capital (now covered by MRA increase) 1,448 
Increase in rents  1,058 
Savings in reactive & cyclical repairs (service review by CBH) 108 
  
Interest payable (additional costs of debt settlement) -1,423 
Depreciation of dwellings (based on uplifted major repairs 
allowance) 

-1,886 
Supporting people funding (end of contract) -75 
Increase in CBH management fee (including growth proposals) -184 
Interest receivable (lower interest rates) -52 
  
Other (net) 36 
  
Net increase 2,308 

 
 
3.7 Key assumptions used for the budget are:- 

• Interest payable is based on an estimated rate of 4.1% on new borrowing for the 
settlement payment of £27.9m. The Government have confirmed that Councils will have 
access to a discounted Public Works Loan Board rate for these payments. Advice has 
been sought from Arlingclose on the most effective debt management strategy. 

Page 148



 

   

 Page 5 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2012 
 

• Existing supporting people contracts expire on 31st March 2012. Options for the 
continuation of the service are being evaluated but at present the draft budget only 
assumes income from the current contract to 30th September 2012. 

• The Government has announced intent to stimulate Right to Buy sales by increasing 
discounts available to tenants. A consultation document outlining a range of options for 
delivering this policy has been published but the potential impact will remain unclear until 
the Government confirms its favoured approach. Stock estimates used in the budget 
assume 5 sales in 2012/13 based on existing trends. 

• Support service recharges to the HRA are kept at 2011/12 levels. 
 

3.8 For some years the Council has maintained a Housing Repairs Account (Appendix 3) which aims 
to smooth out the peaks and troughs of demand related maintenance expenditure by keeping a 
separate earmarked reserve. The introduction of self financing reduces the need for such an 
account and it is recommended that it is closed at 31st March 2012. Maintenance expenditure will 
then be charged direct to the HRA.  

3.9 The Government has confirmed that the depreciation charge in the HRA will continue to provide a 
resource to finance capital expenditure through the major repairs reserve (Appendix 3). Councils 
can use the uplifted major repairs allowance from the self financing valuation as a proxy for the 
level of depreciation for a period of up to five years, whilst preparing for the introduction of 
component accounting in accordance with accounting standards.  

3.10 Appendix 4 gives details of the progress in rent restructuring to date and projects rent increases 
forward to the current convergence date of 2015/16 using an estimated RPI of 2.75% per annum.   

3.11 Appendix 5 details the proposed average rent for 2012/13 with recommended charges for other 
services. Gas charges for communal heating schemes will be increased by 10% to reflect 
anticipated fuel increases and there will be a 20% increase towards the cost of the electric fuelled 
scheme at Cumming Court. This report contains proposals to reduce energy usage consumption 
in the stock which will help tenants facing rising fuel prices (see paragraph 4.2 below).  Provision 
has been included for a 3% increase in garage rents to reflect both inflation and fund a significant 
improvement programme in garage sites. 

3.12 Estimates of service charge income assume an increase of 7.7% for communal power and 2.1% 
for grounds maintenance. Cleaning costs will be reduced by 5% following service efficiencies 
offered by CBH.       

 
4. Cheltenham Borough Homes (CBH) 
  
4.1  The budget includes provision for the management fees and other charges payable to CBH. The 

company has submitted its own detailed budget and fee proposal for 2012/13.  
 
4.2      CBH has identified three areas of service development for 2012/13 which align with the draft HRA 

business plan strategy. The growth bids are:- 
• Enhanced safer estates service (£80,000) 
• Project to identify and evaluate fuel reduction proposals (£40,000) 
• Improvements in health and safety management, particularly fire, asbestos and legionella 

(£40,000) 
• Additional arrears officer to help with financial exclusion and debt management  thus 

mitigating anticipated increases in arrears from benefit reform (£30,000) 
 

Total bids amount to £190,000 but are largely offset within the HRA by net CBH savings of 
£134,700 in base fee proposals. 

 
4.3      CBH budgets for 2012/13 show a breakeven position whilst reducing base fees and charges to 

the Council from 2011/12 levels. The HRA management fee for 2012/13 shows a saving of 
£18,800 when compared to the planning estimate for the year and the fee for managing the 

Page 149



 

   

 Page 6 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2012 
 

capital programme is kept cash frozen. The overall cost of reactive repairs to the stock is reduced 
by £81,600 following a comprehensive review of the maintenance operation. This has produced 
savings of £167,600 which have been partly offset by the increased price and usage of materials. 
The cost of delivering the estate cleaning contract has also been reduced by £34,300 through 
service efficiencies. 

 
4.4  The fee submission for the main areas of activity is shown below and compared with 2011/12.  
 

 2011/12       
(Revised) 

2012/13 
 £ £ 
Management Fee  4,330,200 4,514,500 
   
Revenue & Capital Repairs 2,414,200 2,332,600 
   
Management of Capital 
Programme 

405,000 405,000 
Block Cleaning Service 310,700 276,400 
   
Total  7,460,100 7,528,500 

  
 

 
5.         HRA Capital Programme 

 
5.1       The revised programme for 2011/12 and proposals for 2012/13 are shown at Appendix 6, 

together with a more detailed schedule of improvement and repair works at Appendix 7. 
 
5.2       The revised estimates for the current year reflect changes identified in budget monitoring reports. 

Estimated spend in year will increase from £4,828,000 to £4,989,000 primarily due to 
rescheduling of works on the transformational improvements in St Pauls and the neighbourhood 
scheme for Hobart House.  

 
5.3       The strategy in the HRA business plan seeks a balance of future expenditure on both new build 

and further improvements to existing stock. CBH is currently evaluating options for a new build 
programme and a report will be produced early next year. A project to evaluate fuel reduction 
proposals will also enable targeted capital expenditure plans. Both the increased level of HRA 
reserves and the availability of borrowing headroom will give the Council significant scope to 
finance these initiatives. 

 
5.4       The 2012/13 programme reflects the need to spend identified in the stock condition database and 

includes provision for works delayed in the current year. This will retain all stock to decency 
standard and provide further neighbourhood improvements through external works. 

 
 
6.        Consultation process 

6.1      The draft budget proposals approved by Cabinet on 13th December 2012 have been endorsed by 
the Board of Cheltenham Borough Homes Ltd. No further comments have been received 

7. Budget Assessment of the Section 151 Officer 
 
7.1 Under Section 25 of the 2003 Local Government Act, there is a legal requirement for the Section 

151 Officer to make a report to the authority when it is considering its budget, council tax and 
housing rents covering the robustness of estimates and adequacy of reserves. The Act requires 

Page 150



 

   

 Page 7 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2012 
 

Councillors to have regard to the report in making decisions at the Council’s budget and council 
tax setting meeting.  

 
7.2 Traditionally this has been a separate report to council but, following a review by the Budget 

Working Group, it was recommended that a more succinct assessment be incorporated in the 
main budget report.  

 
7.3 In responding to this request my assessment of the HRA budget are: 
 
• The estimates have been prepared on the advice of professional officers; allow for inflation; are 

prudent and are sufficient to provide the level of services planned for 2012/13. 
 
• The HRA Budget proposals for 2012/13 reflect the impact of the changes to Council Housing 

finance included in the Localism Act 2011. This scraps the existing HRA subsidy system in favour 
of a self financing regime. Local authorities currently paying subsidy will be required to take on 
additional debt to leave the subsidy system. The Council has prepared a new 30 year HRA 
Business Plan which forecasts substantial additional resources may arise from the move to self 
financing and proposes a strategy to use those funds. Although the plan relies on long term 
forecasts of a range of variables, these have been estimated cautiously to allow contingency for 
adverse variances. This plan will be subjected to robust monitoring and periodic review. 

 
• The budget for 2012/13 shows a significant increase in surplus for the year and forecasts a 

balance in reserves at 31st March 2013 of £2.67m.after allowing for the repayment of an existing 
loan of £1.39m. This balance is well above the minimum contingency of £1.5m recommended in 
the business plan and represents a satisfactory position. 

 
• The proposals for housing rent levels comply with the governments restructuring plans.  

 

Report author Bob Dagger, Strategic Financial Advisor, Cheltenham Borough 
Homes 
Tel. 01242 264225;   
e-mail address bob.dagger@cheltborohomes.org 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2   HRA Operating Account 
3   Housing Repairs Account and Major Repairs Reserve 
4   Rent Restructuring 
5   HRA – Rents and Charges 
6   HRA Capital programme (Summary) 
7   HRA Capital Programme (Detail) 

Background information 1. Government determinations for HRA Self Financing published 21st 
November 2011 

 
 

Page 151



 

   
$wh0gvxfg.doc Page 8 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2012 
 

Risk Assessment  - HRA budget 2011/12                      Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1.01 If the increases in rent are 
not fully explained to 
tenants (particularly those 
who are not in receipt of full 
benefit) then there is a risk 
that there will be an 
increase in tenant 
discontent  

Jane 
Griffiths 

December 
2011 

3 4 12 R Need to explain to 
tenants that increases 
are in line with 
Government Policy. 
Need to make sure 
tenants are aware of 
benefit take-up rights.  
CBH have requested an 
additional arrears officer 
and already have a 
financial inclusion officer 
who will support 
tenants. 

Mar 2012 CBH through 
Management 
Agreement 

 

1.02 The increase in rents and 
the current economic 
situation may result in an 
increase in the the level of 
rent arrears  

Jane 
Griffiths 

December 
2011 

3 4 12 R Current economic 
conditions are placing 
additional pressures on 
tenants and the 
Government ‘s benefit 
reforms in 2013 will 
significantly increase 
this risk . CBH have 
requested additional 
resources to mitigate 
the impact  through its 
financial inclusion policy 

Mar 2013 CBH through 
management 
agreement 

 

1.03 If supporting people 
contracts due to end in 
March 2012 are not 
renewed this could impact 
on service delivery 

Jane 
Griffiths 

December 
2011 

2 5 10 R An evaluation of 
alternative service and 
funding options is in 
progress. The draft 
budget currently 
assumes contract 
income to 30/09/12 

Mar 2012 CBH through 
management 
agreement 

 

1.04 If void rent loss is higher 
than estimated this will 
impact on the budget 

Jane 
Griffiths 

December 
2011 

3 2 6 R Demand for social 
housing remains high 
with significant waiting 
list. Current void levels 
are low and CBH is 

Mar 2013  CBH through 
management 
agreement 

 

P
age 152



 

   
$wh0gvxfg.doc Page 9 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2012 
 

achieving high 
performance on re-
letting time. Quality of 
accommodation needs 
to be maintained and 
changes in tenancy 
termination rates 
monitored 
 
 

1.05 If the demand for reactive 
repairs increases this could 
impact on the budget 
and/or service delivery 

Jane 
Griffiths 

December 
2011 

4 3 12 R Maintain robust stock 
condition data. Major 
peril to the stock is fire 
which is covered by 
appropriate insurance. 
HRA reserves are 
maintained at a level 
considered sufficient for 
uninsured stock damage 

Mar 2013 CBH through 
management 
agreement 

 

 
 

P
age 153



Page 154
This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

2012/13
Original Revised Estimate

£ £ £
EXPENDITURE

General & Special Management 1,835,700 1,852,500 1,832,200
ALMO Management Fee 4,330,200 4,330,200 4,514,500
Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges 39,900 32,900 34,400
Transfer to Housing Repairs Account 3,953,000 3,953,000 3,844,900
Provision for Bad Debts 200,000 200,000 225,000
Interest Payable 576,900 528,700 1,951,300
Depreciation of Dwellings 3,240,900 3,240,900 5,032,000
Depreciation of Other Assets 86,000 85,100 95,100
Debt Management Expenses 46,500 46,500 46,500
Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation 82,600 86,700 64,200
Housing Revenue Account Subsidy 3,212,100 3,278,000 0

TOTAL 17,603,800 17,634,500 17,640,100

INCOME

Dwelling Rents 16,678,000 16,658,000 17,716,000
Non Dwelling Rents 421,000 424,800 431,800
Charges for Services and Facilities 705,100 725,400 735,600
Supporting People Grant 150,000 150,000 75,000

TOTAL 17,954,100 17,958,200 18,958,400

NET INCOME FROM SERVICES -350,300 -323,700 -1,318,300

Amortised Premiums / Discounts 8,900 8,900 6,200
Interest Receivable -67,400 -86,500 -34,500

NET OPERATING INCOME -408,800 -401,300 -1,346,600

Appropriations
Revenue Contributions to Capital 1,587,100 1,447,800 0
Transfer from Major Repairs Reserve -86,000 -85,100 0

HRA Surplus / (Deficit) carried to reserve -1,092,300 -961,400 1,346,600

Revenue Reserve brought forward 2,989,000 3,673,200 2,711,800
Repayment of Debt -1,392,000
Revenue Reserve carried forward 1,896,700 2,711,800 2,666,400

Average Rent:-
Increase 1st April 2012 6.43%

48 wk 76.39 76.36 81.27
52 wk 70.51 70.49 75.02

Average Stock 4,592 4,589 4,582

2011/12

HRA OPERATING ACCOUNT

Page 155



APPENDIX 3

Original Revised
£ £

EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance :-
Reactive Repairs 2,559,000 2,559,000
Annual & Cyclical Maintenance 1,394,000 1,394,000

3,953,000 3,953,000

INCOME
Contribution from Housing Revenue Account 3,953,000 3,953,000

Surplus/Deficit for the Year 0 0

Balance brought forward 0 0
Balance carried forward 0 0

2012/13
Original Revised Estimate

£ £ £

Balance brought forward 0 300,300 0

Depreciation of Dwellings 3,240,900 3,240,900 5,032,000
Depreciation of Other Assets 86,000 85,100 95,100

3,326,900 3,626,300 5,127,100

Utilised in Year (Funding Capital Programme App E) -3,240,900 -3,541,200 -5,092,000
Transfer to HRA re Other Assets -86,000 -85,100 0
Balance carried forward 0 0 35,100

HOUSING REPAIRS ACCOUNT 

2011/12

MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE 

2011/12

Page 156



APPENDIX 4

This shows Cheltenham's progression towards rent restructuring. The Government currently estimates this will
be completed by 2015/16. However this will be subject to future rates of inflation and government rent policy.

Definitions:-
Formula Rent = the target for Cheltenham as calculated by the government's formula
Limit Rent = the maximum rent that the government will pay for rent rebates
Guideline Rent = the rent the government has used for subsidy purposes

By the end of rent restructuring formula rent, limit rent, guideline rent and the actual rent paid by tenants are  
required to be the same.

Limit Guideline
Rent Rent

£ % Inc £ £ £ % Inc
2011-2012 71.39 69.95 67.76 70.49
2012-2013 75.74 6.10 74.61 72.87 75.02
2013-2014 78.20 3.25 77.42 77.71 3.58
2014-2015 80.74 3.25 80.34 80.49 3.58
2015-2016 83.36 3.25 83.36 83.36 3.57

RENT RESTRUCTURING

Formula Rent Actual Rent

P
age 157



APPENDIX 5

2011/12 2012/13
£ £

Dwelling Rents (average)
48 wk basis 76.36 81.27
52 wk basis 70.49 75.02

Garages (per month) 25.24 26.00

Communal Heating Schemes (52 wk basis)
Gas 1 person flat 7.18 7.90

2 person flat 9.68 10.65

Cumming Court 1 person flat 3.78 4.54
2 person flat 5.20 6.24

Guest Bedrooms (per night) 10.00 10.00

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT - RENTS & CHARGES

Page 158



APPENDIX 6

2012/13
Original Revised Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000

EXPENDITURE

Property Improvements & Major Repairs (incl fees) 4,368 4,529 4,732

Adaptations for the Disabled 350 350 350

Environmental Works (Tenant Selection) 60 60 60

Repurchase of Shared Ownership Dwellings 50 50 50

4,828 4,989 5,192
FINANCING

Capital Receipts 100
HRA Revenue Contribution 1,587 1,448
Major Repairs Reserve 3,241 3,541 5,092

4,828 4,989 5,192

HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

2011/12

Page 159



APPENDIX  7  

COST HEADING 2012/13 BUDGET
 

£

INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS 1,110,000                    

PATHS, FENCES & WALLS 150,000                       

WORKS TO BUILDING FABRIC 438,600                       

RENEWAL OF WATER MAINS 20,000                         

RENEWAL OF HEATING SYSTEMS 233,000                       

MAJOR REFURBISHMENTS TO VOID PROPERTIES 330,000                       

WINDOWS & DOORS 200,000                       

ASBESTOS 77,500                         

SHELTERED ACCOMMODATION 50,000                         

NEIGHBOURHOOD WORKS 600,000                       

DOOR ENTRY SCHEMES 342,500                       

STRUCTURAL  WORKS 120,000                       

CARBON MONOXIDE DETECTORS 50,000                         

FIRE PROTECTION 50,000                         

LIFTS 97,500                         

SOIL STACKS 50,000                         

ST PAULS TRANSFORMATIONAL IMPS 290,000                       

GARAGE IMPROVEMENTS 100,000                       

ELECTRIC SUB MAINS 17,500                         

FEE FOR MANAGING PROGRAMME 405,000                       

TOTAL BUDGET 4,731,600                    

PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS & MAJOR WORKS 

Page 160



                                                                                                                                            

Cabinet 7th February 2012 
Council 10th February 2012 

 Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
and Annual Investment Strategy 2012/13 

 Page 1 of 4 Last updated 09 February 2012 
 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 7th February 2012 
Council - 10th February 2012 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2012/13 

Accountable member Finance & Community Development , John Webster 
Accountable officer Director Resources, Mark Sheldon 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy & Business Improvement 

Ward(s) affected None 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary In accordance with best practice, the Council has adopted and complies 

with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the public 
services. To comply with the code, the Council has a responsibility to set out 
its Treasury Management Strategy Statement for borrowing and to prepare 
an Annual Investment Strategy for council approval prior to the start of a 
new financial year. 

Recommendations Treasury Management Panel/Cabinet recommend to Council the approval of 
the attached Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy for 2012/13 at Appendix 2 including : 
• The general policy objective ‘that Council should invest 

prudently the surplus funds held on behalf of the community 
giving priority to security and liquidity’. 

• That the Prudential Indicators for 2012/13 including the 
authorised limit as the statutory affordable borrowing limit 
determined under Section 3 (1) Local Government Act 2003 be 
approved. 

• Revisions to the Council’s lending list and parameters as 
shown in Appendix 2 11.2 and 11.4 are proposed in order to 
provide some further capacity. These proposals have been put 
forward after taking advice from the Council’s treasury 
management advisers Arlingclose and are prudent enough to 
ensure the credit quality of the Council’s investment portfolio 
remains high. 

• For 2012/13 in calculating the Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP), the Council will apply Option 1 in respect of supported 
capital expenditure and Option 3 in respect of unsupported 
capital expenditure as per section 21 in Appendix 3. 

 

Agenda Item 14
Page 161



                                                                                                                                            

Cabinet 7th February 2012 
Council 10th February 2012 

 Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
and Annual Investment Strategy 2012/13 

 Page 2 of 4 Last updated 09 February 2012 
 

Financial implications All financial implications are noted in the report. 
Contact officer: Andrew Sherbourne, 
andrew.sherbourne@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264337 

Legal implications As detailed in the report. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis  
peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272695 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None arising directly from this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, 
julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks As noted in Appendix 1. 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The purpose of the strategy is to improve corporate governance, a key 
objective for the Council. 

 
Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None arising directly from this report. 

 
1. Background 
1.1   The CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services and the Prudential Code 

require local authorities to determine the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and the 
Prudential Indicators on an annual basis. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement also 
incorporates the Annual Investment Strategy as required under the CLG’s Investment Guidance. 

1.2  For the purposes of the Code, CIPFA has adopted the following as its definition of treasury 
management activities:  

         “the management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and 
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 

1.3    The Council will create and maintain, as the basis for effective treasury management: 
• A Treasury Management Strategy Statement, stating the policies, objectives and approach to risk 

management of its treasury management activities 
• Suitable Treasury Management Practices (TMP’s) setting out the manner in which the Council will 

seek to achieve those polices and objectives, and prescribing how it will manage and control those 
activities. 

 1.4  The local authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003, which came   
into force on 1st April 2004, include provisions relevant to investments. These regulations, together 
with amendments subsequently made to them (S.I No.534), determine the nature of specific 
investments, and how they should be treated/accounted for by a local authority. Formal guidance 

Page 162



                                                                                                                                            

Cabinet 7th February 2012 
Council 10th February 2012 

 Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
and Annual Investment Strategy 2012/13 

 Page 3 of 4 Last updated 09 February 2012 
 

was revised and issued by the Communities and Local Government (CLG) in 2010.  
   
1.5  The Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy at Appendix 2, 

state the overriding principles and objectives governing treasury management activity. As an 
integral part of that Statement, the Council includes the preparation of Treasury Management 
Practices which set out the manner in which the Council will achieve those principles and 
objectives prescribing how it will manage and control those activities. 

1.6   The general policy objective of the Annual Investment Strategy is that: 
        ‘the Council should invest prudently the surplus funds held on behalf of the community 

giving priority to security and liquidity’. 
        The Council is responsible for its treasury decisions and activity. No treasury management activity 

is without risk. The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk is an important and 
integral element of its treasury management activities. 

  1.7   The strategy allows sufficient flexibilities and delegations to avoid the need for a formal variation,      
other than in the most exceptional circumstance. 

 
2.0   Consultation 
 
2.1   The Council’s external treasury advisors, Arlingclose Ltd, supported the Council in the production of 

the strategies. 
 
2.2   The strategy was approved by the Treasury Management Panel at its meeting on 26th January 

2012. 
               
 

Report author Contact officer: Mark Sheldon,  mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk      
01242 264123 

Appendices Appendix 1 – Risk Assessment 
Appendix 2 – Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Annual 
Investment Strategy 2012/13 
Appendix 3 – Annual MRP Statement 2012/13 

Background information Section 15(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 2003 
Cheltenham Borough Council Treasury Management Practices 
  

 
 
 

Page 163



                                                                                                                                            

Cabinet 7th February 2012 
Council 10th February 2012 

 Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
and Annual Investment Strategy 2012/13 

 Page 4 of 4 Last updated 09 February 2012 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk 
score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk ref. Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred 
to risk 
register 

HRA-  If there are insufficient 
resources to meet debt 
principle repayments and 
interest then further 
borrowing may be required 
or a need to reduce capital 
or revenue expenditure. 

Director 
for 
Resources 
Mark 
Sheldon 

January  
2012 

2 2 4 Accept High level of 
assumptions within the 
Business Plan on future 
inflation and interest 
rates. Significant 
changes in inflation or 
government policy. Can 
be mitigated by robust 
monitoring and reviewing 
the long term projections.   

March 
2013 

Paul Jones  

 LOBO Loans - If £7m of 
these loans is recalled by 
the banks if they choose to 
exercise their option then we 
would need to have the 
resources on the day to 
repay. Alternative borrowing 
arrangements at today’s 
current rates would be 
favourable for the Council 

Director 
for 
Resources 
Mark 
Sheldon 
 

24th 
January 
2012 

1 2 2 Accept If the loans are recalled 
the council could take out 
temporary borrowing 
which is currently much 
lower than the rates on 
these loans. Any capital 
receipts available could 
also be used to repay 
debt. 

May 2012 Section 
151 Officer 
Mark 
Sheldon 

 

 

 

P
age 164



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 1

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 
 
1.       Introduction 
 

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to ‘have regard’ to the Prudential 
Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s 
capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. 
 
The Act therefore requires the Council to set out its treasury strategy for borrowing and to 
prepare an Annual Investment Strategy (AIS) (as required by Investment Guidance issued 
subsequent to the Act). The AIS sets out the Council’s policies for managing its 
investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments.  
 
The suggested strategy for 2012/13 in respect of the following aspects of the treasury 
management function is based upon the treasury officers’ views on interest rates, 
supplemented with leading market forecasts provided by the Council’s treasury advisors, 
Arlingclose Ltd. The strategy covers: 

 
• treasury limits in force which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 
• Prudential Indicators; 
• the current treasury position; 
• prospects for interest rates; 
• the borrowing requirement; 
• the borrowing strategy; 
• Housing Revenue Account Self Financing 
• debt rescheduling; 
• the investment strategy; 
• Annual MRP statement 
• Other items 
 

There is a statutory requirement under Section 33 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, for the Council to produce a balanced budget.  In particular, Section 32 requires a 
local authority to calculate its budget requirement for each financial year to include the 
revenue costs that flow from capital financing decisions.  This, therefore, means that 
increases in capital expenditure must be limited to a level whereby increases in charges to 
revenue from: - 
 

a)     increases in interest charges caused by increased borrowing to finance additional capital 
expenditure, and  
 

b)     any increases in running costs from new capital projects are limited to a level which is 
affordable within the projected income of the Council for the foreseeable future.      

 
2.      Treasury Limits for 2012/13 to 2014/15 
 

  There is a statutory duty under S.3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting 
regulations, for the Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to 
borrow.  The amount so determined is termed the “Affordable Borrowing Limit”.  

 
  The Council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the Authorised Limit, 
which essentially requires it to ensure that total capital investment remains within 

Page 165



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 2

sustainable limits and, in particular, that the impact upon its future council tax and council 
rent levels is ‘acceptable’.   

 
  Whilst termed an “Affordable Borrowing Limit”, the capital plans to be considered for 
inclusion incorporate financing by external borrowing.  The Authorised Limit is to be set, on 
a rolling basis, for the forthcoming financial year and the two successive financial years. 

 
3.       Prudential Indicators for 2010/11 – 2014/15 
 
3.1.1  The Council is also required to indicate that it has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on 

Treasury Management.  This was adopted in February 2002 by full Council. 
 
          The following prudential indicators are relevant for the purposes of setting an integrated 

treasury management strategy.   
 
3.1.2 The Council must estimate its total capital expenditure, split between the Housing     

Revenue Account (HRA) and non HRA, in the next three or more financial years. This 
indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure remains within 
sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the impact on Council Tax and in the case 
of the HRA, housing rent levels. 

 
3.1.3 The actual capital expenditure that was incurred in 2010/11 and the estimates of capital 

expenditure to be incurred for the current and future years that are recommended for 
approval are:- 
 

Capital Expenditure 
Proposed 
Capital 
programme  

2010/11 
£000 
Actual 

2011/12 
£000 

Revised 
2012/13 

£000 
Estimate 

2013/14 
£000 

Estimate 
2014/15 

£000 
Estimate 

General 
Fund 

 
3,254 

 
9,244 

 
9,829 

 
1,116 

 
1,056 

HRA 3,851 4,989 5,192 5,905 6,080 
Total 7,105 14,233 15,021 7,021 7,136 

 
                            
3.1.4 Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to the net revenue stream 
 
 This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and 

proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required 
to meet borrowing costs.  It would not be prudent for borrowing costs to be a significant 
proportion of net revenue either now or in the future.  By estimating the ratio for at least 
the next three years the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing costs net of interest and 
investment income) as a proportion of revenue income can be seen. 

 
3.1.5 Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream for the current and future 

years, and the actual figures for 2010/11 are: 
 

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
 2010/11 

Actual 
% 

2011/12 
Revised 

% 
2012/13 
Estimate 

% 
2013/14 
Estimate 

% 
2014/15 
Estimate 

% 
Non-HRA 4.09 5.28 3.85 3.52 2.71 
       HRA 2.31 2.54 10.65 10.10 9.69 

Page 166



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 3

 
 
3.1.6 Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 
 The Capital Financing Requirement measures the authority’s underlying need to borrow 

for a capital purpose. The authority has an integrated treasury management strategy and 
has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services. 
Cheltenham Borough Council has, at any point in time, a number of cashflows both 
positive and negative, and manages its treasury position in terms of its borrowings and 
investments in accordance with its approved treasury management strategy and practices. 
In day to day cash management, no distinction can be made between revenue cash and 
capital cash. External borrowing arises as a consequence of all the financial transactions 
of the authority and not simply those arising from capital spending. 

      
           The HRA reforms which come into effect for 2012/13 will determine which current loans 

the Council has, will either be apportioned to the General Fund or HRA. The Council has 
focused on a “two pool” approach which earmarks a proportion of the loans based on the 
HRA CFR as of 1st April 2011.             

 
3.1.7 The Council can borrow without limit, provided it ensures such borrowing is affordable, 

prudent and sustainable. 
 
3.1.8 Estimates of the end of year capital financing requirement for the authority for the current 

and future years and the actual capital financing requirement at 31st March 2011 are: 
 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 31/3/11 

£000 
Actual 

31/3/12 
£000 

Revised 
31/3/13 
£000 

Estimate 
31/3/14 
£000 

Estimate 
31/3/15 
£000 

Estimate 
Non-HRA 26,760 27,354 30,013 29,111 28,219 
HRA 18,728 46,142 44,750 44,750 44,750 
Total CFR 45,488 73,496 74,763 73,861 72,969 

 

As a result of the HRA Subsidy Reform, the Capital Financing Requirement has risen 
significantly in 2011/12 as the Council is due to borrow £27.414m in March 2012 to pay 
over to the DCLG. Further information on the HRA reforms can be found in section 8. 
 

3.1.9 Net borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement 
 
 CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities includes the following as 

a key indicator of prudence: 
 

 “In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital 
purpose, the local authority should ensure that the net external borrowing does not, except 
in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding year 
plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and next 
two financial years.” 

 
3.1.10 Local authorities may borrow temporarily to cover cash flow shortages but over the 

medium term should only borrow to finance capital expenditure.  
 

3.1.11 In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for capital 
purposes, the Council needs to ensure its net external borrowing does not exceed its 

Page 167



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 4

Capital Financing Requirement over the current and next three years. The table below 
demonstrates that the estimated level of net investments remains lower than the capital 
financing requirement in each year, and therefore meets this requirement. 

 
Estimated net 
borrowing and 

capital financing 
requirement at 

Year end 

2010/11 
£000 
Actual 

2011/12 
£000 

Revised 
2012/13 

£000 
Estimate 

2013/14 
£000 

Estimate 
2014/15 

£000 
Estimate 

Gross borrowing 50,133 72,706 75,298 74,753 74,224 
Investments 15,759 6,485 5,785 4,985 4,285 
Net (Investment) / 
borrowing 

 
34,374 

 
66,221 

 
69,513 

 
69,768 

 
69,939 

Capital financing 
requirement 

 
45,437 

 
73,496 

 
74,763 

 
73,861 

 
72,969 

  
 

3.1.12  Gross and Net Debt 
 
3.1.13 The purpose of this treasury indicator is to highlight a situation where the Council is 

planning to borrow in advance of need. 
 

Gross and Net 
Debt 

2011/12 
£000 

Revised 
2012/13 

£000 
Estimate 

2013/14 
£000 

Estimate 
2014/15 

£000 
Estimate 

Gross Debt 63,673 66,265 65,720 65,191 
Investments 6,485 5,785 4,985 4,285 
 
Net Debt 

 
57,188 

 
60,480 

 
60,735 

 
60,906 

 
 

3.1.14    Estimates of the incremental impact of capital expenditure on  council tax and  
              housing rents 

 
 A fundamental indicator of the affordability of capital expenditure plans is its impact on  

council tax and housing rents.  Any borrowing for capital purposes has an impact on the 
revenue account and, to the extent that it is not supported by government or other 
contributions, on council tax and/or housing rents.  Using capital receipts to fund capital 
expenditure also has an impact because the assets sold would no longer generate rental 
income or investment income.  The use of revenue funding to fund capital expenditure 
clearly has a direct impact on the revenue account and council tax/rents.  The completed 
capital schemes will also have an impact in terms of running costs and income 
generation. 
 

3.1.15 The Council must estimate the incremental impact of its capital expenditure plans (shown 
above) on the council tax and housing rents for the next three years or more.  
 

3.1.16 The estimate of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions proposed in this 
budget report, over and above capital investment decisions that have previously been 
taken by the Council are: 

 
 
 

Page 168



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 5

 
For the Band D Council Tax –  
 

      2012/13                                    2013/14                                2014/15 
        £Nil*                                           £Nil                                          £Nil 

           * As a proposed Council Tax freeze for 2012/13. 
 
 
 For average weekly housing rents 
 

      2012/13                                    2013/14                                2014/15 
           Nil**                                        Nil**                                       Nil** 

 
 ** Decisions on annual rent increases are subject to rent restructuring guidelines set by 

Central Government. As a consequence the Government has indicated that rent levels 
will increase annually by Retail Price Index plus 0.5% and this should cover all additional 
capital expenditure. This method has been used to form  part of the 30 year HRA 
Business Plan. 

 
3.2 External Debt Indicators 
 
 Two limits need to be set and monitored to ensure borrowing is prudent, affordable and 

sustainable.   
 

3.2.1 Authorised Limit 
 
 The Council must set an authorised limit for its external debt for the next three financial 

years or more.  This is  
 

• the possible maximum level of borrowing that may need to be incurred and the limit 
beyond which borrowing will be prohibited 
 

• the statutory limit specified in section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003 
 

• Reflects a level of borrowing which, although affordable in the short term may not be 
sustainable 
 

• The ‘outer boundary’ of the Council’s possible need to borrow. 
 
 

3.2.2 In respect of its external debt, it is recommended that the Council approves the following 
authorised limits for its total external debt gross of investments for the next three financial 
years. The Council is asked to approve these limits and to delegate authority to the 
Director of Resources (Designated Section 151 Officer) within the total limit for any 
individual year, to effect movement between the separately agreed limits for borrowing 
and other long term liabilities ( in accordance with option appraisal and best value for 
money for the authority).  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 169



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 6

 
Authorised Limit for External Debt 

 2011/12 
£000 

2012/13 
£000 

2013/14 
£000 

2014/15 
£000 

Borrowing 
 

109,000 
 

109,000 109,000 109,000 
Other long 
term 
liabilities 

- - - - 

Total *109,000 109,000 109,000 109,000 
 

*The Authorised Limit was increased and approved from £81m to £109m at Council in 
December 2011 as a consequence of the increase in debt due in March 2012 to repay 
the DCLG £27.414m as part of the HRA Self Financing reforms. 
 

3.2.3  In setting the limit, account must be taken of the authority’s current commitments, 
 existing plans and the proposals in the budget report for capital expenditure and 
 financing, and with its approved treasury management policy statement and 
 practices. Risk analysis has been taken into account, as have plans for capital 
 expenditure, estimates of the capital financing requirement and estimates of cash 
 flow requirements.  
 

 This limit represents the worst case scenario, i.e. the effect on the cash flow of 
 receiving no council tax income and borrowing to the maximum of the capital 
 financing requirement, in addition to investments held. The calculation follows a 
 prescribed formula and is in excess of the expected levels of borrowing for 2012/13 
 to 2014/15 in accordance with Treasury strategy and as shown in the Operational 
 Boundary indicator in paragraph 3.2.6. 
 

3.2.4 In taking its decisions on this report, the Council is asked to note that the authorised limit 
determined for 2012/13 is the statutory limit determined under section 3(1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003. 
 
 

3.2.5 Operational Boundary 
 
 The Council is also asked to approve the following operational boundary for external debt 

for the same time period. The proposed operational boundary for external debt is based 
on the same estimates as the authorised limit but reflects directly the estimate of the 
most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario, without the additional headroom 
included within the authorised limit to allow for example for unusual cash movements. 
The operational boundary represents a key management tool for in year monitoring. 
Within the operational boundary, figures for borrowing and other long term liabilities are 
separately identified. The Council is also asked to delegate authority to the Director of 
Resources (Designated Section 151 Officer), to effect movement between separately 
agreed figures for borrowing and other long term liabilities, in a similar fashion to the 
authorised limit.  
 

3.2.6 The boundary may be breached occasionally due to unexpected cash flow shortages but 
a sustained breach would indicate the Council may be in danger of breaching the 
Authorised Limit. The Council is recommended to approve the following limits for this 
indicator. 

 

Page 170



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 7

 
Operational Boundary for External Debt 

 2011/12 
£000 

2012/13 
£000 

2013/14 
£000 

2014/15 
£’000 

Borrowing 99,000 96,000 98,500 98,200 
Other long term 
liabilities 

- - - - 
Total 99,000 96,000 98,500 98,200 

 
The Operational Boundary for borrowing was increased and approved from £71m to 
£99m at Council in December 2011 as a consequence of the increase in debt due in 
March 2012 to repay the DCLG £27.414m as part of the HRA Self Financing reforms. 

 
3.2.7  The operational boundary represents the maximum expected operational borrowing 

 at a given time, which is significantly lower than the prescribed authorised limit shown 
 in paragraph 3.2.2. This measure reflects a more realistic view of likely cash flow  
 scenarios and should not be exceeded. 

 
3.2.8   The Council’s actual external debt at 31st March 2011 was £50.133 million. It should be 

 noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the authorised limit and 
 operational boundary, since the actual external debt reflects the position at one point 
 in time. 

 
3.3. Upper limits on interest rate exposure 
 
 The Council must set upper limits on its exposure to changes in interest rates for at least 

the next three years.  An upper limit must be set for both fixed and variable rates covering 
both borrowing and investments.  

 
3.3.1 The purpose of these indicators is to reduce the likelihood of an adverse movement in 

interest rates or borrowing / investment decisions impacting negatively on the Council’s 
overall financial position. 
  

3.3.2 It is recommended that the Council sets an upper limit on its fixed interest rate exposures 
for 2012/13, 2013/14 and 2014/15 of its gross outstanding borrowing. 
 

3.3.3 It is further recommended that the Council sets an upper limit on its variable interest rate 
exposures for 2012/13, 2013/14 and 2014/15 of 100% of its gross outstanding borrowing.  
 

3.3.4 This means the Director of Resources (Designated Section 151 Officer) will manage fixed 
interest rate exposures within the range 0% to 100% and variable interest rate exposures 
within the range 0% to 100%. 

 
 
3.3.5 Maturity structure of borrowing 
 

 The Council must set both upper and lower limits with respect to the maturity structure of 
borrowing for the following financial year.  This indicator is designed to be a control over an 
authority having large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing to be replaced at times of 
uncertainty over interest rates.  Therefore the aim should be a relatively even spread of 
debt repayment dates. 

 

Page 171



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 8

3.3.6 It is recommended that the Council sets upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of 
its borrowings as follows: 

 
 
        Amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each period is: 

 
 

 Upper Limit 
% 

Lower Limit 
% 

Under 12 months 50 0 
12 months and within 24 
months 

50 0 
24 months and within 5 
years 

100 0 
5 years and within 10 
years 

100 0 
10 years and within 20 
years 

100 0 
20 years and within 30 
years 

100 0 
30 years and within 40 
years 

100 0 
40 years and within 50 
years 

100 0 
50 years and above 100 0 

 
 
4.   Current Portfolio Position 

The Council’s treasury debt portfolio position at 31st December 2011 comprised: 
 

          
 
 
5.   Outlook for Interest Rates 
 

5.1   The Bank of England has now held interest rates at 0.5% since March 2009, its lowest level 
in its 316 year history as part of a continued effort to aid an economic recovery. The Bank of 
England stated that interest rates will be on hold through to the end of 2012. This impact on 
investment income has been factored into 2012/13 investment budgets. 

 

Principal Ave. rate 
£m %

Fixed rate borrowing
 

PWLB 12.40 
Market 15.90 28.30m

4.75 
4.00 

Variable rate borrowing PWLB 0 
Market 0      

Temporary Borrowing 
 
 

  8.0m        0.36 
TOTAL DEBT
DEBT 

36.30m 3.46 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS   17.41m 3.06 

Page 172



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 9

5.2   Part of the service offered by the Council’s treasury advisers, Arlingclose Ltd, is to assist the 
Council to formulate a view on interest rates. The Authority will reappraise its strategies from 
time to time in response to evolving economic, political and financial events. 

 
 The following table gives Arlingclose Ltd view on future interest rates:  

 

  
 
5.3   Outlook for the Economy 

 
Financial market stress is expected to remain a feature of 2012. Rates within the inter-bank 
markets (where banks fund the majority of their day to day operations) have continued to climb. 
This occurrence was a characteristic of the 2008 banking crisis and whilst the UK and European 
Central banks have flooded the markets with liquidity, it is still a strong indicator of market risk. 
 
Inflation has moderated back to 4.2% in December 2011. Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) is 
expected to drop gradually back towards the 2% target as the January 2011 VAT increase, the 
surge in oil prices and the large energy price hikes fall out of the twelve month comparison. 
 
Faltering global growth will not be helped by the considerable uncertainty and expansion of 
risks presented by the crisis in the Eurozone and gridlock in the United States going into an 
election year. 
 

 
6.  Borrowing Strategy 

 
6.1 The Council prefers to maintain maximum control over its borrowing activities as well as 

flexibility on its loan portfolio. A prudent and pragmatic approach to borrowing will be maintained 
to minimise borrowing costs without compromising longer-term stability of the portfolio, 
consistent with the Council’s Prudential Indicators. In conjunction with advice from its treasury 
advisor, Arlingclose Ltd, the Director Resources will keep under review the options it has in 
borrowing from the PWLB, the market and other sources. 

Page 173



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 10

 
Any borrowing undertaken and the timing will depend on capital expenditure levels, interest rate 
forecasts and market conditions during the year in order to minimise borrowing costs. The 
Council will be advised by Arlingclose Ltd on the specific timing of borrowing. The overall 
borrowing must be within the Council’s projected Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) and its 
approved Affordable Borrowing Limit. 
 

 
7. Debt Rescheduling 

The Council will continue to maintain a flexible policy for debt rescheduling. Market volatility 
may provide opportunities for rescheduling debt from time to time. The rationale for 
rescheduling would be one or more of the following: 
 
• Savings in interest costs with minimal risk 
• Balancing the  ratio of fixed to variable debt 
• Amending the profile of maturing debt to reduce inherent refinancing risks. 

 
Any rescheduling activity will be undertaken following the rationale within the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy. The Director of Resources (Designated Section 151 Officer) will agree in 
advance with Arlingclose Ltd the strategy and framework within which debt will be 
repaid/rescheduled if opportunities arise. Thereafter the Council’s debt portfolio will be 
monitored against equivalent interest rates and available refinancing options on a regular basis. 
As opportunities arise, they will be identified by Arlingclose Ltd and discussed with the Council’s 
officers. 

 
All rescheduling activity will comply with the accounting requirements of the local authority Code 
of Practice and regulatory requirements of the Capital Finance and Accounting Regulations (SI 
2007 No 573 as amended by SI 2008/414). 

 
All rescheduling and any new long term borrowing undertaken will be reported to the Treasury 
Management Panel at the meeting following its action. 
 

  8. Housing Revenue Account Self Financing – Managing HRA Debt 
 

8.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) published its 2011 Edition 
of ‘Treasury Management in the Public Services – Guidance Notes for Local Authorities’ to 
include a new section with regard to Treasury Management implications of the housing self-
financing reform. The principles set out by CIPFA upon which the allocation of loans should be 
based are as follows:- 

  
• The underlying principle for the splitting of loans, at transition, must be that of no detriment 

to the General Fund 
 
• Local Authorities are required to deliver a solution that is broadly equitable between the 

HRA and the General Fund. 
 
• Future changes to the HRA in relation to borrowing are not influenced by General Fund 

decisions, giving a greater degree of independence, certainty and control. 
 
• Un-invested balance sheet resources which allow borrowing to be below the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR) are properly identified between General Fund and HRA.  
  

Page 174



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 11

     8.2 The reforms involve a removal of the housing subsidy system by offering a one-off 
reallocation of debt. The settlement of the reallocation is expected to take place on 28th 
March 2012 and will result in the Authority having an increase in debt to fund the settlement 
of £27.881m which will be clearly attributable to the HRA. The specific borrowing amount and 
terms will be determined by the Authority in conjunction with the HRA 30 year Business Plan 
and the advice of its treasury advisers, Arlingclose Ltd. 

 
8.3   Current loans have been split on the “two pool” approach which identifies loans which will be 

allocated to the HRA based on the drawdown to fund the HRA CFR. This has been adopted 
for clarity and transparency. Treasury management decisions on the structure and timing of 
borrowing will be made independently for the General Fund and HRA. Interest on loans will 
be calculated in accordance with proper accounting practices. This will require interest 
expenditure on external borrowing attributed to HRA loans being allocated to the HRA. 
Interest expenditure on external borrowing attributed to the general Fund will be allocated to 
the General Fund. Third party loans taken out on behalf for Cheltenham Borough Homes, 
Gloucestershire Airport and the Everyman Theatre have been excluded from the “two pool” 
approach. 

 
 
9.    Sources of Borrowing  
 
9.1   In conjunction with advice from its treasury advisor, Arlingclose Ltd, the Authority will keep 

under review the following borrowing sources: 
 
• PWLB 
• Local authorities (includes Police & Fire authorities) 
• Commercial banks 
• Money Markets 
• Leasing 

 
 

9.2   The cost of carry has resulted in an increased reliance upon shorter dated and variable rate 
borrowing. This type of borrowing injects volatility into the debt portfolio in terms of interest 
rate risk but is counterbalanced by its affordability and alignment of borrowing costs with 
investment returns. The Authority’s exposure to shorter dated borrowing is kept under regular 
review and if margins change then the borrowing strategy could be maintained or altered. It 
has been a policy recently for the Council to use maturing investments to repay temporary 
debt, which removes some of the interest rate risk in the future. 

 
9.3   The Authority has £15.9 million exposure to LOBO loans (Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option) 

of which £7 million can be “called” within 2012/13. A LOBO can be called when the lender 
exercises its rights to amend the interest rate on the loan at which point the Borrower can 
accept the revised terms or reject them and repay the loan. LOBO loans present a potential 
refinancing risk to the Council since the decision to call a LOBO is entirely at the lenders 
discretion. Any LOBOs called will be discussed with the treasury advisers prior to acceptance 
of any revised terms.   

 
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 
10.  Investment Policy 
 
The Council will have regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the 
Guidance”) issued in March 2010 and CIPFA’s Treasury Management in Public Services Code 

Page 175



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 12

of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The Council’s 
investment priorities are:   

 
• Security of the invested capital; 
• Liquidity of the invested capital;  
• An optimum yield which is commensurate with security and liquidity. 

 
Credit markets remain in a state of distress as a result of the excessive and poor performing 
debt within the financial markets and in some instances this has lead to a sovereign debt crisis 
(in countries such as Greece and Italy) with the outcome still largely unknown. It is against this 
backdrop of uncertainty that the Authority’s investment strategy is framed.  
 
As such it is important to restate the overall policy objective of the Annual Investment Strategy 
i.e. that: 

‘the council should invest prudently the surplus funds held on behalf of the 
community giving priority to security and liquidity’.  

The borrowing of monies purely to invest or on-lend and make a return is unlawful and this 
Council will not engage in such activity. 
 
Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed below under the 
‘Specified’ Investments heading.  

 
Specified investments are investments offering high security and high liquidity. The 
investments will be sterling denominated with maturities up to a revised maximum of 1 year and 
meet the minimum ‘high’ credit rating criteria where applicable. 
 
 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS 
All ‘Specified Investments’ listed below must be sterling-denominated.  
 
The types of investments that will be used by the Council  
 
Investment Max Sum per 

institution/group 
Maximum 
period 

Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility*  (DMADF) 
• this facility is at present available 

for investments up to 6 months 
 

 
 
   UNLIMITED 

 
 
6 months  

Term deposits with the UK government 
or with UK local authorities (i.e. local 
authorities as defined under Section 23 of the 
2003 Act) with maturities up to 1 year 
 

 
 
      £5m 

 
 
1 year 

Term deposits with credit-rated deposit 
takers (banks and building societies), 
including callable deposits, with maturities 
up to 1 year 

 
 
      £4m - £7m 

 
 
1 year 

AAA rated Money Market Funds with 
UK/Ireland/Luxembourg domiciled 

      £1m 1 year 

* T-Bills  issued by the DMO 
(Government) 

    UNLIMITED 1 year 

Page 176



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 13

 
* T-Bills issued by the government’s DMO have been recommended by Arlingclose as another 
specified investment to have on the council’s lending list. 
 
Non-specified investments are of greater potential risk and cover deposit periods over one 
year. To protect against any potential defaults with any bank, after receiving advice from 
Arlingclose Ltd it is prudent not to lend any monies to any banks or building societies at present 
beyond a year. The exception to this is the loan made to Gloucestershire Airport Company 
which the Council could lend up to three years. The Council does have a 50% share in the 
airport. 
 

11. Lending criteria 
 

11.1 Credit ratings 
The credit crisis has focused attention on the treasury management priority of security of capital 
monies invested. An authorised ‘counter party lending’ list is maintained by the treasury team 
on behalf of the Director, Resources (Delegated Section 151 Officer) which includes those 
counterparties which meet the minimum criteria for lending. The Council will use Fitch, Moody’s 
and Standard and Poor ratings to derive its criteria for lending. CIPFA suggests using the 
lowest rating from all three of the agencies to determine creditworthy counterparties, plus 
additional market information. On the advice of Arlingclose Ltd in order to minimise risk, the 
Council will restrict lending to those institutions which meet the following minimum criteria, 
defined as: 
 
 
Moody’s ratings: 
Aaa – A3 are judged to be of the highest quality, with minimal credit risk for long term 
investments. The ratings may be modified by the addition of a 1, 2 or 3 to show relative 
standing within the category where the highest within the rating is 1 and 3 the lowest. 
 
P-1 - Banks having this rating offer superior credit quality and a very strong capacity for timely 
payment of short-term deposit obligations. 
 
Fitch ratings: 
AAA - A– Implies a bank with very high credit quality and denotes expectations of very low 
credit risk. They indicate very strong capacity for payment of long term financial commitments. 
The ratings may be modified by the addition of  – or + where a + is higher rated within this 
category. 
 
F1+ - Indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment of short term financial commitments. 
 
S&P ratings: 
 AAA - A– Implies a bank with very high credit quality and denotes expectations of very low 
credit risk. They indicate very strong capacity for payment of long term financial commitments. 
The ratings may be modified by the addition of  – or + where a + is higher rated within this 
category. 
 
A-1+ - Indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment of short term financial commitments. 
 
The 2011/12 approved strategy only allowed deposits with financial institutions with a minimum 
rating of A+/A1. It is the Councils intention to adopt the new credit rating criteria for the 
remainder of 2011/12 on approval of this strategy.  

 

Page 177



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 14

The Council is alerted to changes in Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s ratings through its 
treasury management advisors, Arlingclose Ltd. If a downgrade results in the 
counterparty/investment scheme no longer meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further 
use as an investment will be withdrawn immediately. Likewise if a counterparty/investment 
scheme is upgraded and meets the lending criteria then it will be added to the ‘counterparty 
lending list’.  
 
The Council will monitor and update the credit standing of the institutions on a regular basis. It 
will not simply rely on credit ratings but will also consider alternative assessments of credit 
strength i.e. Statements of government support and information on corporate developments or 
market sentiment towards investment counterparties. 
 

11.2 Size of deposits 
In reviewing the lending criteria in view of the current market situation and based upon advice 
from Arlingclose Ltd the Council has restricted the lending list to a small number of very low risk 
counterparties. As such the following is recommended: 
 

 
 The current authorised lending list meeting the criteria is as follows: 
 
 
 
 
TABLE 3 CURRENT COUNTERPARTY LENDING LIST & LIMITS 
 
 
 

 
BANKS COUNTRY               LONG TERM 

                         
SHORT TERM LIMIT MAX 

    Fitch Moody's S&P Fitch Moody's S&P £ TIME 
Bank of Scotland (Lloyds Banking 
group) GB A A1 A F1 P-1 A-1 7,000,000 1 year 
Barclays Bank plc GB A Aa3 A+ F1 P-1 A-1 7,000,000 1 year 
HSBC Bank plc GB AA Aa2 AA- F1+ P-1 A-1+ 7,000,000 1 year 
Lloyds TSB  (Lloyds Banking 
Group) GB A A1 A F1 P-1 A-1 7,000,000 1 year 
Nat West Bank (RBS Group) GB A A2 A F1 P-1 A-1 7,000,000 1 year 
Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS 
Group) GB A A2 A F1 P-1 A-1 7,000,000 1 year 
Standard Chartered Bank GB AA- A1 AA- F1+ P-1 A-1+ 7,000,000 1 year 

Santander UK PLC – Call Account GB A+ A1 AA- F1 P-1 A-1+ 4,000,000 
Instant 
Access 

BUILDING SOCIETIES COUNTRY              LONG TERM     SHORT TERM LIMIT MAX 
    Fitch Moody's S&P Fitch Moody's S&P £ TIME  
Nationwide  GB A+ A2 A+ F1 P-1 A-1 7,000,000 1 year 
GOVT & LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT COUNTRY              LONG TERM    SHORT TERM LIMIT 

MAX 
TIME 

    Fitch Moody's S&P Fitch Moody's S&P £   
Debt management account/T Bills GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A unlimited 1 year 
UK local authorities GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 5,000,000 1 Year 
Cheltenham Festivals GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 100,000 1 Year 
          

Page 178



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 15

OTHER COUNTRY             LONG TERM   SHORT TERM LIMIT TIME 
    Fitch Moody's S&P Fitch Moody's S&P £   
Gloucestershire Airport  GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1,550,000 3 Years 
Gloucestershire Everyman Theatre GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1,000,000 2 Years 
Cheltenham Borough Homes GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 5,000,000 2 Years 

AAA Rated Money Market Funds  AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA 1,000,000 
Instant 
Access 

*UBICO (LA Company) GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 500,000 1 Year 
 
* UBICO is being set up to be run as a Local Authority Company from 1st April 2012. From time to 
time to assist the LA Company daily cash-flow the council will be required to lend monies to them 
on a similar basis to what already occurs with Cheltenham Borough Homes.  
 
 
The Council’s shorter term cash-flow investments are made with reference to the outlook for the 
UK Bank Rate and money markets. For these monies, the Council will mainly utilise its business 
reserve accounts, Money Market Funds, Government’s Debt Management Office (including T 
Bills) and Term deposits with UK Banks in 2012/13.  The maximum duration for any deposit to be 
made to the above financial institutions is one year apart from those highlighted in the “other” 
category. These periods can be reduced if the ratings of that institution are downgraded.  
Treasury officers will take on board Arlingclose’s recommendations when it is received.  

 
11.3 Council’s Banker 

The Council banks with LloydsTSB (Lloyds Banking Group). On adoption of this Strategy, it will 
meet the minimum credit criteria of A- (or equivalent) long term. It is the Councils intention that 
even if the credit rating of LloydsTSB falls below the minimum criteria A- the bank will continue to 
be used for short term liquidity requirements (overnight and weekend investments) and business 
continuity arrangements. 
 

11.4 Money Market Funds (MMFs) 
Money Market Funds will be utilised but good treasury management practice prevails, and whilst 
MMFs provide good diversification the Council will also seek to diversify any exposure by utilising 
more than one MMF. Currently the Council has no MMF’s but they have been recommended to 
us by Arlingclose as another investment tool. We will be looking to open at least three of them  
when the Strategy is approved. 
 

11.5 The Use of Financial Instruments  
Currently, Local Authorities’ legal power to use derivative instruments remains unclear. The 
General Power of Competence enshrined in the Localism Bill is not sufficiently explicit. 
Consequently, the Council does not intend to use derivatives. Should this position change, the 
Council may seek to develop a detailed and robust risk management framework governing the 
use of derivatives, but this change in strategy will require full Council approval.    

            
12.  Annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement 

 The annual MRP Statement is disclosed in Appendix 3.  
 

13.   Balanced Budget Requirement 
        The Authority complies with the provisions of S32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 to 

set a balanced budget. 
 
 
 

 

Page 179



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2012/2013 
 

 16

14.   Reporting on the Treasury Outturn 
The Director of Resources, (Designated Section 151 Officer) will report to Council on its treasury 
management activities and performance against the strategy at least twice a year, one at mid 
year and a year end review at closedown time. 
 
The Treasury Management Panel will be responsible for the scrutiny of treasury management 
activity and practices. 

 
 

15.   Other Items 
 
15.1 Training 

In CIPFA’s Code for Treasury Management, it requires the Director of Resources (Designated 
Section 151 Officer) to ensure that all appropriate staff and members tasked with treasury 
management responsibilities, including scrutiny of the treasury management function, receive 
appropriate training relevant to their needs and understand fully their roles and responsibilities. 
Training requirements will be identified and any shortfalls will be met by Arlingclose Ltd or other 
organisations. 
 

15.2 Treasury Advisors 
The CLG’s Guidance on local government investments recommend that the Investment Strategy 
should state: 
 
• Whether and, if so, how the authority uses external advisors offering information, advice 

or assistance relating to investment and  
• How the quality of any such service is controlled. 
 
 

15.3 The Council’s external advisor on Treasury Management is Arlingclose Ltd, who can provide us 
with information, advice and assistance in all areas of treasury. The Council has a close working 
relationship with Arlingclose and are in contact with their advisors on a regular basis (weekly) 
and daily if necessary. A detailed schedule of services is listed within the contract. 

 
 
 
 
 

         
       

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  

Page 180



Appendix 3 
 

 1

Annual MRP Statement 
Background: 

 
 1. For many years local authorities were required by Statute and associated Statutory Instruments to 

charge to the Revenue Account an annual provision for the repayment of debt associated with 
expenditure incurred on capital assets. This charge to the Revenue Account was referred to as the 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). In practice MRP represents the financing of capital 
expenditure from the Revenue Account that was initially funded by borrowing. 

 
 2. In February 2008 the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2008 [Statutory Instrument 2008/414] were approved by Parliament and became 
effective on 31st March 2008. These regulations replaced the formula based method for calculating 
MRP which existed under previous regulations under the Local Government Act 2003.  The new 
regulations required a local authority to determine each financial year an amount of MRP which it 
considers to be prudent. Linked to this new regulation, the Department of Communities and Local 
Government (CLG) produced Statutory Guidance which local authorities are required to follow, 
setting out what constitutes a prudent provision. 

 
 3. The CLG Guidance recommends that before the start of the financial year, a statement of MRP 

policy for the forthcoming financial year is approved by Full Council.  
 
 4. The broad aim of the Policy is to ensure that MRP is charged over a period that is reasonably 

commensurate with the period over which the capital expenditure which gave rise to the debt 
provides benefits. In the case of borrowing supported by Revenue Support Grant, the aim is that 
MRP is charged over a period reasonably commensurate with the period implicit in the 
determination of that grant. MRP is not required to be charged to the Housing Revenue Account. 
Where a local authority’s overall CFR is £nil or a negative amount there is no requirement to 
charge MRP. 

 
 5. The move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) means that Private Finance 

Initiative (PFI) schemes and Operating Leases can be brought onto the Balance Sheet. Where this 
is the case, such items are classed in accounting terms as a form of borrowing. CLG has therefore 
amended the Capital Finance Regulations to ensure that the impact on the Revenue account is 
neutral, with MRP for these items matching the principal repayment embedded within the PFI or 
lease agreement. 

 
 

MRP Options: 
 
 6. Four options for prudent MRP provision are set out in the CLG Guidance. Details of each are set 

out below with a summary set out in Table 1: 
 

Option 1 – Regulatory Method: 
 

 7. This method replicates the position that would have existed under the previous regulatory 
environment. MRP is charged at 4% of the Authority’s underlying need to borrow for capital 
purposes; the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  The formula includes an item known as 
“Adjustment A” which was intended to achieve neutrality between the CFR and the former Credit 
Ceiling which was used to calculate MRP prior to the introduction of the Prudential System on 1st 
April 2004. The formula also took into account any reductions possible related to commutation of 
capital related debt undertaken by central government.  

 
 8. The General Fund MRP charge using this method is estimated at £0.390m for 2012/13. 

  
 
 

Page 181



Appendix 3 
 

 2

Option 2 – CFR Method: 
 

 9. This method simplifies the calculation of MRP by basing the charge solely on the authority’s CFR 
but excludes the technical adjustments included in Option 1.  The annual MRP charge is set at 4% 
of the non-housing CFR at the end of the preceding financial year.  

 
 10. The General Fund MRP charge for this method is £nil for 2012/13. 

 
Option 3 – Asset Life Method: 
 

 11. Under this method MRP is determined by the life of the asset for which the borrowing is 
undertaken. This can be calculated by either of the following methods: 

  (a) Equal Instalments: where the principal repayment made is the same in each year, or  
  (b) Annuity: where the principal repayments increase over the life of the asset. 
 
  The annuity method has the advantage of linking MRP to the benefits arising from capital 

expenditure, where these benefits are expected to increase over the life of the asset. 
 

 12. MRP commences in the financial year following that in which the expenditure is incurred or, in the 
year following that in which the relevant asset becomes operational. This enables an MRP “holiday” 
to be taken in relation to assets which take more than one year to be completed before they 
become operational. 

 
 13. The estimated life of the asset will be determined in the year that MRP commences and will not be 

subsequently revised. However, additional repayments can be made in any year which will reduce 
the level of payments in subsequent years. 

 
 14. If no life can be reasonably attributed to an asset, such as freehold land, the life is taken to be a 

maximum of 50 years. In the case of freehold land on which a building or other structure is 
constructed, the life of the land will be treated as equal to that of the structure, where this would 
exceed 50 years. 

 
 15. In instances where central government permits revenue expenditure to be capitalised, the Statutory 

Guidance sets out the number of years over which the charge to revenue must be made. The 
maximum useful life for expenditure capitalised by virtue of a direction under s16(2)(b) is 20 years 

 
 16. MRP in respect of PFI and Operating Leases brought onto the Balance Sheet under IFRS falls 

under Option 3. 
 
 17. The General Fund MRP charge using this method is estimated at £0.409m for 2012/13.  

 
Option 4 - Depreciation Method: 
 

 18. The depreciation method is similar to that under Option 3 but MRP is equal to the depreciation 
provision required in accordance with proper accounting practices to be charged to the Income and 
Expenditure account. 

 
 19. The General Fund MRP charge for this method is £nil for 2012/13 

 
 
Conditions of Use: 
 

 20. The CLG Guidance puts the following conditions on the use of the four options: 
 
  Options 1 and 2 can be used on all capital expenditure incurred before 1st April 2008 and on 

Supported Capital Expenditure on or after that date. 

Page 182



Appendix 3 
 

 3

 
  Options 3 and 4 are considered prudent options for Unsupported Capital Expenditure on or after 1st 

April 2008. These options can also be used for Supported Capital Expenditure whenever incurred. 
 
MRP Policy for 2011/12: 
 

 21. It is proposed that for 2012/13 the Council adopts Option 1 for Supported Borrowing and Option 3 
for Unsupported Borrowing. For Option 3, the annuity method for calculating MRP will be used 
when applicable as it has the advantage of linking MRP to the benefits arising from capital 
expenditure, where these benefits are expected to increase over the life of the asset. 

 
 
 
  Table 1 
 

MRP Options 1 2 3 4
Regulatory Method CFR Method Asset Life Method Depreciation Method

Expenditure capitalised by 
virtue of a Direction under 
s16(2)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 2003

MRP Basis Former regulations 28 and 29 4% of Non-Housing CFR Equal Annual Instalments of 
Principal

Depreciation

Aspects of MRP charges EIP commences when asset 
operational

Depreciation MRP 
commences when asset 

operational
Freehold land 50 years. Depreciation MRP ceases 

when CFR component is £Nil

Freehold land with structure 
>50 years

Depreciation MRP not 
adjusted for capital receipt

Capitalisation periods Depreciation MRP based on 
proportion of asset financed 

from "borrowing".
PFI/Operating Leases 

brought on Balance Sheet 
under IFRS

CFR excludes element attributable to Unsupported Capital 
Expenditure

MRP under the CLG Guidance

Classifications of Capital Expenditure 
impacting on the CFR

Capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008
Supported Capital expenditure incurred after 1 April 2008 Unsupported Capital expenditure incurred after 1 April 2008

 
 
 
 
  

Page 183



Page 184
This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To approve and confirm the minutes of the meeting held on;
	6 Appointment of Mayor Elect and Deputy Mayor 2012/13
	2012_02_10_COU_6_Appendix_2_order_of_precedence

	10 Adoption of Licensing Act 2003 Policy Statement
	2012_02_10_COU_10_Appendix 2_draft_policy_statement
	2012_02_10_COU_10_Appendix_3_breakdown_of_amendments
	2012_02_10_COU_10_Appendix_4_list_of_consultees
	2012_02_10_COU_10_Appendix_5_consultee_comments_and_officer_responses

	11 General Fund Revenue and Capital - Revised Budget 2011/12 and Final Budget Proposals 2012/13 for Consultation (including Section 25 report)
	2012_02_10_COU_11_Final_Budget_2012.13_App2
	2012_02_10_COU_11_Final_Budget_2012.13_App3
	2012_02_10_COU_11_Final_Budget_2012.13_App4
	2012_02_10_COU_11_Final_Budget_2012.13_App5
	2012_02_10_COU_11_Final_Budget_2012.13_App6
	2012_02_10_COU_11_Final_budget_2012.13_App7
	2012_02_10_COU_11_Final_Budget_2012.13_App8
	2012_02_10_COU_11_Final_budget_2012.13_App9
	2012_02_10_COU_11_Final_budget_2012.13_App10

	12 Housing Revenue Account Business Plan
	2012_02_10_COU_12_HRA_business_plan_appendix
	2012_02_07_CAB_HRA_business_plan_appendix_HRA_Appendices

	13 Housing Revenue Account - Revised Budget 2011/12 and Final Budget Proposals 2012/13 for Consultation
	2012_02_10_COU_13_HRA_Budget_Appendices

	14 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2012/13
	2012_02_10_COU_14_Annual_Treasury_Management_Strategy_App2
	2012_02_10_COU_14_Annual_Treasury_Management_Strategy_App3


